
 

 
 

Notice of meeting of  
 

Executive 
 
To: Councillors Waller (Chair), Ayre, Steve Galloway, Moore, 

Morley, Reid and Runciman 
 

Date: Tuesday, 21 July 2009 
 

Time: 2.00 pm 
 

Venue: The Guildhall 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
 

Notice to Members - Calling In: 
 
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in any item on 
this agenda, notice must be given to Democracy Support Group by: 
 
10:00 am on Monday 20 July 2009, if an item is called in before a 
decision is taken, or 
 
4:00 pm on Thursday 23 July 2009, if an item is called in after a 
decision has been taken. 
 
Items called in will be considered by the Scrutiny Management 
Committee. 

 
 

1. Declarations of Interest   
 

At this point, Members are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interest they may have in the business on this agenda. 
 



 

2. Exclusion of Press and Public   
 

To consider the exclusion of the press and public from the meeting 
during consideration of the following, on the grounds that they 
contain information classed as exempt under Schedule 12A to 
Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as revised by The 
Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006): 
 

• Annex 2 to Agenda Item 16 (Land at the Rear of Acomb 
Explore, Front Street, Acomb) - information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of any particular person, classed 
as exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A  

 
• Agenda item 17 (Reference back from Full Council - Equal 

Pay Update) – information in respect of which a claim to legal 
professional privilege could be maintained in legal 
proceedings (contained in the original report on this item to 
the Executive meeting on 23 June 2009) 

 

• Annex 2 to Agenda item 18b (Urgent Business - Selection of 
a Supplier for a Managed Voice and Data Network) - 
information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person, classed as exempt under paragraph 3 of 
Schedule 12A 

 
3. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 10) 

 

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Executive 
held on 7 July 2009. 
 

4. Public Participation   
 

At this point in the meeting, members of the public who registered 
their wish to speak regarding an item on the agenda or an issue 
within the Executive’s remit can do so.  The deadline for registering 
is 5:00 pm on Monday 20 July 2009. 
 

5. Executive Forward Plan  (Pages 11 - 12) 
 

To receive details of those items that are listed on the Executive 
Forward Plan for the next two meetings. 
 



 

6. Sustainable Communities Act 2007 – Final Update and 
proposals  (Pages 13 - 66) 
 

This report provides an update on the outcome of the second stage 
of the public consultation on the Sustainable Communities Act 2007 
and asks Members to advise on which proposals should be 
submitted to the Local Government Association, taking into account 
the feedback from the consultation process. 
 

7. Council Headquarters – Update Report  (Pages 67 - 76) 
 

This report provides an update on the procurement process for the 
delivery of the Council’s new headquarters, presents some early 
feedback  from the recent public consultation exercise and sets out 
progress on the Office of the Future pilot study.  
 

8. Urban Eco Settlement: Proposal for a Demonstration Exemplar 
at British Sugar, York  (Pages 77 - 116) 
 

This report outlines a proposal for funding a Demonstration 
Exemplar Urban Eco Community on part of the former British Sugar 
site within the York Northwest area and seeks approval to submit 
the proposal to Leeds City Region, subject to the agreement of 
Associated British Food (the landowner of British Sugar), for 
inclusion as part of their submission to the Department of 
Communities and Local Government this July.  
 

9. Regional Funding Allocation Proposal  (Pages 117 - 134) 
 

This report sets out proposals for allocating the additional funding 
provided by the Region in 2009/10 and 2010/11 for transport 
improvements in the City and provides an update on the other 
schemes which it is proposed to fund from the Regional Funding 
Allocation.  
 

10. Final Report of the Hungate Ad Hoc Scrutiny Committee  
(Pages 135 - 326) 
 

This report presents the findings of the Hungate Ad-hoc Scrutiny 
Committee following their review of the Hungate development. 
 
 



 

11. Final Report of the Education Scrutiny Committee  (Pages 327 
- 364) 
 

This report presents the findings of the Education Scrutiny 
Committee following their review of the Extended Schools Agenda. 
 

12. Improvement Plan 2009-10 Key Actions and Milestones  (Pages 
365 - 374) 
 

This report provides an overall update on the 2009/10 action plans 
contained within the Council’s Improvement Plan. 
 

13. Treasury Management Annual Report and Review of 
Prudential Indicators  (Pages 375 - 398) 
 

This report provides an update on Treasury Management 
performance for 2008/09, as compared against the budget taken to 
Council on 21 February 2008.  
 

14. Capital Programme Out-turn 2008/09 and Revisions to the 
2009/10-1013/14 Programme  (Pages 399 - 420) 
 

This report presents the final out-turn position of the Council’s 
2008/09 capital programme and seeks approval for the statutory 
declaration on the funding of the programme and for any changes 
to the programme resulting from overspends, underspends or 
slippage. 
 

15. Revised Financial Regulations  (Pages 421 - 472) 
 

This report presents the revised Financial Regulations for 
Members’ comments and approval. 
 

16. Land at the Rear of Acomb Explore, Front Street, Acomb  
(Pages 473 - 482) 
 

This report asks Members to approve the acquisition of two sites at 
the rear of Acomb Explore as an ‘opportunity purchase’, and to 
approve a consequent amendment to the capital programme. 
 



 

17. Reference back from Full Council - Equal Pay Update   
 

To consider the following resolution made by Full Council on 9 July 
2009 in respect of the Executive’s recommendation on the Equal 
Pay Update: 
 
“That the recommendation contained in Minute 27 of the Executive 
meeting held on 23 June 2009 be referred back to the Executive 
with a request that they provide a report to Council explaining the 
basis of the recommendation.” 
 
The original report to the Executive on 23 June, together with the 
minutes of that meeting, can be accessed on the link below: 
 
http://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.asp?CId=102&MId=
4307&Ver=4 
 
[The above item was added to this agenda on 23 July 2009] 
 

18. Urgent Business   
 

Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  
Local Government Act 1972. 
 
The Chair has agreed to deal with the following items under Urgent 
Business: 
 

a) Secondary Education Provision on the East side of the City  
(Pages 483 - 496) 
 

This report summarises a complex set of issues and challenges 
facing the local authority and its schools on the east side of the City 
and seeks Members’ views on a preferred way forward. The matter 
is urgent due to the need to fulfil a commitment from the local 
authority to consider options before the end of the school term.  
 
Note: The above report was published with this agenda on 17 July 
2009. 



 

 
b) Selection of a Supplier for a Managed Voice and Data Network  

(Pages 497 - 506) 
 

This report outlines options for selecting a supplier of a managed 
Voice and Data Network The matter is urgent because an 
Executive decision is required before the next scheduled meeting 
on 8 September as there are significant risks in extending existing 
contracts further.   
 
Note: The above report was published with this agenda on 17 July 
2009. 
 
 

Democracy Officer:  
 
Name: Fiona Young 
Contact details: 

• Telephone – (01904) 551027 

• E-mail – fiona.young@york.gov.uk 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

• Registering to speak 

• Business of the meeting 

• Any special arrangements 

• Copies of reports 
 
Contact details are set out above.  

 
 



About City of York Council Meetings 
 

Would you like to speak at this meeting? 
If you would, you will need to: 

• register by contacting the Democracy Officer (whose name and contact 
details can be found on the agenda for the meeting) no later than 5.00 
pm on the last working day before the meeting; 

• ensure that what you want to say speak relates to an item of business on 
the agenda or an issue which the committee has power to consider (speak 
to the Democracy Officer for advice on this); 

• find out about the rules for public speaking from the Democracy Officer. 
A leaflet on public participation is available on the Council’s website or 
from Democratic Services by telephoning York (01904) 551088 
 
Further information about what’s being discussed at this meeting 
All the reports which Members will be considering are available for viewing 
online on the Council’s website.  Alternatively, copies of individual reports or the 
full agenda are available from Democratic Services.  Contact the Democracy 
Officer whose name and contact details are given on the agenda for the 
meeting. Please note a small charge may be made for full copies of the 
agenda requested to cover administration costs. 
 
Access Arrangements 
We will make every effort to make the meeting accessible to you.  The meeting 
will usually be held in a wheelchair accessible venue with an induction hearing 
loop.  We can provide the agenda or reports in large print, electronically 
(computer disk or by email), in Braille or on audio tape.  Some formats will take 
longer than others so please give as much notice as possible (at least 48 hours 
for Braille or audio tape).   
 
If you have any further access requirements such as parking close-by or a sign 
language interpreter then please let us know.  Contact the Democracy Officer 
whose name and contact details are given on the order of business for the 
meeting. 
 
Every effort will also be made to make information available in another 
language, either by providing translated information or an interpreter providing 
sufficient advance notice is given.  Telephone York (01904) 551550 for this 
service. 

 

Agenda AnnexPage 1



 
Holding the Executive to Account 
The majority of councillors are not appointed to the Executive (38 out of 47).  
Any 3 non-Executive councillors can ‘call-in’ an item of business from a 
published Executive (or Executive Member Decision Session) agenda. The 
Executive will still discuss the ‘called in’ business on the published date and will 
set out its views for consideration by a specially convened Scrutiny 
Management Committee (SMC).  That SMC meeting will then make its 
recommendations to the next scheduled Executive meeting in the following 
week, where a final decision on the ‘called-in’ business will be made.  
 
Scrutiny Committees 
The purpose of all scrutiny and ad-hoc scrutiny committees appointed by the 
Council is to:  

• Monitor the performance and effectiveness of services; 

• Review existing policies and assist in the development of new ones, as 
necessary; and 

• Monitor best value continuous service improvement plans 
 
Who Gets Agenda and Reports for our Meetings?  

• Councillors get copies of all agenda and reports for the committees to 
which they are appointed by the Council; 

• Relevant Council Officers get copies of relevant agenda and reports for 
the committees which they report to;  

• Public libraries get copies of all public agenda/reports.  
 

Page 2



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

MEETING EXECUTIVE 

DATE 7 JULY 2009 

PRESENT COUNCILLORS WALLER (CHAIR), AYRE, 
STEVE GALLOWAY, MOORE, MORLEY, REID AND 
RUNCIMAN 

 
PART A - MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 

 
28. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any personal 
or prejudicial interests they might have in the business on the agenda.  No 
interests were declared. 
 
 

29. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED: That the press and public be excluded from the meeting 

during consideration of Annex 4 to agenda item 6 (Effective 
Organisation Programme – Efficiency Review), on the 
grounds that it contains information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any particular person, which is classed as 
exempt under paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A to Section 100A 
of the Local Government Act 1972 (as revised by The Local 
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006). 

 
 

30. MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the Executive meeting held on 23 June 

2009 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct 
record. 

 
 

31. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION / OTHER SPEAKERS  
 
It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the 
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.  However, there 
had been one request to speak at the discretion of the Chair. 
 
With the Chair’s permission Heather Mackenzie, of UNISON, addressed 
the meeting with reference to agenda item 6 (Effective Organisation 
Programme – Efficiency Review).  She expressed concern about the 
potential impact of the proposals in the report on the Council’s staff and 
services.  Although staff and unions recognised the need for efficiencies, 
they felt that the proposals threatened job losses and privatisation with no 
corresponding guarantee of long term savings.  The apparent targeting of 
Home Care services was of particular concern, as was the proposal to 

Agenda Item 3Page 3



delegate certain key decisions to Officers, the arrangements for consulting 
with unions and the lack of detail on some issues.  She stressed that 
UNISON required involvement at an early stage and would take any steps 
necessary to oppose large scale job cuts for the sake of short term gain. 
 
 

32. EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN  
 
Members received and noted details of those items that were currently 
listed on the Forward Plan for the next two Executive meetings.  
 
 

33. EFFECTIVE ORGANISATION PROGRAMME – EFFICIENCY REVIEW  
 
Members considered a report which set out the initial findings of the recent 
review undertaken by the Council’s efficiency partners, Northgate Kendric 
Ash (NKA).  It also presented proposals from the Corporate Management 
Team (CMT) for a programme of work to ensure that the Council continued 
to provide efficient and effective services and to build upon its successful 
transformation programme. 
 
The Efficiency agenda was crucial to the objectives of the eighth theme of 
the Corporate Strategy – Effective Organisation.  NKA had been 
commissioned in December 2008 carry out a 12 week review examining 
the potential to deliver £15m savings (net of fees) across the Council.  The 
summary of their review was attached as Annex 1 to the report.  The main 
finding was that NKA were confident that the £15m target could be 
achieved within three years.  The change programme being championed 
by CMT to deliver Effective Organisation included the easy@york 
programme, the Improvement Plan, the Workforce Development Plan, 
delivery of the Customer Strategy and Engagement Strategy and a series 
of efficiency projects, details of which were set out in paragraph 25 of the 
report.  It was estimated that these projects could achieve savings totalling 
over £17.1m by the end of the programme. 
 
Although NKA’s fees were subject to the achievement of the identified 
savings, there would be a need for payments in advance of the full savings 
coming through.  It was recommended that approval be delegated to the 
Director of Resources to meet these and any other costs of the 
programme, from the Efficiency Reserve.  Approval was also sought for the 
establishment of governance arrangements for the programme, as set out 
in Annex 3 to the report.   
 
In response to the comments made under Public Participation / Other 
Speakers, Officers confirmed that the intention was to achieve efficiencies 
through a variety of means, not just ‘privatisation’.  There was a 
commitment to engaging with all affected parties during the process and all 
decisions taken must comply with the Council’s Constitution.  Members 
supported these observations and added that, whilst the efficiencies must 
be achieved, the involvement of staff was crucial to the success of the 
process.  Regular all-party briefings would also be needed, to ensure 
democratic accountability. 
 

Page 4



Having noted the comments of the Shadow Executive on this item, it was 
 
RESOLVED: (i) That approval be given to commence the year 1 

Efficiency projects set out in paragraph 25 of the report.1 

 
 (ii) That the proposed Programme governance 

arrangements set out in Annex 3 be noted. 
 
 (iii) That authority be delegated to the Director of 

Resources to agreed financial commitments to Northgate 
Kendrick Ash (on the basis of the risk reward model), and 
agree allocations from and to the Efficiency Reserve, to 
enable the delivery of the Efficiency Programme. 2 

 
 (iv) That authority be delegated to the Executive Board to 

manage the programme of efficiency projects and to develop 
further detailed proposals for years 2 and 3. 3 

 
 (v) That progress on the Efficiency Programme be 

reported at least quarterly to the Executive, and to an all-
party meeting of Group Leaders. 4 

 
REASON: To enable the Council to commence work on delivery of the 

strategic objective to be an Effective Organisation, to deliver 
service improvements and create efficiency savings of £15m 
over the next three years. 

 
Action Required  
1. Take action to commence the year 1 projects, as agreed  
2. Make the necessary arrangements for the Director of 
Resources to deal with these matters  
3. Make the necessary arrangements for the Executive 
Board to deal with these delegated matters  
4. Schedule quarterly reports on the Executive Forward Plan 
and arrange Group Leader meetings   
 

 
SA  
SA  
 
SA  
 
SA  

 
34. THE ANNUAL RISK MANAGEMENT REPORT 2009  

 
Members considered a report which provided information on the successful 
outcomes achieved through the deployment of effective risk management 
arrangements across the Council during the past year, summarised the 
impacts and risks of the current economic downturn, and sought approval 
for a revised and refreshed risk management policy and strategy. 
 
Overall, there was evidence that the organisation was considering risk in a 
much more positive way.  Risk was now owned, managed and delivered as 
part of good business practice by officers across departments and was no 
longer viewed as a separate bureaucratic process.  A summary of changes 
in the Key Corporate Risks (KCRs) profile indicated that in most cases the 
number of risks had reduced over the course of the year.   
 

Page 5



The output of the work requested by Members last October on the impact 
of the current economic downturn was presented in Annex A to the report.  
From this it was clear that, in addition to its financial impact, the recession 
could also affect service provision and performance levels against National 
Indicators.  However, work was being undertaken to manage and mitigate 
these risks.  The revised policy and strategy were attached at Annexes B 
and C respectively.  The policy set out the Council’s aspirations and 
objectives with regard to risk management, while the strategy provided a 
corporate framework to assist in implementing risk management practices.  
Both documents had been revised to provide clear, up to date best 
practice advice, and to reflect a more mature approach to risk 
management. 
 
With reference to a recent article in the Press concerning car parking 
charges in the city centre, it was noted that this was incorrect and that 
there were no major changes planned or current in this area of work. 
 
Having noted the comments of the Shadow Executive on this item, it was 
 
RESOLVED: (i) That the contents of the report, and progress to date, 

be noted. 
 
 (ii) That the economic downturn risks set out in Annex A, 

and the intended action to manage them, be noted. 
 

(iii) That the revised and refreshed risk management 
policy and strategy, set out in Annexes B and C respectively, 
be approved. 1 

 
REASON: To raise awareness of risk management issues and to 

ensure the implementation of an approved framework for the 
delivery of effective risk management at the Council. 

 
Action Required  
1. Implement the revised risk management policy and 
strategy   
 

 
SA  

 
35. STREET LEVEL SERVICES AND AREA BASED WORKING  

 
Members considered a report which set out a revised vision for street level 
services and recommendations for Area based working, in line with the 
‘More for York’ transformation proposals. 
 
The new vision was intended to build upon the work done under the York 
Pride initiative and to deliver benefits similar to the successful ‘StreetPride’ 
initiative in Rotherham.  It encompassed: 

• A more efficient end to end approach to service delivery 

• A comprehensive re-branding of street level services 

• Stronger area management arrangements 

• A strengthened approach to devolved budgeting and local decision 
making. 

Page 6



 
If supported by Members, the vision would be delivered through the 
existing More for York and Easy@york projects.  Details of how this would 
be achieved were set out in paragraphs 18 to 33 of the report.  Stage 1 
(system and service re-design work), could be achieved through 
Easy@york by the end of the 2009 calendar year.  If Members agreed the 
vision in principle, a detailed implementation plan would be produced 
showing how much of the change could be completed by April 2010 or, if 
necessary, beyond that date. 
 
Having noted the comments of the Shadow Executive on this item, it was 
 
RESOLVED: (i) That the principle of area based working, and the 

street level services proposed in the report, be supported. 1 
 
 (ii) That a further report be received, outlining the details 

of areas and options for a single brand. 2 
 
REASON: In order to achieve further improvements in street level 

services, based upon previous achievements, the original 
York Pride vision and the ‘More for York’ proposals. 

 
Action Required  
1. Develop implementation plan, as per paragraph 39 of 
report  
Schedule a further detailed report on the Forward Plan for 
an appropriate Executive meeting   
 

 
KS  
 
KS  

 
36. CASTLE PICCADILLY REGENERATION PROJECT  

 
Members considered a report which provided an update on the progress of 
the Castle Piccadilly regeneration project since the last report to Executive, 
in November 2008, and recommended a course of action to continue the 
project. 
 
A full procurement exercise had been undertaken, in accordance with all 
procurement and legislative requirements.  Responses to the Invitation to 
Tender had been assessed and Officers had met with the proposed 
development partner or ‘Preferred Concessionaire’, LaSalle UK Ventures 
Property. This company was the current operator of the Coppergate 
Centre.  They had appointed Centros as their development manager, to 
deliver a retail-led scheme on the Castle Piccadilly site that met the 
Council’s aims and objectives.  Centros had extensive experience of 
similar projects. 
 
The Council would now work with LaSalle and Centros to take the project 
through the next stages, as set out in the Castle Piccadilly Planning Brief.  
The next steps in this process, which included public consultation and 
reporting to Members at each stage as well as early engagement with key 
agencies, were set out in paragraphs 8 to 11 of the report 
 
Having noted the comments of the Shadow Executive on this item, it was 

Page 7



 
RESOLVED: (i) That the successful outcome of the procurement 

process, with the result that LaSalle UK Venture Property are 
the preferred concessionaire for the Castle Piccadilly 
Regeneration Project, be noted. 

 
REASON: So that the requirements of the procurement process are 

satisfied. 
 
 (ii) That the recommended course of action for the next 

stage of the project, as detailed in paragraphs 8 to 11 of the 
report, be approved. 1 

 
REASON: So that negotiations can take place with the preferred 

concessionaire and the development partner to ensure that 
this project, which is vital for the long term economic well 
being of the City, can be quickly progressed. 

 
Action Required  
1. Proceed with the next stages of the project, as per 
paragraphs 8-11 of report   
 
 

 
SS  

 
PART B - MATTERS REFERRED TO COUNCIL 

 
37. CUSTOMER STRATEGY  

 
Members considered a report which presented a draft Customer Strategy 
and Delivery Plan, setting out a vision for the delivery of customer focused, 
efficient council services, as part of the Council’s strategic priority to 
become an Effective Organisation. 
 
The draft Strategy, attached as Annex 1 to the report, reflected the results 
of consultation carried out on an earlier draft presented to the Executive in 
October 2008.  It included a Delivery Plan, a Customer Strategy Toolkit to 
embed customer service culture into service planning and delivery, new 
Customer First standards and behaviours and a simple Customer Leaflet 
to communicate the Strategy.  The work identified in the Delivery Plan was 
significant and cross-cutting and would require a sustained corporate effort 
to sustain it.  The lead Officer for the Plan would be the Resources AD for 
Customer Service and Governance, in her role as Customer Champion. 
 
Members were invited to comment on the draft Strategy and recommend it 
to Full Council for approval. 
 
Having noted the comments of the Shadow Executive on this item, it was 
 
RECOMMENDED: That the Customer Strategy and Delivery Plan be 

approved. 
 

Page 8



REASON: To ensure that customer service excellence is 
delivered in York, in line with the Council’s strategy 
and vision. 

 
 
 
 
 
A Waller, Chair 
[The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 2.50 pm]. 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Executive Meeting 21 July 2009 
 
EXECUTIVE FORWARD PLAN 
 
 

Table 1: Items scheduled on the Forward Plan for the Executive Meeting on 8 September 2009 

Title & Description Author Portfolio Holder 

Barbican Update 
 
Purpose of report: To update and recommend next steps for procurement. 
 
Members are asked to: Agree proposals for procurement for the Barbican. 

Pete Dwyer Executive Member for 
Learning, Culture & 
Children’s Services 

Final Report of the Planning Enforcement Ad Hoc Scrutiny Committee 
 
Purpose of report: To present the final findings and recommendations of the 
Committee’s review into planning enforcement. 
 
Members are asked to: Note and approve the recommendations arising from 
the review. 
 

Tracy Wallis Executive Member for 
Corporate Services 

 
 

Table 2: Items scheduled on the Forward Plan for the Executive Meeting on 22 September 2009 
 
None listed   

 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 5

P
a
g
e
 1

1



 

Table 3: Items slipped on the Forward Plan with the agreement of the Group Leaders 

Title & Description Author Portfolio 
Holder 
 

Original Date Revised Date Reason for Slippage 

Carbon and Energy 
Management 
Programme – Update 
 
Purpose of report: A 
progress report on how 
the authority is to achieve 
25% carbon emission 
reductions by 2013 
 
Members are asked to: 
Acknowledge the 
progress and 
achievements made and 
approve a future 
workplan 
 

Neil 
Hindhaugh 

Executive 
Leader 

21 July  8 September To reduce the amount 
of business on the 
agenda for 21 July, as 
this item is not urgent 

 

P
a

g
e
 1

2



 

  

   

 
 

Executive 21st July 2009 
 

Report of the Director of Neighbourhood Services 
 

Sustainable Communities Act 2007 – Final Update and proposals 
 

Purpose of report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to:  
 

o Update the Executive on the outcome of the second stage of the public 
consultation on the Sustainable Communities Act 2007 (SCA). 

 
o Request members to note the outcomes from the consultation process 

(Annex Six and Tables One, Two and Three in the main report).   
 

o To advise officers which proposals contained within Annex Six and 
Tables One, Two and Three should be submitted to the Local 
Government Association (LGA) by the 31st July 2009, whilst taking into 
account feedback from the consultation processes which identified the 
7 most supported proposals detailed at paragraph 23. 

 
Background 
 

2. On 27th November 2008, a Council motion on the SCA was submitted by 
Cllr Aspden and Cllr Hyman, and subsequently amended by Cllr 
D'Agorne, asking officers to consult with the public and submit proposals 
as envisaged under the Act.  

 
3. A report was presented to the Executive on 14th April 2009, which 

described the provisions of the SCA, contained details of the process to 
consult the public, and to determine which suggestions would go forward 
to the LGA.  

 
4. To comply with the Council motion, and the process agreed by members 

at the Executive meeting on 14th April 2009, officers of the Neighbourhood 
Management Unit (NMU), were asked to lead the city-wide consultation 
with the public, ward committees and other organisations.  This was done 
via ward committees and via an on-line consultation facility.  The purpose 

Agenda Item 6Page 13



of this first stage of the consultation was to provide the public with a 
vehicle through which to submit their proposals under the Act.  The closing 
date for the consultation via the internet and the ward committee meetings 
was 8th May 2009.   

 
5. As a result of the consultation the council received 327 proposals from 

individuals, community groups and Parish councils across the city1.  All of 
these were individually reviewed by a cross–directorate officer project 
group, the Corporate Management Team (CMT) and finally, by individual 
Directors.  The purpose of this review process was to ascertain whether 
any proposal already fell within powers which the authority currently holds, 
(and would, therefore, be outside the scope of the SCA 2007) or whether 
new powers would be required, and as such, they fell within the scope of 
the SCA 2007. 

 
6. Of the 327 proposals, the project group, CMT and Directors have 

determined that 281 already fall within the powers of the local authority or 
are such that they could be deleted for other reasons; for example as 
being not pragmatic.   

 
7. In total 46 proposals did not fall within the council’s current powers and 

were therefore within the scope of the SCA 2007.  These 46 proposals 
were considered by Executive on 9th June 2009 (Annex One).  At this 
meeting the Executive resolved that all of the proposals (excluding ID no. 
256), should go forward to the second stage of the consultation process.  
In addition, the Executive provided an additional Annex which they 
resolved should also be taken forward to the next stage of the 
consultation.  (This is shown in Annex Two).  As a result of this 
information from the Executive, a total of 48 proposals were considered in 
the next stages of the consultation.  These are listed in Annex Three. 

 

The consultation process – Stage Two 
 
8. The second stage of the consultation process consisted of 3 approaches. 
 
Without Walls Executive Delivery Board 
 
9. On 15th June 2009 the proposals were considered by the Without Walls 

Executive Delivery Board.  The purpose of this was to ask the Board which 
proposals they felt support the themes of the Sustainable Community 
Strategy (SCS), City Vision and the Local Area Agreement (LAA) priorities. 

 
Citizens Panel 
 

                                            
1
 It should be noted that the proposals have been generated by the public  and facilitated by 

officers of CYC.  The proposals have therefore not been led by officers. 

Page 14



10. On 18th June 2009 the same proposals were considered and discussed by 
a Citizens Panel.  This panel was made up of members of the “Talk About“ 
Panel, supplemented by young people with an interest in sustainability 
issues, some members of Executive2 and representatives of organisations 
and groups who had put forward proposals.   

 
11. The SCA 2007 and the associated Statutory Guidance provide clear 

requirements on the need to ensure that the consultation via Citizens 
Panels considers and includes individuals who have an interest in the 
proposals and those who may be considered ‘under-represented’.  Over 
500 invitations were sent to Talk About panellists, (which were randomly 
selected).  These included a spread of ages, equal numbers of men and 
women, individuals with a disability and those from a BME background.  
53 positive response were received and 45 individuals were invited to 
attend the Citizens Panel.  Details of the membership of the Citizens Panel 
are included in Annex Four. 

 
12. The Citizens Panel discussions were facilitated by officers from the NMU 

and supported by council officers from directorates affected by proposals.  
The Citizens Panel were split in to groups and allocated to a number of 
discussion tables which considered proposals grouped into themes, 
namely: 

 
o Transport 
o Housing and Planning; land use and ownership 
o Environment – Energy 
o Environment – Recycling 
o Revenue, taxes and Local economy 
 

The members of the Citizens Panel were provided with an opportunity to 
discuss 2 themes each.  However, if any individual felt that they wanted to 
discuss a particular theme, they were permitted to do so. 
 

13. Each of the proposals were discussed with the assistance of the facilitator 
and ‘expert’ officers.  This increased understanding of the proposals, 
enabled an opportunity for comments and in some cases for a consensus 
to be reached.  Towards the end of the meeting, the discussions were 
summarised and all of the members of the panel (excluding Executive 
members) were provided with the opportunity to vote for all of the 48 
proposals, using electronic voting buttons, for their preferred proposals 
within the themes (a prioritisation exercise). 
 

Council Web-site 
 

                                            
2
  Elected members did not participate in the prioritisation and voting exercise. 

Page 15



14. The proposals have also been subject to a final full citywide consultation 
via ‘consultation on-line’ on the Councils web site.  This survey opened on 
22nd and closed on 29th June 2009.  The public were given the opportunity 
to comments on all 48 proposals by selecting their top 3 proposals within 
the themed areas.  They were also asked to indicate whether they agreed 
or disagreed with the proposals identified by Executive in the previous 
meeting of 9th June 2009 (Annex Two).   

 

Consultation Feedback and Results 
 
Without Walls Executive Delivery Board 
 
15. Feedback from the Without Walls Delivery Board was made both at the 

meeting, and subsequently.  The focus on their comments were 
essentially to identify those which seemed to have a high degree of 
linkage to the Sustainable Community Strategy or LAA targets.  A 
summary is provided in Table One below.  Full details of how each of the 
proposals could potentially impact on the Sustainable Community Strategy 
and Local Area Agreement are contained in Annex Five. 

 
 

Table One – Summary of WOW consultation feedback 
 

ID 
Number 

Proposal summary 
Potential 
Impact of 
proposal 

122 

Business Rates retained locally for spending 
on sustainability (including economic) by 
council. 
 

High 

184 

Ensure that all landfill tax and Landfill 
Allowance Trading Scheme penalties are 
returned to local authorities for investment in 
further recycling, reduction and reuse and 
repair measures. 
 

High 

153 
Let the City Of York keep 100% of council 
house rental income. 
 

High 

 
 
Citizens Panel 
 
16. The feedback from those participating in the event was extremely positive.  

These included:  
 

Page 16



o ‘very informative’; 
o ‘well organised to make participants feel that their views are of 

value’; 
o the chance to give my views on the future of my city home and to 

meet other interested people.  I thoroughly enjoyed the event. 
o It was extremely informative and interactive 
o Networking with others and hearing different points of view.  Terrific 

choice of venue. Excellent input and organisation from organisers 
and council representatives. 

o Good way of reaching consensus, chance to vote. 
o On the most part very structured, informative and interesting to be 

part of the process.   
 
17. The discussions at the tables were animated and inclusive.  Individuals 

fully participated in the process.  The willingness of the panel members to 
get involved led to lively but focused discussions. 

 
18. Key elements of the feedback from the discussions, by theme, are 

included within Annex Six. During the prioritisation exercise the Citizens 
Panel were asked to identify their priority from grouped suggestions within 
themes.  The exact votes are contained within Annex Six.  A summary is 
provided in Table Two below. 

 
19. Feedback will be provided on the status of the schemes on the CYC web 

site.  This will include the Executive Report and the associated annexes.  
Feedback will also be provided to ward committees upon request on 
suggestions relevant to their wards. 

 
 

Page 17



Table Two – Feedback from the Citizens Panel Prioritisation Exercise 
 

Theme ID’s within Grouping  Conclusion 
 

Transport 

148, 183, 204, 211, 223, 
290 

Re-regulation of buses received 48% of votes (ID 183) 

Taking bold steps to deal with traffic problems received 37% of 
the votes (ID 290) 

Safe road use in the national curriculum was not supported at all 
(ID223) 

37, 43, 44, 45, 118, 124 Local authorities make final decision regarding housing 
allocation target numbers received 31% of the votes (ID 45) 

Ambient renewable energy facilities classified as permitted 
development received 29% of the votes (ID 124) 

Ban of sale of properties in new developments as second homes 
received no support (ID 43) 

Housing and Planning, 
Land use and 

ownership 

153, 202, 220, 260, 296, 
310, 318 

Retaining 100% of council house rental income received 41% of 
the vote (ID 153) 

Making planning decisions remaining local received 24% (ID 
310) 

Environment – Energy 

22, 35, 61, 111, 123 Generate energy via community renewable sources so that 
money comes back into the community received 46% of votes 
(ID 123) 

Support for insulation purchases etc received 26% (ID 35) 

P
a

g
e
 1

8



Theme ID’s within Grouping  Conclusion 
 

 
182, 214, 265, 270, 295, 
298 

Community renewable energy projects received  34% of votes 
(ID 295 and ID 123) 

ID 182, 256 and 270 received equal support at 17% of the votes 
each 

40, 65, 68, 69, 112 Returning packaging to supermarkets received 60% of the votes 
(ID 68) 

Environment – 
Recycling 

130, 213, 226, 278 Bringing commercial waste into council targets received 43% of 
votes (ID 130) 

Powers around recycling and packaging received 37% of votes 
(ID 213) 

There was no support for eco-cigarettes (ID 278) 

15, 50, 67, 117 Charging business rates based on waste production, and the LA 
giving preference to locally sourced foods, materials etc each 
received 34% of the votes (ID 67 & 117) Revenue, Taxes and 

local economy 
119, 122, 184, 250, 325 Retention of business rates locally for spending on sustainability  

received 53% of the votes (ID 122) 
 

 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

9



 Citywide Web based consultation 
 
20. The response rate to the consultation was low with only 9 responses, 

despite having contacted over 200 organisations and individuals to make 
them aware of the process. 

 
21. A summary of this is provide in Table Three below. 
 

Theme 
 

Conclusion 

Transport 
Taking steps to address traffic problems (ID 
290) and Re-regulation of bus services (ID 
183)  were the most popular 

Housing and Planning Land 
use and ownership 

Banning the sale of properties in new 
developments as second homes (ID 43) was 
the most popular. 

Environment – Energy 

Putting environmental sustainability at the 
centre of LAA’s and requiring Sustainable 
Community Strategies to include detailed 
plans for cutting greenhouse emissions (ID 
182) was the most popular 

Environment – Recycling 
Promoting sustainable packaging, etc (ID 
213) was the most popular. 

Revenue Taxes and Local 
economy 

Ensuring that landfill tax and Landfill 
Allowance are returned to local authorities 
for investment in further recycling (ID 184 
was the most popular. 

 
22. In terms of feedback on the Executives additional proposals in Annex 

Two the most popular proposals were numbers 1 (Greater powers to bring 
into use empty buildings and unused land) and 7 (Recycling and waste 
management in the city).  There was no support for proposal (a) 
concerning housing allocations target numbers. 

 
Summary of the consultation 
 
23. In conclusion it can be seen from the consultation that the Citizens Panel’s  

and Without Walls Executive Delivery Board preferred 7 proposals are: 
 

o Returning packing to supermarkets (ID 68) (supported by Citizens 
Panel) 

o Retention of business rates locally (ID 122)  (supported by both) 
o Re-regulation of buses (ID 183) (supported by Citizens Panel) 
o Generating energy via community renewable sources (ID295 and ID 

123) (Supported by Citizens Panel) 

Page 20



o Bringing commercial waste in to council recycling targets (ID 130) 
(supported by Citizens Panel) 

o Retaining council house income (ID 153) (supported by both) 
o Ensuring that all landfill tax and Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme 

penalties are returned to local authorities for investment in further 
recycling, reduction and reuse and repair measures  ID 184 (supported 
by WoW Executive Delivery Board) 

 
The ones that received no support at all were: 

 
o Eco-cigarettes (ID 278) 
o Safe road user in the national curriculum (ID223) 

 
24. The UK Environmental Law Foundation has been undertaking a telephone 

survey of how local authorities have dealt with the consultation process.  
At the time of writing this report, it had not finalised the analysis, nor 
published the results of the survey.  However, the Foundation was able to 
offer the following comments. 

 
“Local Authorities are using the following bodies as Panels: 

 
(a) Type of panel used: 

 
Citizens panel 25% 
Representative panel  29% 
LSP 38% 
Geographic/ward meeting 4% 
Public meeting 0% 
Independent Representative Forums 8% 

 
(b) York is using both the LSP and a representative citizens panel, 

supplemented to make it more representative, and is therefore 
consulting more widely than average, in terms of type of panel.  
Looking at who is in these groups, the York LSP includes 
representation from the voluntary sector and under-represented 
groups, and the Citizens Panel has been supplemented to make it 
more representative.  Therefore, York has taken steps to ensure 
these groups are representative and I think is doing more than 
average here too. 

 
(c) Transparency of decision-making and provision of good feedback 

play an important part..  Here too, York has mechanisms in place to 
give feedback to individuals and meetings, and a summary article is 
intended to inform people what has happened with their proposals.  
I see from the website, you are also giving people the opportunity to 

Page 21



comment on the short-list of proposals.  This goes beyond what 
other local authorities are doing.” 

 

Taking the proposals forward 
 
25. The total number of proposals currently stands at 48, from which 7 have 

been highlighted as the preferred suggestions during the 2nd stage 
consultation exercise (para. 23 above).  Any proposal selected to go 
forward to the LGA needs to be submitted by 31st July 2009 via a word 
document in a prescribed form.  There may be resource implications of 
completing these forms within the lead Directorates, which needs to be 
taken into account when selecting the final number of proposals for 
submission.  The content of the prescribed form has now been finalised by 
the LGA and is contained within Annex Seven.  Once submitted the 
contents of the forms will be made publicly available.   

 
26. The LGA has not got a specific time in which the proposals from across 

the country will be short-listed however, they have stated that the panel 
will seek to do so quickly and that regular updates will be made on 
progress through the Selector Newsletter.   The Panel will be made up of a 
cross party members.  They will operate under the following key principles: 

 
i) the process should be transparent and open.  The panel will 

feedback on reasons for the decisions made. 
ii) The process should seek to minimise the burden on local 

authorities and local people. 
iii) The act is about local solutions to local priorities. 
iv) Proposals should meet the basic tests of the act. 
v) Proposals should be viable and based on evidence. 
vi) The selector panel will operate as a champion and advocate for 

short-listing proposals. 
vii) The selector will negotiate with the Secretary of State (SoS) on 

the basis of the proposal only.  Where proposals are felt to have 
a wider impact (for example the whole of the local government 
sector the Selector will highlight to and support the LGA or 
relevant organisation to take this forward). 

 
27. The SoS is required to try to reach agreement with the Selector regarding 

which proposals to implement.  There is no timeframe for this however, the 
LGA have undertaken to seek to progress negotiations as quickly as 
possible and provide regular updates to the authorities concerned. 

 
28. The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) wrote to 

local authorities in October 2008 and outlined a number of considerations 
that they would take into account when determining which proposals to 
accept.  These are: 

Page 22



 
 That the department will be looking for proposals that 

i) promote sustainability 
ii) are specific about what barriers need to be removed 
iii) clarifies that the SCA is not a route for agreeing additional 

resources 
The department went on to say that it would consider: 

i) cost benefit of proposals 
ii) impact on specific groups 
iii) governments existing policy position. 

 
29. Once the negotiation stage is complete the SoS will confirm which 

proposals will be implemented and provides reasons for the decision.  The 
SoS is required to report annually on progress with the implementation. 

 
30. It should be noted that DCLG have not confirmed when or if indeed a 

further  round of SCA consultation might take place. 
 

Implications 
 
31. Financial Implications – The financial implications of any of the 

proposals can only be determined once selected proposals are agreed by 
the Executive.  There has been a financial implication to the consultation, 
in particular in terms of the use of a Citizens Panel.  This includes venue 
hire, production of event materials, refreshments and expenses for the 
participants.  There is no dedicated budget available for this process 
within the council.  These costs have been allocated to the NMU cost 
centre. 

 
Legal implications – There may be significant legal implications relating 
to some of the proposals.  

 
HR – There are no HR  implications associated with this report. 

 
Equalities – Equalities issues and ensuring that under represented 
groups form part of the Citizens Panel have been considered during the 
stages of the consultation process.   
 
ITT – There are no IT  implications associated with this report. 

 
Corporate Priorities 
 
32. The content of this report supports the Councils Corporate Strategy, in 

particular by enabling the public to shape and influence decisions through 
listening to communities and providing a greater say in local priorities. 

Page 23



 

Risk Management 
 
33. This report is in compliance with the Councils Risk Management Strategy.  

As discussed in para. 25 above there is very little time between the 
Executive meeting and the final submission date to the LGA (10 days).  
There will be a risk of not achieving the deadline if a large number of 
proposals are put forward or should a number of the proposals be led by a 
single Directorate or officer.  In completing the proposal submission forms 
the Lead Officers and Directorates will need to evaluate the proposals 
chosen by Executive to go forwards, in particular highlighting any potential 
risks associated with it for the authority.  Any such risks identified will be 
discussed by the relevant Director with the relevant Executive Member 
prior to the submission of the proposal.  These will need to be detailed 
within the submission to provide a balanced statement of the proposals 
impact.   

 
Recommendations 
 
34. The Executive are recommended to: 
 

a. Note the information provided within paragraphs 8 and 24, Tables 
One, Two and Three and Annexes Five and Six concerning the 
outcome of the public consultation exercise undertaken. 

Reason:  So that Members are informed of the consultation and 
that it met the requirements of the Council motion by having the 
topic discussed at all ward committees across the city. 

b. Advise officers which proposals should be submitted, having regard 
to the 7 most supported proposals detailed at paragraph 23 and 
bearing in mind the risks management section of this report in 
paragraph 33 above.  

Reason:  To ensure compliance with the deadline for submission of 
31st July 2009. 

 
Contact Details 
 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

Zoe Burns 
(Head of Neighbourhood 
Management and Business 
Support) 

Andy Hudson 
(Assistant Director Neighbourhoods and 
Community Safety) 
Extn 1814 

Page 24



Ext 1817 
 

 

 Report Approved: ���� Date: 8/7/09 
 
Specialist Implications Officer(s)  A project group consisting of key officers 
have facilitated their Directorates to consider the implications of the proposals 
made by the public. 
 

All ���� Wards Affected: 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
 
Background Papers: 
 

1.  Sustainable Communities Act 2007 
2.  Council motion 27th November 2008 
3. 14th April 2009 Executive Report of the Director of Neighbourhood 

Communities Sustainable Communities Act 2007 
4. 9th June 2009 Executive Report of the Director of Neighbourhood Services 

Update on the Sustainable Communities Act  2007 (public consultation). 
5. HM Government Creating Strong, Safe and Prosperous Communities 

Statutory Guidance July 2008 Annex 1 – Sustainable Communities Act 
2007 Statutory Guidance 

6. Communities and Local Government February 2008 Sustainable 
Communities Act 2007: A Guide.  

7. Spreadsheet showing all suggestions. 
 
 
Annexes 
 
Annex One  Proposals following screening by Project Team 

(Directorates), CMT and Directors and approved by 
Executive on 9th June 2009. 

Annex Two SCA additional proposals for further consideration put 
forwards by Executive on 9th June 2009. 

Annex Three List of the 48 proposals taken to Stage Two consultation 
Annex Four Citizens Panel membership details  
Annex Five Without Walls Executive Delivery Board consultation 

Feedback 
Annex Six Citizens Panel discussion consultation feedback 
Annex Seven  LGA final proposal form content 
 
8/07/09 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex One  – Proposals following screening by Project Team (Directorates) and CMT and approved by Executive on the 
9th June 2009. 

ID Suggestion detail Category 

15 To enable villages to be sustainable for all members of society, the government should give 
grants, equal to parish council receipts to groups (volunteers, charitable associations) to allow 
them to decide upon local improvements, amenity improvements, etc.  Only local organisations 
have their feet on the ground  and know exactly what is required.  This would be supported by all 
the groups in Skelton 

community facilities and 
activities 

22 Make shops/companies let out the vacant rooms above their premises in return for a sustainable 
grant to make them energy efficient 

environmental 

35 Support for insulation purchases.  Better insulation reduces carbon emissions, warming and helps 
save us all money!  Better threshold for new houses too. 

environmental 

37 Require developers to lease land they own, but have not developed, to local councils to use for 
community purposes.  Land that was intended for development (either for house building or retail 
use) but has not is likely to be developed in the near future.  The land could be put to good use by 
communities to provide facilities for local residents (allotments/playing fields).  Developers would 
retain ownership, councils would be barred from using in ways that prevented its subsequent 
development in the long term.  The land would be leased to local communities at a nominal rate. 

land ownership and 
leasing 

40 Stop delivery of plastic charity bags environmental 

43 Planning, Land, Housing: Introduce legislation to ban the sale of properties in new developments 
as second homes. [See Hungate example where new properties are this week being marketed as 
second homes, which contributes nothing to meeting local housing need.] 

land ownership and 
leasing 

44 Planning, Land, Housing: Introduce legislation to give local communities the same rights to 
appeal against planning decisions as developers. As part of this, empower local authorities to 
provide an independent fund to which local communities can apply for financial support when 
contesting development proposals and provide government funding to support this 

planning 

45 Planning, Land, Housing: Make it clear in legislation that local authorities make the final decision 
(through their LDF process) regarding housing allocation target numbers for their area, whilst still 
requiring them to cooperate and discuss housing strategies at a regional level. 

housing 

P
a
g
e
 2

7



Annex One  – Proposals following screening by Project Team (Directorates) and CMT and approved by Executive on the 
9th June 2009. 

ID Suggestion detail Category 

50 Green Development & Flood Mitigation: Tax to have the effect of double water rates if private 
gardens are made impermeable. 

environmental 

61 Energy: Requirement to install Wind Turbines adjacent to the ring road roads (& other trunk 
roads) - This is clearly about both processes. The ring road is an almost derelict area, noisy and 
for the most part distant from housing.  We should establish a series of Wind Turbines which are 
owned by the community and the profit used to support further greening of York and surrounds 
and help create a more equal community. 

environmental 

65 Waste: Make it illegal to make things that are non-repairable/recyclable (BASED ON 
RECOMMENDATIONS FROM WRAP) 

environmental 

67 Waste: Charge business rates according to the waste produced from all of that company’s 
products and processes (not just what they dispose of) and/or a packaging tax. 

environmental 

68 Waste: Legislation so that packaging can be taken back to local supermarkets for re-use, 
recycling, or they would have to pay the landfill tax for its disposal. 

environmental 

69 Waste: Review property law so that it is not theft  to take things that would otherwise be going to 
landfill. 

environmental 

111 Require minimum levels of insulation before properties can be sold or rented (some financial aid 
for owners to bring buildings up to standard and limited exemptions for hard to treat properties eg 
listed buildings) 

housing 

112 Require composting toilets or reed bed systems and rainwater collection to be fitted in all new 
developments or on-site treatments tanks so no sewerage leaves the site and provide funding for 
the retrofitting of these. All recycles to allotment, garden or drinking water. 

environmental 

118 Requirement that  trees, bushes etc used in landscaping be those that produce an edible crop eg 
fruit and nut trees, fruit bushes or those suitable for coppicing. 

environmental 

119 Govt promotion and new financial regs to allow the issue of Community Bonds to finance local 
building of renewable energy, sustainable homes, retrofitting etc 

environmental 

P
a

g
e
 2

8



Annex One  – Proposals following screening by Project Team (Directorates) and CMT and approved by Executive on the 
9th June 2009. 

ID Suggestion detail Category 

123 Generate energy via community renewable energy so that money comes back into the 
community. 

environmental 

124 Change of regulation so that community based ambient renewable energy facilities are classified 
as general permitted developments (not requiring planning permission) but for community 
initiatives only, not for external companies. 

environmental 

130 Bring Commercial waste into councils targets for increasing recycling (I.e. by commercial waste in 
the system of LATS penalties) 

environmental 

133 Charge business rates according to the total waste produced as a result of all that company's 
products and processes (not just what they themselves dispose of) and/or packaging tax 

environmental 

148 Legislation to reduce the horse-power rating allowed for private vehicles, perhaps with 
application/proof of use necessary to buy high power agricultural/load towing 4x4 vehicles 

transport 

153 Let the City of York keep 100% of council house rental income housing 

182 Put environmental sustainability at the centre of local area agreements (rather than sidelining it as 
is currently the case) and require all 'Sustainable  Community Strategies' to include detailed plans 
(with annual targets) for cutting greenhouse emissions in the local authority are by 40% by 2020. 

environmental 

184 Ensure that all landfill tax and LATS penalties are returned to local authorities for investment in 
further recycling, reduction, reuse and repair measures 

revenue / tax 

202 Improvements to Fulford Ings.  It is mostly in private ownership but the public have access to it 
and it has Site of Specific Interest status.Natural England works with landowners on a 
management scheme but is finding it difficult to fund this.  There are many things which would 
improve the site by preserving it biological diversity and making it more accessible to the public. 
Work needed would include improvements to the drainage and footpaths, new fencing gates and 
hedging.  See sheet for full details. 

environmental 

P
a
g
e
 2

9



Annex One  – Proposals following screening by Project Team (Directorates) and CMT and approved by Executive on the 
9th June 2009. 

ID Suggestion detail Category 

204 On the spot fines for parking on the verges is merely cosmetic and will not address the issue of 
cars obstructing pavements so it would be much more helpful if there were on the spot fines for 
parking on any raised pavement areas.  This would assist not only the blind and partially sighted 
but also those in wheelchairs or with walking frames.  We have examples in our area where 
walking frame users have to walk in the road because the cars are parked right across the 
pavement. Car owners driving past then shout at people for walking in the road.  Cars also park 
over the lowered pavement access area thus forcing wheelchair users and their carers to 
negotiate kerbs - not acceptable.  The quality of life and environment is impaired by those who 
park on any pavement area and on the spot fines would send a message that it is unacceptable in 
York and hopefully would lead to the problem being solved. 

highways and street 
environment issues 

211 I would like to see air compressed cars only allowed in the city centre.Can you in association with 
Yorkshire Forward invite MDI to start production here? 

transport 

213 Recycling/Waste Management in the City: Give the council powers to: 1) restrict wasteful 
packaging and promote recyclable or compostable packaging for take away food sales (I.e 
eliminate polystyrene boxes in favour of paper and card), 2) to require retail outlets and/or 
companies  to collect recyclable containers (I.e. bottles and cans) against a deposit.  For 
examples of this, look at germany.  York could promote itself as a flagship city of sustainable 
waste management and reduce the litter problem in the process.  3) promote the use of (standard 
size and shape) returnable bottles, boxes and packaging, e.g for food.  This could also be first 
implemented in local bye-laws.  McDonalds etc. would not want to pass up on a major toursit 
attraction.  Packaging can be returned by supermarkets in empty returning lorries. 

environmental 

214 Controls on energy consumption/carbon emissions: Give the council powers to: 1) to restrict 
usage of outdoor heating e.g gas heaters used in pubs.  Also include restrictions on heating in e.g 
shops who leave their frontage wide open.  2) Relax conservation rules on listed buildings to 
allow double glazing and better insulation as well as renewable energy installations (solar 
water,photovoltaics) on roofs etc. 

environmental 

223 The national curriculum should be changed to include being a safe road user (including cycling 
and driver education).  The national 'Bike It' cycle training should be government funded to be 
offered free in all schools. 

education 

P
a

g
e
 3

0



Annex One  – Proposals following screening by Project Team (Directorates) and CMT and approved by Executive on the 
9th June 2009. 

ID Suggestion detail Category 

226 Companies should be taxed on any packaging other than cardboard and forced to accept it back 
for re-use or recycling as appropriate.  Commercial waste should be included in the government 
target levels for cutting landfill and made to pay the same excess charge for exceeding those 
limits. 

environmental 

250 My concern for York, not just for Fishergate, is being ready for the consequences of climate 
change and peak oil. We need to be actively trying to mitigate these by e.g. localising food 
production and employment, improving flood defences 

environmental 

256 RIVALRY BETWEEN TWO ADJACENT VILLAGES - very little solid cooperation, and amenities 
developed separately, although shared to some extent.  Most of commercial facilities in Haxby but 
more green space in Wigginton 

community facilities and 
activities 

260 Lots of green trees but nothing useful about those trees ie not edible or beneficial to bees etc. 
Lots of sealed surface (driveways and road and pavements)… 

environmental 

265 Extremely limited renewable microgeneration, esp. solar hot water heating.  Disgusted at the 
variation in price, and quality of installations, I self-installed a solar hot water heating system a 
couple of years ago and I have slashed my gas bill, 

environmental 

270 HEP Scheme on Foss Weir environmental 

278 Demand that smokers to use eco-cigarettes which are fully in compliance with ‘Smoking Free’ law 
in the UK. (please see website www.ecocig.co.uk). 
 
 (please see website www.ecocig.co.uk). 

environmental 

290 Take bold steps to deal with the appalling traffic problem and make commuting a pleasure:  
 
o   a)Make public transport more favourable in cost and convenience than use of cars. 
Slash prices, increase frequency and charge motorists coming into the city to help pay for 
the public transport. 
 
o   b)During rush-hours give an extra green light for cyclists to give them a head-start (and an 
incentive). 

transport 

P
a
g
e
 3

1



Annex One  – Proposals following screening by Project Team (Directorates) and CMT and approved by Executive on the 
9th June 2009. 

ID Suggestion detail Category 

 
o   c)Make cycling on narrow busy roads safer. E.g. Haxby Road; could it have a one-way priority 
system like the Huntington Road?  
 
o   The solutions are out there. Look at Holland or Switzerland as models for how to solve urban 
traffic. It is achievable. Don’t just tinker at the edges. 

295 Community renewable energy projects environmental 

296 Encourage local initiatives to plant fruit bearing trees in local landscaping schemes - look for 
every opportunity and make this a positive local 

environmental 

298 Do everything required to bring in Personal Carbon budgets/rationing within 3 yrs (the situation is 
even more serious than it was in the 2nd World War). 

environmental 

310 Planning decision should remain LOCAL, not overturned by appeal to central government. planning 

318 Many houses in York have walls unsuitable for cavity wall insulation. Could the Council obtain 
technical advice on an effective method of insulating such properties or even help with funding. In 
conservation areas only inside walls could be treated 

housing 

325 No bank in Strensall local economy 

 

P
a

g
e
 3

2



Annex Two –SCA additional proposals for further consideration put 
forwards by Executive on the 9th June 2009 

  
SCA - Additional Proposals for Further Consultation 

 
The Executive feels that the following composite issues are worthy of further 
consideration and that they do give the real possibility of a change of 
legislation:- 
 

1. Greater powers to bring into use empty buildings and unused land. 
'Councils should have the power and funding to buy any 
houses/apartments that are unsold for more than a year and make 
them available as affordable housing for people on their housing 
waiting list.  This would both help to re-start the housing market and 
force developers to sell to a housing association/local council or cut 
their prices to meet what people can afford to pay in the current 
recession rather than they be left standing empty”. 

 
2. Allocation of personal carbon budgets 

 
3. Give the council powers to restrict usage of outdoor heating e.g. gas 
heaters used in pubs. 

 
4. Restrictions on heating in e.g. shops who leave their frontage wide 
open. 

 
5. Relaxation of conservation rules on listed buildings to allow double-
glazing and better insulation as well as renewable energy installations 
(solar water, photovoltaics) on roofs etc. 

 
6. Council to have powers to require retailers to take back packaging 
issued with goods 

 
7. Recycling/Waste Management in the City: Give the council powers 
to: 
a) restrict wasteful packaging and promote recyclable or compostable 

packaging for take away food sales (i.e. eliminate polystyrene 
boxes in favour of paper and card) 

b) to require retail outlets and/or companies to collect recyclable 
containers (I.e. bottles and cans) against a deposit.  For examples 
of this, look at Germany. 

c) promote the use of (standard size and shape) returnable bottles, 
boxes and packaging, e.g. for food. 

 
8. On the spot fines (including powers for PCSOs and Parking 
Wardens) for parking on verges and footpaths. 

 
 
 
 

Page 33



 
The following six issues are of concern to residents and we would support 
them.  However, as they are diametrically opposite to the present 
governments policies we fear that they stand little chance of being embraced 
by the Government which would be necessary to enable legislative changes 
to be made: 
 

a) Legislate to ensure that the final decision on housing allocations 
target numbers for the LA area is made by the local authority through 
the LDF process rather than at the regional level whilst also requiring 
discussion of housing targets at the regional level. 

 
b) Re-regulate bus service operations 

 
c) Let York keep 100% of Council house rental income 

 
d) Require the local authorities to give preference to locally sourced 
food, building materials, paper, wood, fuel, etc. through its contracts. 
(NB requires changes to European legislation) 

 
e) Ensure that all landfill tax and LATS penalties are returned to local 
authorities for investment in further recycling, reduction, reuse and 
repair measures 

 
f) Retain business rates income locally. 

 

Page 34



Annex Three – List of 48 proposals taken forwards to Stage Two Consultation 

Revenue Taxes etc 
 

ID Proposal detail: 

15 To enable villages to be sustainable for all members of society, the government should give grants, equal to parish council receipts to groups 
(volunteers, charitable associations) to allow them to decide upon local improvements, amenity improvements, etc.  Only local organisations have their 
feet on the ground and know exactly what is required.  This would be supported by all the groups in Skelton. 

50 Tax to have the effect of double water rates if private gardens are made impermeable. 

67 Charge business rates according to the waste produced from all of that company’s products and processes (not just what they dispose of) and/or a 
packaging tax. 

117 Require that the local authority give preference to locally sourced food, building materials, paper, wood, fuel etc through its contracts. Specify which 
items and a percentage. 

119 Government promotion and new financial regulations to allow the issue of Community Bonds to finance local building of renewable energy, sustainable 
homes, retrofitting etc. 

122 Business rates retained locally for spending on sustainability (including economic) by council. 

184 Ensure that all landfill tax and Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme penalties are returned to local authorities for investment in further recycling, reduction, 
reuse and repair measures. 

250 My concern for York... is being ready for the consequences of climate change and peak oil. We need to be actively trying to mitigate these by e.g. 
localising food production and employment, improving flood defences. 

325 No bank in Strensall. 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

5



Annex Three – List of 48 proposals taken forwards to Stage Two Consultation 

Environment – Recycling 
 

ID Proposal detail: 

40 Stop delivery of plastic charity bags 

65 Make it illegal to make things that are non-repairable/recyclable (based on recommendations from WRAP) 

68 Legislation so that packaging can be taken back to local supermarkets for re-use, recycling, or they would have to pay the landfill tax for its disposal. 

69 Review property law so that it is not theft to take things that would otherwise be going to landfill. 

112 Require composting toilets or reed bed systems and rainwater collection to be fitted in all new developments or on-site treatments tanks so no sewerage 
leaves the site and provide funding for the retrofitting of these. All recycles to allotment, garden or drinking water. 

130 Bring commercial waste into councils targets for increasing recycling (I.e. by commercial waste in the system of Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme 
penalties) 

213 Give the council powers to: 1) restrict wasteful packaging and promote recyclable or compostable packaging for take away food sales (I.e eliminate 
polystyrene boxes in favour of paper and card), 2) to require retail outlets and/or companies to collect recyclable containers (I.e. bottles and cans) 
against a deposit.  For examples of this, look at Germany.  York could promote itself as a flagship city of sustainable waste management and reduce the 
litter problem in the process.  3) Promote the use of (standard size and shape) returnable bottles, boxes and packaging, e.g. for food.  This could also be 
first implemented in local bye-laws.  McDonalds etc. would not want to pass up on a major tourist attraction.  Packaging can be returned by 
supermarkets in empty returning lorries. 

226 Companies should be taxed on any packaging other than cardboard and forced to accept it back for re-use or recycling as appropriate.  Commercial 
waste should be included in the government target levels for cutting landfill and made to pay the same excess charge for exceeding those limits. 

278 Demand that smokers use eco-cigarettes which are fully in compliance with ‘Smoking Free’ law in the UK. (see website www.ecocig.co.uk). 

 

P
a

g
e
 3

6



Annex Three – List of 48 proposals taken forwards to Stage Two Consultation 

Environment – Energy 
 

ID Proposal detail: 

22 Make shops/companies let out the vacant rooms above their premises in return for a sustainable grant to make them energy efficient. 

35 Support for insulation purchases.  Better insulation reduces carbon emissions, warming and helps save us all money!  Better threshold for new houses 
too. 

61 Requirement to install Wind Turbines adjacent to the ring road roads (& other trunk roads) - This is clearly about both processes. The ring road is an 
almost derelict area, noisy and for the most part distant from housing.  We should establish a series of Wind Turbines which are owned by the 
community and the profit used to support further greening of York and surrounds and help create a more equal community. 

111 Require minimum levels of insulation before properties can be sold or rented (some financial aid for owners to bring buildings up to standard and limited 
exemptions for hard to treat properties e.g. listed buildings). 

123 Generate energy via community renewable energy so that money comes back into the community. 

182 Put environmental sustainability at the centre of Local Area Agreements (rather than sidelining it as is currently the case) and require all 'Sustainable 
Community Strategies' to include detailed plans (with annual targets) for cutting greenhouse emissions in the local authority area by 40% by 2020. 

214 Give the council powers to: 1) to restrict usage of outdoor heating e.g. gas heaters used in pubs.  Also include restrictions on heating in e.g. shops who 
leave their frontage wide open.  2) Relax conservation rules on listed buildings to allow double glazing and better insulation as well as renewable energy 
installations (solar water, photovoltaics) on roofs etc. 

265 Extremely limited renewable micro-generation, especially solar hot water heating.  Disgusted at the variation in price, and quality of installations, I self-
installed a solar hot water heating system a couple of years ago and I have slashed my gas bill. 

270 Hydro-electric power scheme on Foss Weir. 

295 Community renewable energy projects. 

298 Do everything required to bring in personal carbon budgets/rationing within 3 yrs. 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

7



Annex Three – List of 48 proposals taken forwards to Stage Two Consultation 

House Planning Land Use Etc 
 

ID Proposal detail: 

37 Require developers to lease land they own, but have not developed, to local councils to use for community purposes. The land could be put to good 
use by communities to provide facilities for local residents (allotments/playing fields).  The developers would retain ownership of the land which councils 
would be barred from using in ways that prevented its subsequent development in the long term.  The land would be leased to local communities at a 
nominal rate. 

43 Introduce legislation to ban the sale of properties in new developments as second homes. (See Hungate example where new properties are being 
marketed as second homes, which contributes nothing to meeting local housing need.) 

44 Introduce legislation to give local communities the same rights to appeal against planning decisions as developers. As part of this, empower local 
authorities to provide an independent fund to which local communities can apply for financial support when contesting development proposals and 
provide government funding to support this. 

45 Make it clear in legislation that local authorities make the final decision (through their Local Development Framework process) regarding housing 
allocation target numbers for their area, whilst still requiring them to cooperate and discuss housing strategies at a regional level. 

118 Requirement that trees, bushes etc. used in landscaping be those that produce an edible crop e.g. fruit and nut trees, fruit bushes or those suitable for 
coppicing. 

124 Change of regulation so that community-based ambient renewable energy facilities are classified as general permitted developments (not requiring 
planning permission) but for community initiatives only, not for external companies. 

153 Let the City of York keep 100% of council house rental income. 

202 Improvements to Fulford Ings.  It is mostly in private ownership but the public have access to it and it has Site of Specific Interest status. Natural 
England works with landowners on a management scheme but is finding it difficult to fund this.  There are many things which would improve the site by 
preserving its biological diversity and making it more accessible to the public. Work needed would include improvements to the drainage and footpaths, 
new fencing gates and hedging.  See sheet for full details. 

220 Councils should have the power and funding to buy any houses/apartments that are unsold for more than a year and make them available as affordable 
housing for people on their housing waiting list.  This would both help to re-start the housing market and force developers to sell to a housing 
association/local council or cut their prices to meet what people can afford to pay in the current recession rather than they be left standing empty. 

260 Lots of green trees but nothing useful about those trees i.e. not edible or beneficial to bees etc. Lots of sealed surfaces (driveways and road and 
pavements). 

P
a

g
e
 3

8



Annex Three – List of 48 proposals taken forwards to Stage Two Consultation 

296 Encourage local initiatives to plant fruit bearing trees in local landscaping schemes - look for every opportunity and make this a positive local <sic> 

310 Planning decision should remain local, not overturned by appeal to central government. 

318 Many houses in York have walls unsuitable for cavity wall insulation. Could the Council obtain technical advice on an effective method of insulating 
such properties or even help with funding? In conservation areas only inside walls could be treated. 

 
Transport 
 

ID Proposal detail: 

148 Legislation to reduce the horse-power rating allowed for private vehicles, perhaps with application/proof of use necessary to buy high-power 
agricultural/load towing 4x4 vehicles. 

183 Give local authorities full powers and appropriate funding to re-regulate bus services. 

204 On the spot fines for parking on the verges is merely cosmetic and will not address the issue of cars obstructing pavements, so it would be much more 
helpful if there were on the spot fines for parking on any raised pavement areas.  This would assist not only the blind and partially sighted but also those 
in wheelchairs or with walking frames.  Cars also park over the lowered pavement access area thus forcing wheelchair users and their carers to 
negotiate kerbs - not acceptable.  The quality of life and environment is impaired by those who park on any pavement area and on the spot fines would 
send a message that it is unacceptable in York and hopefully would lead to the problem being solved. 

211 I would like to see air compressed cars only allowed in the city centre.  Can you, in association with Yorkshire Forward, invite MDI (vehicle 
manufacturer) to start production here? 

223 The national curriculum should be changed to include being a safe road user (including cycling and driver education).  The national 'Bike It' cycle 
training should be government funded to be offered free in all schools. 

290 Take bold steps to deal with the appalling traffic problem and make commuting a pleasure: 

a) Make public transport more favourable in cost and convenience than use of cars. Slash prices, increase frequency and charge motorists coming 
into the city to help pay for the public transport. 

b) During rush-hours give an extra green light for cyclists to give them a head-start (and an incentive). 

c) Make cycling on narrow busy roads safer e.g. Haxby Road; could it have a one-way priority system like the Huntington Road? 

The solutions are out there. Look at Holland or Switzerland as models for how to solve urban traffic. It is achievable. Don’t just tinker at the edges. 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

9



P
a

g
e
 4

0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Annex Four Citizens Panel Membership Details 
 

 
Attendees: 
 
No of residents attending and participating in the event: 36 
 
Consisting of: 
 
Talkabout Panel members : 22 
 
Young People: 3 (+ 2 youth workers) 
 
Representatives from community orgs: 9 
Breakdown of community orgs: 

• Fulford PC 

• Strensall PC 

• Dunnington PC 

• Very Young Friends of West Bank Park 

• York Green Party 

• The Healing Clinic 

• York in Transition 

• New Earswick Community Association 
 

Also in attendance: 
 
Executive  

• Cllr Steve Galloway 

• Cllr Carol Runciman 
 
Observer 

• Nicola Lawson, Marketing & Communications, CYC 
 
Organisers: 

• Neighbourhood Management Unit, CYC – 13 officers 
 
Support officers in attendance (experts): 

• City of York Council officers: 6 
o Dave Caulfield – City Strategy 
o Dave Carter – City Strategy 
o Bryn Jones – City Strategy 
o Andrew Walmsley - Resources 

Page 41



o Dilys Jones – Housing & Adult Services 
o Elizabeth Parker – Neighbourhood Services 

Page 42



Without Walls Executive Delivery Board Consultation Feedback Annex Five 

Revenue, Taxes & The Local Economy 
 

ID Proposal detail: SCS 
Ambition 

SCS Theme / 
Aim / Action 

LAA 
Target 

Overall 
impact / 

feasibility 

15 To enable villages to be sustainable for all members of society, the government should give grants, 
equal to parish council receipts to groups (volunteers, charitable associations) to allow them to decide 
upon local improvements, amenity improvements, etc.  Only local organisations have their feet on the 
ground and know exactly what is required.  This would be supported by all the groups in Skelton. 3 P28 4.2 NI 4 

M 

50 Tax to have the effect of double water rates if private gardens are made impermeable. No P27 1.1 NI 188? 
L 

67 Charge business rates according to the waste produced from all of that company’s products and 
processes (not just what they dispose of) and/or a packaging tax. No P27 1.1 NI 186 

L 

117 Require that the local authority give preference to locally sourced food, building materials, paper, 
wood, fuel etc through its contracts. Specify which items and a percentage. 2 & 4 P28 1.3 NI 186 

M 

119 Government promotion and new financial regulations to allow the issue of Community Bonds to 
finance local building of renewable energy, sustainable homes, retrofitting etc. 4 

P27 1.1 
P28 7.1 NI 186 

M 

122 Business rates retained locally for spending on sustainability (including economic) by council. 

4 
P27 1.1 
P32 8.2 

NI 186 
NI 166 
NI 152 

H 

184 Ensure that all landfill tax and Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme penalties are returned to local 
authorities for investment in further recycling, reduction, reuse and repair measures. 4 P29 11.1 

NI 186 
NI 191 

H 

250 My concern for York... is being ready for the consequences of climate change and peak oil. We need 
to be actively trying to mitigate these by e.g. localising food production and employment, improving 
flood defences. WIP WIP WIP 

WIP 

325 No bank in Strensall. No No No No 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

3



Without Walls Executive Delivery Board Consultation Feedback Annex Five 

Environment - Recycling 
 

ID Proposal detail: SCS 
Ambition 

SCS Theme / 
Aim / Action 

LAA 
Target 

Overall 
impact / 
feasibility 

40 Stop delivery of plastic charity bags No No No No 

65 Make it illegal to make things that are non-repairable/recyclable (based on recommendations from 
WRAP) No No No No 

68 Legislation so that packaging can be taken back to local supermarkets for re-use, recycling, or they 
would have to pay the landfill tax for its disposal. 4 

P27 1.1 
P29 11.1 NI 186 L 

69 Review property law so that it is not theft to take things that would otherwise be going to landfill. No No No No 

112 Require composting toilets or reed bed systems and rainwater collection to be fitted in all new 
developments or on-site treatments tanks so no sewerage leaves the site and provide funding for the 
retrofitting of these. All recycles to allotment, garden or drinking water. 4 

P28 7.1 
P27 1.1 NI 186 L 

130 Bring commercial waste into councils targets for increasing recycling (I.e. by commercial waste in the 
system of Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme penalties) 4 

P27 1.1 
P29 11.1 NI 186? L 

213 Give the council powers to: 1) restrict wasteful packaging and promote recyclable or compostable 
packaging for take away food sales (I.e eliminate polystyrene boxes in favour of paper and card), 2) 
to require retail outlets and/or companies to collect recyclable containers (I.e. bottles and cans) 
against a deposit.  For examples of this, look at Germany.  York could promote itself as a flagship 
city of sustainable waste management and reduce the litter problem in the process.  3) promote the 
use of (standard size and shape) returnable bottles, boxes and packaging, e.g. for food.  This could 
also be first implemented in local bye-laws.  McDonalds etc. would not want to pass up on a major 
tourist attraction.  Packaging can be returned by supermarkets in empty returning lorries. 4 

P27 1.1 
P29 11.2 

NI 186 
NI 191 L 

226 Companies should be taxed on any packaging other than cardboard and forced to accept it back for 
re-use or recycling as appropriate.  Commercial waste should be included in the government target 
levels for cutting landfill and made to pay the same excess charge for exceeding those limits. 4 

P27 1.1 
P29 11.3 NI 186 L 

278 Demand that smokers use eco-cigarettes which are fully in compliance with ‘Smoking Free’ law in the 
UK. (see website www.ecocig.co.uk). No No No No 

 

P
a

g
e
 4

4



Without Walls Executive Delivery Board Consultation Feedback Annex Five 

 
Environment - Energy 
 

ID Proposal detail: SCS 
Ambition 

SCS Theme / 
Aim / Action 

LAA 
Target 

Overall 
impact / 
feasibility 

22 Make shops/companies let out the vacant rooms above their premises in return for a sustainable 
grant to make them energy efficient. 4 P27 1.1 NI 186 L 

35 Support for insulation purchases.  Better insulation reduces carbon emissions, warming and helps 
save us all money!  Better threshold for new houses too. WIP WIP WIP WIP 

61 Requirement to install Wind Turbines adjacent to the ring road roads (& other trunk roads) - This is 
clearly about both processes. The ring road is an almost derelict area, noisy and for the most part 
distant from housing.  We should establish a series of Wind Turbines which are owned by the 
community and the profit used to support further greening of York and surrounds and help create a 
more equal community. 4 P27 1.1 NI 186 L 

111 Require minimum levels of insulation before properties can be sold or rented (some financial aid for 
owners to bring buildings up to standard and limited exemptions for hard to treat properties e.g. listed 
buildings). 4 P27 1.1 NI 186 L 

123 Generate energy via community renewable energy so that money comes back into the community. 4 P27 1.1 NI 186 L 

182 Put environmental sustainability at the centre of Local Area Agreements (rather than sidelining it as 
is currently the case) and require all 'Sustainable Community Strategies' to include detailed plans 
(with annual targets) for cutting greenhouse emissions in the local authority area by 40% by 2020. WIP WIP WIP WIP 

214 Give the council powers to: 1) to restrict usage of outdoor heating e.g. gas heaters used in pubs.  
Also include restrictions on heating in e.g. shops who leave their frontage wide open.  2) Relax 
conservation rules on listed buildings to allow double glazing and better insulation as well as 
renewable energy installations (solar water, photovoltaics) on roofs etc. 4 P27 1.1 NI 186 L 

265 Extremely limited renewable microgeneration, especially solar hot water heating.  Disgusted at the 
variation in price, and quality of installations, I self-installed a solar hot water heating system a 
couple of years ago and I have slashed my gas bill. 

Suggestion
? ? ? ? 

270 Hydro-electric power scheme on Foss Weir. 4 P27 1.1 NI 186 L 

P
a
g
e
 4

5



Without Walls Executive Delivery Board Consultation Feedback Annex Five 

 

 

295 Community renewable energy projects. 4 P27 1.1 NI 186 L 

298 Do everything required to bring in personal carbon budgets/rationing within 3 yrs. 4 P27 1.1 NI 186 L 

 
 
Housing Planning Land Use etc 
 

ID Proposal detail: SCS 
Ambition 

SCS Theme / 
Aim / Action 

LAA 
Target 

Overall 
impact / 
feasibility 

37 Require developers to lease land they own, but have not developed, to local councils to use for 
community purposes. The land could be put to good use by communities to provide facilities for local 
residents (allotments/playing fields).  The developers would retain ownership of the land which 
councils would be barred from using in ways that prevented its subsequent development in the long 
term.  The land would be leased to local communities at a nominal rate. No No No No 

43 Introduce legislation to ban the sale of properties in new developments as second homes. (See 
Hungate example where new properties are being marketed as second homes, which contributes 
nothing to meeting local housing need.) No No No No 

44 Introduce legislation to give local communities the same rights to appeal against planning decisions 
as developers. As part of this, empower local authorities to provide an independent fund to which 
local communities can apply for financial support when contesting development proposals and 
provide government funding to support this. No No No No 

45 Make it clear in legislation that local authorities make the final decision (through their Local 
Development Framework process) regarding housing allocation target numbers for their area, whilst 
still requiring them to cooperate and discuss housing strategies at a regional level. No No No No 

118 Requirement that trees, bushes etc. used in landscaping be those that produce an edible crop e.g. 
fruit and nut trees, fruit bushes or those suitable for coppicing. No No No No 

124 Change of regulation so that community-based ambient renewable energy facilities are classified as 
general permitted developments (not requiring planning permission) but for community initiatives 
only, not for external companies. No No No No 

P
a

g
e
 4

6



Without Walls Executive Delivery Board Consultation Feedback Annex Five 

 

 

153 Let the City of York keep 100% of council house rental income. 
3 

P52 2.1 
P52 2.3 

NI 155 
NI 156 H 

202 Improvements to Fulford Ings.  It is mostly in private ownership but the public have access to it and it 
has Site of Specific Interest status. Natural England works with landowners on a management 
scheme but is finding it difficult to fund this.  There are many things which would improve the site by 
preserving its biological diversity and making it more accessible to the public. Work needed would 
include improvements to the drainage and footpaths, new fencing gates and hedging.  See sheet for 
full details. No P29 10.3 NI 197? L 

220 Councils should have the power and funding to buy any houses/apartments that are unsold for more 
than a year and make them available as affordable housing for people on their housing waiting list.  
This would both help to re-start the housing market and force developers to sell to a housing 
association/local council or cut their prices to meet what people can afford to pay in the current 
recession rather than they be left standing empty. No P52 2.1 NI 155 L 

260 Lots of green trees but nothing useful about those trees i.e. not edible or beneficial to bees etc. Lots 
of sealed surfaces (driveways and road and pavements)… No No No No 

296 Encourage local initiatives to plant fruit bearing trees in local landscaping schemes - look for every 
opportunity and make this a positive local <sic> No No No No 

310 Planning decision should remain local, not overturned by appeal to central government. No No No No 

318 Many houses in York have walls unsuitable for cavity wall insulation. Could the Council obtain 
technical advice on an effective method of insulating such properties or even help with funding? In 
conservation areas only inside walls could be treated. WIP WIP WIP WIP 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

7



Without Walls Executive Delivery Board Consultation Feedback Annex Five 

 
Transport 
 
ID Proposal detail: 

SCS 
Ambition 

SCS Theme / 
Aim / Action LAA Target 

Overall 
impact / 
feasibility 

148 
Legislation to reduce the horse-power rating allowed for private vehicles, perhaps with 
application/proof of use necessary to buy high-power agricultural/load towing 4x4 vehicles. No No No No 

183 
Give local authorities full powers and appropriate funding to re-regulate bus services. No No No No 

204 
On the spot fines for parking on the verges is merely cosmetic and will not address the issue of cars 
obstructing pavements, so it would be much more helpful if there were on the spot fines for parking 
on any raised pavement areas.  This would assist not only the blind and partially sighted but also 
those in wheelchairs or with walking frames... Cars also park over the lowered pavement access 
area thus forcing wheelchair users and their carers to negotiate kerbs - not acceptable.  The quality 
of life and environment is impaired by those who park on any pavement area and on the spot fines 
would send a message that it is unacceptable in York and hopefully would lead to the problem being 
solved. No No No No 

211 
I would like to see air compressed cars only allowed in the city centre. Can you, in association with 
Yorkshire Forward, invite MDI (vehicle manufacturer) to start production here? 4 P29 9.4 NI 186 L 

223 
The national curriculum should be changed to include being a safe road user (including cycling and 
driver education).  The national 'Bike It' cycle training should be government funded to be offered 
free in all schools. No No NI 47 L 

290 
Take bold steps to deal with the appalling traffic problem and make commuting a pleasure:  

a) Make public transport more favourable in cost and convenience than use of cars. Slash prices, 
increase frequency and charge motorists coming into the city to help pay for the public transport. 

b) During rush-hours give an extra green light for cyclists to give them a head-start (and an 
incentive). 

c) Make cycling on narrow busy roads safer e.g. Haxby Road; could it have a one-way priority 
system like the Huntington Road?  

The solutions are out there. Look at Holland or Switzerland as models for how to solve urban traffic. 
It is achievable. Don’t just tinker at the edges. 4 

P29 9.1 
P29 9.2 
P29 9.3 
P29 9.4 NI 167 M 

 

P
a

g
e
 4

8



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 
Revenue, taxes and the local economy 
 

ID Proposal detail: Citizens' Panel comments 
Citizens' Panel 

voting 
(15-117 and 119-235) 

15 To enable villages to be sustainable for all members of society, the 
government should give grants, equal to parish council receipts to 
groups (volunteers, charitable associations) to allow them to decide 
upon local improvements, amenity improvements, etc.  Only local 
organisations have their feet on the ground and know exactly what is 
required.  This would be supported by all the groups in Skelton. 

Parish Council has power to raise precept, and to promote and 
provide grants. Views of residents put forward through 
parishes.  

8 

50 Tax to have the effect of double water rates if private gardens are 
made impermeable. 

Should it be law or a requirement for builders? Could explore 
incentivising removing concrete surfacing. Taxing seems 
impractical. Planning issue or a question of education. 
Influence for agencies, lobbying for flood defences: need the 
opportunity to make the case for defending against floods to 
central government.   

3 

67 Charge business rates according to the waste produced from all of 
that company’s products and processes (not just what they dispose 
of) and/or a packaging tax. 

Packaging: should only charge for landfill not for recyclables. 
Need to make recycling more economically viable. Would like 
to give message to producers that we don't want so much 
packaging.  

12 

117 Require that the local authority give preference to locally sourced 
food, building materials, paper, wood, fuel etc through its contracts. 
Specify which items and a percentage. 

Local authority has to go for the cheapest option unless there's 
a good reason not to. Change in the legislative process in 
order to take local issues into account. Local authorities 
currently promote the ability to tender locally. Currently 
european supply chains need to be established (?).  

12 

119 Government promotion and new financial regulations to allow the 
issue of Community Bonds to finance local building of renewable 
energy, sustainable homes, retrofitting etc. 

Bonds: government to change financial structure to allow it to 
happen. Would residents be confident in how money would be 
invested? Local authority bonds existed in the 1980s so might 
still be possible.  

4 

122 Business rates retained locally for spending on sustainability 
(including economic) by council. 

                                                                                                                                                                 18 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

9



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 

 

ID Proposal detail: Citizens' Panel comments 
Citizens' Panel 

voting 
(15-117 and 119-235) 

184 Ensure that all landfill tax and Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme 
penalties are returned to local authorities for investment in further 
recycling, reduction, reuse and repair measures. 

Agree.  6 

250 My concern for York... is being ready for the consequences of 
climate change and peak oil. We need to be actively trying to 
mitigate these by e.g. localising food production and employment, 
improving flood defences. 

Up to the local authority to promote on a voluntary basis. Farm 
shops are appearing; need to encourage more, possibility to 
use allotment gluts. Interested in the French model of 
artisanelle: produce or products sold directly by the producer; 
everyone knows the basis on which it's sold. Year on year 
increase in number fo allotments in villages. 

4 

325 No bank in Strensall. Importance of banks in villages: education; dissemination of 
information; commercial decisions. But need to be realistic 
about modern banking. Credit Unions are growing. Publicity for 
people to know what facilities are available: get shops to act as 
agent, mobile bank; local authority to negotiate provision; 
libraries.   

2 

 
 
Unanimous support for retaining landfill tax and local retention of business rates.  

Local decision-making as general rationale.  In favour of grant aid system and match-funding. 

Support for measures to promote local shopping and local production based on the French model of artisanelle:  sell your own scheme with no risk.  

Flood Risk assessments:  creating impermeable surfaces should be avoided, but feel that this is a planning issue rather than revenue as it would 
prove impossible to tax.  There are other changes that households could undertake which could be incentivised. 

When invited to select their main priority among suggestions 15-117, 67 and 117 received the most support at 35% each, followed by 15 at 23%.  

When invited to select their main priority among suggestions 119-235, 122 received most support at 53%, followed by 119, 184 and 250 with 
approximately 14% each.  

 
 

P
a

g
e
 5

0



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 
Environment: Recycling 
 

ID Proposal detail: Citizens' Panel comments 
Citizens' Panel 

voting 
(40-112 and 130-278) 

40 Stop delivery of plastic charity bags Generally opposed to plastic bags, but preference for 
consulting with charities rather than a blanket ban on charity 
bags. Suggestions for different ways of delivering bags and 
collecting goods: a scheme for people to ring up and order a 
bag, using residents' associations, using bio-degradeable 
bags. Also pointed out that bin liners and CYC green bags for 
businesses are not recyclable.   

3 

65 Make it illegal to make things that are non-repairable/recyclable 
(based on recommendations from WRAP) 

Good idea, but would have to investigate feasibility.Would 
apply to manufacturers and could include packaging.  

5 

68 Legislation so that packaging can be taken back to local 
supermarkets for re-use, recycling, or they would have to pay the 
landfill tax for its disposal. 

Stop them using packaging in the first place.  21 

69 Review property law so that it is not theft to take things that would 
otherwise be going to landfill. 

Suggested that this has particular relevance to electrical goods 
but could also be used to promote reuse of wood, eg old 
cupboards. Freecycle and community furniture stores work on 
these principles. Suggested that communal areas could be 
used to facilitate this or there could be an area at the tip where 
people could leave goods they no longer need. Need publicity 
to reinforce the idea, especially targetting people who aren't 
looking for the information.  

4 

112 Require composting toilets or reed bed systems and rainwater 
collection to be fitted in all new developments or on-site treatments 
tanks so no sewerage leaves the site and provide funding for the 
retrofitting of these. All recycles to allotment, garden or drinking 
water. 

General support for including compost toilets, reed beds and 
rainwater harvesting in new developments. Could be 
implemented at the level of planning. Compost toilets and reed 
beds already in place at Rawcliffe Bar Park & Ride. Golf clubs 
could use rainwater collected to irrigate the greens. Information 
on these topics is not widely available.   

1 

P
a
g
e
 5

1



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 

 

 

ID Proposal detail: Citizens' Panel comments 
Citizens' Panel 

voting 
(40-112 and 130-278) 

130 Bring commercial waste into councils targets for increasing recycling 
(I.e. by commercial waste in the system of Landfill Allowance 
Trading Scheme penalties) 

Extend recycling targets to private companies like Yorwaste 
and Biffa; small businesses, including pubs, should be 
responsible for meeting recycling targets, even if they use 
private waste collection companies. Business recycling will be 
up and running in York this year.   

15 

213 Give the council powers to: 1) restrict wasteful packaging and 
promote recyclable or compostable packaging for take away food 
sales (I.e eliminate polystyrene boxes in favour of paper and card), 
2) to require retail outlets and/or companies  to collect recyclable 
containers (I.e. bottles and cans) against a deposit.  For examples 
of this, look at Germany.  York could promote itself as a flagship city 
of sustainable waste management and reduce the litter problem in 
the process.  3) promote the use of (standard size and shape) 
returnable bottles, boxes and packaging, e.g for food.  This could 
also be first implemented in local bye-laws.  McDonalds etc. would 
not want to pass up on a major tourist attraction.  Packaging can be 
returned by supermarkets in empty returning lorries. 

Possible to provide takeaway food in biodegradeable 
packaging and returnable bottles work. Support for sections 1 
and 2 within this suggestion. Could create incentives to reuse 
things: money back on bottles. Sweden provides a model of 
good practice on reuse. Return to sturdy, reusable packaging.  

13 

226 Companies should be taxed on any packaging other than cardboard 
and forced to accept it back for re-use or recycling as appropriate.  
Commercial waste should be included in the government target 
levels for cutting landfill and made to pay the same excess charge 
for exceeding those limits. 

Linked to suggestion 130. (recycling of commercial waste). 
Should target the point of production but shouldn't just be 
limited to cardboard. Raised the issue of tetrapak and 
cornstarch packaging. Suggest that this needs to be the 
subject of national legislation rather than local authorities. Also 
raised issue of plastic toys and toy packaging.  

7 

278 Demand that smokers use eco-cigarettes which are fully in 
compliance with ‘Smoking Free’ law in the UK. (see website 
www.ecocig.co.uk). 

No support for this.  0 

 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 5

2



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 
 
 
Support for all suggestions except 278 (eco-cigarettes).  

Suggestions came forward about where and how certain ideas might be implemented, e.g. compost toilets, reed beds, rainwater harvesting, reusing 
unwanted goods, limiting use of charity bags, etc.  

Support for limiting packaging at source, i.e. at manufacturer or supplier, and for bringing private waste collection companies and small businesses 
into recycling targets.  

When invited to select their main priority among suggestions 40 to 112, approximately 60% chose suggestion 68 (legislating to take packaging back 
to supermarkets, etc), with suggestions 40, 65 and 69 receiving about 10% each.  

When invited to select their main priority among suggestions 130-278, the result was quite evenly split between 130 and 213 with approximately 40% 
supporting both, and 20% supporting 226.  

P
a
g
e
 5

3



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 
Environment: Energy 
 

ID Proposal detail: Citizens' Panel comments 
Citizens' Panel 

voting 
(22-123 and 182-298) 

22 Make shops/companies let out the vacant rooms above their 
premises in return for a sustainable grant to make them energy 
efficient. 

Like the idea in general but not keen on enforcement, prefer 
encouragement. Not a new idea: living over the shop worked 
for many years, though the idea of a grant to make it energy 
efficient is new. Living over shops is a good idea but it's not 
suitable for everyone (eg. families and those with access 
problems) and separate access could be difficult to organise. 
Energy efficiency gain will be increasingly valuable. Can't 
afford not to do something about this.  

2 

35 Support for insulation purchases.  Better insulation reduces carbon 
emissions, warming and helps save us all money!  Better threshold 
for new houses too. 

Question of whether this would apply to private and public 
buildings.Suggested that financial help be provided to 
householders in more deprived areas and that private 
landlords be forced to meet minimum standards of energy 
efficiency. Making older properties energy efficient is a big 
issue, especially in York. Need a more creative approach to 
secondary glazing of older properties. Need to retro-fit our old 
properties because so much of the housing stock is older.  

9 

61 Requirement to install Wind Turbines adjacent to the ring road roads 
(& other trunk roads) - This is clearly about both processes. The ring 
road is an almost derelict area, noisy and for the most part distant 
from housing.  We should establish a series of Wind Turbines which 
are owned by the community and the profit used to support further 
greening of York and surrounds and help create a more equal 
community. 

Like the idea as wind turbines are really noisy. Community 
suprot for keeping energy locally. Suggest combining with 23. 
Like idea of installing wind turbines generally. Unsire about the 
ring road as a location and about financial viability. Excellent 
idea. Differing views about the economic viability of wind 
turbines. Community benefit may reduce NIMBY attitude.  

6 

111 Require minimum levels of insulation before properties can be sold 
or rented (some financial aid for owners to bring buildings up to 
standard and limited exemptions for hard to treat properties eg listed 
buildings). 

Energy efficiency requirements for landlords. Not 
unreasonable to require achievement of minimum standards. 
Definite exemptions for listed and older buildings.  

2 

123 Generate energy via community renewable energy so that money 
comes back into the community. 

Fantastic idea if it can be demonstrated to be viable. 16 

P
a

g
e
 5

4



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 

 

ID Proposal detail: Citizens' Panel comments 
Citizens' Panel 

voting 
(22-123 and 182-298) 

182 Put environmental sustainability at the centre of Local Area 
Agreements (rather than sidelining it as is currently the case) and 
require all 'Sustainable Community Strategies' to include detailed 
plans (with annual targets) for cutting greenhouse emissions in the 
local authority area by 40% by 2020. 

Put obligation on local authorities. Do not agree with the 
wording. Need some idea of how and incentives to do so. Put 
in clear hard targets so not just general statement of intent.  

6 

214 Give the council powers to: 1) to restrict usage of outdoor heating 
e.g gas heaters used in pubs.  Also include restrictions on heating in 
e.g shops who leave their frontage wide open.  2) Relax 
conservation rules on listed buildings to allow double glazing and 
better insulation as well as renewable energy installations (solar 
water, photovoltaics) on roofs etc. 

Would like to see some controls introduced, but it would be 
difficult to enforce and there would be objections from pubs. 
Gas heating is not using that much energy so concerned about 
government intervention. Differing opinions about 
conservations laws: some in favour of relaxing them, others 
not. Architecture: not only preserve the past but look to the 
future with good quality modern architecture. 

3 

265 Extremely limited renewable microgeneration, especially solar hot 
water heating.  Disgusted at the variation in price, and quality of 
installations, I self-installed a solar hot water heating system a 
couple of years ago and I have slashed my gas bill. 

Council could facilitate bulk-buying and therefore offer a 
discount. Would have to be carefully costed to ensure it's 
financially viable. Would not be suitable for conservation area. 
Known advantages of solar in other circumstances. 

6 

270 Hydro-electric power scheme on Foss Weir. Could be combined with 61 and 295: giving the council power 
to introduce sustainable energy projects. Doubt this idea is 
viable.  

6 

295 Community renewable energy projects. Neighbourhood / district heating schemes in new build could 
be developed in this way. 

12 

298 Do everything required to bring in personal carbon budgets/rationing 
within 3 yrs. 

Would need a lot more research. What would the penalty be? 
Doesn't take into account different lifestyles. Runs the risk of 
seeming big brotherish and heavy-handed. Would like people 
to take steps of their own volition, which might be fairer. Prefer 
to see more information on impact our behaviour is having in 
terms of carbon use, so people can choose. Incentives would 
be good. 3 year target enormously ambitious. Might be able to 
introduce scheme for people to know their own carbon use.   

2 

P
a
g
e
 5

5



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 
 
 
Suggested grouping together a number of the suggestions under the category of giving the council power to create its own sustainable power supply 
(61, 123, 270, 295). It was felt that this was the most important point to emerge under this theme.  

General support for sustainable power generation but concerns expressed about the economic viability of the different projects.  

General preference across all suggestions for encouragement rather than enforcement. 

Concern about achieving balance of conservation and energy efficiency. 

When invited to select their top priority among suggestions 22-123, almost 50% selected 123, followed by 26% in favour of 35. 

When invited to select their top priority among suggestions 182-298, 35% opted for 295, followed by 18% each for 182, 265 and 270. 

P
a

g
e
 5

6



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 
Housing Planning Land Use etc 
 

ID Proposal detail: Citizens' Panel comments 
Citizens' Panel 

voting 
(37-124 and 153-318) 

37 Require developers to lease land they own, but have not developed, 
to local councils to use for community purposes. The land could be 
put to good use by communities to provide facilities for local 
residents (allotments/playing fields).  The developers would retain 
ownership of the land which councils would be barred from using in 
ways that prevented its subsequent development in the long term.  
The land would be leased to local communities at a nominal rate. 

Group felt that this is a good idea, but questioned the 
feasibility given the short timescale. It wouldn't facilitate 
continuity and long-term planning for sports clubs, etc.  

4 

43 Introduce legislation to ban the sale of properties in new 
developments as second homes. (See Hungate example where new 
properties are being marketed as second homes, which contributes 
nothing to meeting local housing need.) 

Group thought that this would help to provide affordable 
homes for sale or rent but that it would need to be 
implemented nationally and monitored carefully. There were 
concerns about people's right to buy a second property. 
Different level of council tax on second homes with additional 
funds ring-fenced for affordable housing.  

0 

44 Introduce legislation to give local communities the same rights to 
appeal against planning decisions as developers. As part of this, 
empower local authorities to provide an independent fund to which 
local communities can apply for financial support when contesting 
development proposals and provide government funding to support 
this. 

It was pointed out that residents have a right to appeal but 
need to be aware of the criteria, and that it is the issue rather 
than the volume of objections that affects the outcome of 
planning decisions. Concern about how community might be 
defined. Support for the idea of a fund to help individuals 
object to developments and challenge planning decisions, 
allowing a better balance between developers and individuals. 
Also expressed concern that this be directed at big 
developments rather than  

5 

45 Make it clear in legislation that local authorities make the final 
decision (through their Local Development Framework process) 
regarding housing allocation target numbers for their area, whilst still 
requiring them to cooperate and discuss housing strategies at a 
regional level. 

Issue of allocating enough land to housing, but also raised 
problem of what happens in a recession. Suggested a local 
housing inspector. National policy to increase housing density. 
General preference for local decision-making.  

11 

P
a
g
e
 5

7



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 

 

ID Proposal detail: Citizens' Panel comments 
Citizens' Panel 

voting 
(37-124 and 153-318) 

118 Requirement that  trees, bushes etc. used in landscaping be those 
that produce an edible crop eg fruit and nut trees, fruit bushes or 
those suitable for coppicing. 

Support suggestions promoting food security, wildlife 
protection and biodiversity. 

5 

124 Change of regulation so that community-based ambient renewable 
energy facilities are classified as general permitted developments 
(not requiring planning permission) but for community initiatives only, 
not for external companies. 

  10 

153 Let the City of York keep 100% of council house rental income. General support for this on the condition that funds could be 
used to upgrade council stock and increase availability of 
affordable housing.  

14 

202 Improvements to Fulford Ings.  It is mostly in private ownership but 
the public have access to it and it has Site of Specific Interest status. 
Natural England works with landowners on a management scheme 
but is finding it difficult to fund this.  There are many things which 
would improve the site by preserving its biological diversity and 
making it more accessible to the public. Work needed would include 
improvements to the drainage and footpaths, new fencing gates and 
hedging.  See sheet for full details. 

  1 

220 Councils should have the power and funding to buy any 
houses/apartments that are unsold for more than a year and make 
them available as affordable housing for people on their housing 
waiting list.  This would both help to re-start the housing market and 
force developers to sell to a housing association/local council or cut 
their prices to meet what people can afford to pay in the current 
recession rather than they be left standing empty. 

It was suggested that this might be too much interference with 
the market and that it assumes that the council has funds to 
purchase new developments. Raised the issue of how value 
would be established. As rents for affordable housing are set 
by the government and lower than market value they  

1 

260
Lots of green trees but nothing useful about those trees ie not edible 
or beneficial to bees etc. Lots of sealed surfaces (driveways and 
road and pavements)… 

Support suggestions promoting food security, wildlife 
protection and biodiverstiy. 

3 

P
a

g
e
 5

8



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 

 

ID Proposal detail: Citizens' Panel comments 
Citizens' Panel 

voting 
(37-124 and 153-318) 

296 Encourage local initiatives to plant fruit bearing trees in local 
landscaping schemes - look for every opportunity and make this a 
positive local <sic> 

Support suggestions promoting food security, wildlife 
protection and biodiversity.  

2 

310 Planning decision should remain local, not overturned by appeal to 
central government. 

Issue raised of using a council-administered fund to object to 
council planning proposals.  

8 

318 Many houses in York have walls unsuitable for cavity wall insulation. 
Could the Council obtain technical advice on an effective method of 
insulating such properties or even help with funding? In conservation 
areas only inside walls could be treated. 

Council already provide advice to residents about insulation. 
Doubts about whether this falls within remit of the Sustainable 
Communities Act.  

5 

 
 
 
Support for suggestions 118, 260 and 296 which promote food security, protection of wildlife and biodiversity.  
 
Support for retaining higher proportion of rent on council properties and suggestion that council tax rate should be higher on second homes, but in 
favour of ring-fencing this additional income for investment in affordable housing.  
 
Support for a council-administered fund to help individuals challenge planning proposals and decisions.  
 
When invited to select their top priority among suggestions 37-124, suggestions 45 and 124 each received support of about 30% of those present.  
When invited to select their top priority among suggestions 153-318, over 40% favoured suggestion 153, followed by 23% supporting 310.  
 
 

P
a
g
e
 5

9



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 
Transport 
 

ID Proposal detail: Citizens' Panel comments 
Citizens' Panel 

voting 
(148-290) 

148 Legislation to reduce the horse-power rating allowed for private 
vehicles, perhaps with application/proof of use necessary to buy 
high-power agricultural/load towing 4x4 vehicles. 

Concern that legislation limiting choices, etc. would alienate 
people and also that this issue is already addressed by 
taxation and congestion charges which are related to the size 
of the vehicle. Suggested that tax on fuel might be preferable.   

3 

183 Give local authorities full powers and appropriate funding to re-
regulate bus services. 

Quite positive about the proposal but also explored alternative 
methods of improving and securing bus service and raised the 
issue of cost: could it be cost neutral? Suggestions included 
having minimum service specification, or franchising contracts 
to get income back to local authority, which would require tight 
service contracts. Need bus routes and services to be 
dependable.  

17 

204 On the spot fines for parking on the verges is merely cosmetic and 
will not address the issue of cars obstructing pavements, so it would 
be much more helpful if there were on the spot fines for parking on 
any raised pavement areas.  This would assist not only the blind and 
partially sighted but also those in wheelchairs or with walking 
frames... Cars also park over the lowered pavement access area 
thus forcing wheelchair users and their carers to negotiate kerbs - 
not acceptable.  The quality of life and environment is impaired by 
those who park on any pavement area and on the spot fines would 
send a message that it is unacceptable in York and hopefully would 
lead to the problem being solved. 

Discussion suggested that it needs to become socially 
unacceptable to park on verges, by encouraging people to 
park in driveways and addressing the issue of enforcement. 
Not in favour of two-tier system of enforcement; it needs to be 
clear whether this is the responsibility of the police or the 
council. Also notes regarding cycle lanes and road use - 
relevant to this suggestion or part of 290? 

1 

211 I would like to see air compressed cars only allowed in the city 
centre. Can you, in association with Yorkshire Forward, invite MDI 
(vehicle manufacturer) to start production here? 

Raised questions about the availability of air-compressed cars: 
who produces or supplies them? Suggested that electric cars 
might be a better option.  

1 

223 The national curriculum should be changed to include being a safe 
road user (including cycling and driver education).  The national 
'Bike It' cycle training should be government funded to be offered 
free in all schools. 

Do not support changing the national curriculum as group 
were generally satisfied with the voluntary training that is 
currently in place. Adding it to the curriculum would 
necessitate removing something else.  

0 

P
a

g
e
 6

0



Citizens Panel Consultation Feedback Annex Six 

 

 

ID Proposal detail: Citizens' Panel comments 
Citizens' Panel 

voting 
(148-290) 

290 Take bold steps to deal with the appalling traffic problem and make 
commuting a pleasure: 

a) Make public transport more favourable in cost and convenience 
than use of cars. Slash prices, increase frequency and charge 
motorists coming into the city to help pay for the public transport. 

b) During rush-hours give an extra green light for cyclists to give 
them a head-start (and an incentive). 

c) Make cycling on narrow busy roads safer e.g. Haxby Road; could 
it have a one-way priority system like the Huntington Road?  

The solutions are out there. Look at Holland or Switzerland as 
models for how to solve urban traffic. It is achievable. Don’t just 
tinker at the edges. 

General support for the suggestion but feel that it might not go 
far enough; more radical measures are needed to address the 
hierarchy of road use and need to have a debate about road 
use. Suggestion addresses question of ownership of roads 
and public spaces, and is linked to suggestion 183 
(reregulating buses). It also raises the issue of congestion 
charging. Pointed out that pedestrianised streets in centre of 
York are good, but businesses also rely on other forms of 
transportation. Congestion is a deterrant for cyclists and 
reduced bus service is a problem. Suggestions from the group 
included: congestion charge for single occupancy cars; charge 
car drivers more and make public transport cheaper; have 
fleets of smaller buses as the large purple buses are never full. 
The issue of balancing space for cycle lanes with the need to 
keep traffic flowing also arose in relation to another 
suggestion.   

13 

 
 
 
Lots of discussion about 290  – the need to have a debate about road use and rebalance the hierarchy of road use. Generally positive towards the 
suggestion, but thought it didn’t go far enough. Pointed out links with some of the other suggestions, e.g. reregulating buses, and suggested more 
radical measures that might be considered, like congestion charges and a smaller bus fleet.    
 
Quite positive about reregulating buses citywide, linking it the wider debate about ownership of the roads, and also offered other suggestions for 
improving bus service.  
 
Expressed general wariness about overly prescriptive measures (148, 211, 223). Feel that voluntary training on road safety is sufficient without 
changing the curriculum, legislation about vehicle size might alienate people and, in relation to parking, it needs to be clear to road users where 
responsibility for enforcement lies, with the council or the police. 
 
When invited to select their top priority from the suggestions under discussion, suggestion 183 (reregulating buses) was marginally more popular than 
290 (hierarchy of road use) with 50% and 40% respectively.  
 

P
a
g
e
 6

1



P
a

g
e
 6

2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 1 

 

Annex Seven – The LGA SCA Proposal form 
 
This includes word count information where a maximum has been supplied. 
 
Section 1   Proposal Summary 
 
1.1 Lead authority name 
1.2 Is this proposal submitted by this authority alone or is it a joint proposal 
1.3 Who is the lead contact (s) in the authority for this proposal? Provide e-

mail address and telephone number – The LGA will direct any enquiries to 
this contact. 

1.4 Details of supporting organisations to the proposal 
1.5 Summary of the proposal including the main elements of the proposal,  

what issues your proposal is addressing and how it will promote 
sustainability of the local community, who is affected by the proposal and 
how,  Which public bodies might be affected, what are the main actions 
needed from the government, and what do we expect the proposal to 
achieve. (Max 1000 words) 

 
Section  2  About the Proposal 
 
Impact on Sustainability  (word limit of 2000 words  
2.1 Please explain how your proposal promotes sustainability as defined 

locally for example within the Sustainable Communities Strategy or LAA). 
2.2 Over which geographic area will your proposal impact ? eg 

neighbourhood, town, city, sub-region) 
2.3 Who will benefit from the proposal? 
2.4 What steps will you take to mitigate adverse affects on sustainability from 

your proposal (if relevant)? 
2.5 What projects, activities and changes would take place in your area if your 

proposal was successful? 
2.6 Does your proposal involve transfers of responsibilities between public 

bodies in the area? If so what are these and what budgetary implications 
might be involved 

2.7 Please identify which, if any, of the issues authorities are required to have 
regard to, are relevant to this proposal and include any data and 
information that you feel would be helpful in the assessment process.   

a) the provision of local services 
b) the extent to which the volume and value of goods and 

services that are offered for sale, procured by public bodies 
and are produced within 30 miles (or any lesser distance as 
may be specified by a local authority in the respect of its 
area) of their place of sale of the boundary of the public 
body. 

Page 63



 2 

c) The rate of increase in growth and marketing of organic 
forms of food production and the local economy 

d) Measures to promote reasonable access by all local people 
to a supply of food is adequate in terms of the amount and 
nutritional value 

e) The number of local jobs 
f) Measures to conserve energy and increase the quantity of 

energy supplies which are produced from sustainable 
sources within a 30 mile radius of the region in which they 
are consumed 

g) Measure taken to reduce the level of road traffic including, 
but not restricted to, local public transport provision, 
measured to promote walking and cycling and measures to 
decrease the amount of product miles 

h) The increase in social inclusion, including an increase in 
involvement in local democracy 

i) Measures to increase mutual aid and other community 
projects 

j) Measures designed to decrease emissions of greenhouse 
gases 

k) Measures designed to increase community health and 
wellbeing 

l) Planning policies which assist with the purposes of this Act, 
including new arrangements for the provision of affordable 
housing 

m) Measures to increase the use of local waste materials for the 
benefit of the community 

 
 
Existing Barriers (no more than 1000 words for 2.8 and 2.9) 
2.8 What are the existing barriers to implementing the proposal? 
2.9 What actions are needed by Government to make the proposal possible? 
 
Part 3  Local Authority Endorsement 
 
3.1 Have consultation requirements have been met? (max 500 words). 
3.2 What are the views form this consultation?  You may wish to provide 

evidence of local support for your proposal?  
3.3 Please give brief details of consultation with any affected organisations 
3.4 Confirmation of Council Support – detailing the dates of Executive 

meetings. 
3.5 General Comments  (Max 1500 words) including: 

� The councils view of the levels of local support for the 
proposal 

� Any local opposition or objections that the Selector should be 
aware of 

Page 64



 3 

� Relevance of the proposal to the area’s Sustainable 
Community Strategy and Local Area Agreement 

� Outcome of any local authority discussions with agencies or 
public bodies affected 

� Potential regional / national significance of the proposal, if 
replicated elsewhere 

� Any major resource implications for the council or its local 
partners 

� Any other factors influencing viability and achievability in the 
proposal. 

 
Part 4  Assessment by the Selector 
 
4.1 Do you confirm your agreement to abide by the outcome of the Selectors 

assessment and decision-making process? 
4.2 Would your council, accompanied by the originators of the proposal, wish 

to make a short verbal presentation to the Selector Panel, should this 
opportunity be available? 

Page 65



Page 66

This page is intentionally left blank



  

  

 

   

 

Executive  21st July 2009 

 
Report of the Director of City Strategy 

 

Council Headquarters – Update Report 

Summary 

1. This is a further update report regarding the procurement process for the 
delivery of the Council’s new headquarters. It sets out the process for 
evaluating each of the bidder’s detailed submissions, the key activities for 
the final stage of the procurement process and the associated timeline for 
the overall completion of the project.  

2. It presents some early feedback  from the recent public consultation 
exercise and provides a progress report on the Office of the Future pilot 
study.  

Background 

3. The case for a new Council headquarters, which is one of the Council’s 
corporate imperatives, remains as compelling as ever. The project makes 
a significant contribution towards the Councils corporate strategy 
particularly in the areas of an effective organisation and an inclusive and 
sustainable city. The accommodation project is integral to the Council’s 
‘More for York’ transformation programme and is still  on track to achieve a 
wide range of benefits: 

 
4. For the customer, in providing a purpose built York Customer Centre 

which will be  fully accessible and compliant with the Disability 
Discrimination Act (DDA) and provide  the single most important focal 
point for the new headquarters building. The new customer facility will 
enable quick, simple and easy access to services in one place, in a 
modern customer environment that  supports the overall customer access 
strategy. Customers will no longer have to visit over six different reception 
points in and around the city centre to access individual services. 

 
5. For the environment, the aim is to have a new headquarters building that 

is designed to deliver benefits to the environment. Its 
redesign/construction and subsequent operation will achieve low 
greenhouse gas emissions and a minimum target of 20 per cent 
renewable energy, to reduce the future running costs of the building. The 
new headquarters will be sustainable in terms of its economic, social and 
environmental impact. Its central location will support the vitality of the city 
centre, as well as supporting the existing infrastructure and transport links 
for customers, visitors and the large volume of staff walking or cycling to 
work. 

 

Agenda Item 7Page 67



6. For the business, in providing a modern working environment to support 
an effective and efficient business operation. Rationalising 16 
administrative offices down to four will achieve significant long-term 
savings and fund the cost of the new headquarters building, at no 
additional cost to the residents of York. The new headquarters will provide 
the potential to share space with partner organisations to support and 
improve partnership working and support more collaborative working 
between services, resulting in a more joined up and efficient delivery to 
customers. 

 
7. For the City, by providing the opportunity for inward investment to the  

City by releasing a number of important historic buildings such as St 
Leonard’s Place and Blake Street, which can be sensitively restored and 
put to more appropriate use. 

 
8. At the Executive meeting on 21st October 2008, Members approved the 

commencement of a four stage OJEU competitive dialogue procurement 
process to support the development of potential solutions for the design 
and construction of a new headquarters building. Further reports to the 
Executive on 3rd February and 14th April 2009 have mapped the progress 
of the procurement process. In April 2009 two bidders; 

 

• Aviva - Yorkshire House, Rougier Street  

• Tarras Park Properties Ltd – West Offices, Station Rise 
 

  were invited to enter stage three of the four stage process and participate 
in a further period of dialogue with the Council and submit their detailed 
solutions by 13th July 2009.  

  

Procurement  

9. Throughout April, May and June each of the developers has attended a 
series of dialogue/consultation meetings with the Council and other 
professional bodies such as English Heritage, York Civic Trust and the 
Conservation Area Assessment Panel, to seek clarification and guidance 
to support the development of their bids. The requirements for the stage 3 
detailed submissions includes; building elevations and 3D visuals, building 
cost plans,  a sustainability statement including a   renewable energy 
strategy, carbon statement and benchmarked whole life energy and 
carbon analysis, generic space planning drawings including workplace 
variations, details of the customer centre space and  customer  flow 
analysis, interior design concepts and an  overall development risk 
register.  

 
10. Throughout July and August the carefully constructed evaluation team 

made up of both internal and external representatives from the project 
board, the project team and specialists from planning, sustainable 
development and customer services, will evaluate each of the developer’s 
detailed submissions using the formally agreed and published set of 
financial and qualitative criteria (see table 1 and 2 below). 

 
11. The stage three evaluation will identify the strengths and weaknesses of 

each of the bids being developed and this information will then be fed back 
to each of the developers to inform a further development of their bid prior 
to submitting a formal tender later in September 2009. 

Page 68



 
12. A Summary of criteria used to assess each of the bids is as follows: 

 
N.B. the evaluation criteria are set out in the formal tender documents 
issued under the EU procurement process. These can broadly be 
summarised as follows. 
 
Financial criteria are divided into three elements:- 

 

Financial 
Criteria 

Description 

Life cycle cost 
Long term costs of the property (calculated over 30 years). 

Capital cost The value of the tender from the bidder including purchasing the 
land, construction and design costs of the building. 

Financial ability to 
deliver 

The bidder’s financial strength and backing: their ability to cover 
working costs and unforeseen circumstances. 

Table 1 
 

Qualitative criteria are divided into eleven elements: - 
 

Qualitative Description 

Site assembly What is the position regarding title to the property? What legal 
conditions are there in acquiring the freehold? 

Timescales 
Is the programme realistic? How safe is the 2012 completion date? 

Planning 
Could there be problems in gaining Planning or other statutory 
approvals? 

Buildability 
Can the required quality of building be delivered within the tender 
price also bearing in mind timescale, H&S or other constraints?  

Risk to delivery 
Looking at all factors, what are the risks in time, quality or cost to 
delivering the building? Including those due to archaeology, listed 
buildings or contaminated land for example. 

Building efficiency 
Will the building have efficient working areas? Does it have the 
right sort of space, where it’s needed? Is there likely to be any 
wasted space?  

York Customer 
Centre 

Is this going to be welcoming and effectively offer a full range of 
services to all our different customers? 

Accommodation 
Does the planning of the building meet the latest standards, 
offering the quality of workplace needed for well-organised 
operations and collaborative working? 

Enhancement of 
built environment 
and public realm  

To what extent will the scheme enhance the local street scene? 
Will it exemplify excellence in civic architecture for the City 
including public art and good landscape design? 

Carbon saving 
How far does the building proposal go in reducing the use of 
energy and reducing carbon emissions to meet Council targets? 

Sustainability 

 

Looking ‘across the board’, is the proposal as sustainable as it 
could be? In view of, for example, building construction, 
sustainable building systems, transport arrangements, water use, 
recycling, ecology, reduced pollution. 

Table 2 
 

 

Page 69



Consultation 
 

13. As part of the stage three procurement process the developers were  
required to take part in a process of  public and staff consultation to gather 
important information, views and comments to inform the preparation of 
their proposals . 

 
14. It should be pointed out that the public were not being asked directly to 

choose between the two options, as this can only be determined through a 
rigorous evaluation process using the formally agreed and pre-published 
set of financial and qualitative criteria referred to above. This is a 
requirement of the EU procurement process to ensure that throughout the 
process each bid is evaluated on a consistent and objective basis.  

 
15. In May a twelve page publication was sent to every household in the city, 

the business community and was made available to Council staff.  The 
document contained several pages of information from the Council, 
explaining the reasons why the Council needs to move to a new HQ and 
the benefits the project will bring to: the customer, the environment, the 
Council business and the wider community of York.  A number of pages 
provided information from each of the developers setting out the key 
elements of their schemes including the design, look and layout of the 
customer centre.   
 

16. The document included a questionnaire inviting feedback on a number of 
aspects of the new HQ project including: location, ease of access, 
customer services, design and sustainability, cost effectiveness, value for 
money and how in the future people would like to be kept informed. Also 
included were equality profiling questions to include the views of people 
from the equality strands. 

  
17. The process was supported through the Council website and a three day 

exhibition held in the Mansion House, where people were able to talk to 
each of the developers and Council representatives to find out more about 
each of the proposals.  

 
18. This has been a well supported consultation exercise.  In total 8,267 

questionnaires were completed and returned before the 4 June 2009 
closing date – nearly a 10% return rate.  Of these, 239 were completed on-
line and 1,050 ticked the box to say they were Council employees 
(although many are likely to be residents too).  In addition, to this 
approximately 1,000 people visited the Mansion House Exhibition 
throughout the three day event. 

   
19. Returned questionnaires have now been processed by an independent 

research agency.  The feedback is being analysed and initial results look 
favourable.  These will feed into the design development process, with the 
final outcomes reported later this year. 

 
20. Initial headline results from the survey are outlined below: 
 

� Accessibility – 90% of respondents considered the proposed locations 
for the new headquarters to be easy to travel to and this view was 
shared by 86% of disabled respondents. 50% felt that they would be 
able to use sustainable means of transport to get to them. Around 46% 

Page 70



found the current buildings to be too spread out and nearly 25% said 
that the buildings were difficult to find. 
These results show positive support for the Council’s strategy to move 
to a single headquarters building in a central location. 

 

• Design – Over two thirds supported the proposition that the building 
design should promote innovation, technology and creativity.  The view 
that the building should have flexible space for different customer’s 
needs was supported by almost 90% of prospective users and by more 
than three quarters of anticipated non users. 

By moving to new purpose built accommodation we will be able to 
accommodate these needs and developers have already begun to 
address these issues within the design proposals.  

 

• Sustainability/Cost effective features – When asked to rate the most 
important sustainable features in the new HQ (while bearing in mind 
cost) the top three priorities from a list of eight were identified as: 

 
� the re-use of existing building structures and fabric 
� sustainable public transport to the new HQ 
� a building and systems that are highly energy efficient  (e.g. 

in   its use  of lighting and heating, etc). 
 

Both schemes are aiming to satisfy a BREEAM (Building Research 
Establishment Environmental Assessment Method)  ‘Excellent’ rating 
and developers will be looking to demonstrate their effectiveness in 
meeting these needs. 

 

• Value For money – 55.4% of respondents agreed that the Council 
should provide a longer lasting facility rather than low cost, this was an 
opinion shared by both workers and non workers of the Council. 
However, 54% felt that the Council should concentrate on low costs 
rather than promoting an exciting architectural contribution.  Responses 
to open questions suggest that many did not feel these to be mutually 
exclusive issues. This is a key message on quality and design which 
will be of interest to developers in their final scheme specifications and 
tender proposals. 

 

• Other comments – All respondents were given the opportunity to 
provide additional comments, these included such topics as value for 
money, need for costs to be reduced and the requirement for 
excellence in architectural features of the new building – providing a 
headquarters that the people of York can be proud of. 
These comments will help to inform our project communications by 
identifying where we need to provide more detail and clarity in the 
information we provide. 

 
21. The most popular means of keeping people up to date with plans for the 

new headquarters in the future was considered to be through City of York 
publications such as ‘Your City’,’ Your Ward’ magazines.  

 
22. As part of their final tender developers are required to explain how their 

scheme has responded to the consultation feedback. There will be a 
further round of public consultation following the award of a contract during 

Page 71



and prior to the submission of a planning application. The Council also 
intends to implement an  earlier commitment to establish a reference panel 
to include representation from a wide spectrum of interests that can focus 
on and provide support and engagement for issues including and beyond 
the built form.  

 

Timescales 
 
23. The indicative timetable for the overall completion of the headquarters is 

as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Communications 
 
24. Information in relation to the feedback from  the consultation process  will 

go out in the press release that accompanies this report. A global e-mail 
will be  sent to all staff prior to this being published and the Council web 
and intranet sites will be updated with this information. We will  also be 
writing  to a number of professional bodies and key stakeholders within the 
wider York community to provide a more personalised update. 

 

Office of the Future 
 
25. Work to set up an ‘office of the future’ as a working model is now gaining  

momentum. The project will pilot new workplace concepts, new work 
policies and procedures and provide a tried and tested model and 
consistent approach to occupying the new headquarters.  

 
26. Following the initial project set up and establishment of the project team, a 

meeting was held with the LCCS pilot team service managers at the end of 
April. This was closely followed by a formal launch event held at the 
Mansion House for all the staff and managers involved in the pilot.  The 
event was supported by the Director of LCCS, the Director of City 
Strategy/Deputy Chief Executive and the Accommodation Project Director. 
Taking the opportunity of having all the pilot staff together, the event also 
included an interactive session, where the views of staff from the pilot 
teams were sought to establish their ‘past, present and future’ working 
experiences and perceptions. The outcome will inform the pilot and also 
act as a benchmark at the start of the project. 

 
27. Immediately following the launch, staff were issued with an on-line “New 

Ways of Working” questionnaire with the aim of gathering staff and 
manager views on new ways of working.  The results of the survey are due 
out shortly and will again serve as benchmark data as well as informing 
the workstream work and the Council’s ‘new ways of working’ strategy. 
The survey included an equalities profiling questionnaire. 

 

• HQ Contract Award December        2009 

• Planning Application Summer           2010 

• Planning Approval Late Summer  2010 

• Commence Construction/refurbishment  Late                  2010 

• HQ Completion Mid – Late        2012 

Page 72



28. A variety of communication channels are currently being identified and 
established to support the project and the communications plan.  
Champion representatives from the pilot teams have been identified to 
work closely with each of the individual workstream leads.  A dedicated 
online in-box has been set up to enable a central point of contact for the 
project.  Regular one hour weekly surgery visits are due to commence 
shortly to provide a presence within the pilot workspace, enabling face to 
face access to a member of the project team to capture any problems or 
issues that staff or managers may have.  Information boards and displays 
are currently being developed and as the project progresses regular 
meetings and bulletins will take place. 

 
29. The Electronic Document Records Management Systems (EDRMS) 

workstream has commenced - the first of a three stage process to address 
the document management needs of the teams.  This first phase will 
involve carrying out an audit of paper, files, catalogues and stationery with 
the support of the pilot teams carrying out the work themselves.   

 
30. The Design workstream has carried out an audit of the workspace and is 

now analysing the workstyle information in order to inform the process of 
space planning.  An initial meeting to discuss potential opportunities within 
the workspace has been held involving technical advisors on construction 
and design. 

 
31. The IT and Facilities Management workstreams are working with their 

workstream champions to establish baseline data and needs. 
 

Implications 
 
Financial 

32. The budget for the accommodation project is £43.8 million as reported to 
Executive in June 2008. This includes the construction budget of £32 
million and incorporates the expenditure that has been incurred to date. All 
costs associated with the  assembly of the land at the Hungate site will be 
recovered from the sale of the site. 

 
33. On 23 March 2009, the Council publicly announced that the 

Accommodation Project would be delivered by external developers 
through a competitive procurement process. As a result some costs 
already incurred from the commencement of the project in 2005 are no 
longer relevant. 

 
34. All the costs incurred on the Accommodation Project have been reviewed 

and the analysis shows that £1.09m of costs incurred are actually abortive. 
The costs have occurred in the area of Design & Construction and a 
minimal amount from project management. These  abortive costs will be 
accounted for within the 2008/9 Final Accounts as required by statutory 
regulation. 

  
35. It should be noted that these costs have been included within the 

approved project budget of £43.8m (as noted in paragraph 32, 33 and 34 
above). Therefore the  new arrangements  to acquire a council 
headquarters building  presents no additional burden to the council 
taxpayer. The Pre-Audit Statement of Accounts are approved by Audit & 

Page 73



Governance Committee on 29 June 2009, following which the Audit 
Commission will review the Statement including the treatment of costs 
relating to the Office Accommodation Project and report their findings back 
to the Audit & Governance Committee by 30th September 2009. 

 
Equalities 

36. Work is underway to complete a full set of Equality Impact Assessments 
(EIA’s)  as an integral part of the Accommodation Project. 

 
37. Liaison with the Corporate Equality and Inclusion Team has been 

undertaken to ensure a corporate approach and effective communication 
is in place at all times to benefit the process. Initial work involved the 
Council’s Staff Equalities Reference Group examining key issues for 
consideration at its meeting of the 27 April 2009 which proved beneficial 
and raised some key points for examination. 

 
38. These work outputs were then used as part of an Equality Impact 

Assessment (EIA) Workshop involving the Accommodation Project 
Delivery Team, the Directorate Equality Leads network and Corporate 
Equality and Inclusion Team members to shape the ‘groupings’ of EIA’s 
into three areas. These areas (Design and Construction, Facilities 
Management and Communications) have a broad representation of 
officers working on them on an ongoing basis to deliver and identify the 
EIA’s required, their known outcomes to be addressed and key timescales 
to take them through to the commissioning and beyond of the chosen 
headquarters scheme in 2012. The Equalities Staff Reference Group and 
the Social Inclusion Working Group will also be involved throughout this 
process. 

 
39. Further ongoing work is underway within the ‘groupings’ which will 

culminate in a further and more detailed update to the Project Board in 
September 2009 following  further corporate working led by the 
accommodation team. Longer term it is anticipated that the initial EIA’s will 
be completed and have approval in time for the Use of Resources  
Inspection in February 2010 prior to being published on the Council 
website in March 2010 which is the agreed corporate date for this to take 
place. 

 
Legal 

40. It is vital that the project follows good procurement practice and legal 
requirements, which underlie that practice and to make decisions in a way 
which reflects key EU principles (equal treatment, transparency, 
proportionality) to avoid risks of challenge and to achieve best outcome. 
Commercial confidentiality must also be observed. 

 

Corporate Priorities 

41. The provision of new accommodation and the consequential improvement 
in services to our customers will contribute to all of the Council’s corporate 
priorities. The project will feed into and be a key component of the 
Council’s  ‘More for York’ transformation programme. 

 
 

 

Page 74



Risks 

42. The project risk register has been re-profiled to take account of the current 
changes and the revised procurement strategy for the project and regular 
monthly reports are presented to the Accommodation Project Board. The 
project risks were reviewed at the Audit and Governance committee on 
29th June. 
 

Recommendations 
 

43. This is a progress update report and Members are asked to: 
 

• Note the content of this report with particular regard to the outcomes of 
the recent consultation process. 

  

• A further report will be presented to the Executive in early December 
2009  to report the outcomes of the evaluation of the final tender 
submissions. 

 
  

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Bill Woolley 
Director of City Strategy  
 
Report 
Approved ���� 

Date 30th June 2009 

Maria Wood 
Project Director-Accommodation 
Tel No.553354 

 

 
     

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s)   
Financial    
Name:       Louise Branford-White                             
Title:          Technical Finance Manager                                                   
Tel No.      551187                                                     
 

  Wards Affected:  Acomb, Clifton, Fishergate, Guildhall, Heworth, Heworth 
Without, Micklegate  
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 

Background Papers: 
 
 
Executive Report  14th April 2009 - Council Headquarters Update  
 

 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 

   

 

Executive 
 

21 July 2009 

 
Report of the Director of City Strategy                 

 

URBAN ECO SETTLEMENT 

Proposal for a Demonstration Exemplar at British Sugar, York 

Summary 

1. This paper outlines a proposal for funding a Demonstration Exemplar Urban Eco 
Community on part of the former British Sugar site within the York Northwest 
area. Member approval is sought to submit the proposal to Leeds City Region 
(LCR), subject to the agreement of Associated British Food (the landowner of 
British Sugar), for inclusion as part of their submission to the Department of 
Communities and Local Government (CLG) this July. Following Ministerial 
consideration during the summer, a decision on the bid is expected in 
September this year.   

Background 

2. In October 2008 initial proposals by the Leeds City Region (LCR) partnership 
were submitted to the government to create Urban Eco-Settlements at four 
locations within the Leeds City Region (including York Northwest), to 
complement the LCR New Growth Points Package 2008-2017.  

 
3. A subsequent study in January 2009 to assess deliverability of the four Urban 

Eco Settlement areas (as part of the Eco Towns agenda), identified the British 
Sugar site at York Northwest as having potential to provide the early delivery of 
120 homes as a ‘demonstration exemplar’ for the new urban eco community at 
British Sugar. The demonstration exemplar would provide an example of leading 
edge sustainability features which could be used as a model for implementation 
on other sites throughout the country. 

   
4. Following a meeting between the CLG and the Homes and Communities 

Agency (HCA) and LCR in May this year, the LCR are currently preparing more 
detailed information on the eco credentials of the four Urban Eco Settlements 
(UES) being put forward. A bid for funding these UES will be submitted to the 
Department of Communities and Local Government (CLG) at the end of July this 
year for consideration over the summer.  

5. The Council have engaged with the landowner of the British Sugar site, ABF, to 
produce a proposal which will form part of the LCR submission to CLG. The 
scope of the proposal has been reduced from 120 homes (see para 3 ) to 60 

Agenda Item 8Page 77



 

homes to reflect the level of funding available nationally. The submission will 
include detail of the proposed composition of the specific sustainability 
design/technologies which could be included in the new development. ABF 
requested preliminary funding for consultants to develop the proposal. However, 
as funding for this was not available, council officers prepared an initial 
proposal, for discussion and agreement with ABF. The attached indicative 
proposal (see Annex 1) reflects the outcome of these discussions. 

Consultation 

6. On 28 April 2009 officers gave a presentation to the Acomb Ward Committee on 
the background to the emerging urban eco settlement proposals. Illustrations of 
eco principles and examples of eco developments within York and elsewhere in 
the country were also outlined. There will be an opportunity for residents to be 
involved in planning as part of the AAP process  and  masterplanning work by 
the landowner/developer. 

Approach  

7. The Council has a strong commitment to promoting and delivering sustainability 
across all aspects of council activities. York has extensive experience in the 
delivery of sustainable development and the approach underpins all CYC 
strategic operations. The council has been nationally recognised for its leading 
edge approach to promoting sustainability and sustainable integrated transport 
with the completion of projects at the Danesgate Skills Centre, the Eco Depot, 
Park and Ride sites and programme of works forming part of the Cycling City 
initiative.  

 
8. York Northwest has a key role in delivering the Core Strategy vision and is 

expected to make a significant contribution to meeting the demand for York’s 
future housing needs. The British Sugar demonstration exemplar proposal is 
considered to present an important opportunity to promote and support the 
redevelopment of the area. Additionally, it provides an excellent opportunity to 
build on the city’s experience of sustainable development and implement further 
new eco design/technology with benefits not only for the exemplar development 
and development within York, but also for the wider sustainability agenda.      
 

9. The overarching theme for the future development of the York Northwest area is 
the need to promote sustainable development which is reflected in the vision for 
the area. This is essential for a development of this scale to ensure future 
development minimises its impact on the environment and helps to minimise the 
city’s impact on climate change. The designation of the York Northwest area as 
an Urban Eco Settlement will strengthen and enhance the sustainability 
objectives for the area to be set out in the Area Action Plan. The exemplar 
proposal has been prepared using the Eco Town standards set out in 
government guidance, as relevant to the York Northwest context. 

10. This proposal is capable of delivery as an initial phase of development of the 
York Northwest Urban Eco Settlement. It will showcase a model of sustainable 
development which can be used as a benchmark and adapted for 
implementation elsewhere.  However, it is recognised that the cost of delivering 
development to this exemplary standard would require a step level increase in 

Page 78



 

costs of construction and implementation. The demonstration exemplar will 
provide an opportunity to assess the cost effectiveness of specific specifications, 
which can then be used in the wider development area. 

11. A comprehensive package of high quality social (including opportunities for 
training/skills development) and green infrastructure with a community ‘eco hub’ 
and sustainable approach to travel is outlined in the proposal. The emphasis will 
be on the provision of family housing with a range of sustainable technologies to 
promote energy generation and water/energy efficiencies.   

The Proposal 

12. Given the limited timeframe in which to develop the submission, the attached 
proposal with conceptual plans is illustrative at this stage and further detailed 
work will be required in the event of a successful bid. The proposal outlines an 
indicative area for a first phase pilot scheme comprising 60 residential dwellings 
at a density of 50 dwellings per hectare with a site area of approximately 1.5ha. 
The pilot scheme would be accessed via the existing Millfield Lane with a new 
internal access road. Green infrastructure could include open space and 
allotments and funding has been included within the bid to facilitate access to off 
site open space, feasibility work and infrastructure/management.  

13. Sustainability initiatives, which will be promoted as part of the proposal include 
for example: 

a) Achieving through innovative solutions Level 4 of the Code for Sustainable 
Homes as a minimum, with Level 5 for water use and Level 6 for energy 
generation and efficiency.  

b) Providing recycling facilities to promote the ethos of recycling and reducing 
waste as a matter of good practice and using locally and responsibly sourced 
and recycled building materials.   

c) Providing allotments within the scheme to encourage future residents to 
grow their own food and reduce their impact on the environment/eco 
footprint. 

d) Constructing a show home facility, which will act as a temporary community 
hub for the first phase of the development. This would provide an advice and 
information centre for residents on eco features (where experiences on 
practical issues can be shared), car club and related management issues. It 
would also provide a base for young people linked to on-the-job sustainable 
construction related training. 

e) Providing a range of sustainable technologies to ensure low/zero carbon 
energy, including solar thermal arrays, photovoltaic arrays, high insulation 
standards/ reduced air leakage, maximising natural lighting and wind power. 
Energy generation and efficiency technologies could also include the 
installation of a district wide heating system using biomass/biofuel boilers.  

f) Developing an approach to manage the entire water cycle impacts of the 
Exemplar development at British Sugar. This will incorporate high water 

Page 79



 

efficiency, low water usage technologies and appliances that minimise the 
need for processing water. 

g) Developing an innovative, integrated approach to sustainable modes of 
transport which will prioritise walking and cycling. This will include for 
example, providing a car club with an element of zero private parking, 
evaluating the potential for an element of cycle hire, and provision of good 
cycle space within homes. 

 
h) Installing Real Time information panels in all residential units in the 

Demonstration Exemplar, which will include live bus approach times, and 
walk time; city wide public transport, journey time and road network 
information; environmental information on household energy/utility, 
consumption; details on council services, e.g. refuse collection; and 
community, Education and Police information. 

 
14. Within the masterplanning process careful consideration will need to be given to 

the precise location of the exemplar to ensure that the overall layout, phasing 
and construction issues for the site are taken into account. Additionally, 
regrading of existing land levels may be necessary to facilitate the 
demonstration development. 
 

15. It is anticipated that two planning applications would be submitted; a full 
application for  the pilot scheme and a second, outline application for the whole 
of the British Sugar site. The demonstration exemplar proposal would be 
considered as part of the wider masterplanning of the British Sugar site and the 
planning applications would be considered within the context of the York 
Northwest Area Action Plan. A draft programme outlining the alignment of the 
planning application process with masterplanning and production of the Area 
Action Plan is attached at Annex 2. 

16. A funding package based on high level costings of the specific eco measures 
with a breakdown of specific funding elements is outlined in Table 1 within the 
proposal. At this stage, a nominal figure has been included in the funding 
package in the absence of a development scheme and appraisal. A sum of 
£6.0m for the Demonstration Exemplar is being sought from CLG. Additional 
grant funding from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) would be sought 
to achieve 50% affordable housing.   

Corporate Priorities 

17. The York Northwest area provides large brownfield development opportunities 
adjacent to the city centre. Development of this area will help to protect and 
enhance York’s existing built and green environment and provides an 
opportunity for a flagship sustainable development. The regeneration of this 
area will help to support all the corporate ambitions with a particular emphasis 
on reducing CO2 emissions, providing more affordable homes and raising the 
city’s profile to attract new inward investment and job opportunities. 

Implications 

18.   Implications are as listed below: 

Page 80



 

a) Financial The total cost of the scheme is estimated to be £6m which is also 
the level of funding sought from CLG. This will be fully funded from the 
government and there will be no additional budget requirement from the 
council. The potential costs to the council (for project management) in 
developing the exemplar scheme would therefore be reimbursed by the 
government. If the funding bid is not successful, these costs will not be 
incurred as the development will not be progressed.  

b) Human Resources (HR) The submission includes a bid for project 
management over a period of three years. This would primarily be used to 
fund additional staffing. 

c) Equalities None 
d) Legal The submission includes a bid for legal fees associated with the 

preparation of a memorandum of understanding between the City of York 
Council and Leeds City Region.  

e) Crime and Disorder None 
f) Information Technology (IT) None 
g) Property The proposal has been prepared in liaison with the sustainability 

officer dealing with corporate capital projects within Property.  
h) Other The proposal has been prepared in liaison with the council’s 

sustainability officer within City Strategy. 

Risk Management 

19.  A risk register is attached at Annex 3. This identifies the main risks from initial 
funding and planning phases to construction and implementation. Seven 
elements of the register are identified as being high risk. These include: 

a) CLG offer does not cover funding gap for demonstration exemplar. 
b) Inadequate funding for resources to prepare and deliver the scheme. 
c) Planning consents delayed. 
d) Adoption of core strategy delayed. 
e) Delay to development programme. 
f) Adverse market conditions. 
g) Reputational risk. 
 

20.  Mitigation measure to reduce the level of risk are outlined. These include early 
identification of funding requirements and allocation of resources; progression of 
planning applications as early as possible with additional resources employed 
as necessary; and obtaining specialist property/market advice as appropriate 
throughout the process. 

  Recommendations 

 21.  Members are asked to: 

  (1) Agree, subject to ABF’s agreement, that the attached proposal is submitted 
for inclusion as part of the wider Leeds City Region bid to CLG for Urban 
Eco Settlement funding.   

Reason: To ensure a proposal is put forward within the timescales given to 
the Leeds City Region. 

Page 81



 

 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Damon Copperthwaite 
Assistant Director of City Development and Transport 

Sue Houghton  
York Northwest Project Manager 
 
Ann Ward/Ben Murphy 
York Northwest Project Officers 
 
Tel: (01904) 551375 

Report Approved 
� 

Date 
 

 

09/07/09 

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s): None 
 

   
Wards Affected:  Acomb and Rural West York  
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers 
None 
 
Appendices 
Annex 1  Draft Demonstration Exemplar Proposal for British Sugar 
Annex 2  Draft Programme 
Annex 3  Draft Risk Register 

 

Page 82



ANNEX 1 
 
 
 

York Northwest 
 
 

BRITISH SUGAR 
YORK 

 
 
 

Proposal for a Demonstration Exemplar  
Urban Eco * Settlement   

 
 

DRAFT 
 
 
 
 

July 2009 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                  
        

                                                                                                 
 

     
 

Page 83



 2 

Contents 
 
 

  Page 
1.0 Executive Summary 

 
3 

2.0 Introduction 
 

4 

3.0 Background 
 

5 

4.0 Proposal 
 

8 

5.0 Funding Requirements 
 

14 

6.0 Governance and Delivery Arrangements 
 

17 

7.0 APPENDIX 
 

 

Appendix 1. 
 
Appendix 2. 
 
Appendix 3. 

Summary of Eco Town principles 
 
Programme 
 
Risk Register 
 

18 

 List of Illustrations 
 

 

Plan 1   York Northwest AAP: Emerging British Sugar Strategic 
Context  
 

 

Plan 2   Conceptual Plan showing location of Demonstration 
Exemplar 
 

 

Plan 3 Concept Plan showing area of Demonstration Exemplar  
   
   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 84



 3 

1.0 Executive Summary 
 
This paper outlines a proposal for a Demonstration Exemplar Eco Community on part 
of the British Sugar site within the York Northwest area. York Northwest is expected to  
make a significant contribution to delivering York’s future housing needs over the next 
20 years. The area was identified as a location for a new Urban Eco Settlement by 
the Leeds City Region, earlier this year. As an award winning Council, York has a 
strong commitment and extensive experience in promoting and delivering schemes 
which incorporate sustainable technologies and principles of development. The 39ha  
brownfield site at British Sugar provides an excellent opportunity to showcase a 
number of specific technologies due to its size, location adjacent to a railway line and 
proximity to public transport services. 
 
The Council will be working collaboratively with the landowner for the British Sugar 
site, Associated British Foods, to deliver a first phase 60 unit ‘Demonstration 
Exemplar’, as a joint initiative to complement the wider Leeds City Region growth 
agenda. This will showcase a model of sustainable development, which can be used 
as a benchmark and could be adapted for implementation elsewhere. The 
‘Demonstration Exemplar’ will be tailored to include specific sustainable design and 
technologies that go beyond standard requirements in key areas. A holistic approach 
to all aspects of sustainable design and future lifestyle choices will be taken including 
water cycle measures, energy generation and efficiencies, a community hub and 
provision of allotments. The aim will be to achieve through innovative solutions Level 
4 of the Code for Sustainable Homes across all the development, with Level 5 for 
water use and Level 6 for energy generation and efficiency. An integrated approach to 
sustainable transport will be followed which allows a more informed basis for travel 
choices and decisions to be made which will reduce reliance on the private car.     
 
Funding of £6.0m is being sought to facilitate and implement a package of sustainable 
infrastructure and design measures which would enable a higher standard of delivery 
to be provided and would trial a model of sustainable living. A cost per dwelling of 
£17,250 has been identified as necessary to achieve the above, over an above basic 
build costs. Further funding from the Homes and Communities Agency to increase 
affordable housing provision from 35% to 50% would require £1.52m in the 
demonstration exemplar. Comparative costs have been calculated for delivery to 
these standards on the rest of British Sugar.     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 85



 4 

2.0 Introduction 
 
Purpose:  
York has a reputation for being a leading edge, award winning local authority in 
delivering sustainable development and integrated transport provision. Building on 
this experience, the overarching aim at York Northwest is to promote the creation of 
an exemplar new sustainable community for York on two major areas of brownfield 
land- the former British Sugar site and York Central. The early delivery of a 
Demonstration Exemplar Urban Eco Settlement project on a part of the former British 
Sugar site will deliver a first phase of innovative eco-principles in an urban 
regeneration setting. 
 
The ‘Demonstration Exemplar’ forms part of the British Sugar site, and the wider York 
Northwest Area Action Plan (AAP). ABF and the council have been in discussions 
regarding the British Sugar site for two years, which has resulted in preliminary work 
having commenced on a masterplan for the site. There has also been ongoing 
progress on the preparation of the AAP, which is now leading up to its second round 
of public consultation.  
 
ABF supports the ‘Demonstration Exemplar’ initiative, albeit specific uses listed within 
the proposal will be given due consideration as part of the evolving AAP and the 
master planning of the British Sugar site. For example, open space 
requirements/typologies and the provision of ‘community facilities’ will be determined 
as part of the  AAP process, based on ongoing due diligence and evidence gathering.  
 
The potential uses and supporting infrastructure listed in this Proposal – with the 
exception of the 60 residential units (the Demonstration Exemplar’) – provide an 
indication of potential uses for the British Sugar site, but are not binding. The final 
masterplan and specific land uses will be determined following further 
public/stakeholder consultation and evidence gathering, as part of the ongoing AAP 
and master planning process.  
       
Urban Eco Settlements 
Initial proposals to create Urban Eco-Settlements at four locations within the Leeds 
City Region (LCR) including York Northwest, were prepared by the Leeds City 
Partnership to complement the LCR New Growth Points Package 2008-2017 and 
submitted to the government in October 2008. A subsequent study in January 2009 to 
assess deliverability of the four Urban Eco Settlement areas (as part of the Eco 
Towns agenda), identified the British Sugar site at York Northwest as having potential 
to provide the early delivery of 120 homes as a ‘demonstration exemplar’ for the new 
urban eco community at British Sugar. This could also be used as an example of 
leading edge sustainability features which could be used as a model for 
implementation on other sites throughout the country.   
 
At a meeting between the CLG/HCA and LCR in May this year, the LCR were invited 
by the CLG to provide more detailed information on the eco credentials of the four 
urban eco settlements being put forward. In the case of the British Sugar site 
‘demonstration exemplar’ this would include detail of the proposed composition of the 
specific sustainability design/technologies which could included in the new 

Page 86



 5 

development. This proposal has been prepared by the City of York Council in 
collaboration with the landowners for the British Sugar site, Associated British Foods.     
 
Proposal:  
A basic funding package of £2.7m, or more comprehensive package at £6.0m is 
being sought from CLG to deliver the demonstration exemplar eco community on part 
of York Northwest. It would form the first phase of an eco community on the British 
Sugar site, providing 60 homes. Funding will be utilised to exceed standard 
sustainability requirements, allowing future residents to live sustainable lifestyles that 
will minimise their impact on climate change. Proposed elements of this will include: 
Code For Sustainable Homes (CfSH) level 4 homes as standard; CfSH level 5/6 
technologies on homes to include on site energy generation and efficient 
technologies; a water cycle strategy to minimise water consumption and attenuate 
run-off; and integrated transport measures within a sustainable transport framework. 

 
 

3.0 Background 
 
York Northwest Context 
The York Northwest area lies immediately to the north and west of York’s historic city 
centre and railway station. It comprises two significant and distinct brownfield sites, 
‘York Central’ and the former ‘British Sugar’ site. These key brownfield regeneration 
sites are strategically well placed in the city and are recognised as being of regional 
importance within the Regional Spatial Strategy and a ‘regional significant investment 
priority’. The area has also been identified in the Centre for Cities Report (March 
2009) as being critical to the cities economic future and will meet a significant 
proportion of Yorks future housing needs, providing around 15% of future housing for 
York over the next 20 years.  
 
The British Sugar site is 39.5ha in size and has been used as a sugar refinery plant. 
This use has now ceased and demolition works are nearing completion. The site is  
bounded by the Leeds/Harrogate railway line. York Central comprises approximately 
35ha of brownfield land which has been identified as a development site by the major 
landowners and the Council. A significant proportion of area is used for railway 
purposes which has been identified as surplus to requirements by Network Rail.  The 
site adjoins the city centre of York and York railway station and is bounded by railway 
lines, including the East Coast main line and the Leeds/Harrogate line. 
 
Due to the scale of the area and its sustainable location adjacent to public transport 
routes the Council consider this an excellent opportunity to provide an exemplar new 
sustainable community with mixed use development which minimises the need to 
travel and acts as a catalyst for sustainable living. The demonstration exemplar at 
British Sugar will showcase a model of sustainable development which can be used 
as a benchmark and adapted for implementation elsewhere.  
 
Sustainable Delivery in York  
The Council has a strong commitment to promoting and delivering sustainability 
across all aspects of council activities within the city with ‘Sustainable City’ a key 
underpinning theme in both the Community Strategy and the Councils Corporate 

Page 87



 6 

Strategy. The Community Strategy “Without Walls”, sets out the communities 
strategic ambitions of developing strong, supportive and durable communities, and 
striking a healthy balance between physical growth and environmental sustainability. 
The Vision for the emerging Core Strategy endorses this approach with York to be a 
‘A Leading Environmentally Friendly City’. 
 
Sustainable technologies 
York has extensive experience in the delivery of sustainable development and the 
approach underpins all CYC strategic operations. A pioneering approach is taken to 
new Council buildings with the Council seeking to lead by example and raise 
standards as a whole in the city. A number of national awards have been received for 
buildings within the city and all new Council buildings are delivered to BREEAM very 
good or excellent standards. A range of sustainable technologies have been 
employed on a wide range of showpiece Council buildings over a period of many 
years, including: ground source heat pumps with export back to national grid;  
photovoltaic panels; rainwater harvesting; sustainable urban drainage; on site wind 
turbines; and biomass boilers. A considerable level of in-house knowledge of 
sustainable technologies has been developed, together with practical application of 
these.   
 
Training and Skills: Demonstration models 
The leading edge design of buildings is already being used as demonstration models 
for training and educational purposes within the region. The award winning eco-depot 
in York (a straw bale construction), was the largest eco-building of its type in Europe 
at the time of construction. The building has an interpretation room which is used to 
promote environmental awareness to the local community and school children and 
education of sustainable technologies used in the construction of the building. The 
Danesgate Skills Centre (which provides a practical skill centre for vocational training 
for young people aged 14 and above) won a National Award in 2008 (Green Apple 
Award, bronze winner). The Council wishes to build on this experience at York 
Northwest and implement further new eco design/technology to reduce environmental 
impact and climate change.    
 
Sustainable Suburban Housing: Demonstration model 
The Joseph Rowntree Foundation together with the Joseph Rowntree Housing Trust, 
who have a track record in providing socially inclusive/sustainable housing 
developments,  are to build 540 homes in York which are designed to be an exemplar 
sustainable community. Phase 1 of the development for 64 units will provide a quality 
benchmark for future phases of the site. A key focus is to achieve exemplary energy 
performance. Three of these units are due to be built to reach CfSH Level 5 with the 
remaining development to be built to CfSH Level 4.    
 
Eco Footprint 
York is one of the first Local Authorities to have reducing eco and carbon footprints 
as a headline objective in sustainability appraisal work and to use the REAP tool in 
assessing the environmental impact of development. The Council will continue to 
work in partnership with the Stockholm Institute to inform the planning policy 
approach and an Urban Eco Settlement, if designated, for York Northwest.    
   

Page 88



 7 

Sustainable Integrated Transport 
The Council is also facilitating sustainable transport facilities to increase the mode 
shift away from cars. The Council has provided 5 park and ride sites around the city, 
with 2 additional facilities currently being progressed. York was the ‘Transport Local 
Authority of the Year’ in the National Transport Awards 2003 and is also a Centre of 
Excellence for ‘Transport Planning (Park and Ride and Cycling)’ and selected to 
continue this work as a Centre of Excellence for Local Integrated Transport Planning’ 
(improved transport choices in towns and cities) in April 2005 by DfT. This year York 
has also received Cycling City status and received match funding for a 3 year 
programme of works from Cycling England.   
  
Planning Context 

 An Area Action Plan is being prepared for the York Northwest area, which will 
comprehensively guide the redevelopment of the area. This will allow the 
infrastructure needs for both the York Central and British Sugar sites to be 
considered in the wider context and suitable contributions/provision made. An 
exemplary standard of sustainability has been a key overriding principle for 
developing the area and has received a consensus of support from the public, 
Council Members, chief officers and key stakeholders. The AAP is at Preferred 
Option stage with a report on this expected to be taken to Members in the Autumn. A 
considerable amount of background work on scenario development, viability, 
sustainability and transport modelling work has been undertaken to inform the 
Preferred Options. Plan 1 shows the emerging strategic context for the British Sugar 
site with the Vision and strategic objectives 1 and 2 for York Northwest. 

  
A strong commitment to sustainable principles has underpinned the project from 
inception. These are embodied in the Vision and overarching strategic objectives for 
the AAP.  The Vision is that: 
“York Northwest in 2026 will be 
..a distinctive place of outstanding quality and sustainable design…well connected 
with the city and wider region…contributing to the economic prosperity of the city…a 
vital and innovative addition to York….fostering new sustainable communities and 
enhancing quality of life”. 
  
The AAP’s primary strategic objective is ‘to create new sustainable and inclusive 
communities which achieve the highest standards of sustainability throughout’. A 
policy approach to delivering high sustainability standards will be included in the AAP 
and will be informed by the outcomes of this work.  
 
Developer Context  
Associated British Foods own the British Sugar site and are currently undertaking 
remediation work with demolition works to clear the site and remove of all buildings 
and hardsurfacing to be completed this summer. The existing buildings on the site 
have been recycled on a nearby development site. Consultants have been engaged 
to work on different aspects of the development, including Rapleys LLP 
(Development and Town Planning), PRP Architects (Masterplanning), Atkins 
(Ecology), Aecom (Transport), Golder Associates (Ground Conditions) and Silcock 
Dawson (Services/Utilities).   
 

Page 89



 8 

PRP Architects specialise in sustainable residential and mixed use design and in 
2008 the practice achieved the ‘Sustainable Social Housing Design Team of the 
Year’. Recent projects have included: Hanham Hall in South Gloucestershire, the first 
large scale eco village in the country to be built to code level 6 and supported by the 
Homes and Communities Agency; and, Eco-Retirement Village, Sompting, a zero 
carbon development with an assisted living community.  Sigma House, a sustainable 
house built to CfSH level 5 was designed by PRP and recently exhibited at the British 
Research Establishment Innovation Park which showcases innovative methods of 
building design and construction.     
 

 
4.0 Proposal 
  

Sustainability Principles at York Northwest 
The overarching theme for the future development of the York Northwest area is the 
need to promote sustainable development, which benefits all sectors of society. It is 
essential for a development of this scale to ensure future development minimises its 
impact on the environment and helps to minimise the city’s impact on climate change.  
A key aspiration is to provide development which is carbon neutral and contributes to 
reducing York’s ecological footprint over time.  
 
Other key sustainability aspects of the development at York Northwest include:  

 
� Strong links between the development and cities green infrastructure networks 

through ongoing policy dialogue in production of York Northwest AAP and 
supplementary planning document of green infrastructure. 

� Ensuring mixed-use communities, including a range of employment 
opportunities in close proximity to residential areas. 

� Embedding sustainable transport solutions with walking and cycling at the top 
of a modal hierarchy, and reducing car-based travel, with a significantly lower 
modal split than city wide.  

� Incorporating renewable energy systems and a water cycle strategy as part of a 
holistic approach to ensuring sustainable building design and reducing CO2 
emissions across the site. 

 
Eco standards and requirements outlined in the Eco Towns PPS will be used as 
guiding principals for establishing a new sustainable community at British Sugar, 
alongside the Code for Sustainable Homes. Key elements of the standards within this 
guidance that will be explored across the York Northwest area include the following:  

 
� Zero carbon development 
� Meet Lifetime Homes English Partnerships standards 
� Meet CfSH level 5/6. 
� Provide at least 30% affordable housing 
� Minimum 40% site area open space 
� Water cycle strategy to minimise water demand 
� Energy efficiencies to improve on regulation standards 

 

Page 90



 9 

A full list of PPS standards that could be relevant to York Northwest is appended at 
Annex 1. 

 
Proposed Development at York Northwest 
A broad range of land uses are identified in the 2007 Issues and Options land use 
report for YNW. These include residential, employment, retail, leisure, open space 
and community facilities. These have been refined into four land use options, the 
broad basis of which include an urban quarter adjacent to the railway station with an 
emphasis on sustainable communities in the remaining areas. A comprehensive 
package of high quality social and green infrastructure will be required as an integral  
 
part of the development; options range up to 44% site area provided as public open 
space and all include accessible community facilities.  
 
British Sugar site 
For the British Sugar site there are two land use options: both are primarily residential 
but one option includes an element of employment use. The council’s standards for 
leisure, open space and educational provision, together with the application of  
housing density and mix ratios emerging from evidence base work have been used 
through a bespoke land use model to estimate quantums of development. The new 
residential community is estimated to range between 1200 to 1300 dwellings 
depending on the option taken forward. The emphasis of the development will be on 
provision of family housing which seeks to address York’s specific future housing 
needs. Whilst a density of around 50 dwellings per hectare is appropriate for a 
brownfield location in a suburban context, a range of housing densities will ensure a 
mixed and varied community.   
 
Social and green infrastructure provided for the new residential community could 
include: 
� A community eco-hub to provide the focal point for the residential community with 

new social and educational facilities including shops, health, meeting places, 
advice and information, a primary school and nursery/crèche provision.  

� Open space incorporating a park, teenage and children’s play areas, outdoor 
sports and allotments. It will be important to provide some sports facilities and 
natural/semi natural open space within the site as part of the overall green 
infrastructure. Any elements of outdoor sports and semi natural open space which 
are off site will be appropriately integrated and accessible as part of a green 
infrastructure strategy. 

� Yorkshire Wildlife Trust has expressed an interest in office/ education facility 
accommodation on York Northwest, with their occupation rates reduced through 
an agreement to manage open space associated with the scheme. Opportunities 
for this type of provision as part of the community eco-hub will be explored on 
British Sugar.   

 
In addition to new jobs created within the local centre, the employment option could 
potentially provide in the region of 160 jobs. 

 
A holistic approach to travel is proposed, which considers walking, cycling and public 
transport as easy and viable options for many journeys. This will be closely aligned 

Page 91



 10 

with the well-established agenda in York of seeking to maximise travel patterns by 
non-private car modes, whilst looking towards the latest innovations and recognised 
best practises within both the UK and wider Europe. 
 
The choice of travel mode will be influenced by the quality not only of the immediate 
and new environment, but also the existing surrounding area. Focusing on the 
“connections” between the two will be particularly relevant. The neighbourhood will be 
well structured with a range of street types, which include shared spaces, high 
permeability, legible layout and a slow speed environment.  The integration of a car 
club service and cycle hire will provide a viable alternative to car ownership for new 
residents, reducing the requirement for private parking, with all round environmental 
benefits.  
 
The final design and layout for the British Sugar site will emerge from masterplanning 
which will evolve following community engagement. The demonstration exemplar area 
will comprise residential development and will establish the eco principles which will 
be taken forward elsewhere. 
 
Programme and Risk Register 
A programme and risk register for taking the Demonstration Exemplar forward are 
attached at Appendix 2 and Appendix 3.  
 
British Sugar Demonstration Exemplar 
Location 
An area has been identified within the site which is accessible by a new link onto an 
existing access and could potentially be brought forward as part of a first phase of 
development (see attached Plan 2 and Plan 3). The exact location of the pilot 
residential areas will be determined as part of the comprehensive masterplanning for 
the site. The area would act as an exemplar for sustainable residential design, 
providing a template for the implementation of sustainable technologies and design 
that could then be rolled out on the rest of York Northwest and in the wider City 
Region/nationally. 
 
Sustainable Homes 
Standard Council requirements for residential development include CfSH Level 3, a 
target of 50% affordable homes, an appropriate mix and type of homes informed by 
the Council Strategic Housing Market Assessment, and an expectation of achieving 
lifetime homes standards.  
 
Proposals for the demonstration exemplar will focus on providing housing of an 
appropriate mix and type, designed for lifetime needs, 50% of which will be 
affordable. Housing will achieve CfSH Level 4 as standard, with performance to code 
levels 5 and 6 in key areas, informed by a detailed Eco-feasibility study. Sustainability 
will be benchmarked against CfSH levels, so for example a house may achieve code 
level 4 in all areas, but level 5 in terms of water consumption, or level 6 in terms of 
materials energy efficiency. 
 
The Eco-feasibility study will provide recommendations on the optimal range of 
interventions to deliver improved sustainable performance to CfSH levels, this study 

Page 92



 11 

will be undertaken by consultants. The study will include technical analysis of the 
cost-benefit performance of key technologies in order to deliver a robust, financially 
viable approach to delivering high levels of sustainability. The work will be undertaken 
with particular regard to the site characteristics of British Sugar, including rail access, 
biodiversity interest, sustainable transport linkages, land contamination, site 
orientation, topography etc. A range of scales of development will be included in the 
study in order to allow flexibility in implementation, potentially refining previous CLG 
cost analysis.  The recommendations of this work will inform development of the 
British Sugar Demonstration Exemplar; delivering cutting edge sustainable homes 
through dealing with site specific considerations, whilst achieving value for money in 
the context of the current housing market climate. The project will provide a template 
for development of a range of scales and physical contexts elsewhere in the City 
Region and beyond.  

 
Recycling 
Recycling facilities will be an important part of the final design to ensure easy access 
for residents and promote the ethos of recycling and reducing waste as a matter of 
good practice. Use of locally and responsibly sourced and recycled building materials 
will be promoted.   
 
Allotments 
Allotments will also be included within the scheme to encourage future residents to 
grow their own food and reduce their impact on the environment/eco footprint. The 
success of nearby allotments at Ouse Acres provides an existing example of what can 
be achieved.  
 
Community Hub 
A show home facility would provide a temporary community hub for the first phase of 
the development. This would provide a centre for residents as an advice and 
information resource on eco features (where experiences on practical issues can be 
shared), car club and related management issues. It would provide a base for young 
people linked to on-the-job sustainable construction related training. It would also 
provide information to the wider community and school children on sustainable 
development.   

 
Energy Generation and Efficiencies 
A range of sustainable technologies could be employed to ensure low/zero carbon 
energy including solar thermal arrays, photovoltaic arrays, high insulation standards/ 
reduced air leakage, maximising natural lighting and wind power. This could include 
installation of a district wide heating system using biomass/biofuel boilers. Links will 
be made with the National Non Food Crops Centre at the Biocentre in the Science 
Park at Heslington, York  who are pioneering biofuel technologies. They are also 
working with the construction sector with a ‘ renewable house’ which is currently being 
showcased at the BRE Innovation Park. By using both biomass and biofuel types of 
supply, biomass can provide the main expected capacity for the development with 
flexibility provided by the biofuel to accommodate peak demand times.  
 
Links will also be made with other local biomass/biofuel supply chain initiatives such 
as those supported by Future Energy Yorkshire. There are also opportunities to utilise 

Page 93



 12 

existing and proposed biomass supply facilities at Selby, Ripon or the Humber. The 
British Sugar site has the potential to use rail to facilitate delivery of biomass/biofuel 
fuels. The use of pellet mills also provides a sustainable source of supply in terms of 
bi-products being used sustainably in the process of manufacturing pellets and 
reducing waste disposal to land fill sites.  Resilience in supply will also be utilised by 
the use of the ESCO to import/export surplus energy use from the grid, with provision 
of a sub station linking with the transformer station adjacent to the site.  
 
City of York Council also has considerable experience of biomass boiler installation 
and operation in public buildings. The use of biomass/biofuel technologies can 
promote self reliance for fuel at the local scale and local control in the cost of energy. 
This strategy will also avoid the necessity to use unsustainable types of energy use.  
 
Water Efficiencies 
An approach will be developed to managing British Sugars entire water cycle impacts, 
this approach will deliver significant improvements in terms of water consumption and 
surface water treatment. This will incorporate high water efficiency, low water usage 
technologies and appliances that minimise the need for processing water. Building on 
experience of exemplar projects delivered by the council, it is proposed to incorporate 
rainwater/greywater recycling and district rainwater harvesting (from both roofs and 
hard surfaced areas within the site). The feasibility of reusing effluent water on a grid 
system around the site will also be considered. The strategy will outline a sustainable 
approach to dealing with surface water flows in the context of this contaminated site 
adjacent to the River Ouse. 

 
Sustainable Transport 

 An integrated approach will be taken to the layout of the demonstration exemplar 
scheme to ensure that development frames high quality streets and spaces, which are 
attractive and user friendly, encouraging new occupants and the wider communities to 
walk and cycle. 

 
The promotion of a healthy level of cycling within (and to and from) will form a key part 
of schemes transport success. The principles followed under street design and 
enhancement of connections will support this. Furthermore it will be a requirement for 
early planning to be given to the provision of high quality, easy to access and secure 
cycle parking/storage within all residential units. A range of options would be 
incorporated with the full integration of good cycle space within homes as the norm. It 
is also expected there will be provision of some external private cycle storage for 
visitors.  

 
It will be important to stimulate the use of existing bus services, focusing on those 
operating along the A59 corridor and other local services as the first phase of 
development would not support the immediate implementation of direct bus services.  
Residents will be encouraged to walk to existing bus stops on Millfield 
Lane/Boroughbridge Road, by enhancing existing connections.  
 
It is also proposed that all residential units in the demonstration exemplar will have a 
Real Time information panel installed. This innovate approach, will provide: 
  

Page 94



 13 

• Live bus approach times, and walk time, 

• City wide public transport, journey time and road network information, 

• Environmental information on household energy/utility, consumption, 

• Details on council services, e.g. refuse collection, 

• Community, Education and Police information. 
   
The level of parking provision and its integration within the design will be an important 
factor in influencing travel choices for future residents and reducing reliance on  
private cars. A range of parking options will be provided together with measures to 
control and manage provision. Provision of a car club with an element of zero private 
parking would be introduced. The potential for an element of cycle hire will also be 
evaluated.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 95



 14 

5.0 Funding Requirements 
    

 Viability Context  
Associated British Foods and City of York Council are currently undertaking financial 
appraisal work for proposed development of the British Sugar site.  
 
City of York Council is currently undertaking work on emerging development 
scenarios for York Northwest. This work models York Central and British Sugar as 
independent sites, whilst generating a comprehensive picture of viability across the 
whole area. The work takes a long-term, trend-based view on value and cost 
assumptions. Initial financial assessment of this work by consultants DTZ has 
revealed limited capacity for the site to absorb planning costs in addition to the 
package of social and sustainable transport infrastructure currently envisaged. This 
package includes significant on and off-site open space, health, education and 
community facilities, public transport provision, cycling and walking access.    
 
Implementation of Code Level 3 on British Sugar (assumed to be of medium 
ecological interest and assuming end terraced housing using Cost analysis of the 
Code for Sustainable Homes DCLG July 2008) would result in an approximate 
additional cost of £6.5m, with code levels 4, 5 & 6 costing an additional £5.8m 
(£12.3m total), £17.8m (£24.3m total) & £34.7m (£41.2M total) respectively. The 
considerable costs associated with Code Levels 4 and above would currently be likely 
to render British Sugar development scenario’s unviable: A more tailored approach to 
delivery of sustainable development is therefore essential to securing maximum 
benefits of public and private investment, both in terms of delivering the Codes 
objectives, and the wider identified sustainable infrastructure package; this is 
particularly relevant to early phases of British Sugar. 
 
Establishing the Funding Requirement 
A requirement to fund the following measures has been identified:  
  
Code Levels: Cost Effective Measures 
As set out in section 3, in addition to identified costs to bring all homes to Code Level 
4 standards, detailed work will be undertaken to establish the most cost effective 
mode of achieving more demanding objectives identified within the Code for 
Sustainable Homes standards. This work will be undertaken having regard to British 
Sugars unique characteristics; delivering innovative solutions to problems such as 
implementing SUDS in contaminated land, and will be modelled on a range of scales 
of development in order to ensure maximum flexibility and applicability to wider 
schemes. This work may also be broadened out to encompass commercial 
development and associated BREEAM standards if appropriate, and will form a 
second, more detailed tier of evidence base below the city wide eco-feasibility work 
currently being commissioned by the Council to support the Core Strategy. 
 
Funding for this work and for implementation of its recommendations are included in 
the funding package. The outcomes of this will be expressed as a cost per unit and 
applied to the demonstration exemplar development.  
 
 

Page 96



 15 

Water Efficiencies 
To complement and expand on implementation of the Code for sustainable homes 
objectives in terms of water consumption and surface water drainage, measures to 
promote water efficiency will be undertaken. Funding of an initial study to establish 
the specific package of measures and implementation of these within the 
demonstration exemplar development have been included within the package 
identified below. 
 
Sustainable Transport Measures 
A range of transport infrastructure projects have been identified as requiring funding 
in terms of feasibility work or capital implementation.  These projects have been 
informed by detailed transport modelling work, and will help to deliver the Councils 
objective of reducing private car based modal share beyond the cities existing very 
good levels. Additional funding for these aspects of the development scheme will 
enable delivery of a sustainable transport package beyond that which could be funded 
by the developer alone. This will maximise the benefits associated with sustainable 
transport networks adjacent to the site, through facilitating their strategic expansion, 
complementing that expansion already planned and funded through the Major 
Scheme Bid and Cycling City programs. 
 
Community Eco Hub:Training/ Skills/Community Centre  
It is also proposed that a package of training measures be implemented in order to 
disseminate information related to the cutting edge sustainable technologies being 
employed. These measures would include on-the-job sustainable construction related 
training for a number of young people, leading to NVQ accreditation and linked with 
York College. This type of post 16, non A-level training, has been identified as critical 
in enhancing the Cities current offer. Training would also be linked to a “show-home” 
facility that would demonstrate the technologies to other students in the York area (as 
was achieved at York’s eco-depot) as well as acting in the shorter term as a hub for 
advice and information to residents, trainee’s and wider community groups.  
      
Memorandum of Understanding 
As a prerequisite for funding, and to ensure that the high eco-standards are delivered 
in the demonstration exemplar a detailed Memorandum of Understanding between 
CLG, the Council and the landowners would be required. Costs associated with the 
drafting of this agreement have been included within the funding package. 
 
HCA:Affordable Housing Grant 
In addition to CLG eco-funding, HCA subsidy of affordable housing has been 
identified. It should be noted that the figures are speculative and are not based on 
substantiated empirical evidence. The average short-term differential between values 
of market and affordable housing in the modelled York Northwest development is 
£168,900/unit (taking into account policy split between social rented and discount for 
sale). The Council seeks to achieve 50% affordable units, though it is accepted that 
this target may not be achievable on more complex sites. HCA grant funding in the 
region of £38.2m, or £59,000 per affordable unit has therefore been identified to 
increase an assumed deliverable 35% affordable (based on previous experience in 
York) to the target 50% affordable.   

Page 97



 16 

 
Meeting the Funding Requirement 
A £2.7m basic CLG funding package has been identified for the short to medium term 
delivery of sustainability measures on the British Sugar demonstration exemplar as 
set out in Table 1 below. A more comprehensive package, including new strategic  
pedestrian/ cycle access and open space provision is identified at £6.0m. In addition 
to this CLG funding package, £1.52m of HCA grant funding has been identified to 
increase affordable housing levels from 35% to 50% in the demonstration exemplar 
scheme.  
 
Table 1: CLG Funding 

 
Item Cost 

(£000’s)* 
Delivery Exemplar 
Site 
Cost (£000’s) 

Delivery Code Level 4 Housing (uplift 
from Code Level 3) 

4.5/unit 270 

Delivery of Improved Code Level 
performance in line with Eco-feasibility 
and Water Cycle Strategy 
Recommendations (uplift from level 4)

+
 

10.5/unit 630 

British Sugar Eco-feasibility Study 100 100 

British Sugar Water Cycle Strategy 100 100 

Transport Parking Management 0.33/unit 20 

Transport: Real Time Information Panel 1.66/unit 100 

Transport Implementation Car Club 60 60 

Transport Visitor Cycle Parking 0.25/unit 15 

Training and Information Package 250 250 

Memorandum of Understanding 200 200 

CYC Project Management 350 350 

ABF Project Management 350 350 

ABF Masterplanning/Consultation 250 250 
Total  2,700  

Access to open space, feasibility, 
infrastructure and management 

3300 3,300 

Total request for CLG Funding  6,000 

  
*   

Based on 2008 baseline costs – would require index linking to anticipated future years. 
+ 

 Assumes wind technologies not applicable to site; eco-feasibility study may revise this assumption, 
leading to cost savings that could be reinvested in alternative technologies. Unit rates estimated on 
CLG cost guidance and due diligence. 

 
Table 2: HCA Funding 
 
Item Cost (£000’s) 

Site: Delivery Exemplar 

Homes and Communities Agency 
Affordable Housing Grant (Increase 
from 35% to 50% affordable homes) 

1,520 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 98



 17 

6.0 Governance and Delivery Arrangements 
 

Funding Allocation 
The approach taken on the Growth Point funding in terms of the procedural approach 
and how funds are allocated and spent would be adopted in the Urban Eco Settlement 
‘Demonstration Exemplar’ as referred to in section 2.2 of Examples of Agreements for 
CLG Funding by Arup, 5th June 2009.  
 
Project Management 
A dedicated project management team would be set up to progress the delivery of the 
demonstration exemplar scheme. This would comprise developer and council sub 
groups: the former to progress detailed design and planning matters; and, the later to 
provide an integrated proactive approach within the council and community for co-
ordination of the project. The project management team would incorporate members 
from the developer and council/community groups and meet on a monthly basis to 
ensure any day to day issues were resolved speedily and work progressed in 
accordance with an agreed programme of works. The project team would be in place 
for 3 years to cover all aspects of delivery, from early planning through to the 
occupation and operation of the eco elements of the scheme and the funding would 
cover this time period.    
 
Governance  
A Steering Group would be set up with representation from the Leeds City Region, 
York Council and Associated British Foods/Developer. The Group would be 
responsible for the overall strategic direction of the project with project monitoring of 
costs/timescales and resolution of any strategic issues.  
It would meet on a 3 monthly basis. The representative members of the Steering 
Group would be accountable to the Councils Executive and the Associated British 
Foods Board as appropriate. The role of the Council would be to facilitate and enable 
management of the programme and funding. ABF would be responsible for project 
delivery.   

 
Community  
Representatives from the existing community would be included in the initial stages of 
the project team and following occupation residents of the new dwellings would also 
be included. Subsequently following completion of the project a community team 
would be established to provide a forum for managing community facilities and 
initiatives, eg open space, allotments, the community eco-hub and cycle hire and car 
club.  This will encourage social interaction within the new and existing community and 
ensure it will be self sustaining.  
 
This approach would set the structure for the rest of the development to be taken 
forward.  
 

  
 
 
 

 

Page 99



 18 

APPENDIX 1 
 
Summary of Eco Town Standards Relevant to YNW in the November 2008 PPS 

 
General 

• Zero carbon (excl. embodied and transport related) 

• Planned to minimise future vulnerability to climate change 
 

Housing 

• Zero Carbon 

• Building for life Silver 

• Code level 4 

• Meet lifetime homes and EP space standards 

• Min. 30% affordable 

• High speed broadband 

• Real time energy and public transport monitoring. 

• Have regard to embodied energy consumption in light of proposed changes to building regs 

• carbon reductions (from space heating, hot water and fixed lighting) of at least 70 per cent 
relative to current Building Regulations (Part L ‘06) 

• Sited within 10 mins walk of frequent PT and local services and 800m walking distance of 
primary school. 

 
Employment 

• Strategy to demonstrate how access to work achieved with objective of minimising 
unsustainable commuter patterns. 

• Minimum of 1 employment opportunity/ unit that is accessible by walking/ cycling/PT 
 
Transport 

• Significantly lower than 50% modal split for cars (where adjacent to existing urban area). 

• Good design principles, drawing from Manual for Streets, CABE’s Building for Life Code, and 
community travel planning principles. 

• Strategy to ensure existing network is not congested. 

• Demonstrate sufficient energy headroom to accommodate electric cars where proposed to be 
used. 

• Acceptable approach to monitoring and day 1 provision of above. 
 
Services 

• “Good level of provision” of leisure, health and social care, education, retail, arts and culture, 
library services, sport and play facilities and community and voluntary sector facilities 

 
Environment 

• Min 40% site area open space (of which min 20% public). Wide ranging and multifunctional 
typologies to include allotments/ commercial gardens. 

• Biodiversity conservation/ enhancement strategy required, including management plan. 

• Water Cycle Strategy required, to limit water demand (to code level 5 standard for homes), 
improve water quality, avoid surface water flooding, demonstrate no deterioration in status of 
surface or ground waters resultant from development, incorporate SUDS (inc. long term 
management) where appropriate and avoid discharge of surface water to the drainage system. 

• Avoid flood risk and not increase risk of flooding elsewhere 

• Include sustainable waste and resources plan including ambitious targets for waste 
minimisation and recycling levels, showing consideration of use of locally generated waste as 
fuel for CHP schemes, and dealing with construction demolition and excavation waste in a 
manner that avoids landfill. 

 

Page 100



Plan 1   British Sugar Emerging Strategic Context Page 101



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



NOTE: This drawing has been produced for 
indicative purposes in association with the 
demonstration exemplar only and should 
not prejudice future work on the AAP or 
Masterplanning process 

Plan 2   (Draft) 

Page 103



Page 104

This page is intentionally left blank



Plan 3   DRAFT Plan 3   (Draft) 

NOTE: This draw-
ing has been pro-
duced for indica-
tive purposes in 
association with 
the demonstration 
exemplar only and 
should not  
prejudice future 
work on the AAP 
or Masterplanning 
process 

Page 105



Page 106

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ANNEX 2 
 
 
 

Draft Programme 

Page 107



Page 108

This page is intentionally left blank



ID Task Name Duration Start Finish

1 CLG Funding Approvals Process 149 days Mon 08/06/09 Thu 31/12/09

2 Prepare UES Proposal 2 mons Mon 08/06/09 Fri 31/07/09

3 Submission of UES Proposal to CLG 0 days Fri 31/07/09 Fri 31/07/09

4 CLG Proposal Evaluation 2 mons Mon 03/08/09 Fri 25/09/09

5 CLG Funding Decision 0 days Fri 25/09/09 Fri 25/09/09

6 Legal Agreements 3.2 mons Mon 05/10/09 Thu 31/12/09

7 YNW Area Action Plan (AAP) 530 days Mon 08/06/09 Fri 17/06/11

8 Preparation of Preferred Options Document 8.5 mons Mon 08/06/09 Fri 29/01/10

9 Consultation on Preferred Option(s) 2 mons Mon 01/02/10 Fri 26/03/10

10 Prepare AAP Document (inc reporting) in line with Core
Strategy

7 mons Mon 29/03/10 Fri 08/10/10

11 Consultation on AAP Document 2 mons Mon 11/10/10 Fri 03/12/10

12 Submission of AAP Document 0 days Mon 03/01/11 Mon 03/01/11

13 Examination in Public and Inspector reporting 6 mons Mon 03/01/11 Fri 17/06/11

14 Adoption of AAP Document 0 days Fri 17/06/11 Fri 17/06/11

15 UES Planning 606 days Wed 06/05/09 Thu 01/09/11

16 Eco feasibility studies 326 days Mon 05/10/09 Mon 03/01/11

17 Site investigations 128 days Wed 06/05/09 Fri 30/10/09

18 Masterplanning of BS Site 15 mons Wed 06/05/09 Tue 29/06/10

19 Initial consultation on Masterplan 2.7 mons Thu 15/04/10 Tue 29/06/10

20 Detailed Design Phase 1 Project 12.8 mons Mon 11/01/10 Mon 03/01/11

21 Prepare Environmental Impact Assessment 7.5 mons Mon 07/06/10 Fri 31/12/10

22 Preparation of planning applications including
preapplication consultation

150 days Mon 07/06/10 Fri 31/12/10

23 Submission of planning application 0 days Mon 03/01/11 Mon 03/01/11

24 Determination  period for planning application 6 mons Tue 04/01/11 Mon 20/06/11

25 Referral to Secretary of State/Final Approval 1.5 mons Tue 21/06/11 Mon 01/08/11

26 Planning Approval 0 days Thu 01/09/11 Thu 01/09/11

27 Phase 1 Development Process 645 days Mon 07/06/10 Fri 23/11/12

28 Developer Procurement Process 5 mons Mon 07/06/10 Fri 22/10/10

29 Obtain Statutory Approvals 5 mons Mon 07/06/10 Fri 22/10/10

30 Appoint Developer 3 mons Mon 01/11/10 Fri 21/01/11

31 Construction Mobilisation 3 mons Mon 03/10/11 Fri 23/12/11

32 Construction 12 mons Mon 26/12/11 Fri 23/11/12

33 Phase 1 Completion 0 days Fri 23/11/12 Fri 23/11/12

31/07

25/09

03/01

17/06

03/01

01/09

2

M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J

2010 2011 2012 2

British Sugar Urban Eco Settlement Proposal
 DRAFT PROGRAMME

Page 1

P
a
g
e
 1

0
9



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



 

ANNEX 3 
 
 
 

Draft Risk Register 

Page 111



Page 112

This page is intentionally left blank



British Sugar Urban Eco Settlement Annex 3: DRAFT RISK  REGISTER 09/07/2009

Ref Cat

Description Impact Prob to 5 Severity Priority Mitigation

1 Funding
CLG offer does not cover 

funding gap for demonstration 

exemplar

Scheme not viable 5 5 25

Ensure that funding requirements and scope are 

identified at an early stage and resources are 

reserved for the scheme. Initial funding scope 

identified in Executive report. 

2 Onerous conditions applied 
Delays in delivery. Scheme not 

viable. 
1 4 12

Close consultation with funding body to ensure that 

potential conditions to the funding offer are 

discussed and notified at an early stage to ensure 

that these can be accommodated within the project 

and programme.

3 Delays in CLG offer Delays in delivery 3 3 14

Employ experienced consultants to prepare robust 

and thorough documentation and modelling work 

where required. Track and monitor the funding 

application.

4

Inadequate funding is 

requested or made available 

to prepare and deliver scheme

Funding shortfall renders scheme 

unviable, affecting delivery
5 5 25

Ensure that funding requirements and scope are 

identified at an early stage and resources are 

reserved for the scheme. Initial funding scope 

identified in Executive reports. 

5 Planning Planning consents delayed Delays in delivery 3 5 23

Minimise risk by progressing planning applications 

as early as possible. Employ necessary consultants 

to ensure compliance with process

6 S106 Agreement delay

Drafting of agreement and 

negotiation. Possible delays if not 

aligned with planning permission

2 3 13

7
Increased complexity of 

planning issues
Delays in planning timescales 2 3 13

Close consultation with the planning department 

and statutory consultees required to detect and 

manage planning issues early in the process. 

Engaging necessary consultants to address.

8 Objections cause delay Delays in delivery 1 4 12

Understand likely objections and proactively 

resolve where possible. Ensure dialogue with 

adjacent property owners is maintained throughout 

the project. Ensure mitigation measures are 

incorporated into the design where appropriate.

RISK DEFINITION CATEGORY

P
a
g
e
 1

1
3



British Sugar Urban Eco Settlement Annex 3: DRAFT RISK  REGISTER 09/07/2009

9 Public Inquiry 

Alternative planning route (SPD/Core 

Strategy) to AAP if taken will not 

have been through Examination in 

Public 

1 4 12

Programme does not include allowance for Public 

Inquiries. Need will be mitigated by ensuring 

planning processes are followed correctly and 

consultation is effective by using experienced in-

house and external staff.

10

Planning Application referred 

to/ called in by Secretary of 

State

Delays in delivery 2 3 13

Include referral in programme. Assume application 

would not be called in as the proposal is of local 

significance

11

Adoption of Core Strategy and 

or York Northwest AAP 

delayed

Delays in delivery 3 5 23
Carefully monitor adherance to programme and 

make prompt adjustments where necessary

12 Programme
Delivery/legal 

agreement/planning 

timescales do not align 

Increased timescales for delivery. 

Work at risk.
4 4 20

13
Delays in supply chain due to 

specialist materials 
Delays to programme 3 2 9

Early consultation with specialist contractors 

through in-house and external staff to identify long 

lead items and make due provision within the 

project programme.

14
Utilities providers affecting 

programme
Delays to programme 5 2 11

Early consultation with utilities providers to assess 

currently supply capacities and make provision for 

new capacity requirement.  Include programme 

and cost constraints within the master programme.

15 Delay to programme Cost and creep 4 5 24
Carefully monitor adherance to programme and 

make prompt adjustments where necessary

16
Communication 

& Consultation

Inadequate public engagement 

in master planning process

Delays/threat to planning approval 

and increased costs 
5 3 16

Ensure pre-application consultation follows the 

Statement of Community Involvement guidelines.

17
Inadequate pre-application 

consultation

Delays/threat to planning approval 

and increased costs
5 3 16

Ensure pre-application consultation follows the 

Statement of Community Involvement guidelines.

18

Adverse public reaction to 

access and infrastructure 

requirements 

Delays/threat to planning approval 

and increased costs
1 2 2

Understand likely objections and proactively 

resolve where possible. Ensure dialogue with 

adjacent property owners is maintained throughout 

the project. Ensure mitigation measures are 

incorporated into the design where appropriate.

P
a
g

e
 1

1
4



British Sugar Urban Eco Settlement Annex 3: DRAFT RISK  REGISTER 09/07/2009

19 Market Adverse market conditions
Reduced commercial 

attractiveness/scheme viability
5 4 21

Engage a property specialist / agent to advise on 

the local and wider market at an early stage with 

regular updates as to market activity and 

recommendations.

20
Design and 

Procurement

Resolution of sustainable 

design issues

Delays in delivery and increased 

costs
5 2 11

Review sustainable design requirements for Eco 

principles and planning at an early stage. Specialist 

consultancy input required throughout programme.

21 Reputational No development takes place Reputation of the council affected 3 5 23

22 Construction
Availability of skills to 

implement specialist 

technologies 

Delays in delivery 5 2 11

Consult with specialist suppliers early in the design 

process regarding availability, resources, life cycle 

costs and key sustainable features.

P
a
g
e
 1

1
5



Page 116

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 

   

 

Executive 21 July 2009 

 
Report of the Director of City Strategy 

 

Regional Funding Allocation Proposal 

Summary 

1. This report sets out the proposals for allocating the additional funding provided 
by the Region in 2009/10 and 2010/11 for transport improvements in the City. 
The report also identifies that it will be challenging to deliver the additional 
programme within the current staffing resources.  

2. The report also provides an update on the other schemes which it is proposed 
to fund using the Regional Funding Allocation: Haxby Station and Access York 
Phases 1 & 2.  

 Background 

Overview 

3. The City Strategy 2009/10 transport base budget was confirmed at Full Council 
on 26 February 2009. The approved budget is funded from the Local Transport 
Plan, Cycling City grant, Road Safety Grant and Developer Contributions. The 
Regional Transport Board have decided, subject to confirmation by Ministers 
that, due to underspends in the major schemes block across the Region, 
additional funds from the Regional Funding Allocation (RFA) should be 
transferred to Local Authority Local Transport Plan (LTP) block allocations in 
2009/10 and 2010/11. The Executive confirmed the allocation for the base 
programme at their meeting on 7 April 2009, but deferred a decision on the use 
of the remaining RFA funding to allow officers to provide additional information. 
This report provides supplementary information to enable a decision to be 
taken by Members.  

4. The current 2009/10 City Strategy budget of £5,502k represents a 35% 
increase on the budget allocation in 2008/09 and includes a large number of 
relatively small schemes leading to additional preparatory and supervisory cost 
implications. The large and complex capital programme is delivered using a 
variety of mechanisms to ensure the best value for money and maximum use 
of internal resources. The majority of the works are project managed and 
designed using in-house staff supplemented for larger or more complex 
schemes with resources from the City Strategy Engineering Framework 
Consultant, Halcrow. This arrangement allows greater flexibility to manage 
variations in workload and allows specialist design experience to be introduced 

Agenda Item 9Page 117



 

for specific schemes as required. Additional staff resources are being recruited 
to deliver the increased 2009/10 capital programme and reduce the need for 
commissioning external consultants. 

Transport Budget 

5. The 2009/10 budget approved at Full Council on 26 February 2009 for the 
Transport Capital Programme is £5,052k. In addition at the 7th April meeting 
the Executive allocated £450k of the RFA Supplement to schemes for delivery 
in 2009/10 giving a total transport capital budget of £5,502k. 

Regional Funding Allocation Supplement 

6. It is anticipated that the Council will receive £2,777k of additional RFA funding 
over the next two years. The 2009/10 allocation has been confirmed by 
Government Office but the 2010/11 allocation is awaiting a decision by 
Ministers on the entire Regional Funding Programme which is anticipated to be 
later this year. 

2009/10 2010/11 Total 
RFA Supplement   

£000s £000s £000s 

Anticipated RFA Supplement 1,461 1,316 2,777 

RFA Funds Allocated to Haxby Station 
and Access York Phase 2 Preparatory 
Work 

450  450 

Remaining RFA funds to be allocated 1,011 1,316 2,327 

 
7. It is anticipated that the funding will be paid in quarterly instalments with the 

base LTP settlement. The additional funding has been provided to enable 
some smaller ‘major schemes’ to be implemented earlier than otherwise would 
have been the case. In principle the funding is for strategic schemes which 
would have more than a localised impact. The funding is provided in the years 
indicated in the table but can be re-profiled to suit the development and 
delivery of the proposed schemes. Construction of the schemes included in the 
following options would only commence once adequate additional funding had 
been confirmed. 

8. The Regional Transport Board has indicated that the funding should be 
allocated to schemes which have a significant effect on the council’s overall 
transport objectives to tackle congestion, improve air quality, deliver 
accessibility for all, and reduce the number of people killed or injured on the 
roads and ensure the network is well maintained.  

9. Additional resources will be required to deliver the schemes in either of the 
options identified below as the base programme which includes time 
constrained priorities such as Cycling City and Access York Phase 1 will 
already fully occupy existing staff with the assistance of external consultants. 
Delivery of the schemes through feasibility, outline design, consultation, 
detailed design, tender and construction within a 12 month period will be 
difficult to achieve and may require re-profiling of the allocation into the 
following year. 

Page 118



 

Options  

10. Officer’s were requested to provide information on two main options at the 7th 
April Executive meeting: 

Option 1 (Outer Ring Road Improvements) – Further development work to 
progress the Haxby Station and Access York Phase 2 schemes and the 
implementation of limited improvements to the Outer Ring Road. 
 
Option 2 (Targeted Citywide Improvements) – Further development work to 
progress the Haxby Station and Access York Phase 2 schemes and the 
delivery of schemes in the LTP block to meet Local Area Agreement and LTP 
targets.  

 
Option 1 

11. The following table shows the proposed allocations for Option 1. The figures in 
brackets indicate the level of funding for these schemes which has already 
been approved. 

2009/10 2010/11 
RFA Supplement – Option 1 

£000s £000s 

Haxby Station Preparatory Works (250) 50 

Access York Phase 2 Preparatory Work (200) 200 

ORR Roundabout Improvement Scheme  2,077 

Total (450) 2,327 

Transfer to following year 1,011   

 
12. Option 1 would see a further £50k (£250k allocated in 2009/10) progressing 

the Haxby Station scheme through the Network Rail Guide to Railway 
Investment Projects (GRIP) processes and preparing the Major Scheme 
Business Case for submission to the DfT. The scheme has been re-endorsed 
by the Regional Transport Board for delivery by 2013, however, there are 
number of significant risks involving the securing of funding and approvals from 
Network Rail, obtaining planning consents, and land acquisition, which need to 
be resolved if the scheme is to be successfully delivered. 

13. The second element of the Option 1 proposal is the continued development of 
the Access York phase 2 bid including the preparation of outline designs for 
Outer Ring Road roundabout improvements and city centre transport 
measures. The Access York Phase 2 project is on the Region’s reserve list for 
funding and the availability of more detailed designs would enable the rapid 
progression of the scheme if further funding became available at short notice. 
Funding would also be allocated to the delivery of improvements at one of the 
ORR roundabouts.  

14. Further work has been undertaken to determine the most appropriate 
roundabout to upgrade to ensure that the greatest improvement was achieved 
within the funding available. The following table shows the criteria used to 
identify the most effective use of the available funding.  

Page 119



 

Criteria Comment 

Current Flow/Capacity Assessment of the flow against capacity for all ORR 
roundabouts undertaken and ranked against each 
other. 

Current Flow/Capacity 
(worst arm)(rank)  

Assessment of the flow against capacity for the most 
congested arm of all ORR roundabouts undertaken and 
ranked against each other. 

2026 Projected  
Flow/Capacity (rank)  

As above but using 2026 traffic projections 

2026 Projected 
Flow/Capacity (worst 
arm)(rank)  

As above but using 2026 traffic projections 

Upgrade possible 
within Public Highway 

For some roundabouts any significant improvement 
would require the purchase of additional land and 
planning consent which could significantly delay 
delivery 

Roundabout Works Extent of works at roundabout 

A1237 Link Works Extent of works on ORR 

Side Road Works  Extent of works on side roads 

Subway Increases in the number of approach lanes/exit lanes to 
roundabouts with significant pedestrian flows may 
necessitate the provision of a subway or bridge to allow 
crossing of ORR 

Bridge Works Extent of bridge works required to achieve capacity 
improvement. Railway bridge works would significantly 
extend programme. 

Cost Is improvement deliverable within available budget? 

Comments Any other considerations which may affect prioritisation. 
E.g. close future developments 

 

15. The following table summarises the assessment of the roundabouts. The full 
evaluation table is included in Annex A. 

ORR Roundabout Comments 
Copmanthorpe Capacity not currently a problem 

Mooor Lane R/B New Roundabout. Capacity not currently a problem 

Wetherby Road R/B Planning permission needed, Land purchase, Cost 
exceeds available budget 

A59 R/B (Access 
York Phase 1) 

Part of Access York Scheme 

York Business Park 
R/B 

High cost due to bridge works exceeds budget. British 
Sugar development may require changes to roundabout 

A19 Rawcliffe R/B Improvements within public highway and possible within 
budget 

Clifton Moor R/B Improvements within budget but would need land 
purchase. Alterations to road layout in Hurricane Way 

Page 120



 

area may be needed to reduce traffic U turning at 
roundabout from Clifton Moor. 

Wigginton Rd R/B Cost exceeds budget. Land purchase and possible 
subway requirement. Access to new Park & Ride site. 

Haxby Rd R/B Cost exceeds budget for elevated roundabout, land 
purchase required, possible railway bridge works 

Strensall Rd R/B Costs exceed budget with subway included, River Foss 
bridge works required. 

Monks Cross R/B Capacity not currently a problem 

Hopgrove R/B Improvement works will be complete by October 2009 

 

16. The analysis of the available information suggests that if Members decided to 
allocate the funding to increasing the capacity of the ORR then it would have 
the most impact if it was directed toward delivering improvements at the A19 
roundabout. This roundabout is the second most congested roundabout on the 
ORR after the A59 which is due to be upgraded as part of the Access York 
Phase 1 scheme. Initial transport modelling suggests that alterations to the 
approach and exit lanes to the roundabout will deliver significant capacity 
improvements (30-40%) substantially reducing queuing on all arms. Further 
micro simulation modelling will be undertaken and reported to the Executive 
Member prior to a preferred layout being proposed. Furthermore the 
improvements can be constructed within the public highway and are estimated 
to be deliverable within the available budget subject to receipt of service 
diversion costs. 

17. An indicative layout of the proposed improvements is shown in Annex B. The 
drawing shows the key areas of the roundabout which will be investigated 
further before presenting an outline layout to the Executive Member for City 
Strategy for a decision to progress to consultation and detailed design. 
Additional transport modelling will also be undertaken to determine the 
projected journey time savings. It is unlikely that the theoretical additional 
capacity at this one roundabout will be fully realised until the adjacent 
constraining roundabouts are improved (particularly Haxby Road and A59). If 
members decide to progress this option an outline layout could be presented to 
the October Executive Member for City Strategy Decision Session and the 
scheme could be designed, tendered and constructed before the end of 
2010/11. 

18. It is planned to deliver the project using Halcrow as they have the necessary 
design capacity and traffic modelling capabilities to deliver the scheme within 
the required timescale. In addition they have proven experience delivering the 
Moor Lane roundabout scheme and have knowledge of the existing design of 
the A19 roundabout and subway. 

Option 2 

19. Option 2 allocates funds to the preparatory work on the Haxby Station and 
Access York Phase 2 schemes as option 1 but does not include funding for 
any implementation of the schemes, which would have to be found from other 

Page 121



 

sources. The figures in brackets in the following table indicates the level of 
funding for these schemes which has already been approved. 

2009/10 2010/11 Total 
RFA Supplement -- Option 2 

£000s £000s £000s 

Haxby Station Preparatory Works (250) 50 50 

Access York Phase 2 Preparatory Work (200) 200 200 

Access York Phase 1 (Additional elements)   477 477 

Fulford Road (Bus Priorities)   400 400 

Access to Station (Access Ramp)   250 250 

Cycling Network Maintenance 100 100 200 

LTP/LAA Targets Review 100 150 250 

Village Accessibility Review  500 500 

Total 200 2,127 2,327 

Transfer to following year 811     

 
Access York Phase 1 (Additional elements) 

20. To enhance the submitted Access York Phase 1 Park & Ride project some 
additional bus priority and cycling elements are being considered. This 
proposed allocation would enable additional bus priorities to be provided at the 
Boroughbridge Road/Water End and Acomb Road/Holgate Road junctions, 
and ensure that the proposed subway at the A1237/A59 junction was fully 
integrated into the off-road cycle network. To match the delivery programme for 
the main project it is anticipated that the delivery would be deferred until 
2011/12. 

Fulford Road (Bus Priorities) 

21. The delivery of the southern section of the Fulford Road multi-modal scheme 
has been affected by the availability of funding and the progress of the 
Germany Beck development. This additional funding would enable bus priority 
measures to be introduced independently of the Germany Beck junction 
scheme. The practicality of undertaking this scheme without significantly 
affecting the A64 interchange leading to queues extending onto the trunk road 
is being investigated. The proposed funding allocation would be inadequate to 
provide additional slip road capacity or signalisation of the interchange 
meaning that the bus priority measures would have to be deferred until the 
Germany Beck development was progressed.  

Access to Station (Access Ramp) 

22. The delivery of a pedestrian/cycling ramp to the north of the station off Post 
Office lane to provide direct access to the station away from the busy Lendal 
Gyratory has been an aspiration of the council for a significant time. Delivery of 
the scheme has been hindered by the lack of commitment from other 
stakeholders in the area, however, it is hoped that these issues have now been 
resolved which would enable the scheme to be progressed over the next two 
years. In addition the linkages and possible improvements to the river crossing 
at this location will also be investigated. Providing a commitment from the 
station operator and Network Rail can be obtained it is proposed to submit a 
bid for funding from the DfT’s Access for All scheme which could provide funds 

Page 122



 

to cover up to half of the cost of the scheme. Subject to approval by the 
Executive Member and the agreement of other stakeholders the scheme would 
be progressed using LTP or Cycling City funding in 2010/11.  

Cycling Network Maintenance 

23. An additional allocation is proposed for the maintenance of on and off road 
cycle routes. An audit of the condition of the network is currently underway with 
the results expected in September. Cycle margin maintenance, antiskid 
surfacing and all off road routes are being included in the review. This work 
could be delivered in 2009/10 and 2010/11. Additional cycle route maintenance 
funding of £54k has already been allocated in the base LTP/Cycling City 
programme in 2009/10.  

LTP/LAA Targets Review 

24. It is proposed to allocate funds to review monitoring results against the Local 
Area Agreement and LTP objectives and progress specific schemes to ensure 
that the required targets are achieved. The City’s Sustainable Community 
Strategy has designated the following two transport based priority National 
Indicators in its Local Improvement Targets: 

• NI47 - Reduce the number of people Killed or Seriously Injured (KSI) in 
road traffic accidents (Safer City) and 

• NI167 - Congestion – average journey time per mile during the morning 
peak (Sustainable City) 

25. In addition the LAA & LTP Target review would include an assessment of the 
marketing/signing element of schemes to ensure the availability of new/revised 
infrastructure is fully publicised. The additional funding would also provide an 
opportunity to undertake an overall study of areas of the city where congestion 
needs to be reduced and options exist for alternative transport modes. Initially 
a review of the Clifton Moor area would be undertaken with public transport, 
cycling and pedestrian measures improved where possible in conjunction with 
the proposed Park & Ride site. 

Village Accessibility Review 

26. Over the LTP period accessibility improvements to the transport network for 
local communities in the York area have been implemented at many locations 
including Crockey Hill, Dunnington, Murton, Hessay, Holtby and Askham 
Bryan. These enhancements have included traffic islands, traffic signals and 
roundabouts as appropriate to reduce the risk of accidents, minimise 
severance and improve the operation and accessibility of public transport 
services. Concerns still remain at a number of locations including 
Deighton/A19, Mill Lane/Wigginton Road, Dunnington/Common Lane/A1079, 
Towthorpe/Strensall Road and A64 junctions east of York (e.g. Hazelbush).  

27. A report was presented to the Executive Member for City Strategy on 7 July 
containing the review of the potential sites and prioritising the locations where 
works could be undertaken. The highest priority schemes at Dunnington (A166/ 
Church Balk junction), Wigginton Rd/Mill Lane Junction and Strensall 

Page 123



 

Road/Towthorpe Junction were recommended for delivery in 2009/10 using 
LTP funds. Depending on other commitments improvements to the 
A19/Deighton Junction and Dunnington (Common Road Junction) could be 
delivered in 2010/11 and 2011/12 using LTP funds. Allocating the RFA 
supplement funding to the delivery of these schemes would reduce the 
pressure on LTP funds and ensure that the schemes would be delivered in 
2010/11. 

Consultation  

28. Citywide consultation was carried out on the LTP strategy included in the 
second Local Transport Plan, which this programme is delivering. Detailed 
consultation is undertaken on each scheme where appropriate during the 
design period and before construction. 

Analysis 

29. The objective of the Regional Transport Board in transferring the funds to Local 
Authorities is to ensure the funding is spent rapidly on strategic transport 
schemes across the Region. Both options would ensure that the funds were 
spent by the end of 2010/11 on significant projects within the area. In both 
options the development of the Haxby Station and Access York Phase 2 
schemes would be progressed ensuring that bids for funds could be 
progressed rapidly if regional funding became available.  

30. For both options there are limited timescales available with all current internal 
resources fully occupied delivering the increased base programme. The 
delivery of the schemes included in both options within the planned timescale 
is critical to demonstrate the ability of the Council to spend allocated funds. A 
package of smaller schemes represents a more difficult and challenging project 
as there is more preparatory/management work involved and less of a clear 
focus for delivery. 

31. Subject to the continuation of similar funding through the next LTP period it is 
anticipated that all of the schemes identified in Option 2 would be delivered 
within 2-3 years. Delivery of the improvements to the A19/A1237 roundabout 
included in Option 1 is unlikely to be achievable in the foreseeable future 
unless there is a substantial increase in funding as the scheme represents over 
60% of the current annual LTP funding allocation. 

32. The existing Transport Programme in 2009/10 and 2010/11 is larger and more 
complex than recent years owing to the greater number of small schemes and 
the additional funding from Cycling England. Additional in house staff 
resources are being recruited to ensure delivery over the next two years.  

Option 1 Advantages 

33. It is anticipated that this option would enable improvement works to be 
undertaken on the A19 roundabout on the Outer Ring Road, which would 
significantly reduce journey times in the immediate area. Improvements would 

Page 124



 

provide immediate relief to traffic congestion in the area rather than waiting for 
funding to be available for the full scheme.  

34. Expenditure of the RFA supplement on an element of the Access York Phase 2 
scheme will demonstrate the council’s commitment to progressing that project 
and may help to encourage support for the Access York Phase 2 bid if 
additional funds become available in the Region. 

35. The improvement to the A19 roundabout will provide journey time savings 
helping economic activity and ensuring more efficient use of resources whilst 
potentially reducing green house gas emissions. Access to the Park & Ride 
site will also be improved reducing delays for users. 

36. Focussing the RFA supplement onto a single large scheme as proposed in 
Option 1 will reduce the pressure on staff resources compared to delivering a 
larger number of smaller more complex schemes proposed in Option 2. It is 
estimated that £200k less design and supervisory resource (in-house and 
consultant) will be required to deliver the Option 1 scheme.  

37. The current Access York Phase 1 (Park & Ride) programme indicates that the 
improvements to the A59/A1237 roundabout will commence in early 2011. The 
delivery of the A19/A1237 improvements is possible before the A59 scheme 
commences. Traffic disruption from undertaking major works at two close 
roundabouts at the same time would be significant meaning that the next 
opportunity for delivery of the A19 improvements would not be until 2012/13 
when the A59 improvements were complete.  

Option 1 Disadvantages 

38. Improvement to a single roundabout is unlikely to address overall congestion 
delays on the ORR as there is no single bottleneck restricting flow. Increased 
flow at one roundabout may exacerbate congestion at other locations along the 
route. 

39. Reducing delays for car drivers is unlikely to encourage a transfer to more 
sustainable transport modes.  

40. Capacity improvements for vehicles at the A19 roundabout will mean 
alterations to the pedestrian routes potentially leading to longer distances to 
safe crossing points. 

Option 2 Advantages 

41. Spreading the additional funding across a small number of targeted projects 
will help to meet the objectives of the LTP and LAA and deliver improvements 
across the city. The additional funds enables schemes within the programme, 
to be brought forward for delivery earlier than would have been the case.  

42. Subject to approval by the station operator the Access Ramp to the station will 
provide a significant benefit to pedestrians and cyclists travelling from the 
North and along the river bank cycle routes. The recent changes to the 

Page 125



 

franchise arrangements on the East Coast Main Line may affect the 
progression of this scheme.  

Option 2 Disadvantages 

43. Spending the additional funding on a range of interventions will not address the 
delays experienced by motorists on the Outer Ring Road or enable reallocation 
of road space in the city centre to more sustainable modes, which is a key 
objective of the LTP. 

44. It is anticipated that additional resources will be required to deliver the more 
complex Option 2 programme. It is projected that approximately £200k of 
additional resources (in-house staff and external consultants) would be 
required to deliver the option 2 programme compared to option 1.  

Update on Regional Funding Allocation Schemes 

45. The city has 3 main schemes which it is planning to deliver through the 
Regional Funding Allocation process – Haxby Station, Access York Phase 1 
(Park & Ride) and Access York Phase 2 (Transport Capacity Improvements) 

46. The inclusion of Haxby Station in the regional programme for delivery in 
2012/13 has been approved by the Regional Transport Board. The outturn 
budget estimate for the scheme is £7.54m with approximately 40% of the 
scheme costs funded by Network Rail (subject to confirmation). Network Rail 
are currently progressing the scheme through their approval processes prior to 
preparing of a GRIP (Guide to Railway Investment Projects) Stage 4 report 
which will confirm a single option for the station in rail terms. A business case 
for the scheme will be developed jointly with Network Rail building on the GRIP 
4 work in 2009/10 with submission to the DfT in the spring of 2010. An 
additional transport planner is currently being recruited to ensure that Haxby 
station scheme and other rail related projects progress to the required 
deadlines.  

47. The Access York Phase 1 (Park & Ride) scheme for the provision of 3 park & 
ride sites, associated bus priorities and improvements to the A59/A1237 
roundabout has been approved by the Regional Transport Board for inclusion 
into the regional programme subject to detailed evaluation by the Department 
for Transport (DfT). A Major Scheme Business Case was submitted to the DfT 
in February 2009 for funding approval and following initial comments an 
updated bid was submitted in June 2009. The DfT have assessed the bid as 
being compliant and are now reviewing the documents in detail with comments 
to be issued to the Council by the end of July. It is anticipated that Programme 
Entry approval will be received in December 2009. Volume 1 of the revised 
document, draft layout drawings and summary programmes are available on 
the Council’s Website. 
http://www.york.gov.uk/transport/Parking/Park_and_Ride/new/Access_York/ 

48. The planning applications for all of the sites are progressing well with the 
application for the Askham Bar site to be submitted shortly, the pre-application 
consultation for the A59 site to commence in the summer and the consultation 

Page 126



 

for the Clifton Moor site to follow on later in the year. An Official Journal of the 
European Union notice will be published in July inviting design consultants to 
submit pre-qualification information to enable a tender list to be prepared for 
the detailed design of the sites and roundabout. The contract for the detail 
design would be tendered in the autumn. Detailed design would commence as 
soon as Programme Entry was confirmed by the DfT and the expenditure 
approved by the Executive. Subject to the necessary funding approvals it is 
anticipated that all of the sites will be operational in early 2012. A separate 
update report will be issued to the Executive when Programme Entry is 
received to obtain approval to progress the detailed design and procurement of 
the construction of the scheme. 

49. The Access York Phase 2 (Transport Capacity Improvements) for the upgrade 
of the Outer Ring Road and citywide transport enhancements is on the 
Region’s reserve list of schemes. As indicated in this report funds have been 
allocated from the Regional Funding Allocation Supplement in 2009/10 to 
develop the scheme further and to ensure that the project can be progressed 
rapidly if regional funds become available. 

Corporate Priorities 

50. The major schemes described in this report combined with the schemes 
delivered through the Local Transport Plan settlement help to deliver the 
Corporate Strategy Sustainable City, Healthy City and Thriving City priorities. 

 Implications 

51. The following implications have been reviewed. 

• Financial The schemes identified in Option 1 or 2 will be delivered using 
funds received from the underspend in the Region’s Major Scheme 
Allocation. The funding for 2009/10 has been confirmed but the 2010/11 
allocation is awaiting approval from Ministers. Schemes will not be started 
on site until the appropriate allocation is fully available. 

• Human Resources (HR) – Additional staff funded from the Capital 
Programme will be needed to deliver either option proposed.  

• Equalities – There are no equalities implications 

• Legal – There are no legal implications 

• Crime and Disorder – There are no crime and disorder implications 

• Information Technology (IT) – There are no IT implications 

• Property – There are no property implications 

• Other – There are no other implications 

Risk Management 

52. The options for the use of the RFA supplement have been prepared to assist in 
the delivery of the objectives of the Local Transport Plan. The Department for 
Transport will assess the progress of the LTP against the targets set in the 

Page 127



 

plan. If the schemes included within the programme do not have the 
anticipated effect on the targets it is possible that the council will receive a 
lower score, and consequentially there is a risk that future funding will be 
reduced. 

Recommendations 

53. The Executive is recommended to: 

1) Review the options for using the additional funding and approve either: 

a) Option 1 (Outer Ring Road Improvement) 

b) Option 2 (Targeted Citywide Improvements) 

Reason: To ensure the additional funding is used to deliver significant 
improvements to the city’s transport system and to meet LTP and LAA targets. 

 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Damon Copperthwaite 
Assistant Director City Development and 
Transport 
 
Report Approved � Date 18/03/09 

 
Chief Officer’s name 
Title 

tick 

Tony Clarke 
Capital Programme Manager 
City Strategy 
Tel No. 55 1641 

 

 

Report Approved 

 

Date Insert Date 

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s) 
Financial:  
Patrick Looker 
Finance Manager 
City Strategy 
Tel No. 01904 551633 
 

All � Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 

Background Papers 
 
Executive 23 September 2008: Outer Ring Road Improvement Options  

Page 128



 

 
Annexes 
Annex A: Outer Ring Road Roundabout Evaluation 
Annex B: Draft A19/A1237 Roundabout Improvements   
 

Page 129



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



ORR Roundabout  Flow/Capacity 

(rank) 

 Flow/Capacity 

(worst 

arm)(rank) 

 Flow/Capacity 

(rank) 

 Flow/Capacity 

(worst 

arm)(rank) 

Upgrade 

possible within 

Public Highway

Roundabout Works Subway Bridge Works Cost Comments

Copmanthorpe 12 9 12 9 No Increase Diameter to 64m None £1.0m Capacity not currently a problem
Mooor Lane R/B 9 12 8 8 Yes Widen approaches None £1.0m New Roundabout. Capacity not currently a problem
Wetherby Road R/B 9 9 6 12 No Enlarge Diameter (36 to 80m 

ICD)

None
£2.5m

Planning permission needed, Land purchase, Cost 

exceeds available budget
A59 R/B (Access York 

Phase 1)

1 1 1 1 Yes Enlarge Diameter (36 to 66m 

ICD)

New None £3.5m Part of Access York Scheme

York Business Park R/B 4 3 4 3 Yes 3 Lane Circulation (Widen 

Approaches)

Widen Millfield Lane Br 

& Harrogate Line 

Railway Br £3.0m

High cost due to bridge works exceeds budget. British 

Sugar development may require changes to R/B

A19 Rawcliffe R/B 2 2 2 2 Yes Widen Approaches Extend? None
£2.0m

Improvements within public highway and possible 

within budget
Clifton Moor R/B 7 4 10 6 Yes? Additional A1237 Eastbound 

lane

None
£1.0m

Improvements within budget but would need land 

purchase
Wigginton Rd R/B 10 5 10 5 Yes? 3 Lane Circulation (Widen 

Approaches)

New None
£3.0m

Cost exceeds budget. Land purchase and possible 

subway requirement.
Haxby Rd R/B 3 6 3 7 No? Enlarge Diameter (36 to 75m 

ICD)

Extend Widen Scarborough 

Line Railway Bridge £4.0m
Cost exceeds budget for elevated roundabout, Land 

purchase required, possible bridge works
Strensall Rd R/B 7 7 8 10 No? Enlarge Diameter (40 to 65m 

ICD)

New Widen River Foss 

Bridge £4.0m
Costs exceed budget with subway included, bridge 

works
Monks Cross R/B 11 11 11 11 Yes? Enlarge Diameter (63 to 78m 

ICD)

None £1.8m Capacity not currently a problem

Hopgrove R/B 5 10 5 4 Yes Signalise Roundabout None Works will be complete by end of 2009

20262005

P
a
g
e
 1

3
1



P
a
g

e
 1

3
2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



Page 133



Page 134

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 

   

 

Executive 21 July 2009 

 
Report of the Democratic Services Manager 

 
Final Report of the Hungate Ad-hoc Scrutiny Committee 
 

Summary 
 

1. This report presents the final report from the Hungate Ad-hoc Scrutiny 
Committee detailing their review of the Hungate development. 

 

 Background 
 
2. In coming to a decision to carry out a review of this topic, the Scrutiny 

Management Team recognised certain key objectives and the following remit 
was agreed: 

 Aim 

 
To clarify whether the correct strategy for the accomodation project was set 
and adhered to, in order to ensure any future council projects are delivered on 
time and on budget. 
 
Objectives 
 
i. In light of the overall budget, to identify whether the initial budget set 

was  correct i.e. that all the relevant factors had been identified and 
included for, including the volume of all fees both agreed and incurred 

 
 ii. To understand the decision taken in respect of agreeing which part of 

CYC would act as internal ‘client’ and to understand the relationship 
between Planning and the client. 

iii. To identify whether the consultation process was conducted properly and 
whether due consideration was given to the responses received when 
deciding how to proceed  

 
 
iv. To identify whether best practice was followed throughout the process in 

seeking the views of statutory consultees and English Heritage 
specifically, and whether those views unduly influenced the decisions 
made  

Agenda Item 10Page 135



 
 v. To identify whether time was a factor in reaching the decisions made 

throughout the process e.g. in agreeing the design 
 

3. The final report was presented to Scrutiny Management Committee on 18 May 
2009 and although they endorsed the recommendations made, they expressed 
concern that the review had not been carried out within the agreed timescale 
set for the review and that the remit of the review had been such that questions 
remained unanswered.  SMC suggested that the information collected during 
the course of the review could form the basis of a broader review into the wider 
issues raised, and agreed that any new scrutiny review would benefit from 
being carried out by the same Ad-Hoc Scrutiny Committee Members.  
Members of SMC agreed to individually consider what questions remained 
unanswered but to date, no further topic has been registered.   

 

Consultation 
 
4. As part of their review, the Hungate Ad-hoc Scrutiny Committee carried out a 

number of consultation sessions, as detailed in their final report attached at 
Appendix A. 

 
Options 
  

5. Having considered the findings contained within the final report attached and 
its associated Annexes A-F, Members may choose to approve all, some or 
none of the recommendations shown in paragraph 7 below. 

 

Analysis 
 

6. In regard to the aims and objectives of the review, the final report attached, 
analyses all of the information gathered and the arising issues.   

 

 Summary of Recommendations Arising From the Review     
 
7. The final report of the Hungate Ad-hoc Scrutiny Committee recommends that 

the Executive should: 
 

i. Carry out pre-project public consultation before commencing on any 
major project to identify and take account of the level of public support, in 
order to inform the project including the budget 

  
ii. Continue with its best practice approach to pre-application consultation 
 
iii. Agree a code of practice with statutory consultees which seeks to ensure 

they provide clear, consistent, timely and documented responses to 
consultation, from persons in authority within their organisation 

  

Page 136



iv. Always provide full and consistent feedback to all consultees no matter 
whether the Council is able to respond positively or negatively to the 
issues being raised  

 
v. For all major projects, ensure that the Chief Executive and Senior 

Directors take ownership of the project and give consistent support to the 
project team  

 
Reason:  To ensure that any future projects are managed effectively and take 

into account lessons learnt from this review.  
 

Corporate Direction & Priorities 
 
8. The provision of the new accommodation and the consequential improvements 

in services to our customers will contribute to all of the Council’s priorities and 
key change programmes. 

 

 Implications 
 
9. There are no known Legal, Financial, Equalities, HR, or other implications 

associated with the recommendation below.  The implications associated with  
the recommendations within the final report are detailed in paragraphs 50 & 51 
of Appendix A.   
 

Risk Management 
 

10. There are no known risks associated with the recommendation within this 
cover report.  The risks associated with the recommendations within the final 
report are detailed therein. 
 

 Recommendations 
 
11. Members are asked to note the contents of the attached final report and 

approve the recommendations as shown in paragraph 7 above. 
 

Reason: To ensure any future council projects are delivered on time and on 
budget. 

 
 
Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Dawn Steel 
Democratic Services Manager 
 

Melanie Carr 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
Tel No.01904 552063 Report Approved � Date 6 July 2009 

 

Wards Affected:   All � 

For further information please contact the author of the report 

Page 137



 
Background Papers:   None 
 
Annexes 
 
Appendix A – Hungate Ad-hoc Scrutiny Review - Final Report dated 1 May 2009  
Annex A – Budget History Information  
Annex B – English Heritage Internal Memo dated 2 January 2008 
Annex C – Image provided by York’s Civic Trust 
Annex D – English Heritage Email dated 10 September 2007 
Annex E – FOI Documentation Received From English Heritage 
Annex F – Written Response from English Heritage 

Page 138



Appendix A 

 

  

 

   

 

Hungate Ad-hoc Scrutiny Committee 1 May 2009 

 
 Hungate Development - Final Report  
 

Background 

1. On 8 July 2008 following consultation with Group Leaders, the Chief Executive 
withdrew the planning application for the proposed development of the 
Council’s new office accommodation at Hungate.  This followed receipt of a 
formal written response from English Heritage that although the proposed 
building was a very impressive, sustainable and fit for purpose civic building, 
they were concerned that the building, by virtue of its height and massing could 
not be developed without harming the setting of the cluster of historic buildings 
and spaces around it. In summary, they objected to the proposal.     

 
2. Members of the public commented on this decision and previous decisions 

taken in regard to the Hungate development and as a result of the concerns 
expressed, Cllr Brooks submitted this topic for scrutiny review in order to fully 
understand those decisions and the costs involved to date. 

 
3. A feasibility report was presented to Scrutiny Management Committee (SMC) 

on 15 September 2008, and having agree to proceed with the review, an Ad-
hoc Scrutiny Committee was formed and the following remit was agreed: 

 
4. Aim 
 

To clarify whether the correct strategy for the accomodation project was set 
and adhered to, in order to ensure any future council projects are delivered on 
time and on budget. 
 
Objectives 
 
i. In light of the overall budget, to identify whether the initial budget set 

was  correct i.e. that all the relevant factors had been identified and 
included for, including the volume of all fees both agreed and incurred 

 
 ii. To understand the decision taken in respect of agreeing which part of 

CYC would act as internal ‘client’ and to understand the relationship 
between Planning and the client. 

iii. To identify whether the consultation process was conducted properly 
and whether due consideration was given to the responses received 
when deciding how to proceed  

 

Page 139



Appendix A 

 
iv. To identify whether best practice was followed throughout the process in 

seeking the views of statutory consultees and English Heritage 
specifically, and whether those views unduly influenced the decisions 
made  

 
v. To identify whether time was a factor in reaching the decisions made 

throughout the process e.g. in agreeing the design 
 
 
5. On 10 November 2008 the Ad-hoc Scrutiny Committee met for the first time 

and agreed a timetable of meetings and a methodology for carrying out this 
review. 

 
 

Consultation 

6. The Ad-hoc Scrutiny Committee held an informal information gathering event 
on 26 November 2008 and the following internal and external consultees 
attended: 

Assistant Director of Property Services CYC - Project Management Team 
& Accommodation Project Director  
 
Regional Director English Heritage 

Assistant Director of Planning & Design  CYC – Planning & Conservation 
 
Head of Risk Management &   CYC – Risk Management 
Accommodation Project Manager 

 
 
7. Prior to the formal meeting held on 12 January 2009, another informal 

information gathering session was held and the following internal consultees 
attended: 

 
Chief Executive 
Director of City Strategy 
Director of Resources  
Technical Finance Manager 

 
 
8. Finally, on 10 March 2009 a final informal information gathering session was 

held and the following external consultees attended:  
 

Previous Executive Member            Ex-Member of Hungate Project Member     
for Resources                                  Steering Group 
 
Company Secretary   York Civic Trust 
 
 

Page 140



Appendix A 

 

Information Gathered 
 

9. Objective i - In light of the overall budget, to identify whether the initial 
budget set was correct i.e. that all the relevant factors had been identified 
and included for, including the volume of all fees both agreed and 
incurred 
 

10. The Project Director provided a table showing the original overall budget as 
approved by the Executive in October 2006, and giving details of the increases 
in the budget approved by the Executive in July 2007 and June 2008.  Having 
considered the information, Members were unable to draw any conclusions in 
regard to the first objective for this review, as it was unclear which of the 
figures represented costs that were already fully committed and those which 
were not.   

11. As a result, the Committee requested a detailed budget history which was 
subsequently provided by the project’s Technical Finance Manager.  This 
included information on leases and carbon costs etc but did not include 
information on the additional 2 year rental costs to be incurred for St Leonards 
or the additional interest likely to be earned on the money from the sale. 

12. The Committee therefore requested a further update on the financial position 
which was subsequently presented at a meeting in March 2009 – see Annex A.  
This identified:  

• Detail of committed expenditure at July 2008. i.e. expenditure that would 
have still been incurred even if the project had halted at July 2008 as it had 
already been confirmed to third parties 

• Commitments which had produced assets and commitments which were 
not recoverable 

• The cost of 2 years additional rent on properties that had been sold and 
the interest earned on the sale of those properties 

 
Analysis 

13. The Committee acknowledged that the overall increase in budget was approx 
10%, and noted that recent press coverage had suggested that the figure was 
much higher, and that the reasons for the two increases in the budget had 
been reported to the Executive and approved.   Members agreed that the 
figures in the Press had been misleading and had not always compared like for 
like.   

14. The Committee noted senior officers’ view that the postponement of the 
development may not necessarily result in a financial loss to the Council as it 
may now get more for its money due to the down turn in the building market.   

15. Overall the Committee were not satisfied that the size of the council owned plot 
at the Hungate site, due to its inner city location next to an historic building, 
was ever going to suit the vision of an economic structure as first identified by 
Councillors and the resulting budget constraints.  They recognised that had a 

Page 141



Appendix A 

plot on a business park been identified or had there not been a requirement to 
have everyone on one site, then it was likely that the Council would not have 
received the objections it did.   

 
Conclusion 
 

16. The initial budget of 35.6m was for a basic office space as specified in the 
original brief.  However, the expectations and aspirations for a civic building at 
the Hungate site and the environmental sustainability, required an increase in 
budget of 10%.  
 
 
Objective ii - To understand the decision taken in respect of agreeing 
which part of CYC would act as internal ‘client’ and to understand the 
relationship between Planning and the client. 

17. The Committee were informed that in terms of project governance, as the 
Corporate Landlord resides within the Resources Directorate, ownership of the 
project had from the outset been placed with Resources.  Project management 
arrangements were put in place, consisting of a Member Steering Group made 
up of the Leader, Executive Member for Resources and the Shadow Leader to 
provide support and advice to the project board and project team, and consider 
what decisions required Executive approval.  After the elections in May 2007, 
the Executive Member for Resources was replaced by a representative from 
the Conservative Group.  Therefore, throughout the project, the Executive were 
responsible for all formal decisions made until July 2008, when the Chief 
Executive took the decision to withdraw the planning application.   

18. The decision to proceed with the Hungate site proposal was made by the 
Executive following a site analysis by Donaldsons of a number of sites within 
the city centre.  Subsequently, Atkins undertook an outline feasibility of two 
options i.e. Hungate and 17-21 Piccadilly & Blackfriars.  The master plan for 
the Hungate site designated the type of use for each plot of land on the site.  
Members were informed that the Council first issued a set of Heads of Terms 
to Hungate York Regeneration Ltd for the sale of the Hungate sites in 
December 2004.  In May 2006, the Executive approved the selling of the 
freehold interest in a number of sites located within the Hungate Development 
area.  The overall value of those sites was £960k and as part of the sale, 
HYRL were obligated to pay under a Section 106 Agreement the sum of £1m 
as a contribution towards the Foss Basin Transport Plan relating to the 
Peasholme Office site.   

 
19. The sale was completed in December 2006, therefore the only council owned 

land designated for office use and available to the Council at Hungate, was the 
plot fronting on to Peasholme Green next to the Black Swan Public House.  
This plot was deemed acceptable as the initial site analysis had identified that 
the size of the plot, including land occupied by the Peasholme Hostel, would 
allow for 15,333 sq m of gross office space which was over and above the 
council’s requirements. It was however recognised from the start that the 
planning risk was always going to be high and therefore this was identified 
within the project risk register and reviewed monthly throughout the life of the 

Page 142



Appendix A 

project by the workstream manager and project board,   The  Risk 
Management team provided training and access to the Council’s risk register 
Magique to assist the project in managing all of the risks. 

20. The planning application which was later withdrawn by the Chief Executive, 
was based on the revised design dated December 2007.  In regard to the 
relationship between planning and the ‘client’, the Assistant Director of 
Planning & Design provided copies of all the objections received relating to the 
withdrawn planning application, together with a copy of an internal memo 
which outlined some issues raised by the planning team during the pre-
application consultation stage. He also confirmed that he had attended many of 
the pre-planning consultation meetings and that the letter of objection sent by 
English Heritage had come as a complete surprise to him having witnessed no 
sign of a strong objection to the revised design prior to its arrival.  The 
Committee were also informed that at the time when the application was 
withdrawn, many of the issues flagged up within the internal memo and with 
the Architects had not yet been addressed, therefore it was not possible to say 
what the recommendation from the Planning Dept would eventually have been 
in regard to the application.   

 
21. The Chief Executive confirmed that when he met with the English Heritage 

Advisor at a pre-application consultation event in March 2008, the comments 
made were very positive and therefore he too was surprised at the letter of 
objection they subsequently submitted.  

 
Analysis 
 

22. In regard to the site analysis, the Committee noted that English Heritage’s 
views on a suitable size of building for that site did not match those of Atkins, 
and were unclear whether Atkins had ever consulted English Heritage during 
their site analysis or whether Atkins had taken into consideration the proximity 
of the council owned plot to the historic building.  Members received a copy of 
the Strategic Site Study report produced by Atkins (containing the brief), in 
which Atkins stated they had taken account of the historic public house  

 
23. The Assistant Director of Property Services confirmed that Atkins had followed 

normal practice and consulted with the Council’s planning officers about the 
site, and that the planning officers had previously consulted with English 
Heritage on the master plan for the site, but the master plan did not include the 
Peasholme Hostel plot.   To alleviate the effect of the accomodation building on 
the historic Black Swan Public House, the decision was taken to situate the 
new accomodation building at the back of the plot away from the road. 
Members concluded that had the master plan included the hostel plot, the 
issue of the mass and scale of the new office accomodation may well have 
been highlighted at that very early consultation stage, and if it was not possible 
to overcome the concerns of the statutory consultees in regard to this issue, 
work need not have progressed, which in turn might have limited the amount 
spent on the project. 

 
24. The Committee were also unclear whether the project management had been 

successful as minutes of meetings showed that some of the senior members of 

Page 143



Appendix A 

the Project Board were not always in attendance and therefore not party to 
issues arising and decisions being made.  In response, officers confirmed that 
to ensure all the Directors were kept updated and their views sought, regular 
updates on progress were given to CMT via draft Executive reports, and verbal 
presentations with slides and diagrams.  It was noted that following the 
decision to withdraw the Council’s planning application for Hungate, the Chief 
Executive and Executive had given a clear commitment to greater ownership 
and support for the project and project team. This change in stance was 
deemed to be the best way forward to reach a successful planning approved 
design and led to a review of the structure and governance of the management 
of the project.   

 
Conclusion 
 

25. The separation between the ‘client’ and Planning was right and proper, and in 
line with best practice. 

 
 

Objective iii  - To identify whether the consultation process was 
conducted properly and whether due consideration was given to the 
responses received when deciding how to proceed 
 

26. The Committee noted that the notes/minutes taken at each pre-application 
consultation meeting were always presented at the next meeting for 
endorsement, thus allowing those consultees present, the opportunity to 
address any discrepancies in the meeting notes. 
 

27. The Assistant Director of Property Services acknowledged that although the 
project team had provided lots of feedback when they had responded positively 
to comments from consultees, they could have done more to explain why they 
were unable to respond positively to other issues. 

 

28. The Chief Executive explained the process that was followed when the letter of 
objection from English Heritage was received.  Firstly, he held a meeting with 
key officers to discuss the seriousness of the letter and to seek their advice.  
He also consulted with the Group Leaders.  The following day he and the 
Director of City Strategy held a meeting with English Heritage, at which English 
Heritage confirmed that although they liked the design, they could not support 
the planning application for that site due to the scale and massing of the 
proposed building.   

 

29. The Committee queried whether the Chief Executive was fully aware of the 
financial consequences of the decision to withdraw the planning application.  
He confirmed that having considered all the views gathered and the options 
available, he together with the Director of City Strategy made the decision to 
withdraw the planning application drawing a halt to any further spending on the 
project and removing any further financial consequences.  It was also made 
clear that technically, making the decision at the time, did not rule out a later 
re-submission of a revised planning application for that site.   

 

Page 144



Appendix A 

30. The Regional Director of English Heritage expressed surprise at this decision 
as she saw the content of their letter as being up for negotiation and had not 
expected the immediate withdrawal of the planning application.  She confirmed 
that English Heritage liked the design and would have accepted a significantly 
smaller version of it on that site.  The Chief Executive was clear however, that 
a significantly smaller version of the building was not a viable option as it would 
not allow for everyone to be on one site.  Therefore the business case pointed 
to withdrawal of the application.    

 
31. The Director of City Strategy stated that any significant change to a planning 

application required its withdrawal and the submission of a new application, 
therefore the decision they took had been in line with best practice.  Also, the 
view of English Heritage was that the impact of mass could not have been 
mitigated by a change in the architectural treatment and therefore there was no 
other option available. He also pointed out that planning permission already 
exists for that plot for a building of 110,000sq ft. 
 
Analysis 
 

32. The Committee accepted that the Project Team had recognised from the 
outset that the support of the statutory consultees was crucial to the granting of 
planning permission and that therefore they had always sought to address any 
issues raised.  For example, The Committee noted that the Chief Executive 
had been aware of the concerns of the Civic Trust and that the project team 
were engaging with them about their concerns.  The Regional Director of 
English Heritage informed the Committee that the English Heritage Advisor 
had raised a number of concerns with the Council’s project team, in particular 
at a meeting held on 5 December 2007.  The Project Team were able to show 
evidence of concept sketches showing changes that addressed those 
concerns.  Notes taken at the next meeting (held on 20 December 2007) 
showed that English Heritage responded positively to those sketches.  In fact, 
all of the notes/minutes of meetings held from 20 December 2007 onwards 
showed mostly encouraging comments from English Heritage.  Those 
encouraging comments also appeared in the Minutes of meetings recorded by 
the Architects.  The Committee concluded that whilst consultation procedures 
were followed flawlessly, the project teams commitment to the project led them 
to underestimate the impact on others of the growing murmurs of disapproval. 
 
Conclusion 
 

33. Both pre and post application consultation with statutory bodies, staff and 
service departments was exemplary.  The committee remained divided on the 
adequacy of the consultation with the public.  However it was agreed, that 
further attention could have been paid to the pre-application consultation with 
the public on design concepts, although due to the constraints it may not have 
made a difference.   

 
Objective iv - To identify whether best practice was followed throughout 
the process in seeking the views of statutory consultees and English 
Heritage specifically, and whether those views unduly influenced the 
decisions made  

Page 145



Appendix A 

 
34. The Committee were presented with evidence of a series of meetings held by 

the project team with the statutory consultees i.e. English Heritage, CABE, 
Civic Trust etc, as part of the pre-planning consultation process.  Notes from 
those meetings were included in the information pack provided to the 
Committee.  They recorded the views of the consultees and the Council’s 
Planning Dept and showed how they had helped to inform the progress of the 
project.  The issues identified were flagged with the Architects which in many 
cases, ultimately led to changes in the building design.  For example following 
a debate on materials, an effort was made to soften the interface between the 
Council building and the public house next door.   

35. The Assistant Director of Property Services confirmed that the project team 
were under no illusions that support from the statutory consultees would be key 
to getting planning permission and it was always expected that conditions 
would be attached.  It was always recognised therefore that working closely 
with the statutory consultees to iron out as many issues as possible at pre-
planning stage, was fundamental to a successful outcome.  In his view, and 
that of the Assistant Director of Planning, the letter of objection dated 8 July 
2008 from English Heritage was unexpected, bearing in mind the amount of 
work which had gone into the pre-planning consultation stage, the resulting 
changes to the design and the encouraging comments received throughout the 
process from English Heritage.  

36. In regard to the massing and scale of the building and its position next to the 
historic public house, the Committee found evidence within the notes of the 
various pre-application consultation meetings, which specifically identified the 
efforts of the project team to address those concerns of English Heritage.  The 
notes suggested the focus at the meetings then moved to other elements of 
the design such as materials, as evidenced in English Heritage’s internal 
memo dated 2 January 2008 – see Annex B.  

37. At the informal session held in April 2009, the Company Secretary of York’s 
Civic Trust, stated their concerns with the project in regard to the massing and 
scale of the building, particularly in relation to the Black Swan public house. He 
confirmed that the Civic Trust found some of the consultation imagery provided 
by the Architects misleading, as in their view it down played the bulk and mass 
of the building by showing the MAFF/DEFRA building in the background.  He 
also provided an image given to them as part of a presentation by the 
Architects showing the relationship between the Council’s proposed civic 
building and the Black Swan public house – see Annex C.     

38. The Secretary of the Civic Trust commented on the Project Team’s focussed 
approach to supplying the new civic building on brief and on budget and 
agreed that the pre-application consultation process had been ‘textbook’.  He 
did however criticise the level of attention paid to the feedback received, as the 
Civic Trust felt that no account had been taken of their first response, resulting 
in them having to respond more vigorously.   

39. In response, officers stated that the evidence of the concerns over massing 
being addressed, was apparent in the significant number of changes made to 

Page 146



Appendix A 

the building design prior to the submission of the planning application.   The 
Project Director produced evidence of those design changes by providing a full 
history of revised drawings and team meeting notes.  They clearly showed the 
number of changes that had been made between March 2007 and April 2008.   

40. The Regional Director of English Heritage informed the Committee that it was 
standard practice for an English Heritage Advisor to attend pre-application 
consultation meetings with developers, and to provide advice on the impact on 
the historic environment of any proposals and specific elements of the design,  
presented to them.  Their Advisor would then as a matter of course, involve 
other specialist officers from English Heritage in carrying out their own internal 
review of the information provided, and where necessary provide feedback to 
the developer, either verbally or via email.   

Analysis 

41. The Committee recognised that feedback from English Heritage’s own internal 
processes, was imperative to identifying their ongoing view of the evolving 
project. The only evidence that the Committee was able to find was an email 
that referred to an earlier internal review meeting at which English Heritage 
had criticised the first design – see Annex D.  The Committee therefore 
acknowledged that this lack of feedback supported the evidence from the 
Assistant Directors of Property Services and Planning & Design, that the letter 
of objection sent by English Heritage had come as a complete surprise.   

42. To clarify whether any other such feedback had ever been generated by 
English Heritage and sent to the Project Team, the Committee made a 
‘Freedom of Information’ (FOI) request. This was done in two parts. Initially a 
request was made on 2 December 2008 for copies of any notes taken at their 
internal ‘Important Application Review’ meetings since August 2007.  This was 
followed up by a further request on 11 December 2008 for any other internal 
documentation, and copies of any letters/ emails held by English Heritage 
relating to the Hungate development.   

43. The FOI documentation provided by English Heritage (shown at Annex E), 
generated a number of queries: 
 
i. Bearing in mind the content and tone of English Heritage's letter of 

objection to the Council's planning application, the Committee would like 
to understand the surprise expressed by the Regional Director of English 
Heritage at the meeting of this Committee on 27 January 2009, in regard 
to the Council’s decision to withdraw the application and the view she 
expressed that the content of the letter was 'up for negotiation' 

 
ii. Inconsistencies in comments recorded in the minutes of the 'Important 

Application Review Meeting' of 23 June 2008 
 
iii. English Heritage email dated 26 June 2008, which included the 

comments "We are not wholly convinced that it does achieve these 
objectives but will have a more clear view early next week."  - The query 
is, what happened early the following week or at any time up to the 

Page 147



Appendix A 

sending of the letter of objection, as the Committee received no 
documentation or correspondence relating to that period as part of their 
Freedom of Information request 

 
iv. There was no record of any discussions/meetings taking place between 

26 June and 8 July or any correspondence/documentation relating to that 
period provided as part of the FOI.  Therefore, how was the content for 
the letter of objection based English Heritage’s last IAR meeting of 23 
June 2008 arrived, given the more positive nature of the documentation 
prior to that period 

 
v. the letter of objection sent by English Heritage was copied to the Civic 

Trust & Conservation Trust.  Officers pointed out that this was unusual 
and queried why it had occurred when there was no other evidence within 
the FOI documentation provided by English Heritage, that these 
organisations had been liaising or in communication throughout the pre-
application consultation process. 

 
44. The committee therefore chose to invite the Regional Director of English 

Heritage to attend their next meeting, which was declined.  The Committee 
then made a further request to the Regional Director to attend its meeting in 
May 2009, which was also declined – see Annex F. 

 
45. In response to query (v) the Secretary of the Civic Trust explained that 

following Coppergate, the Civic Trust, English Heritage and CABE had agreed 
to liaise with each other over future major developments in York. 

 
46. The Committee also made an FOI request to CABE for copies of all their 

correspondence sent between April and July 2008 to English Heritage, the 
Council and others, in relation to the Hungate project.  The documentation duly 
provided was considered by the Committee at their meeting in March 2009. 
Members queried the lack of notes/minutes provided in relation to their ‘Internal 
Panel Reviews’ held on 28 February and 4 August 2008.  CABE subsequently 
clarified that it is their normal practice to produce an advice letter following a 
review meeting rather than meeting minutes, and a copy of the advice letter 
pertaining to 28 February 2008 had been included in the FOI documentation.  
In regard to the Internal Panel Review on 4 August 2008, no such advice letter 
was produced as the Council’s planning application had already been 
withdrawn. 

 
47. Finally, as the Committee saw a change in the views of some of the statutory 

consultees, but no evidence of the reasons behind it, they therefore agreed 
that publicly funded organisations have a duty to be clear, consistent and 
timely in the consultation responses they provide. 

 
Conclusion 
 

48. Best practice was followed in seeking the views of the statutory consultees, but 
the authoritative views from English Heritage were received too late in the 
process and were never received from CABE. 

 

Page 148



Appendix A 

Objective v - To identify whether time was a factor in reaching the 
decisions made throughout the process e.g. in agreeing the design 

  
49. The committee found that whilst time was a material factor, they were unable 

to find evidence that time was a considerable factor in regard to the project i.e. 
the project was neither rushed nor delayed. 

 

Implications Associated with Recommendations Arising from 
the Review 

50. Human Resources – In relation to recommendation (v), the Committee 
recognise that an increased level of involvement of the Chief Executive and 
Senior Directors may assist in a successful outcome for the ongoing new 
council offices project and are pleased to see that steps have already been 
taken to allow for this.  

51. Financial – There will be a financial implication associated with 
recommendation (i).  The degree of additional budget required for 
implementing the recommendation as part of a future project of this nature 
cannot be assessed at this stage and would need to be fully investigated as 
part of the lead up to a project.  On balance, the Committee felt the additional 
costs that may be incurred at that early stage could lead to an efficiency saving 
later on. 

52. There are no equalities, legal or other implications associated with the 
recommendation within this report. 

Corporate Strategy 
 

53. The provision of the new accommodation and the consequential improvements 
in services to our customers will contribute to all of the Council’s priorities and 
key change programmes. 

 

Risk Management 
 

54. The risk associated with not dealing consistently with feedback on consultation 
and not providing the right level of senior management support to any project 
of the size and nature, is that the potential remains for a similar outcome on 
future projects with high levels of public uncertainty.   However the Committee 
acknowledges that since withdrawing its planning application for Hungate, the 
council has already reviewed the leadership, project management process and 
the roles within the council and of its partners.  And as part of that review, the 
Council has already considered ‘lessons learnt’ particularly those relevant to 
‘consultation’ and has prepared future strategies for communicating with and 
engaging the ‘external audience’.  These lessons together with the 
implementation of the recommendations below, should improve current and 
future project risk management.   

 
Recommendations 

Page 149



Appendix A 

55. Having considered the aim and objectives for this review, and In light of the 
information gathered, The Hungate Ad-hoc Scrutiny Committee recommends 
that the Council: 

 
i. Carries out pre-project public consultation before commencing on any 

major project to identify and take account of the level of public support, 
aspirations and expectations, in order to inform the project including the 
budget 

  
ii. Continues with its best practice approach to pre-application consultation 
 
iii. Agrees a code of practice with statutory consultees which seeks to 

ensure they provide clear, consistent, timely and documented responses 
to consultation, from persons in authority within their organisation 

  
iv. Always provides full and consistent feedback to all consultees no matter 

whether the Council is able to respond positively or negatively to the 
issues being raised  

 
v. For all major projects, ensure that the Chief Executive and Senior 

Directors take ownership of the project and give consistent support to the 
project team  

 
Reason: In order to ensure any future council projects are delivered on time 
and on budget 

 
 
This report has been produced by the Hungate Ad-hoc Scrutiny Committee in 
conjunction with the Scrutiny Officer listed below 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Dawn Steel  
Democratic Services Manager 
 

Melanie Carr  
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
Tel No.01904 552063 Interim Report Approved ���� Date 1 May 2009 

   

Wards Affected:   All ���� 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Hungate Ad-hoc Scrutiny Committee 
Councillor Keith Aspden (Chair) 
Councillor Jenny Brooks  
Councillor Julie Gunnell 
Councillor Tom Holvey 
Councillor Roger Pierce 
Councillor Dave Taylor (Non-voting Co-opted Member) 
 

Page 150



Appendix A 

Background Papers: 
Topic Registration Form dated 16 July 2008 
Feasibility Report dated 15 September 2008 
Scoping Report dated 18 November 2008 
Interim Reports dated 10 December 2008, 12 & 27 January, and 10 March 2009  
 
Additional Documentation Considered By Committee: 
 
Overview & Information pack provided by Hungate Project Team 
• Admin Accommodation: Project Initiation Document & supporting annexes 
• Planning Policy Statement 6: Planning for Town Centres 

 Meeting of the Executive 1st Feb 05: Accommodation Review – Site Option 
Appraisal & supporting annexes 

• Meeting of the Executive 1st Feb 05: Committee Minutes 
• Meeting of the Executive 22nd Nov 05: Business Case & 8 supporting annexes 
• Meeting of the Executive 22nd Nov 05: Committee Minutes 
• Hungate Master Plan Development Brief 
• Hungate Master Plan - Maps 
• Meeting of the Executive 10th Oct 06: Accommodation Project Update &  

supporting annexes 
• Meeting of the Executive 10th Oct 06: Committee Minutes 
• Meeting of the Executive 24th July 07 & 4 supporting annexes 
• Meeting of the Executive 24th July 07: Committee Minutes  
• Meeting of the Executive 17th June 08 & 2 supporting annexes 
• Meeting of the Executive 17th June 08: Committee Minutes 
• Contract Documents for the Office Accommodation Project dated Sept 2006 
• Meeting of the Executive 13th Feb 07: Admin Accommodation Project Report 

& supporting annexes 
• Meeting of the Executive 13th Feb 07: Committee Minutes 
• RMJM Stage B Report: June 2007 
• RMJM Stage C Addendum: March 2008  
• RMJM Stage D Report: May 2008 
• Corporate Asset Management Plan 
• RMJM Consultation Process: Pre-Planning Application dated August 08 
• Summary of External Feedback on Building Design: Dec 07 – Mar 08 
• Pre Planning Design Exhibition – Staff Feedback 
• Pre Planning Design Exhibition – External Feedback 
• Staff Pre-Planning Design Exhibition Comments 
• External Pre-Planning Design Exhibition Comments 
• CMT Digest – 23rd Apr 08 
• Project Board Meeting Minutes – 25th Apr 08 
• Member Steering Group Meeting Minutes – 28th Apr 08 
 
Strategic Site Study report produced by Atkins 
 
Freedom of Information Documentation Pack from CABE 
Programme of Pre-Application Consultations 
Documentation evidencing changes to design during pre-application process 
 
 
 

Page 151



Appendix A 

Annexes: 
 
Annex A – Budget History Information  
Annex B –    English Heritage Internal Memo dated 2 January 2008 
Annex C –  Image provided by York’s Civic Trust 
Annex D –    English Heritage Email dated 10 September 2007 
Annex E –    FOI Documentation Received From English Heritage 
Annex F –    Written Response from English Heritage  
 
  
 
 

Page 152



Annex A 

Hungate Ad-Hoc Scrutiny Review 

Committed Expenditure and Cost of Additional Rent on Properties Sold and 
interest earned   

1. At Hungate Ad Hoc Scrutiny Committee on Tuesday 27 January 2009, Members 
requested: 

 
• Detail of committed expenditure at July 2008 of the project. i.e. expenditure that 

would have still been incurred even if the project had halted at July 2008 as it 
had already been confirmed to third parties.  

• Commitments which have produced assets and commitments which are not 
recoverable. 

• The cost of 2 years additional rent on properties that had been sold and the 
interest earned on the sale of those properties. 

 
2. Table 1 shows the total expenditure at July 2008, the committed and total spend at 

July 2008, the projected future committed spend at July 2008 total and the spend 
not recoverable.  

Table 1 – Committed Expenditure at July 2008 and Commitments / Costs 
contributing to an asset or not 

Column No. 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

Workstream 
June 2008 

Exec report 

Total 
Expenditure 
@ July 2008 

Committed 
Expenditure 
@ July 2008 

Total 
Expenditure 
& Committed 
Expenditure 
@ July 2008 

Estimated 
Future 

committed 
Expenditure 

Estimated 
Expenditure 
to an Asset 

or 
Developme

nt Work 

Estimated 
Abortive 

Costs 

   

Land 
Assembly   

  

Land Assembly 
Fees £3,683 £3,683 

 
£3,683 £3,683 £3,683

 
£0 

Peasholme 
Hostel £1,800,000 £735,597 

 
£735,597 £1,800,000 £1,800,000

 
£0 

Ambulance 
Station £1,249,225 £1,249,225 

 
£1,249,225 £1,249,225 £1,249,225

 
£0 

Archaeology £72,555 £47,555  £47,555 £72,555 £72,555 £0 

Total  £3,125,463 £2,036,060  £2,036,060 £3,125,463 £3,125,463 Zero 

     

Design & 
Construction   

  

Construction £29,334,000    

Risk £1,060,000    

Furniture £1,500,000    

Fees £2,805,000 £1,360,272 £265,000 £1,625,272 £1,625,272 £812,636 £812,636 

Total  £34,699,000 £1,625,272 £265,000 £1,625,272 £1,625,272 £812,636 £812,636 

     

Property Exit     

Property exit 
fees £626,290 £333,675 

 
£333,675 £626,290 £626,290

 
£0 

Social Services 
Adaptations £1,000,000 £99,198 £99,198 £1,000,000 £1,000,000

 
£0 

Page 153



Annex A 

Dilapidations £1,250,000  £1,250,000 £1,250,000 £0 

Repairs and 
Maintenance £668,000  £668,000 £668,000

 
£0 

Total Property 
Exit £3,544,290 £432,873 £432,873 £3,544,290 £3,544,290

 
Zero 

    

Other Costs    

Facilities 
Management £101,994 £36,010 £36,010 £36,010 £36,010

 
£0 

ICT £861,540   

User Change 
Management £326,274 £161,914 £161,914 £161,914 £161,914

£0 

Project 
Management £1,081,311 £535,016 £535,016 £535,016 £267,508

 
£267,508 

Risk/contingen
cy £64,128  

 

Total  £2,435,247 £732,940 £732,940 £732,940 £465,432 £267,508 

    

Total project 
budget £43,804,000 £4,562,145 £265,000 £4,827,145 £9,027,965 £7,947,821 £1,080,144

 
3. The 27 January 2009 report to the Ad Hoc Hungate Scrutiny Committee included 

Annex B – Detailed Budget History – which stated “It is currently difficult to 
breakdown the costs incurred at July 2008 in table 1 into those which remain 
relevant to the administrative accommodation project going forwards and those 
costs which cannot be incorporated in to the revised building solution.  This can only 
be determined once a new solution has been chosen.  The Council is currently 
undergoing a procurement process which is at an early stage and therefore it is not 
possible to specifically identify which costs already incurred will be relevant to the 
further development.” 

 
4. The statement above still holds true and the estimated costs in the table and 

description below are only a forecast estimation of the future committed expenditure 
that would remain relevant to the project costs and those that would potentially be 
abortive.  

 
5. In Table ,1 column 2 shows the expenditure at July 2008 at £4,562,145.  Column 3 

shows the expenditure that had actually been committed at that time at £265,000.  
Column 4 shows the Total & Committed Expenditure at July 2008 at £4,827,145.  
Column 5 shows the projected future committed expenditure at July 2008 that was 
likely to be incurred going forwards even if the Hungate Administrative 
Accommodation project had not continued at £9,027,965.  Column 6 details the 
Total & Committed Expenditure that is estimated that would be linked to an asset or 
development work at £ 7,947,821.  Column 7 shows the costs that are estimated to 
be abortive at £1,080,144 and relate specifically to expenditure on the Hungate 
project which would not be transferable to a new scheme. 

 
6. Column 4 – Total & Committed Expenditure at £4,827,145 is the information that 

was provided to the Hungate Ad-Hoc Scrutiny Committee in January 2009. 
 
7. Column 5 – Estimated Future Committed Expenditure is estimated at £9,027,965.  

This is the cost that is estimate as at July 2008 that would still have been incurred 
even if the Hungate Scheme had not gone ahead.     

Page 154



Annex A 

 
8. Of this the Land Assembly, Project Exit Strategy, Facilities Management and the 

User Development Group elements do not include any abortive costs as the work 
outcomes are linked to either a capital asset or development work which can be 
transferred to any new scheme.  These costs are not specific to Hungate and are 
estimated at £7,947,821 in column 6. 

 
9. The Land Assembly estimate at £3,125,463 includes the Peasholme Hostel and 

works to the ambulance station.  The Peasholme Centre provides a new facility and 
the costs of the ambulance station and archaeological investigations will have 
added value as a cleared site that is recoverable if sold at the right time on the open 
market.  

 
10. The Property Exist Strategy is estimated at £3,544,290.  All of the expenditure 

incurred on the property exit strategy should be relevant.  The property exit fees 
includes renegotiated leases, disposals, professional and legal fees.  Dilapidation, 
Repairs & Maintenance and Social Service adaption estimated costs will go ahead 
whether the move is to Hungate or an alternative location.  The exit strategy 
remains the same whether the Council moves into an Office located in Hungate or 
to an alternative location.   

 
11. Other Costs are estimated at £732,940.  User Change Management expenditure 

could be partially relevant to the new offices, as costs have been incurred to 
develop user requirement and the change management processes of the business 
to make the new office accommodation increasingly efficient.  This documentation 
collated will be relevant to the new building.  The Project Management and Facilities 
Management costs have been incurred over the life of the project, of which most will 
be attributable to the administrative accommodation project going forwards.  Much 
of the expenditure would have resulted from identifying the needs of the business, 
space awareness requirements, organisational change etc.  These costs will be 
essential to future development and will continue to be relevant to the project.  

 
12. Column 7 – Estimated Abortive Cost at £1,080,144 is very difficult to predict at this 

stage.  It is suggested that half of the Project Management costs at £267,508 and 
half of the Design & Construction Fees £812,636 relate to the Hungate project and 
would not be transferable to the new scheme.  It is currently not possible to do a 
detailed analysis of these costs and this estimate is a broad forecast of what the 
abortive costs could be.  

 
13. St Leonard’s Place is the only property that had been sold where 2 years additional 

rent would be incurred and also interest earned on the sale of the property. 
 
14. Table 2 details the estimated cost of 2 years additional rent that would be incurred 

from the sale of St Leonards Place.  The original Hungate scheme was modelled to 
October 2010 and the new scheme is modelled to December 2012.  Therefore the 
additional rent for the 2 years is split over 2010/11 to 2012/13. 

 
Table 2 – Estimated cost of 2 years additional rent on St Leonards Place 

  2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Total 

  6 mnths Full Year 8 Mnts   

St Leonards Place Rent 185,000 370,000 246,667 801,667 

Page 155



Annex A 

 
15. Table 3 details the estimated interest earned on the Sale of St Leonards Place.  St 

Leonards Place was sold at the end of October 2006 and therefore interest earned 
has been calculated for approximately half a year for 06/07 and 2 full years for 
07/08 and 08/09. 
 
Table 3 – Interest Earned on St Leonards Place since 2006/07 

  
 
 
 
 
 
16. Table 2 – Estimated costs of 2 years additional rent on St Leonards Place at 

£801,667 and Table 3 – Estimated interest earned on the Sale of St Leonards Place 
at £920,787 shows that the interest earned on the capital receipt for St Leonards 
Place is greater than the cost incurred by £119,120. 

 
17. It should be noted that even though interest is earned on capital receipts and other 

surplus funds it is not the Councils policy to allocate interest to specific schemes.  
Capital receipts, borrowing and other sources of external funding are used to 
support expenditure incurred on capital schemes as they occur.  Interest earned on 
all surplus funds is included in the treasury management budget which is reported in 
the Council’s monitoring cycle to Executive.   

 
 

 
  
 
  
 
 

 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 Total 

St Leonards Place 7,027,000  7,027,000  7,027,000   

Interest applied 4.90% 5.78% 5.51%  

Interest Achieved 127,566  406,316  386,905  920,787  

Page 156



Page 157



Page 158

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 159



Page 160

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266



Page 267



Page 268



Page 269



Page 270



Page 271



Page 272



Page 273



Page 274



Page 275



Page 276



Page 277



Page 278



Page 279



Page 280



Page 281



Page 282



Page 283



Page 284



Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



Page 326

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 

   

 

Executive 21 July 2009 

 
Report of the Democratic Services Manager 

 
Education Scrutiny Committee – Extended Schools Agenda Final 
Report  
 

Summary 
 

1. This report presents the final report from the Education Scrutiny Committee 
detailing their review of the Extended Schools Agenda. 

 

 Background 
 
2. In coming to a decision to carry out a review of this topic, the Education 

Scrutiny Committee recognised certain key objectives and the following remit 
was agreed: 

 Aim 

To contribute to the development of processes aimed at ensuring accessibility 
and a high quality of extended school provision 
 
Objectives: 

i. Examine the proposed role and composition of the Multi-Agency Steering 
Group to confirm its functions are fit for purpose and that the appropriate 
partners and Directorates are involved 

ii. Assess the affordability, quality and take-up of childcare and activities for 
children aged 5-11, and identify ways of ensuring their affordability 

 
3. Scrutiny Management Committee considered the final report on 18 May 2009 

and endorsed all of the recommendations made by the Education Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 

Consultation 
 

4. As part of their review, the Education Scrutiny Committee carried out a number 
of consultation sessions, as detailed in their final report attached at Appendix 
A. 

 

Agenda Item 11Page 327



Options 
  

5. Having considered the findings contained within the final report attached, 
Members may choose to support all, some or none of the recommendations 
shown in paragraphs 7-9 below. 

 

Analysis 
 

6. In regard to the aims and objectives of the review, the final report attached, 
analyses all of the information gathered and the arising issues.   

 

 Summary of Recommendations Arising From the Review     
 
7. The final report of the Education Scrutiny Committee recommends that the 

Executive should: 
 

i. Instruct officers to continue to develop the Strategic Steering Group 
  
ii. Broaden the Childcare Sufficiency Audit to include Extended Services 

with a particular focus on accessibility, affordability, inclusive provision, 
and flexibility in adapting to the needs of the local community 

 
i. Instruct all local Authority schools in York to identify a member of staff 

and a Governor responsible for Extended Services and community 
cohesion 

 
iv. Bring the findings and recommendations arising from this review to the 

attention of the Ofsted Sub-Committee and school improvement partners 
in order to inform their on-going work 

 
 
8. The Education Scrutiny Committee also recommends that the Executive 

Member for Children & Young People’s Services commission the following two 
reports on: 

 
• ways of improving cluster arrangements and the establishment of a 

number of Extended Services Partnership Co-ordinators for York 
schools with the options for the medium / long term funding of these 
posts 

 
• how best to use the ‘Disadvantaged Subsidy Funding’ (outlined in 

paragraphs 10-16 above)  
 
 
9. Finally, the Education Scrutiny Committee recommends that the new Learning 

& Culture Scrutiny Committee which is due to come into effect from the 
beginning of the municipal year 2009/10, consider reviewing the development 
of the Strategic Steering Group in the future. 

 

Page 328



Corporate Strategy 
 
10. The remit for the review supports Corporate Priority No.7 – ‘Improve the life 

chances of the most disadvantaged and disaffected children, young people 
and families in the city’. 

 

 Implications 
 
11. There are no known Legal, Financial, Equalities, HR, or other implications 

associated with the recommendation below, or with the recommendations 
within the final report at Appendix A.   
 

Risk Management 
 

12. There are no known risks associated with the recommendation within this 
cover report.  The risks associated with the recommendations within the final 
report are detailed therein. 
 

 Recommendations 
 
13. Members are asked to note the contents of the attached final report and 

approve the recommendations as shown in paragraphs 7-9 above. 
 

Reason: To ensure the development of processes aimed at ensuring 
accessibility and a high quality of extended school provision 

 

Contact Details 

 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Dawn Steel 
Democratic Services Manager 
 

Melanie Carr 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
Tel No.01904 552063 Report Approved � Date 6 July 2009 

 

Wards Affected:   All � 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Background Papers:   None 
 
Appendix A – Extended Schools Agenda Scrutiny Review - Final Report dated 6 

May 2009  
Annex A –  Findings from visits to After School Clubs 
Annex B   – Findings & Analysis from returned surveys 

 

Page 329



Page 330

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 

  

 

   

 

Education Scrutiny Committee 6 May 2009 

 
Extended Schools Agenda – Final Report 
 

Background 

1. In September 2008 the Committee considered a feasibility report for this topic 
as registered by Cllr Merrett, and agreed to carry out a review based on the 
following remit:  

Aim 

To contribute to the development of processes aimed at ensuring accessibility 
and a high quality of extended school provision 

Objectives: 

i. Examine the proposed role and composition of the Multi-Agency Steering 
Group to confirm its functions are fit for purpose and that the appropriate 
partners and Directorates are involved 

ii. Assess the affordability, quality and take-up of childcare and activities for 
children aged 5-11, and identify ways of ensuring their affordability 

 

Consultation 
 

3. As part of this review, Members consulted with CYC officers from the Extended 
Schools Service, schools, Local Authority and private providers of childcare 
and After School Clubs and parents.  

 
First Key Objective - Examine the proposed role and composition of 
the Multi-Agency Steering Group to confirm its functions are fit for 
purpose and that the appropriate partners and Directorates are 
involved 
 
Information Gathered 
 

4. The meeting of the multi–agency Steering Group was held on 4 November 
2008.  Three members of the Education Scrutiny Committee were in 
attendance (Cllr Merrett, Cllr Brooks & Cllr Funnell).   

5. The Members who attended, reported:  
• a wide representation from Children’s Services and the PCT but no private 

sector partners and only one school present at the meeting 

Page 331



Appendix A 

• the meeting comprised a series of speakers on different subjects together 
with round table group discussions and agreed the content of the meeting 
and presentations had been good 

• the group was too large to generate a good debate and that too many 
meetings had been scheduled for the forthcoming year  

• a decision was announced at the meeting to set up a much smaller, tightly 
focused, strategic steering group, in which schools in particular, would be 
encouraged to participate - it was made apparent that secondary schools 
may previously have been given the wrong signal due to the alignment of 
the group with Early Years 

• the first meeting of the strategic steering group was scheduled to take place 
in March/April 2009 

• a decision was taken to circulate the minutes of the meetings to a larger 
network group who will meet once or twice a year (or per term) on a 
workshop / conference basis, to gather valuable advice and ideas. 

 
6. Those Members who attended the meeting found the presentations useful and 

informative but were disappointed that no private sector partners and only one 
school attended the meeting.  The Committee discussed the timings of the 
meetings and whether this affected attendance from private partners and 
schools. They agreed that that the Multi Agency Steering Group had worked 
well as an internal briefing session but not in terms of fulfilling an external 
partnership function, and that the separate Strategic Steering Group would 
provide the opportunity to include more private providers.  In order to maximise 
attendance, it was suggested that the Assistant Director of Partnerships & 
Early Intervention write to all private sector providers and secondary schools, 
to seek their suggestions on partnership working and to invite them to attend. 

Conclusion 

7. The Committee concluded that the changes agreed would benefit the 
usefulness of the strategic steering group but agreed to assess the attendance 
at its first meeting, in order to confirm whether it was now fit for purpose and 
that all of the appropriate partners and Directorates were participating in the 
process.  

Recommendations Arising From Objective I 

8. In regard to Objective I of the review, Members recommend that: 
 

i. Officers continue to develop the Strategic Steering Group 
 
ii. The new Learning & Culture Scrutiny Committee which is due to come 

into effect from the beginning of the municipal year 2009/10, consider 
reviewing the development of the Strategic Steering Group in the future 

 
Reason:  In order to ensure the Strategic Steering Group is fit for purpose. 

 

Page 332



Appendix A 

Second Key Objective - Assess the affordability, quality and take-up 
of childcare and activities for children aged 5-11, and identify ways 
of ensuring their affordability 
 
Information Gathered 
 

9. Officers confirmed that all primary schools are aware that they need to provide 
childcare on site or to signpost parents to nearby provision. For secondary 
schools this is replaced by a requirement to provide safe activities where 
children are accessing supervised high quality activities.  Members received 
information on the costs for After School Clubs across the city, and were 
informed that: 

 
• the general approach is that there is a minimum recovery rate of services 

which schools are recommended to charge for the use of premises. To 
recover additional expenditure, for example heating, lighting, cleaning and 
caretaking overheads there is a formula basis incorporating  the number of 
square metres occupied and the length of time used.   

• there is also a table of hire rates that gives more favourable rates to non- 
profit making organisations or charities and a commercial rate for 
companies who are for profit.  This formal arrangement is supported through 
Assets and Property Management who also provide information around 
letting agreements for third parties.  

• Schools can seek financial advice from The Schools Business Support 
Service  and the Extended Schools service team work closely in partnership 
with them should a dispute or concern over rental charges arise and when 
new groups are setting up on school sites. 

• Schools are using their extended school money in a variety of ways for 
example some schools may employ co-ordinators that will work across a 
locality to ensure there are a variety of activities available for families and 
their children. Other schools provide out of school activities as well as out of 
school childcare. Some have provided support for parents.   

• advice was given to schools on the variety of ways in which the money 
should be spent, consistent with the DCSF guidelines.  

• all schools were recommended to consult with their communities (not just 
school communities) to ensure what was being delivered was what 
communities wanted, and had to produce evidence of that consultation, to 
the Local Authority.  It was noted that the responses were of variable 
quality. 

Disadvantage Subsidy Funding 

10. The Assistant Director of Partnership & Early Intervention gave the Committee 
an overview of a new policy initiative around the affordability of Extended 
Services.  The intention of this ‘Disadvantage Subsidy Funding’ is to provide a 
comprehensive range of exciting, high quality extended services which are 
accessible to all children and young people focusing on those disadvantaged 
by economic circumstances and on children in care. 

11. It is recognised that this initiative will only work if there is a degree of co-
ordination between clusters of schools.  In York, schools do not operate on a 

Page 333



Appendix A 

conventional cluster model, and, for the most part, each school decides for 
itself what Extended Services it will provide.  One outcome of the new subsidy 
will be to encourage a greater degree of collaboration. 

12.  In 2009-10 each local Authority in England will receive a share of £40m of 
subsidy funding to pass to disadvantaged families in one or more 
geographically coherent school clusters, on a pilot basis.  In York, this equates 
to £80k and the Local Authority has set up a pilot cluster made up of the 
following schools: 

• York High School 
• Westfield Primary School 
• Hob Moor Primary School 
• Woodthorpe Primary School 
 

13. The intention is that the money will be used to enable families to access 
existing services or to purchase new services not currently available.  The 
mechanism for disadvantaged families to claim their entitlement have yet to be 
identified and put in place.  One suggestion is that schools claim back 
reimbursement for the Extended Services provided to each family with 
disadvantaged children.   

14. The initial suggestion from government is that ‘disadvantaged children’ are 
defined as those receiving free school meals and/or ‘looked after children’. 
However, it is open to each local Authority to extend this definition if it can be 
afforded, and operated fairly.  The assumption is that the subsidy will equate to 
approximately £300 per family per year, and the expected take-up is 60% of 
those eligible.  

15. The criteria for being eligible for free schools meals is that parents/guardians 
should be in receipt of one of the following benefits:  Income Support; 
Employment and Support Allowance (Income Related); Income-Based 
Jobseeker’s Allowance; Child Tax Credit with an income of less than £15,575 
and NOT receiving Working Tax Credit; support under Part VI of the 
Immigration and Asylum Act 1999; or Guarantee element of State Pension  

 
16. In 2010-11, the Disadvantage Subsidy Funding will rise to £217m to be used 

by all schools across England.  After 2011 the intention seems to be that 
Extended Services funding will be mainstreamed into schools' budgets. 

17. In order to assess affordability, quality and take-up, Members agreed to:  

a. carry out site visits to a number of after school clubs - In November 2008, 
Members visited the after school club at Yearsley Grove Primary School, 
and in early December 2008, Members visited the after school clubs at 
Wheldrake Primary School and Fishergate Primary School.  Following the 
success of those site visits, Members decided to visit one more site and 
agreed to visit Westfield School where there are two clubs being run on the 
site - one by the school and one through a private provider (Kaleidoscope).  
This visit was carried out in January 2009.  The findings from all the visits 
are shown at Annex A.  

Page 334



Appendix A 

b. issue a survey to all families in the city with a six year old child attending a 
Local Authority school - it was agreed that the survey should be designed 
to enable families to include their views in regard to any other children in 
their immediate family.  The planned survey was sent out in December 
2008, with a ‘return by’ date of 16 January 2009.  246 surveys were 
returned, and the information was collated.  The findings together with an 
analysis of the information is shown at Annex B.   

c. write to every school and private provider to request any information they 
may hold which identifies the needs of families within their local community.  
The letters was sent out in early January 2009, with a ‘return by’ date of 6 
February 2009.  Only three responses were received, one of which was 
from New Earswick Primary School.  Members were impressed with the 
quality of the information produced by the school for parents, and the Chair 
of the Committee wrote to the school to pass on the Committee’s 
comments.   

d. hold an informal consultation session and invite Eddie Needham from 
ContinYou (Government Advisors on Extended Services) to give a 
presentation on the national picture regarding extended school services, 
and provide a comparison of the provision in York against other Education 
Authorities.  In order to encourage attendance at the informal consultation 
session, a flyer advertising the event was sent to all schools and private 
providers and copies of the flyer were displayed at local libraries from early 
February 2009.  The event was held following a formal committee meeting 
on 24 February 2009 and the presentation (Annex D to agenda item 4) can 
be viewed at: 
http://sql003.york.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.asp?CId=443&MId=4991&Ver=4 

 
Analysis 
 

18. In regard to the survey results, Members concluded that: 

i. Take-up varied across the city due to a number of factors, with cost being 
the main factor 

ii. A significant number of families who responded could not afford the 
available provision therefore evidencing the issue of affordability  

iii. the level of satisfaction was high amongst those using the provision 
therefore evidencing the good quality of that provision, where it was 
available 

iv. In some areas of the City, the wrap round childcare provision does not 
always support parents to go back to work and the high cost of transport 
threatens the sustainability and usability of childcare 

19. In regard to the consultation event, Members expressed their thanks to Eddie 
Needham and concluded that: 

i. The findings of the Committee in regard to this review represented the 
issues found nationally 

Page 335



Appendix A 

ii. All schools are now responsible for the promotion of community cohesion, 
well-being and the happiness of the children attending their school 

20. The Committee also acknowledged the importance of the 21st Century School 
Agenda for families. 

21. Those officers from within the Extended Services team who have supported 
this review, identified that the following would benefit Extended Services in 
York: 

• The establishment of a strategic stakeholder group which included private 
sector representation 

• Operational issues should be quickly fed into the stakeholder group to 
inform and influence future policy  

• Schools should acknowledge that stakeholders and partners delivering 
services on school sites need a clear pricing or lettings policy that covers all 
costs to the school.  Those costs should not disadvantage schools but also 
need to be affordable by the stakeholders and providers i.e. clear 
concessionary arrangements 

• Senior management on school sites should identify a point of contact who 
has responsibility for each element of the core offer (or one person 
responsible for all elements).  This person should value and respect good 
partnership working in all aspects of delivering the core offer. 

• Emphasis should be placed on all services paying due regard to and 
prioritising: 

Quality 
Accessibility 
Affordability – both collectively and individually 
Inclusive provision 
Flexibility in (a) adapting to the needs of the local community; (b) for 
individual parents/carers needing comprehensive extended provision in 
order to take up work 
 

Recommendations Arising from Objective II 
 

22. In regard to objective II of the review, Members recommend that: 
 

i. The Childcare Sufficiency Audit be broadened to include Extended 
Services with a particular focus on accessibility, affordability, inclusive 
provision, and flexibility as detailed in the final bullet point of paragraph 
21 

 
ii. All local Authority schools in York identify a member of staff and a 

Governor responsible for Extended Services and community cohesion 
 

Page 336



Appendix A 

iii. The Executive Member for Children & Young People’s Services 
commission two reports highlighting how the issues raised in the final 
bullet point of paragraph 21 can be addressed.  The reports to be on: 

 
• ways of improving cluster arrangements and the establishment of a 

number of Extended Services Partnership Co-ordinators for York 
schools with the options for the medium / long term funding of these 
posts 

 
• how best to use the ‘Disadvantage Subsidy Funding’ (outlined in 

paragraphs 10-16 above)  
 
iv. The findings and recommendations arising from this review be brought to 

the attention of the Ofsted Sub-Committee and school improvement 
partners to inform their on-going work 

 

Implications 

23. There have been some financial implications arising from carrying out this 
review.  During the time span of this review, Scrutiny Management Committee 
increased the budget for scrutiny reviews from £250 to £500.  The cost of 
producing the survey was met by using £200 of the scrutiny budget allocated to 
this review.  The remaining cost was met by The Extended Schools Service.  In 
regard to the consultation event, the cost of producing the flyer, room hire at 
the Mansion House and the provision of refreshments was all met from the 
balance of the budget allocated to this review.   

 
24. There are no known Financial, Legal, Equalities, or HR, implications 

associated with the recommendations within this report.  
 

Corporate Priorities 
 

25. The remit for this review supports Corporate Priority No.7 – ‘Improve the life 
chances of the most disadvantaged and disaffected children, young people 
and families in the city’. 

Risk Management 
 
26. Without the thorough engagement of current users and extended schools 

service providers the findings from this review would have been limited and 
insufficient to support and evidence the recommendations arising from the 
review.   There are also risks associated with not carrying out the work detailed 
in recommendation (iii) shown in paragraph 22. 

 
 

 

 

 

Page 337



Appendix A 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Dawn Steel  
Democratic Services Manager 
 

Melanie Carr 
Scrutiny Officer 
Scrutiny Services 
Tel No.01904 552063 Interim Report Approved ���� Date 23 April 2009 

Wards Affected:   All ���� 

 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
 

Background Papers: Scoping report dated 28 October 2008 and interim reports dated 
3 December 2008, 7 January 2009, 24 February 2009 & 7 April 
2009 

 
Annexes:  
 
Annex A   – Findings from visits to After School Clubs 
Annex B   – Findings & Analysis from returned surveys 
  
 
Education Scrutiny Committee 
 
Councillor Keith Aspden (Chair) 
Councillor Jenny Brooks (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Tina Funnell 
Councillor Keith Hyman 
Councillor Dave Merrett 
Councillor Jonathan Morley 
Dr David Sellick (Co-opted Statutory Member) 
Mr Bill Schofield (Cop-opted Statutory Member) 

Page 338



 
 

Annex A 

Extended Schools Agenda Scrutiny Review  
 

Findings from Visits to After School Clubs 
 
 
 
Yearsley Grove Primary School 
 
Members recognised that: 
• the After School Club is run by a voluntary management committee and is based on 

site, in the former caretakers bungalow. It is registered for 24 places, but take up is 
low - only 7-16 children currently use the provision (300 pupils on the school roll)  

• parents are charged £5 per session (3:15pm to 6pm) and that is relatively cheap for 
childcare in York, compared to some other after school provision.  

• the After School Club is looking for ways to develop, such as offering places to 
nearby Huntington Primary School and applying for grants towards the cost of the 
transport which is not currently being covered by the charge, from their local Ward 
Committee and Awards for All 

• the Breakfast Club folded as there was a lack of numbers, even with constant 
advertising through newsletters and flyers  

• in regard to out of school activities, most were free for children, but a number of 
expensive providers had to be paid for.  For example, some parents have expressed 
concern about even a £1 cost for pupils. The headteacher was keen for any 
extended services funding through school to go for the benefit of all pupils not just a 
few 
 

It was also reported to Members that: 
 
• the quality of the resource is good, and the unit receives good support from council 

officers 
• maintaining parent’s confidence is an issue i.e. will the After School Club remain, the 

high cost for the area, and partnership working with the school e.g. need for reduced 
rent and working together 

• although the After School Club has enjoyed a period of reduced rent from the 
school, there is concern that if the reduced rent and partnership working does not 
continue, the viability of the club may be in jeopardy 

• as a consequence to the visit there is now a better working relationship between the 
school and After School Club 
 
 

Wheldrake Primary School  

Members recognised that: 
• the After School club is run by a voluntary management committee, which maintains 

a good relationship with the school, especially on child protection issues. They have 
regular partnership meetings and there are other extra curricular clubs at the school 

• the club is registered for 24 children, but as there is no space in the school they use 
the local village hall.  

• The annual rent for the village hall is £2,300. Parents are charged £7.20 per session, 
which runs from 3:30pm to 6pm and includes a snack.  

 

Page 339



 
 

Annex A 

It was also reported to Members that: 
 
• cost is not a major issue for parents 
• there is concern that the Council is looking at developing a pre-school playgroup on 

the site in the future, as this may affect their numbers 
• the management committee does not appear interested in developing a breakfast 

club provision from the After School Club 
 
 
Fishergate Primary School 
 
Members recognised that: 
• the After School Club is run by a voluntary management committee 
• they have their own building on the Fishergate Primary site and are able to offer a 

breakfast club, playgroup, lunch, after school club and limited holiday provision - this 
is a good model in relation to the variety of provision 

• the club is registered for 40 children, and therefore is one the larger provisions in the 
City.  Attendance does fluctuate and it currently has a waiting list  

• the club takes from Fishergate Primary, St. George's Primary and the York Steiner 
School, and responds to needs in a number of communities, including Polish 
children.  

• It has a good partnership from both headteachers. 
• the rent is currently low at £752 half yearly, but it is being reviewed. 
• charges for parents are £3.00 for the breakfast club and £6.00 for the after school 

club.  There is a 50p discount for siblings and both costs include a snack 
 

It was also reported to Members that cost was not a major issue for parents as they 
promoted benefit take up. 
 
 
Westfield Primary School 

Members first attended the after school club run by the school, and recognised that: 
• The After School Club was run by ?  
• No rent to pay and closely integrated with the school; good relationship with 

Headteacher 
• Good access to school facilities i.e. sports 
• All its intake were from the school 
• Charges for parents are £4 for After School Club, 50p for Breakfast Club and £70 for 

Holiday Club (mon-fri 8am to 6pm) 
• Registered for 40; average take-up between 34-38 for After School Club, and 

between 12-20 for Holiday Club 
• Both Manager and deputy employed to work in school as well as teaching assistants 

creating an atmosphere of continuity for children 
• Parents delighted with provision, some helping out on a voluntary basis 

 
Members went on to visit the private provision and learnt that: 
• 75% of the building was owned by the providers and 25% by the Local Authority 
• Intake is generally from other schools in the area e.g. English Martyrs, Carr, 

Woodthorpe, Dringhouses 

Page 340



 
 

Annex A 

• Charges for parents are £9 for After School Club, £13 for breakfast club and after 
school club (including snack), and £22 a day for Holiday Club 

• There is a nursery provision for younger siblings – registered for 32 with uptake of 
around 20 

• There is a higher staff to child ratio than at school run club 
• Registered for 45 3-8 yr olds and can also take a few over 8s when needed 
• The Local Authority pathfinder is currently paying for a majority of the users 
 
It was also reported to Members that the private providers have strong links with the 
school nursery and that there is a good relationship between both providers on the site. 
 

Page 341



Page 342

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex B 

1 

Extended Schools Scrutiny Review 
 

Parental Survey Results 
  

Response rate by school - Table 3.1 shows the response rate by school: 

School Total School Total School Total 

Scarcroft Primary 18 St Wilfrids RC School 5 Badger Hill Primary 2 
Robert Wilkinson 
Primary 

16 Wheldrake Primary 5 Lakeside Primary 2 

None given 15 Wigginton Primary 5 
Lord Deramores 
Primary 

2 

Poppleton Ousebank 
Primary 

15 Acomb Primary 4 Osbaldwick Primary 2 

Huntington Primary 13 Carr Infant 4 Rufforth Primary 2 
Hemplands Primary 11 Clifton Green Primary 4 St Marys Primary 2 

Copmanthorpe Primary 10 Dunnington Primary 4 
St Paul's Nursery 
School 

2 

Ralph Butterfield 
Primary 

10 Headlands Primary 4 
Yearsley Grove 
Primary 

2 

Bishopthorpe Infant 7 
Knavesmire Primary 
School 

4 Burton Green Primary 1 

Clifton with Rawcliffe 
Infants 

7 Park Grove Primary 4 
Fulford Primary 
School 

1 

Dringhouses Primary 7 Westfield Primary 4 
Haxby Road Primary 
School 

1 

English Martyrs 
Primary 

7 Elvington Primary  3 
New Earswick 
Primary 

1 

Naburn Primary 7 
Our Ladys RC 
Primary 

3 St Georges 1 

St Oswalds Primary 7 
Poppleton Road 
Primary 

3 St Lawrences Primary 1 

St Aelreds 6 Rawcliffe Infants 3 
Stockton on the 
Forest Primary 

1 

Fishergate 5 Skelton Primary 3   
Grand Total 246 

Table 3.1 

 

Age profile of children and young people 

The survey was sent to all parents of six year olds in York schools. Table 4.1 shows the 
profile of age ranges of parents that responded to the survey. 

Age Total 
number 

Age Total  
number 

Age Total 
number 

Age Total 
number 

0 6 4 15 8 10 12 3 

1 12 5 85 9 12   

2 24 6 61 10 8   

3 42 7 15 11 2   

Table 4.1 

Page 343



Annex B 

2 

As would be expected, the majority of respondents had children aged around 5 or 6 
years old. The number of responses for young people of 10 and over is significantly 
lower and as such results relating to this group should be viewed with more caution. 

Household income 

Table 5.1 shows how respondents answered 
question 12 relating to household income. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chart 5.1 shows the profile of respondents weekly household income. 

 

Chart 5.1 

The profile shows that there has been a low response rate from those with an income of 
below £300. The majority of those responding have a household income of between 
£501-1000 per week.   
 
 
Three main reasons for using childcare 
Table 6.1 shows how respondents ranked the main reasons they use childcare. 

 Ranking Work 
Training / 

Study 
Social 

Activities Respite 
Free 3/4 year 
old provision 

1 163 11 15 9 38 
2 8 20 17 12 23 
3 7 10 14 10 3 
Grand Total 178 41 46 31 64 
Weighted 
Average 1.12 1.98 1.98 2.03 1.45 

Household income? Total 
£1300+ 47 

£1000-£1300 25 
£501-£1000 97 
£301-500 32 
£100-300 20 
Less than £100 2 
(blank) 23 

Grand Total 223 
Table 5.1 

Page 344



Annex B 

3 

Table 6.1 
 

Where table 6.1 talks about “weighted average” this shows the average ranking that 
was given to that reason. By looking at these weighted averages it is possible to put in 
order the main reasons parents gave for using childcare: 

• Work 

• Free 3 and 4 year old provision 

• Training / study 

• Social activities 

• Respite 

Table 6.2 shows the main reasons for using childcare broken by household income. 
Work remains a key feature as a main reason for using childcare across the income 
ranges. However the second and third reasons for accessing childcare do seem to vary 
more according to household income. 

Household 
income 

Main reason Second reason Third Reason 

£1300+ 
Work Respite 

Free 3&4 year old 
funding 

£1000-£1300 
Work Respite 

Free 3&4 year old 
funding 

£501-£1000 
Work 

Free 3&4 year old 
funding 

Training / study 

£301-500 
Free 3&4 year old 

funding 
Work Social Activities 

£100-300 
Work 

Free 3&4 year old 
funding 

Training / study 

Less than £100 Work and Free 3&4 year old funding joint top 
No third main reasons 

given. 
Table 6.2 

 

Types of childcare used in the last year and average cost 

Table 7.1 shows what types of childcare have been used in the past year and how 
much parents feel on average this has cost them (per child per week). 

 Number used in last year Average cost per child per week 
None 32 £0.00 
Nanny 6 £140.80 
Childminder 47 £35.19 
Family/friend 98 £3.43 

Creche 8 £44.29 
Day Nursery 61 £79.77 
School Nursery 12 £25.00 
Pre-School Playgroup 54 £10.22 
Before School Club 40 £8.24 
Lunch Club 9 £3.81 
After School Club 71 £15.42 

Holiday Club 55 £51.65 

Page 345



Annex B 

4 

Table 7.1 
 

How childcare is taken does seem to show some variations according to household 
income. 

• There seems to be a peak of those least likely to be using childcare in the £301-
£500 range. 

• The income range of £301-£500 is also least likely to be using a childminder. 

• The use of families and friends is fairly steady across the income ranges although 
slightly lower for those in the £1,300+. 

• Day nurseries seem to be less likely to be used by those in the £100-£300 and 
£501-£1000 range. However there is a spike of usage between these ranges for 
those with an income of £301-£500. 

• Families with a weekly household income of £100 - £500 are less likely to use an 
after school club or a holiday club. 

 

How many hours of childcare used per week by age of child 

Table 8.1 shows the average number of hours of childcare that is being accessed 
broken by the age of the child. 

Age 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

Hours 21.0 15.6 17.5 21.2 15.6 7.2 7.3 9.3 6.4 

 

Age 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 

Hours 6.6 4.6 6.0 4.0 22.0 0.0 22.0 21.0 

 

Table 8.1 

 

Chart 8.1 shows this average usage in a graph. 

 

Chart 8.1 

Page 346



Annex B 

5 

The profile of chart 8.1 suggests that the biggest users of childcare, in terms of hours, 
are pre-school children and those in secondary school. However as the survey was sent 
to parents of six year olds the number of returns for the older age groups means the 
data is less reliable. 

When do people need to access childcare 

Table 9.1 shows when parents needed access to 
childcare. 

 

 
 
 
The vast majority of people have said they need childcare on weekdays, closely 
followed by school holidays and then by a much lesser extent weekends. 
 
 
Table 9.2 shows the times of day that parents have 
said they need to have access to childcare. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The majority of parents want to access childcare after school, followed by all day and to 
a lesser extent before school.  
 
 
Out of school activities 
This section of questions focuses more on what different types of out of school activities 
families are accessing, how much they are paying and what activities they would like to 
access. Table 10.1 shows what types of activities families are currently using. 

Activity Total  Activity Total 

Sports 122 Martial Arts 20 

Dance 73 Faith Religious Groups 12 

Uniform Groups 64 Cooking 11 

Music 42 School Councils 11 

Parent and Toddler Group 33 Youth Clubs 10 

Arts and Crafts 27 Games Club 7 

Other 26 Computer Clubs 6 

Drama 24 Technology / Media Club 3 

Languages 21 Homework Club 2 

   

Grand Total    =    514 

Table 10.1 
 

 Total 

Weekdays 175 

Weekends 15 

School Holidays 123 

Table 9.1 

Data Total 

All day 88 

Up to 9am 58 

School Morning 35 

Over Lunchtime 7 

School Afternoon 19 

After School 106 

Table 9.2 

Page 347



Annex B 

6 

Table 10.2 shows the number of activities being accessed broken down by household 
income. To account for the different numbers of families from each income range that 
have responded a column has been added for “number of activities per family”. 
 

Household income 
Number of activities 

being accessed 
Number of parents 

in this range 
Number of activities 

per family 

£1300+ 103 47 2.19 

£1000-£1300 52 25 2.08 

£501-£1000 206 97 2.12 

£301-500 70 32 2.19 

£100-300 43 20 2.15 

Less than £100 1 2 0.50 

(blank) 39 23 1.70 

Table 10.2 

 
The profile of number of activities per family is shown in chart 10.1. This shows that 
generally there is a fairly even take up of activities across the income ranges. However 
with such a low return rate from those on the lowest incomes this data offers less 
reliability. 

 

Chart 10.1 

Table 10.3 shows the breakdown of the number of activities attended by school. As with 
table 10.2 an extra column has been added for number of activities per family. 

School 
Total Number of parents 

responding from this school 
Activities per 

family 

Haxby Road Primary School 8 1 8.00 

St Georges 5 1 5.00 

Clifton Green Primary 18 4 4.50 

Our Ladys RC Primary 11 3 3.67 

Skelton Primary 10 3 3.33 

Park Grove Primary 13 4 3.25 

Naburn Primary 22 7 3.14 

St Marys Primary 6 2 3.00 

Ralph Butterfield Primary 29 10 2.90 

Knavesmire Primary School 11 4 2.75 

Dringhouses Primary 19 7 2.71 

English Martyrs Primary 19 7 2.71 

Huntington Primary 34 13 2.62 

Poppleton Ousebank Primary 39 15 2.60 

Page 348



Annex B 

7 

School 
Total Number of parents 

responding from this school 
Activities per 

family 

Wigginton Primary 12 5 2.40 

Headlands Primary 9 4 2.25 

Copmanthorpe Primary 22 10 2.20 

St Oswalds Primary 15 7 2.14 

Robert Wilkinson Primary 34 16 2.13 

None given 31 15 2.07 

Wheldrake Primary 10 5 2.00 

Westfield Primary 8 4 2.00 

St Lawrences Primary 2 1 2.00 

Hemplands Primary 21 11 1.91 

Scarcroft Primary 34 18 1.89 

Acomb Primary 7 4 1.75 

Clifton with Rawcliffe Infants 12 7 1.71 

Poppleton Road Primary 5 3 1.67 

Badger Hill Primary 3 2 1.50 

Lakeside Primary 3 2 1.50 

Rufforth Primary 3 2 1.50 

St Paul's Nursery School 3 2 1.50 

St Aelreds 8 6 1.33 

Carr Infant 5 4 1.25 

Lord Deramores Primary 2 2 1.00 

Yearsley Grove Primary 2 2 1.00 

Fulford Primary School 1 1 1.00 

Stockton on the Forest Primary 1 1 1.00 

Bishopthorpe Infant 6 7 0.86 

Dunnington Primary 3 4 0.75 

Rawcliffe Infants 2 3 0.67 

Fishergate 3 5 0.60 

St Wilfrids RC School 2 5 0.40 

Elvington Primary  1 3 0.33 

Burton Green Primary 0 1 0.00 

New Earswick Primary 0 1 0.00 

Osbaldwick Primary 0 2 0.00 

Table 10.3 
 

Average cost per child per week 

Table 11.1 shows the average cost per child per week of attending different activities. 

Activity Average  Activity Average 

Dance £3.80  Languages £4.73 

Drama £5.00  Martial Arts £5.04 

Music £5.00  Faith Religious Groups £2.33 

Cooking £1.50  Parent and Toddler Group £2.48 

Arts and Crafts £1.62  Technology / Media Club £0.00 

Youth Clubs £1.72  Games Club £1.50 

Homework Club £0.00  Uniform Groups £2.54 

School Councils £0.00  Sports £5.55 

Page 349



Annex B 

8 

Computer Clubs £0.00  Other £5.71 

Table 11.1 

 

What activities families would use if offered 

Table 12.1 shows the activities that families would use if these were offered. For 
information the figures for what activities are currently being taken up are also shown. 

Activity Currently using Would use Difference 

Music 42 108 66 

Arts and Crafts 27 104 77 

Drama 24 91 67 

Cooking 11 77 66 

Dance 73 75 2 

Computer Clubs 6 65 59 

Uniform Groups 64 64 0 

Homework Club 2 56 54 

Sports 122 56 -66 

Languages 21 51 30 

Martial Arts 20 50 30 

Youth Clubs 10 43 33 

Games Club 7 36 29 

Technology / Media Club 3 23 20 

Parent and Toddler Group 33 13 -20 

Other 26 13 -13 

School Councils 11 6 -5 

Faith Religious Groups 12 4 -8 

Total 514 935  

Table 12.1 
 

For most types of activities there are more people saying they would use activities (if 
offered / made available) than are currently taking them up. 

Table 12.2 shows a comparison for the number of activities taken up per family to the 
number of activities that would be taken up per family and broken by school. This 
should highlight any areas where demand is higher than supply. However there should 
be a health warning placed against reading to many conclusions from this data given 
that the number of responses from each individual school can be very low.  

School Would 
use… 

Number of 
responses 

Would use 
per family 

Activities 
per family 

Difference 

Fishergate 37 5 7.40 0.60 6.80 

Burton Green Primary 6 1 6.00 0.00 6.00 

Lord Deramores Primary 13 2 6.50 1.00 5.50 

Dunnington Primary 23 4 5.75 0.75 5.00 

St Oswalds Primary 45 7 6.43 2.14 4.29 

Rawcliffe Infants 13 3 4.33 0.67 3.66 

Carr Infant 19 4 4.75 1.25 3.50 

St Paul's Nursery School 10 2 5.00 1.50 3.50 

Wheldrake Primary 26 5 5.20 2.00 3.20 

Badger Hill Primary 9 2 4.50 1.50 3.00 

Osbaldwick Primary 6 2 3.00 0.00 3.00 

Page 350



Annex B 

9 

School Would 
use… 

Number of 
responses 

Would use 
per family 

Activities 
per family 

Difference 

Rufforth Primary 9 2 4.50 1.50 3.00 

Yearsley Grove Primary 8 2 4.00 1.00 3.00 

Clifton with Rawcliffe Infants 31 7 4.43 1.71 2.72 

Elvington Primary  9 3 3.00 0.33 2.67 

Bishopthorpe Infant 24 7 3.43 0.86 2.57 

St Wilfrids RC School 14 5 2.80 0.40 2.40 

Poppleton Road Primary 12 3 4.00 1.67 2.33 

Hemplands Primary 46 11 4.18 1.91 2.27 

Acomb Primary 16 4 4.00 1.75 2.25 

Robert Wilkinson Primary 68 16 4.25 2.13 2.12 

Headlands Primary 17 4 4.25 2.25 2.00 

Stockton on the Forest 
Primary 3 1 3.00 1.00 2.00 

Naburn Primary 33 7 4.71 3.14 1.57 

Huntington Primary 54 13 4.15 2.62 1.53 

St Aelreds 17 6 2.83 1.33 1.50 

Scarcroft Primary 61 18 3.39 1.89 1.50 

None given 53 15 3.53 2.07 1.46 

Dringhouses Primary 29 7 4.14 2.71 1.43 

Copmanthorpe Primary 36 10 3.60 2.20 1.40 

Westfield Primary 13 4 3.25 2.00 1.25 

English Martyrs Primary 26 7 3.71 2.71 1.00 

Poppleton Ousebank Primary 48 15 3.20 2.60 0.60 

Lakeside Primary 4 2 2.00 1.50 0.50 

Knavesmire Primary School 12 4 3.00 2.75 0.25 

Skelton Primary 10 3 3.33 3.33 0.00 

New Earswick Primary 0 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 

St Marys Primary 6 2 3.00 3.00 0.00 

Wigginton Primary 12 5 2.40 2.40 0.00 

Clifton Green Primary 17 4 4.25 4.50 -0.25 

Ralph Butterfield Primary 26 10 2.60 2.90 -0.30 

Fulford Primary School 0 1 0.00 1.00 -1.00 

Park Grove Primary 7 4 1.75 3.25 -1.50 

St Georges 3 1 3.00 5.00 -2.00 

St Lawrences Primary 0 1 0.00 2.00 -2.00 

Our Ladys RC Primary 4 3 1.33 3.67 -2.34 

Haxby Road Primary School 0 1 0.00 8.00 -8.00 

Table 12.2 

 

When would families want to access out of school activities 

Table 13.1 shows when parents needed access to  
out of school activities. 
 

 

 

 

 Total 

Weekdays 193 

Weekends 55 

School Holidays 152 

Table 13.1 

Page 351



Annex B 

10 

 

As with childcare the vast majority of families want out of school activities on weekdays 
and in the school holidays. However there is a larger number of parents expressing a 
need for weekend out of school care than those needing it for childcare (see table 9.1). 
 
Table 13.2 shows the times of day that parents have said they need to have access to 
out of school activities. 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
A significant majority of parents have expressed the need to access out of school 
activities after school and in the school holidays. 
 
 
Where families would like these activities to be held 
Table 14.1 shows where parents have said they would like to access out of school clubs 
and activities: 

Location Total 

At school 226 

Library 59 

Local Community Hall 114 

Table 14.1 

The majority of parents would like to access out of school activities on the school site, 
followed by in a local community hall and then in a library. 
 
 
Are parents happy with the quality of the childcare or out of school activities they 
are currently using? 
Table 15.1 shows if parents are happy with the 
quality of the childcare or out of school activities 
they are currently using. 
 

 

Table 15.2 shows how the satisfaction with the quality of childcare and out of school 
activities varies according to household income. The final column on the right shows 
how these figures equate “per family” in this income range. 

Happy with 
quality? 

Household 
income? 

Total Number of parents 
in this range 

Number unhappy with 
quality per family 

Less than £100 1 2 0.50 
£100-300 1 20 0.05 
£301-500 4 32 0.13 

No 

£501-£1000 15 97 0.15 

Time of day Total 

Before School Day 17 

During the day 26 

After school up to 6pm) 200 

In the evening (after 6pm) 33 

During the school holidays 154 

Table 13.2 

 Total 

No 34 

Yes 177 

Total 211 

Table 15.1 

Page 352



Annex B 

11 

£1000-£1300 3 25 0.12 
£1300+ 5 47 0.11 

 

(blank) 5 23 0.22 
No Total  34   

 
Household 
income? 

Total Number of parents 
in this range 

Number happy with 
quality per family 

Less than £100 1 2 0.50 

£100-300 14 20 0.70 
£301-500 22 32 0.69 

£501-£1000 67 97 0.69 
£1000-£1300 19 25 0.76 

£1300+ 39 47 0.83 

Yes 

(blank) 15 23 0.65 
Yes Total  177   

Table 15.2 
 

Chart 15.1 shows how the profiles of happiness with quality vary according to 
household income. 

 

Chart 15.1 
 
As before caution should be taken over looking at the lowest income ranges due to low 
response rates. However those in the household income range of £501-£1000 seem to 
be the most unhappy with quality of childcare or out of school activities. The happiest 
with quality are those in the £1000-£1300 and £1300+ ranges. 
 
 
Does a lack of available childcare / out of school activities prevent parents from 
going to work? 
Table 16.1 shows parents response to the question 
“Does a lack of available childcare / out of school  
activities prevent you going out to work?” 
 

 

 

 Total 

No 174 

Yes 42 

Total 216 

Table 16.1 

Page 353



Annex B 

12 

Table 16.2 shows the response to the same question but broken down by household 
income. The final column on the right shows how these figures equate “per family” in 
this income range. 

Does the lack of available 
childcare / out of school activities 
prevent you going out to work? 

Household 
income? 

Total No. of parents in 
this range 

Number 
per family 

Less than £100 0 2 0.00 

£100-300 10 20 0.50 

£301-500 19 32 0.59 

£501-£1000 73 97 0.75 

£1000-£1300 20 25 0.80 

£1300+ 37 47 0.79 

No 

(blank) 15 23 0.65 

No Total  174   

 Household 
income? 

Total No. of parents in 
this range 

Number 
per family 

Less than £100 2 2 1.00 

£100-300 6 20 0.30 

£301-500 7 32 0.22 

£501-£1000 15 97 0.15 

£1000-£1300 3 25 0.12 

£1300+ 7 47 0.15 

Yes 

(blank) 2 23 0.09 

Yes Total  42   

Table 17.2 
 

Chart 16.1 shows the profile of parents response to the question about the availability of 
childcare by income range. 

 

Chart 16.1 

As before caution should be taken over looking at the lowest income ranges due to low 
response rates. However there does seem to be a clear correlation between household 

Page 354



Annex B 

13 

income and parents saying that the available childcare prevents them from returning to 
work. 
 
 
Main reasons for not using childcare / out of school activities 
Table 17.1 shows the main reasons parents gave for not using childcare or out of 
school activities. 

 

Reason Total 

Cost 53 

At home / prefer to do it myself 42 

Use friends / family support 36 

Nothing available 29 

Not appropriate times / does not fit around work 27 

Not right quality 19 

Difficult to get to / not convenient location 18 

Don't trust anyone with child 4 

Children old enough to look after themselves 1 

Nothing suitable for disability/SEN/additional Needs 1 

Table 17.1 
 

The main reason given for not accessing childcare or out of school activities is cost. 
This reflects the findings of the 2007 Childcare Sufficiency Assessment.  
 
Table 17.2 shows the main reasons broken down by which school the respondent is 
using. 

School 

C
o

s
t 

U
s
e

 f
ri
e

n
d

s
 /
 f

a
m

ily
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

D
o

n
't 

tr
u

s
t 
a

n
y
o

n
e
 w

it
h
 

c
h

ild
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 o

ld
 e

n
o

u
g
h

 t
o
 

lo
o

k
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 

A
t 

h
o

m
e

 /
 p

re
fe

r 
to

 d
o

 i
t 

m
y
s
e

lf
 

D
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 g

e
t 
to

 /
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
v
e
n

ie
n

t 
lo

c
a

ti
o
n

 

N
o

th
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

N
o

t 
ri
g

h
t 
q

u
a

lit
y
 

N
o

th
in

g
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 f
o

r 
d

is
a

b
ili

ty
/S

E
N

/a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 

N
o

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t

im
e

s
 /
 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 
fi
t 

a
ro

u
n
d

 w
o

rk
 

Acomb Primary 1 1   2      

Badger Hill Primary  1    1    1 

Bishopthorpe Infant 1 1 1  1      

Burton Green Primary      1 1    

Carr Infant 1    1  1   3 

Clifton Green Primary 2     1 1 1  1 

Clifton with Rawcliffe 
Infants 

2 1    1 1 1  1 

Copmanthorpe Primary 2 1   2   1  1 

Dringhouses Primary 1 4   3   1  2 

Page 355



Annex B 

14 

School 

C
o

s
t 

U
s
e

 f
ri
e

n
d

s
 /
 f

a
m

ily
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

D
o

n
't 

tr
u

s
t 
a

n
y
o

n
e
 w

it
h
 

c
h

ild
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 o

ld
 e

n
o

u
g
h

 t
o
 

lo
o

k
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 

A
t 

h
o

m
e

 /
 p

re
fe

r 
to

 d
o

 i
t 

m
y
s
e

lf
 

D
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 g

e
t 
to

 /
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
v
e
n

ie
n

t 
lo

c
a

ti
o
n

 

N
o

th
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

N
o

t 
ri
g

h
t 
q

u
a

lit
y
 

N
o

th
in

g
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 f
o

r 
d

is
a

b
ili

ty
/S

E
N

/a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 

N
o

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t

im
e

s
 /
 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 
fi
t 

a
ro

u
n
d

 w
o

rk
 

Dunnington Primary 1          

Elvington Primary  1 1     1   1 

English Martyrs Primary 1    2 2  1   

Fishergate 1 1    1 2 1   

Fulford Primary School  1         

Haxby Road Primary       1     

Headlands Primary           

Hemplands Primary 2 4   1  2 1  1 

Huntington Primary 4 3 1  3 2 5 3   

Knavesmire Primary  2     1  1  1 

Lakeside Primary  1         

Lord Deramores Primary        1   

Naburn Primary     1 1 2 1  1 

New Earswick Primary 1          

None given 3 2   1 1 2    

Osbaldwick Primary        1   

Our Ladys RC Primary 3 1  1 1   1  1 

Park Grove Primary 1 1   1     2 

Poppleton Ousebank 
Primary 

3  1  4  1    

Poppleton Road Primary  1   1      

Ralph Butterfield Primary 2 2   1   1  4 

Rawcliffe Infants          1 

Robert Wilkinson 
Primary 

3 1   5 1     

Rufforth Primary     1     1 

Scarcroft Primary 5 3   7  4   1 

Skelton Primary 1          

St Aelreds 1 1   1  1   1 

Page 356



Annex B 

15 

School 

C
o

s
t 

U
s
e

 f
ri
e

n
d

s
 /
 f

a
m

ily
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

D
o

n
't 

tr
u

s
t 
a

n
y
o

n
e
 w

it
h
 

c
h

ild
 

C
h

ild
re

n
 o

ld
 e

n
o

u
g
h

 t
o
 

lo
o

k
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 

A
t 

h
o

m
e

 /
 p

re
fe

r 
to

 d
o

 i
t 

m
y
s
e

lf
 

D
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t

o
 g

e
t 
to

 /
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
v
e
n

ie
n

t 
lo

c
a

ti
o
n

 

N
o

th
in

g
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 

N
o

t 
ri
g

h
t 
q

u
a

lit
y
 

N
o

th
in

g
 s

u
it
a
b

le
 f
o

r 
d

is
a

b
ili

ty
/S

E
N

/a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 

N
o

t 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t

im
e

s
 /
 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 
fi
t 

a
ro

u
n
d

 w
o

rk
 

St Georges           

St Lawrences Primary           

St Marys Primary     1      

St Oswalds Primary 1 2     1 1  2 

St Paul's Nursery         1   

St Wilfrids RC School 2    1 1 1    

Stockton on the Forest 
Primary 

      1    

Westfield Primary 1     1 1    

Wheldrake Primary 2 1    1 1  1 1 

Wigginton Primary 1 1 1  1   1   

Yearsley Grove Primary 1     1     

Table 17.2

 

Although table 17.2 is very number heavy there are some key messages which come 
out of it. It should be stressed though that this may relate not only to the extended 
services available but also the childcare in the surrounding area. 
 
• Cost is given as a reason at a large number of schools but particularly at Scarcroft 

Primary, Huntington Primary, Our Lady’s, Poppleton Ousebank, and Robert 
Wilkinson. 

• There are a greater number of people giving “nothing available” as a reason for 
Scarcroft Primary and Huntington Primary. This is another barrier that is also 
reflected in the 2007 Childcare Sufficiency Assessment. 

• Childcare or out of school activities not at the right times or fitting with work is given 
as a reason at a number of schools but more so for Carr Infants and Ralph 
Butterfield. 

 
 
Comments from parents / carers 
The survey gave parents the opportunity to add any other comments or thoughts that 
they felt they wanted to give. A summary of these comments is given below. 
 

Page 357



Annex B 

16 

Table 18.1 shows the breakdown of 
these comments into several 
categories. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Lack of out of school facilities in the area 
Table 18.2 shows the breakdown of parents who gave comments falling into the 
category of there being a lack of out of school activities in their area. 
 
School Total School Total

Huntington Primary 6 Dunnington Primary 1 

None given 3 Elvington Primary  1 

Scarcroft Primary 3 English Martyrs Primary 1 

Fishergate 2 Hemplands Primary 1 

Naburn Primary 2 Lord Deramores Primary 1 

Poppleton Ousebank Primary 2 Our Ladys RC Primary 1 

Skelton Primary 2 Ralph Butterfield Primary 1 

Burton Green Primary 1 Robert Wilkinson Primary 1 

Carr Infant 1 St Oswalds Primary 1 

Clifton Green Primary 1 Stockton on the Forest Primary 1 

Clifton with Rawcliffe Infants 1 Wheldrake Primary 1 

Table 18.2 

 
The general theme of comments by school were: 
 
• Huntington Primary – A need for an onsite after school club that runs on a regular 

basis. This mirrors the findings of the Childcare Sufficiency Assessment. 
• Scarcroft Primary – A need for increased capacity of the existing out of school club 

and more, regular holiday provision. 
• Fishergate Primary – A need for flexible after school provision for ad hoc care and 

also a greater diversity of activities needing to be offered. 
• Naburn Primary – A need for before and after school care. There is a recognition 

that any provision would need support to ensure it is sustainable and also 
challenges faced in terms of space for the club to run. 

• Poppleton Ousebank – One of the parents expressed concern about out of school 
activities for 11-16 year olds in the area. 

• Skelton Primary – Some general comments around the need for a greater range of 
activities and more of these to be available to those in year 1. 

 

Table 18.3 shows the breakdown of parents who gave comments falling into the 
category of activities being at the wrong times or unsuitable. 

Category Total 

Lack of out of school facilities in area 35 

Times wrong / unsuitable 24 

Problems with affordability 17 

Should hold activities at school 15 

Suggestion of new activity / improvement 15 

Lack of childcare facilities in area 10 

Happy with childcare 10 

Happy with out of school activities 8 

Lack of information about activities 7 

Complaint about setting, staff or activity 7 

Total 148 

Table 18.1 

Page 358



Annex B 

17 

 

The comments given in this area do not relate to any specific school and are 
summarised below. 

• Some parents said they viewed childcare as allowing them to work but activities 
being for the child or young person. However this view was in the minority. 

• Parents who are working shifts or atypical hours said they found it difficult to 
access childcare or activities. 

• A number of parents said that it would be useful if extended school activity ending 
times could be coordinated to allow it to link with other forms of childcare. Another 
reason given for this is not having to make repeated trips if there is more than one 
child and they are doing different activities. 

• A significant number of parents expressed a need for extended hours provision in 
particular beyond 6pm and, to a lesser extent, before school. 

• Some parents said they would like to see better quality activities offered in after 
school activities. 

• Where families have children in different year groups they tend to find it difficult to 
plan and access activities for all of their children. 

• One parent said it can be challenging finding wrap-around care when a child is 
starting part time at school. 

 

Table 18.3 shows the breakdown of parents who gave comments falling into the 
category of activities being at the wrong times or unsuitable. 

School Total School Total 

None given 2 Naburn Primary 1 

Poppleton Ousebank Primary 2 Clifton Green Primary 1 

Ralph Butterfield Primary 2 Hemplands Primary 1 

St Oswalds Primary 2 Dringhouses Primary 1 

Copmanthorpe Primary 2 Robert Wilkinson Primary 1 

Scarcroft Primary 1 Yearsley Grove Primary 1 

Table 18.3 

 

As with the previous category these comments are not specific to any one school and 
can be looked at as general thoughts and issues. 

School Total School Total 

None given 2   Lord Deramores Primary 1 

Scarcroft Primary 2   Ralph Butterfield Primary 1 

Carr Infant 2   St Oswalds Primary 1 

Park Grove Primary 2   Wheldrake Primary 1 

Naburn Primary 1   Acomb Primary 1 

Poppleton Ousebank Primary 1   Badger Hill Primary 1 

Clifton Green Primary 1   Copmanthorpe Primary 1 

Elvington Primary  1   Dringhouses Primary 1 

English Martyrs Primary 1   Headlands Primary 1 

Hemplands Primary 1   St Paul's Nursery School 1 

Table 18.3 

Page 359



Annex B 

18 

• Some families gave the view that the tax credit system is too complicated and the 
cut off point for what families are supported is too low. 

• Some parents with 3 or more children said they need additional support to allow 
their children to access activities. 

• A number of parents expressed a difficulty with the affordability of holiday activities. 
• Where parents are shift or atypical workers they face additional affordability issues 

by having to reserve and pay for places that may not actually be used. 
• Some parents questioned the value for money offered by breakfast clubs and said 

it was unfair some breakfast clubs are free while others charge. 
 
Table 18.4 shows the breakdown of parents where they gave comments falling into the 
category of activities being held on the school site. 
 
School Total School Total 

Copmanthorpe Primary 2 English Martyrs Primary 1 

Scarcroft Primary 2 Wheldrake Primary 1 

Huntington Primary 2 Fishergate 1 

Ralph Butterfield Primary 1 Bishopthorpe Infant 1 

Robert Wilkinson Primary 1 Haxby Road Primary School 1 

Yearsley Grove Primary 1 Rufforth Primary 1 

Table 18.4 
 

A summary of the main comments given in relation to the category of having activities 
on school sites are below. 

• As picked up on earlier, some parents expressed a need for an after school club 
on site at Huntington Primary school. 

• Some people said they would like to see activities run on the school site that are 
currently run in off site buildings. The comments relate to the quality of the 
buildings and facilities. 

• Some parents said for after school activities off site they can find it difficult to 
collect the child from school and drop them off at the activity. One parent 
suggested there should be an increased use of walking buses to activities. 

 

Table 18.5 shows the breakdown of parents who gave comments falling into the 
category of suggesting new activities or improvements. 
 
School Total School Total 

Robert Wilkinson Primary 3 Lord Deramores Primary 1 

None given 2 Skelton Primary 1 

Huntington Primary 1 Our Ladys RC Primary 1 

Fishergate 1 Knavesmire Primary School 1 

St Oswalds Primary 1 Rawcliffe Infants 1 

Dringhouses Primary 1 St Marys Primary 1 

Table 18.5 
 

Suggestions for new activities or improvements included: 

• Trampolining (Dringhouses Primary) 

• Beavers, cubs, brownies (Fishergate, Rawcliffe Infants, Skelton Primary) 

Page 360



Annex B 

19 

• More sports and multi-skills, tennis golf etc available across all ranges (Huntington, 
Our Lady’s, Rawcliffe Infants) 

• Voluntary clubs should get extra support or be run by the school (Knavesmire) 

• Opportunity for child to learn second language (Lord Deramores) 

• Swimming lessons (no school given) 

• More opportunities for children and parents to do activities or learning together 
(Rawcliffe Infants) 

• Homework Club (Rawcliffe Infants) 

• General comment about wider use of school facilities (St Oswald’s) 

 

Table 18.6 shows the breakdown of  
parents who gave comments falling into  
the category of a lack of childcare facilities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The childcare facilities that parents say are lacking are: 

• Copmanthorpe – One parent stated they were unsure of the quality of the local 
playgroup but said there was no alternative. One parent also said there was a 
need for more holiday provision. 

• None given – One parent said that existing before and after school club was full. 
Another parent said that there was a need for childcare that could flexibly meet the 
needs of parents working changing shifts. 

• Poppleton Ousebank – One parent concern over a lack of childcare for 11-16 year 
olds. 

• Scarcroft Primary – One parent said they would like to be able to use free early 
education places with their existing childminder. 

• Skelton Primary – One parent said there was a lack of under five care and activity 
provision for those in year one. 

• St Aelred’s – One parent gave concern about childminders being forced out of the 
role by excessive paperwork from government. 

• St Oswald’s – One parent said they could not access the existing after school club 
as it is full. 

• Wheldrake Primary – One parent wanted support where children have started on a 
part time basis at school. 

 
 

Table 18.7 shows the breakdown of parents who gave comments falling into the 
category of activities being happy with childcare. 

 

School Total 

None given 2 

Copmanthorpe Primary 2 

St Oswalds Primary 1 

Skelton Primary 1 

Scarcroft Primary 1 

Wheldrake Primary 1 

Poppleton Ousebank Primary 1 

St Aelreds 1 

Table 18.6 

Page 361



Annex B 

20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

General comments around being happy with the quality of childcare are summarised 
below: 

• Good quality staff at nursery (Askham Bar Day Nursery, St Paul’s) 

• Happy with quality of local childminders (Elvington, Huntington, Scarcroft) 

• Good quality after school club (Hemplands, Robert Wilkinson) 

• Good quality holiday club (Bish Street Kids) 

• Happy with quality of playgroup (Wheldrake) 

 
 
Table 18.8 shows the breakdown of parents 
who gave comments falling into the category 
of activities being happy with out of school 
activities. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

A summary of the comments where parents are happy with out of school activities is 
given below. 

• Good after school clubs and holiday clubs (Badger Hill, Hemplands, Westfield 
Primary) 

• Good term time activities (Copmanthorpe, Park Grove Primary, Poppleton Road 
Primary, Robert Wilkinson Primary, St Aelred’s) 

 
 

Table 18.9 shows the breakdown of parents 
who gave comments falling into the category 
of there being a lack of information about 
activities. 

 

 

 

School Total 

Scarcroft Primary 3 

Wheldrake Primary 1 

Robert Wilkinson Primary 1 

Huntington Primary 1 

Dringhouses Primary 1 

Hemplands Primary 1 

Elvington Primary  1 

Acomb Primary 1 

Table 18.7 

School Total 

Robert Wilkinson Primary 1 

None given 1 

Copmanthorpe Primary 1 

St Aelreds 1 

Park Grove Primary 1 

Badger Hill Primary 1 

Poppleton Road Primary 1 

Westfield Primary 1 

Table 18.8 

School Total 

Copmanthorpe Primary 2 

Westfield Primary 1 

Poppleton Ousebank Primary 1 

St Marys Primary 1 

Burton Green Primary 1 

St Wilfrids RC School 1 

Table 18.9 

Page 362



Annex B 

21 

A summary of comments from parents around this is given below. 

• There is a need for better information about what extended schools activities are 
available. 

• Better publicity of employer support with childcare costs (childcare vouchers). 

 

Table 18.10 shows the breakdown of 
parents who gave comments falling 
into the category of there being a lack 
of information about activities. 

 

 
 

 

 

A summary of comments from parents around this is given below. 

• One parent said there was a need for a nursery to have a deep clean. 

• Holiday club needs to give more notice of what days they are operating so parents 
can make arrangements with work. 

• Two parents gave concern over the quality of the buildings groups were run in. 
Both of them off school sites, one a playgroup and the other an out of school club. 

• One parent gave concern about childminders being forced out of the role by 
excessive paperwork from government. 

• One parent said the cost of their breakfast club was too high. 

• One parent expressed concern over staff retention rates at an out of school club. 

 

 

School Total 

St Aelreds 1 

Park Grove Primary 1 

Scarcroft Primary 1 

Dringhouses Primary 1 

St Oswalds Primary 1 

Rufforth Primary 1 

St Paul's Nursery School 1 

Table 18.10 

Page 363



Page 364

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 

   

 

Executive 
 

21 July 2009 

 
Report of the Director of Resources 

 

Improvement Plan 2009-10 Key Actions and Milestones 

Summary 

1. To provide an overall update on the 2009/10 action plans contained within the 
council’s Improvement Plan (IP). 

Background 

2. In May 2009 the nine workstreams for the council’s 2009/10 Improvement 
Plan (formerly known as the Single Improvement Plan or SIP) were agreed. 
These were drawn from a variety of sources.  In some cases, the 
workstreams were a continuation of those identified in the previous year’s SIP 
(for example, HR), while other improvements were identified from audit and 
inspection reports and a review of corporate governance, which was 
presented to the Audit & Governance Committee in March 2009. 

3. It was agreed at Executive on 26 May 2009 that further detail on the actions 
for improvement and the timescales for completion would be brought to 
Executive. 

Consultation  

4.  The CMT member or designated lead officer for each IP workstream has 
been consulted as to the milestones necessary to secure improvement.  The 
topics for improvement have arisen out of previous consultation with 
Corporate Management Team, Executive and employees through the staff 
survey. 

Key Actions and Milestones 

5. The actions and milestones for the nine agreed areas for improvement are 
set out in the tables contained in Annex 1. 

 

Options 

6. There are no options as Executive are asked to note the actions and 
milestones for delivery outlined. 

Agenda Item 12Page 365



 

Analysis 

7. The above report is for information and decisions are not required at this 
stage.     

Corporate Objectives 

8. The Improvement Plan represents one of the council’s key corporate 
objectives for 2009/10 and forms an essential component of the Effective 
Organisation theme within the revised Corporate Strategy.  

Implications 

9. Implications of noting progress: 

• Financial No financial implications 

• Human Resources (HR) The HR workstream has implications for the HR 
team, of which they are aware.  

• Equalities Failure to make the necessary improvements would have an 
effect on the council’s ability to meet its equalities obligations. 

• Legal  The Improvement Plan should assist the authority in fulfilling some 
of its statutory duties, particularly in regard to health and safety, and 
equalities legislation. 

• Crime and Disorder No Crime and Disorder implications. 

• Information Technology (IT) No IT implications. 

• Other None 

Risk Management 

10. Failure to achieve improvement in the above areas could affect the council’s 
direction of improvement and the outcomes of the Use of Resources 
Assessment within the Comprehensive Area Assessment process. 

 

Recommendations 

11. Members are asked to note the milestones for the 2009-10 Improvement Plan. 

Reason 

To ensure the effective management and of key actions to be taken to support 
on-going development and improvement work at the council critical to the 
achievement of the Effective Organisation corporate priority. 

 

 

Page 366



 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Pauline Stuchfield 
Assistant Director of Resources, Customer Service 
and Governance 
Resources 
01904 551706 
 

 √  8
th

 July 2009 

 
Chief Officer’s name 
Title 

Helena Nowell 
Improvement Programme Manager 
Performance & Business Assurance 
01904 551746 
 
 
 

Report Approved tick Date Insert Date 

 

All √ Wards Affected:   

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
 

Background Papers:  
 
 

Report to the Executive dated 26 May 2009 entitled “Single Improvement Plan 
Refresh 2009/10” 
 
 
Annexes 
 
Annex 1 – Improvement Plan Key Actions 2009/10 
 
 
 

Page 367



Page 368

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 1 

1. HR 
 
Key actions towards improvement 
 

Key 2009/10 milestones Lead 

1.1 Develop and implement a Workforce Development Plan 
 
 

Plan complete by 30 September 2009                              
Plan implement plan by 31 March 
2010 

Ian Floyd/Angela Wilkinson 

1.2 Pay and Grading Implementation 
 

Complete by 31 March 2010 Ian Floyd/Angela Wilkinson 

1.3  HR Transformation Programme Phase 1 to be delivered: this 
includes e-recruitment, Delphi replacement and the creation of an HR 
Business Centre 

Phase 1 complete by 31 March 2010 Ian Floyd/Angela Wilkinson 

 
 

2. Equalities 
 
Key actions towards improvement 
 

Key 2009/10 milestones Lead 

2.1  Meet all requirements of the Developing level of the Equality 
Framework 

Complete by 31 March 2010 
 

Bill Hodson/Evie Chandler 

2.2  Facilitate the development of a joint approach to equality in access 
to services amongst LSP partners   

Complete by 31 March 2010 
 

Bill Hodson/Evie Chandler 

2.3 Review the procurement strategy in the light of equalities duties 
 

Complete by 31 March 2010 
 

Bill Hodson/Evie Chandler 

2.4  Deliver training on Equalities and human rights, particularly to 
members 

Complete by 31 December 2009 
 

Bill Hodson/Evie Chandler 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

6
9



Annex 1 

 
3. Health & Safety 

 
Key actions towards improvement 
 

Key 2009/10 milestones Lead 

3.1 Carry out a Health & Safety (H&S) training needs analysis within 
each directorate  

 

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 
 

Director of Neighbourhood 
Services/Angela Wilkinson/  
Jon Grainger 

3.2 Deliver the H&S Training Plan to key managers  
 
 

Complete by 31 March 2010 
 
 

Director of Neighbourhood 
Services/Angela Wilkinson/  
Jon Grainger 

3.3  Achieve 2009/10 workplan goals for assessing levels of legal 
compliance for Health & Safety within each service area in line with key 
performance indicators set out in the CYC Safety Management System  

Complete by 31 March 2010 
 
 

Director of Neighbourhood 
Services/Angela Wilkinson/  
Jon Grainger 

3.4  Ensure all new H&S risks entered onto the corporate risk system 
have been reviewed by the H&S team to ensure appropriate control 
measures are in place  

Ongoing from June 2009 
 
 

Director of Neighbourhood 
Services/Angela Wilkinson/  
Jon Grainger 

3.5 Launch Health & Safety newsletter 
 
  

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 
 

Director of Neighbourhood 
Services/Angela Wilkinson/  
Jon Grainger 

 
 

4. Member Training 
 
Key actions towards improvement 
 

Key 2009/10 milestones Lead 

4.1 Develop and agree Member Development Policy   
 

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 

Bill McCarthy/Quentin Baker 

4.2 Agree annual programme 2009/10 
 

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 

Bill McCarthy/Quentin Baker 

4.3 Agree implementation plan re achieving charter status 
 

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 

Bill McCarthy/Quentin Baker 

P
a
g

e
 3

7
0



Annex 1 

5. Project and Programme Management 
 
Key actions towards improvement 
 

Key 2009/10 milestones Lead 

5.1 Agree corporate adoption of common principles of project and 
programme management (via report to CMT and Executive)  

 

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 
 

Bill Woolley/Tracey Carter 

5.2  Develop a range of Project Management templates and an 
assessment matrix to identify the appropriate level of Project 
Management control  

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 
 

Bill Woolley/Tracey Carter 

5.3 Get agreement to  common approach to Project and Programme 
Management via report to CMT and Executive 

Complete by 30 November 2009 
 

Bill Woolley/Tracey Carter 

5.4 Develop agreed gateway process for project review  
 

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 

Bill Woolley/Tracey Carter 

5.5 Analyse training requirements for project/programme management 
  

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 

Bill Woolley/Tracey Carter 
 

5.6 Develop training programme  
 

Complete by 31 December 2009 
 

Bill Woolley/Tracey Carter 

 
 

6. Project and Programme Management 
 
Key actions towards improvement 
 

Key 2009/10 milestones Lead 

6.1 Review whistle-blowing and other conduct procedures  
 

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 

Ian Floyd/Pauline Stuchfield 

6.2 Deliver training programme on the Officer Code of Conduct  
 

Complete by 31 March 2010 
 

Ian Floyd/Pauline Stuchfield 

 
 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

7
1



Annex 1 

 
 

7. Partnership Governance 
 
Key actions towards improvement 
 

Key 2009/10 milestones Lead 

7.1  Review current governance arrangements for partnerships and the 
current framework for the Compact 

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 

Ian Floyd/Pauline Stuchfield 

7.2  Develop gap analysis between current compliance levels and the 
partnership guidelines  

Complete by 31 March 2010 
 

Ian Floyd/Pauline Stuchfield 

7.3  Deliver training and awareness on good partnership governance, 
including member training  

Complete by 31 March 2010 
 

Ian Floyd/Pauline Stuchfield 

 7.4  To contribute towards the work of the York Compact Group in 
setting up a working group to develop principles of local conflict 
resolution 

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 

 Ian Floyd/Pauline Stuchfield 

 
8. Internal Communications 

 
Key actions towards improvement 
 

Key 2009/10 milestones Lead 

8.1 Launch of the new intranet  
 

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 

Pete Dwyer/Matt Beer 

8.2 Relaunch of News&Jobs and News in Depth 
 

Complete by 31 December 2009 
 

Pete Dwyer/Matt Beer 

8.3 Develop a cascade system for team briefings  
 

Complete by 31 March 2010 
 

Pete Dwyer/Matt Beer 

 

P
a
g

e
 3

7
2



Annex 1 

 
9. Risk Management 

 
Key actions towards improvement 
 

Key 2009/10 milestones Lead 

9.1 Integrate risk reporting into the new Performance Management 
Framework  

Complete by 30 June 2009 
 

Ian Floyd/Pauline Stuchfield 

9.2 Fundamental refresh of strategic risk register in line with the new 
Corporate Strategy  

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 

Ian Floyd/Pauline Stuchfield 

9.3 Work with lead officers to address risks highlighted from partnership 
risk survey of significant partnerships  

Complete by 30 September 2009 
 

Ian Floyd/Pauline Stuchfield 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

7
3



P
a
g

e
 3

7
4

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



 

   

   

 

Executive 
 

21 July 2009 

Report of the Director of Resources  
 

Treasury Management Annual Report & Review of Prudential Indicators 

Summary of Report 
 

1. This reports updates the Executive on Treasury Management performance 
for 2008/09 compared against the budget taken to Council on 21 February 
2008. The report summarises the economic environment over the 2008/09 
financial year and reviews treasury management performance in the 
following areas: 

 

• Long term Borrowing, 

• Debt Restructure, 

• Short term Investments, 

• Investment credit criteria policy, 

• Post Icelandic Bank Collapse, 

• The Venture Fund, 

• Treasury Management Outturn and  

• The Prudential Indicators. 
 
Consultation 
 
2. The majority of this report is for information purposes and reporting on the 

performance of the treasury management function. Members through the 
budget process set the level of budget and expected performance of the 
Councils treasury management function. 

 
Options/Analysis 
3. In accordance with the Local Government Act 2003, it is a requirement 

under the CIPFA Prudential code and the CIPFA Treasury Management in 
Local Authorities that the Executive of the Council receives an annual 
treasury management review report of the previous year -08/09- by 30 
September the following year – 30 September 2009. 

 
Corporate Priorities 

 
4. The Council will meet its Corporate Strategy Value of “Encouraging 

improvement in everything we do” by effectively and proactively managing 
its treasury activities.  Effective treasury management is concerned with the 

Agenda Item 13Page 375



management of the Council’s cash flows, it’s banking, money market and 
capital transactions, the management of debt, the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities, and the pursuit of optimum 
performance consistent with those risks.  

 
Economic Background 
 
5. The performance of the Council’s treasury management function is an 

outcome of the long-term borrowing and short-term investment decisions 
that were affected by the following economic conditions during the 2008/09 
financial year. 

 

a. When the 2008/09 budget was set in February 2008, the Bank of 
England base rate was at 5.5%, with a predication that the base rate 
would fall in March 2008 to 5.25%. Expectations at this time suggested 
that the rate would fall during quarter 1 of 2008/09 to 5% and remain at 
this level for the majority of the year, with the possibility of a quarter of a 
per cent (0.25%) reduction to 4.75% in the autumn of 2008.   

 

b. In a year that can only be described as unparalleled and extraordinary 
the Annual Treasury Report for 2008/09 is summarised in the graphs at 
Annex A and B.  These graphs show the major events of the financial 
year and the impact they had on both PWLB and investment rates.  The 
financial crisis, commonly known as the ‘credit crunch’, had a major 
downward impact on the levels of interest rates around the world.  
Although interest rates initially fell sharply in the US they were followed, 
eventually, by the Bank of England. 

 
c. At the start of the financial year, on 1st April 2008 Bank Rate was 5% 

and the Bank of England was focused on fighting inflation.  Market fears 
were that rates were going to be raised as CPI, the Government’s 
preferred inflation target, was well above the 2% target (two years 
ahead).  The money market yield curve reflected these concerns with 
one-year deposits trading well above the 6% level.  PWLB rates in both 
5 and 10 years edged above Bank Rate during the summer as markets 
maintained the belief that inflation was the major concern of the 
monetary authorities.  The money markets were reflecting some 
concerns about liquidity at this time and, as shown in the graph at Annex 
A, the spread between Bank Rate and 3 month LIBOR was greater than 
had historically been the case. 

 
c. This phase continued throughout the summer until the 15th September 

when Lehman Brothers, a US investment bank, was allowed to file for 
bankruptcy in the total absence of any other institution being willing to 
buy it due to the perceived levels of toxic debt it had.  This event caused 
a huge shock wave in world financial markets and threatened to 
completely destabilise them.  As can be seen from the chart, at Annex A 
and B, this also led to an immediate spike up in investment rates as 

Page 376



markets grappled with the implications this might have on other financial 
institutions, their credit standing and indeed their viability.  On 7th 
October the Icelandic government took control of their banks and this 
was followed a few days later by the UK government pumping a massive 
£37bn into three UK clearing banks, RBS/HBOS/Lloyds, as liquidity in 
the markets dried up.  The Monetary Policy Committee meantime had 
reduced interest rates by 50bp on 9th October.  This had little impact on 
3 month LIBOR, however, as the spread, or ‘disconnect’ as it became 
known, against Bank Rate widened out.  On the other hand the short 
end of the PWLB fell dramatically as investors, very concerned about 
their counterparty limits post the Icelandic banks’ collapse, fled to the 
quality of Government debt forcing yields lower. 

 
d. Market focus now shifted from inflation concerns to concerns about 

recession, depression and deflation.  Although CPI was still well above 
target it was seen as no barrier to interest rates being cut further.  The 
MPC duly delivered another cut in interest rates in November, this time 
by an unprecedented 1.5%.  Investors continued to pour money into 
Government securities across the curve, at the front end because of 
credit concerns and the longer end because of the economic 
consequences reducing inflation, driving yields in 10 year PWLB 
temporarily below 4% and 5 years to around 3.5%.  In December as the 
ramifications of the ‘credit crunch’ became increasingly clear the Bank of 
England cut interest rates to 2%-a drop this time of 1%.  The whole 
interbank yield curve shifted downwards but the ‘disconnect’ at the short 
end remained very wide, negating to some degree the impact of the cuts 
in Bank Rate.  50 year PWLB rates dropped below 4% at the turn of the 
year, marking the low point, as it turned out, in this maturity. 

 
e. The New Year of 2009 brought little relief to the prevailing sense of crisis 

and on 8th January the MPC reduced rates by 0.5% to 1.5%, a record 
low.  More Government support for the banking sector was announced 
on 19th January 2009.  The debt markets had a sharp sell-off at this 
stage as they took fright at the amount of gilt issuance likely to be 
needed to finance the help provided to the banks.  There was also 
discussion about further measures that could be introduced to kick-start 
lending and economic activity.  These included quantitative easing by 
the Bank of England, effectively printing money. 

 
f. In February 2009 the MPC adopted the traditional method of monetary 

easing by cutting interest rates again by 0.5% to 1%.  Interbank rates 
drifted down with the spread in the 3 months still well above Bank Rate.  
In early March Lloyds Banking Group, which now included HBOS, took 
part in the Government’s Asset Protection scheme.  The MPC cut 
interest rates yet again to 0.5% and announced the quantitative easing 
scheme would start soon.  This scheme would focus on buying up to 
£75bn of gilts in the 5-25 year maturity periods and £10 -15bn of 

Page 377



corporate bonds.  This led to a substantial rally in the gilt market, 
particularly in the 5 and 10 year parts of the curve, and PWLB rates fell 
accordingly.  Finally at the end of March it was announced that the 
Dunfermline Building Society had run into difficulties and its depositors 
and good mortgages were taken over by Nationwide whilst the Treasury 
took on its doubtful loans. 

 
6. Figure 1 shows the base rate movements since 2004/05 with predictions 

from economic commentators for 2009/10.  In these unprecedented times it 
is currently forecast that the base rate will start to rise again during 2010 
and the economy will slowly start to recover. 

Base Rate Actual & Projections April 2004 - June 2010 

0.00
0.25
0.50
0.75
1.00
1.25
1.50
1.75
2.00
2.25
2.50
2.75
3.00
3.25
3.50
3.75
4.00
4.25
4.50
4.75
5.00
5.25
5.50
5.75
6.00

Ju
ne

 2
00

4

Sep
t 2

00
4

D
ec

 2
00

4

M
ar

ch
 2

00
5

Ju
ne

 2
00

5

Sep
t 2

00
5

D
ec

 2
00

5

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6

Ju
ne

 2
00

6

Sep
t 2

00
6

D
ec

 2
00

6

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7

Ju
ne

 2
00

7

Sep
t 2

00
7

D
ec

 2
00

7

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8

Ju
ne

 2
00

8

Sep
t 2

00
8

D
ec

 2
00

8

M
ar

ch
 2

00
9

Ju
ne

 2
00

9

Sep
t 2

00
9

D
ec

 2
00

9

M
ar

ch
 2

01
0

Ju
ne

 2
01

0

Date

%

Official Bank Rate Sector Forecast UBS Forecast Capital Economics Forecast Sector Forecast as at 12/02/08 (08/09 Budget)

 

Figure 1 - Base Rates 2004- 2010 as at April 09 
 

Long term Borrowing 
 
7. The Council is permitted to borrow to fund capital expenditure.  The majority 

of Council borrowing is funded by the government through the Revenue 
Support Grant (RSG), which provides the Council with revenue funding to 
allow it to meet the interest and repayment costs of borrowing.  This funding 
is linked to the delivery of capital investment programmes such as the Local 
Transport Plan and Schools’ Modernisation programmes.  The introduction 
of the Prudential Code in April 2004 gives the Council more flexibility in 
respect of how much and when it borrows. Under the Prudential Code, 
Councils are free to borrow up to a level that is deemed prudent, affordable 
and sustainable and within their prudential indicator limits.  Any borrowing 
that is undertaken using the prudential code framework is not supported by 
government and has to be funded by the Council. 

Page 378



 
8. The flexibility of borrowing under the prudential code allows the Council to 

borrow in advance of need.  The level of borrowing the Council requires is 
determined by the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) which is the 
cumulative borrowing that the Council undertakes to fund capital 
expenditure and identifies the Council’s underlying need to borrow.  The 
CFR is forecast over the next 5 years and shows that the Council will have 
an increasing need to borrow due to the requirement of the Administrative 
Accommodation project.  This allows for the proactive treasury management 
decision to borrow in advance of need, to take advantage over favourable 
interest rates when they arise, not to have to borrow in one specific year 
and therefore spreads the interest rate risk. 

 
9. The current level of borrowing (£102.1m) held by the Council is slightly 

above the CFR (£98.7m).  This is as a result of proactive treasury 
management decisions in the past to borrow in advance of need when 
interest rates were favourable.  More recently less borrowing has been 
undertaken as it is forecast rates will become increasingly favourable going 
forwards.  It should be noted that when borrowing is undertaken it is not 
taken for any specific scheme or project but rather to fund the Council’s 
capital financing requirement as a whole. 

  
10. The Council’s current borrowing strategy (set for 2008/09 at Full Council on 

21 February 2008) follows advice from the Council’s treasury management 
advisors –Sector Treasury Services -, to borrow primarily from the PWLB 
when interest rates are advantageous and hold back on borrowing when 
rates are relatively high.  The Council set a trigger point for taking long term 
borrowing of 4.30% during 2008/09. Long term borrowing rates for the 45-50 
year period started the year at the 4.43% mark fluctuating throughout the 
year between 3.86% and 4.84%.  Figure 2 illustrates the PWLB rates (the 
grey area showing rates between 25 and 50 years) for 2007/08 – 2008/09 
including the loans borrowed by the Council.  It is interesting to note the 
PWLB rates remain significantly higher compared to the base rate. 

 

Page 379



PWLB rates and CYC borrowing 01/04/07 to 31/3/09

0.00
0.25
0.50
0.75
1.00
1.25
1.50
1.75
2.00
2.25
2.50
2.75
3.00
3.25
3.50
3.75
4.00
4.25
4.50
4.75
5.00
5.25
5.50
5.75
6.00

A
p
r-

0
7

M
a
y
-0

7

J
u
n
-0

7

J
u
l-

0
7

A
u
g
-0

7

S
e
p
-0

7

O
c
t-

0
7

N
o
v
-0

7

D
e
c
-0

7

J
a
n
-0

8

F
e
b
-0

8

M
a
r-

0
8

A
p
r-

0
8

M
a
y
-0

8

J
u
n
-0

8

J
u
l-

0
8

A
u
g
-0

8

S
e
p
-0

8

O
c
t-

0
8

N
o
v
-0

8

D
e
c
-0

8

J
a
n
-0

9

F
e
b
-0

9

M
a
r-

0
9

25 - 50 yr PWLB

BoE Base Rate

cyc borrowing

£4.5m @3.91%
£8m @ 3.90%

£5m @ 3.88%

£4m @ 3.90%

 Figure 2 - PWLB rates vs. Bank of England vs. CYC borrowing levels 
 

11. PWLB debt of £5m was repaid in May 2008, in line with the original maturity 
date of the loan.  The economic forecast in paragraph 5 above portrays the 
volatility of borrowing rates throughout the year.  Paragraph 5c highlights 
that in October 2008 short-term rates fell and the average 1 year PWLB rate 
was 3.264%.  However a decision was taken that short term borrowing 
would not be beneficial in light of the continuing volatility of the market and 
the maturity profile of the Council’s debt portfolio seen in Figure 3 below. 
Paragraph 5d highlights the start of the fall in longer-term PWLB rates 
during November and December when the Council borrowed £4.5m of 
PWLB debt in November 2008 at a rate of 3.91%.  The average 49-50 year 
PWLB rate during the year was 4.44%. 

 
12. In addition to the long term borrowing described above, the Council also 

rescheduled PWLB debt in 2008/09 with a repayment of £13.8m in June 
2008 and subsequent debt of £12m being taken in August and September.  
Further details are supplied in the Debt Rescheduling section below at 
paragraphs 16-19. 

 
13. No further debt was taken during 2008/09 due to a proactive decision that 

due to continued quantitative easing and advice from treasury management 
advisors –Sector Treasury services - that long term PWLB interest rate 
would continue to fall in 2009/10 and there would be favourable rates to 
take advantage of going forwards.  Also, after the Icelandic banks defaulted 
in October, in light of the perceived increased risk around holding spare 
cash as investments and the likely poor rate of return available on such 
investments once the MPC had made further cuts in Bank Rate, it was 

Page 380



decided to run down cash balances by not undertaking new borrowing from 
the PWLB to finance capital expenditure. 

 

14. The Councils long-term borrowing started the year at £104.4m.  
 

 Date £ Prevailing 
Base Rate 

Weighted 
% 

Year of 
Maturity 

Total Debts 
as at 1/4/08 

 104,364,956 5.25% 4.605%  

Less Loans 
Repaid 

05/05/08 5,000,000  3.90% 2008/09 

Less Loans 
Repaid 
Prematurely 

03/06/08 13,800,000  4.875% 2015/16-
2025/26 

Plus New 
Loans 

15/08/08 8,000,000  4.39% 2057/58 

 09/10/08 4,000,000  4.39% 2043/44 

 10/11/08 4,500,000  3.91% 2014/15 

Total Debts 
as at 31/03/09 

 102,064,956 0.50% 4.547%  

 
 

Table 1 - Movement In Long Term Borrowing 2008/09 
 

15. All of the new borrowing decisions were taken in light of the maturity 
structure of the Council’s current long term borrowing. Prudential indicator 9 
sets the permitted maturity structure of borrowing, as detailed in Figure 3 
and attached at Annex C, along with all the Prudential Indicators approved 
by full Council in the Treasury Management Strategy report 21 February 
2008.  The borrowing of long duration loans reflects the Councils underlying 
need to borrow for capital purposes and is forecast to rise steadily year on 
year for the foreseeable future in line with the capital programme.  

 
16. Figure 3 illustrates the 2007/08, 2008/09 and 2009/10 maturity profile of the 

Council’s outstanding loans.  The profile moving forward in 2009/10 
highlights that the debt portfolio is spread over different maturity periods, 
which diversifies the risk of borrowing in any 1 year. 

 

Page 381



Maturity Profile 2007/08, 2008/09 & 2009/10

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

1 1-2 2-5 6-10 11-15 16-20 21-25 26-30 31-35 36-40 41-45 46-50 50+

Years to maturity

£m 2007/08
2008/09
2009/10

 
Figure 3 - Debt Maturity Profile 07/08, 08/09 & 2009/10  

 

17. As a result of the borrowing undertaken in-year, the average rate of interest 
on the Council’s long term borrowing has fallen from 4.61% in 2007/08 to 
4.57% by the end of 2008/09. This is 0.051% lower than the latest available 
average long term borrowing rate (source CIPFA Statistics) for unitary 
authorities of 5.08% for 07/08. Although the Councils average rate is lower 
than other similar authorities were it not for the Club Loan of £10m at a rate 
of 7.155%, which the Council is unable to restructure, the Councils 
consolidates rate of interest could be as a low as 4.27% (assuming the 
£10m Club loan where to be replaced at a level of 4.5%). Figure 4 shows 
the Council’s long term borrowing compared to the national average and 
other unitary authorities. 

 

Long Term Borrowing Rates and Value 91/91 - 08/09 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

1
9

9
1

/1
9

9
2

1
9

9
2

/1
9

9
3

1
9

9
3

/1
9

9
4

1
9

9
4

/1
9

9
5

1
9

9
5

/1
9

9
6

1
9

9
6

/1
9

9
7

1
9

9
7

/1
9

9
8

1
9

9
8

/1
9

9
9

1
9

9
9

/2
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

/2
0

0
1

2
0

0
1

/2
0

0
2

2
0

0
2

/2
0

0
3

2
0

0
3

/2
0

0
4

2
0

0
4

/2
0

0
5

2
0

0
5

/2
0

0
6

2
0

0
6

/2
0

0
7

2
0

0
7

/0
8

2
0

0
8

/0
9

L
T

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
 (

£
m

)

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 R

a
te

 o
f In

te
re

s
t (%

)

CYC LT

Borrowing

£m 
Avg Rate

CYC %

National Ave

%

Avg Rate for

UA %

 

Figure 4 - CYC borrowing vs National Average vs Unitary Authority 
 

Page 382



Debt Restructure 
 
18.The treasury management team monitor the markets daily for rates that 

would allow favourable restructures.  The reasons for rescheduling to take 
place in 2008/09, as reported in the 2008/09 treasury management 
strategy was for:  
a. the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings; 
b. enhancing the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile 

and/or the balance of volatility). 
 

19. The Council therefore undertook debt-restructuring exercise in June 2008, 
when it prematurely repaid £13.8m of PWLB debt with an interest rate of 
4.875%.  The Council drew down £12m of PWLB debt throughout August 
and September 2008 at an average rate of 4.390% to replace the 
prematurely repaid debt.   

 
20.This tied in with the Treasury Management Strategy which stated in 

February 2008 that “As average PWLB rates are expected to be 
marginally higher at the start rather than later in the financial year, and as 
the base rate is expected to fall more than longer term borrowing rates, 
this will mean that the differential between long and short term rates will 
narrow, implying that there will be greater potential for making interest rate 
savings on debt by debt restructuring earlier on in the year”. 

 
21. As a result of the debt rescheduling exercise, an interest rate saving 

resulted of £52k pa for 12 years and a total discount of £85k.  The 
discount occurred due to the differential between the rates when 
borrowing is repaid when the current market rate is higher than the rate of 
the borrowing being repaid. 

 
Short Term Investments 
 

22.The strategy and policies adopted in the Treasury Management Strategy 
Report and Annual Investment Strategy for 2008-09 approved by the 
Council on 21 February 2008 was subject to major revision during the 
year due to the unprecedented impact of the credit crunch on world 
economies and the world banking system.  This impact resulted in a 
rapid fall in central bank rates around the world during the year, including 
the U.K. and correspondingly in the Council’s investment returns in the 
second half of the year.   

   
23.Throughout the last financial year the characteristic of market interest 

rates was set by the continuing lack of liquidity in the market place with 
banks remaining uneasy about lending.  Governments commenced a 
series of stimulus packages aimed at kick starting the global economy 
and central banks, helped by a downturn in inflation and inflation 
expectations, and so began an aggressive policy of interest rate cuts 

Page 383



which has seen interest rates, though maintaining elevated credit 
spreads, crashing to record low levels. 

 
24. The Council manages all its surplus cash investments in-house and 

invests with the Institutions listed in the Council’s approved lending list. 
The Council invests for a range of periods from overnight to 364days, 
dependent on the Council’s cash flows, its interest rate view and the 
interest rates on offer.  The Council also invests longer term when rates 
are considered favourable and core cash balances are available. 

 
25. The Council’s in-house funds are mainly cash flow derived, however the 

Annual investment strategy set for 08/09 saw the Council seeking to lock 
some element of the investment portfolio, which represents the core 
balances, in to longer period investments where rates were forecast to 
be higher at he beginning of the financial year.   

 

26. Interest earned during the year on cash balances totalled £3.160m 
(£3.924m in 2007/08). The Council’s average balance available for 
investment in 2008/09 has decreased from £67.8m in 2007/08 to £58.9m 
in 2008/09. This decrease in cash balances mainly resulted from the 
restructuring of the debt portfolio, with £5m of debt naturally maturing in 
May 2008 and £13.8m being prematurely repaid in June 2008 but further 
debt not being taken until August, September and November 2008.  

   
27. The average rate of interest earned on investments in 2008/09 was 

5.35% (5.78% in 07/08). This was 1.66% higher in 0/8/09 (0.20% in 
07/08) than the average 7 day London Inter-Bank Bid Rate (LIBID) (the 
standard benchmark for short-term cash management) of 3.69% (5.58% 
in 2007/08).  This shows the turmoil and unprecedented times in the 
market when interest investments rates to be earned from counterparties 
in some areas of the market were dislocated and not in alignment with 
the overall market consensus.   

 

28. During the year, the Council made 134 investments totalling £368m 
compared with 171 totalling £378m in 2007/08. The decrease is due to 
the lower level of balances available.  There was also a decrease in 
money market investments that have taken place falling from 69 
(£176.2m) in 07/08 to 22 (£64.0m) in 08/09.  This is due to the volatility 
of interest rates on the market and the favourable rates available on the 
Council’s call accounts. 

 
29. The Treasury Team continually monitor the performance of the money 

market brokers.  The Council operates on the money markets with four 
brokerage organisations.  In 2008/09 a review was carried out and in 
light of the investment interest rates on offer, the four brokerage 
organisations currently used are:ICAP, Sterling International Brokers 
Tradition and Tullett Prebon.  It is intended to retain these four brokerage 
organisations going forwards. 

Page 384



 
Investment credit criteria policy review  
  

30.  The default of the Icelandic banks in October 2008 led to a review of 
the Council’s credit policy, to ensure that the credit risk exposure was at 
an acceptable level.  The review showed that no institutions in which 
investments were made had any difficulty in repaying investments and 
interest in full during the year.     

 
31. All surplus cash balances in 2008/09 were invested with authorised 

counterparties in accordance with the Council’s Treasury Policy 
Statement.  Counterparties are authorised for use based on their credit 
ratings.  The Council’s credit rating criteria is set using a matrix provided 
by our Treasury Management Advisors – Sector Treasury Services. The 
matrix is based on credit ratings provided by agencies Fitch and 
Moody's, and determines both time and financial limits in order to spread 
counterparty (credit) risk when investing money with approved 
counterparties.  T 

 
32. The higher the credit rating assigned to a counterparty, the more secure 

the counterparty is.  The Council has investment limits of £15m for 
periods up to 1 year with high credit rated counterparties and for those 
with a lower credit ratings an amount of £8m and up to 3months.  

 
33. The Authority’s Credit Criteria is set at a level to ensure the security of 

the council’s invest funds, whilst balancing this with return achieved.  
During the latter part of 2008/09, it was found that the number of 
authorised Counter parties that the Council could invest with has been 
massively reduced due to the credit rating changes prompted by the 
"credit crunch".  

 
34. The collapse of Lehman’s and the Icelandic banking system in 

September/October 2008 created an environment of fear, and the 
nationalisation and part nationalisation of many financial institutions was 
necessary to secure the global financial system in the face of hundreds 
of billions of pounds worth of toxic asset related losses. 

 
35. Therefore, it is necessary that Executive approve the extension of the 

Council’s credit rating criteria, by including the use of nationalised banks. 
 

36. In the wake of the credit crunch, institutions which were supported by 
the British Government and effectively nationalised fell out of the range 
of the matrix, due to the high level of backing they received from the 
Government. Sector Treasury Services have since added an extra 
category to their matrix, for these nationalised banks. They advise a 
maximum investment of 1yr with these institutions (with the exception of 
Northern Rock, which is 3 months).  

Page 385



 
37. The Banks in this Category are: 

1. Bank of Scotland Plc which includes the following subsidiaries: 

• Lloyds TSB Bank Plc 

• Cheltenham and Gloucester 
2. Royal Bank of Scotland Plc which includes the following 

subsidiaries: 

• National Westminster Bank Plc 

• Ulster Bank Plc 

• ABN AMRO Bank NV 
3. Northern Rock Plc 

 
38. The Executive is requested to approve the inclusion of these 

Nationalised banks on the Council’s credit rating criteria policy.   
 
Post Icelandic Banks Collapse – Risk & Return 
 

39. In March 2009 the Audit Commission undertook a review of treasury 
management in Local Authorities and the impact of the collapse of the 
Icelandic banking sector.  The report was entitled Risk and Return. The 
Audit Commission reported that 157 Local Authorities held £954million 
on deposit with Icelandic banks, which amounted to about 3 percent of 
the total funds on deposit. 

 
40. Some Local authorities reacted to warning signs available on the market 

with regards to the stability of Icelandic banks.  City of York Council 
(CYC) was one such authority.  As early as May 2008, the Icelandic 
banking institutions had been removed from CYC investment lending list 
due to the banks being placed on credit rating watch negative alert. 

 
41. CYC used their credit rating criteria policy to select the financial 

institutions with which they would invest to ensure the security of their 
funds. 

 
42. Audit Commission concluded in their “Risk & return “ report that many 

authorities have acted prudently, used advice and information wisely and 
balanced their risk with returns.  They commented that the overarching 
treasury management framework is the right one, although it has its 
weakness and that CIPFA guidance gives insufficient attention to risks 
and more guidance is needed about how to manage the full range of 
risks.  They concluded that Local authorities should remain in control of 
their own funds but they must ensure that their treasury management is 
properly resourced, managed and scrutinised. 

 
43. CIPFA’s response to the credit crunch risk was to also to produce a 

bulletin in March 2009 titled “ Treasury management in Local Authorities 
– post Icelandic Banks Collapse”.   CIPFA intends to revise both the 

Page 386



Treasury Management code and Guidance notes in light of the lessons 
learnt and the bulletin provides interim advice on local authorities 
treasury managment practices in light of the continued “credit crunch”. 

 
44. City of York Council continues to prudently monitor, manage and report 

on its treasury management and credit criteria investment policies.  
Objectives are clearly set out in the treasury strategy and annual reports, 
staff are aware of current matters and advice is taken from treasury 
management advisers along with other information. 

 
45. Sector Treasury Services have further developed their credit criteria risk 

matrix and the Council now also considers “Credit default swaps” when 
considering the security of potential counterparties.  Credit default swaps 
give earlier warning signs than credit rating agencies to the potential 
risks on the market. (A credit default is an insurance policy/contract, 
which indemnifies the buyer against an adverse credit event occurring to 
a third party and the market decides on the level of risk associated with 
the third party.  The higher the value of the CDS the riskier the market 
perceives the third party to be).  By using market information, credit 
rating criteria and now credit default swaps; the Council continues to 
provide a proactive and prudently managed treasury management 
function.  Figure 6 below shows how the spread on credit default swaps 
highlighted the concern of the Icelandic banking sector, along with the 
credit rating agencies.    

 

Credit Default Swap Risk Movement for Two Icelandic Banks 

0
500

1000
1500
2000
2500
3000
3500
4000
4500
5000

0
2
-J

u
l-0

7

0
2
-A

u
g
-0

7

0
2
-S

e
p
-0

7

0
2
-O

c
t-0

7

0
2
-N

o
v
-0

7

0
2
-D

e
c
-0

7

0
2
-J

a
n
-0

8

0
2
-F

e
b
-0

8

0
2
-M

a
r-0

8

0
2
-A

p
r-0

8

0
2
-M

a
y
-0

8

0
2
-J

u
n
-0

8

0
2
-J

u
l-0

8

0
2
-A

u
g
-0

8

0
2
-S

e
p
-0

8

0
2
-O

c
t-0

8

0
2
-N

o
v
-0

8

0
2
-D

e
c
-0

8

0
2
-J

a
n
-0

9

0
2
-F

e
b
-0

9

Date

S
p
re

a
d
 (

b
p
s
)

Landsbanki Glitnir

 
    Figure 5: Credit Default Swap risk movement  
 

Venture Fund 
 

46. The Venture Fund is used to provide short to medium term investment 
for internal projects that provide a robust new revenue stream or 
recognisable budget reductions and contribute to operational benefits or 

Page 387



policy objectives. The movements on the Venture Fund in the year are 
shown in table 2. 
 

 £’000 
Balance at 1 April 2008 2,729 

New Loan Advances   (1,319) 

Loan Repayments Received    837 

Net Interest Received       28 

Balance at 31 March 2009 2,275 
 

Table 2 - Venture Fund Movement 2008/09 
 

47. New loan advances were made in 2008/09 for LPSA2 08/09 of £0.227m, 
and for the funding required from reserves for the Administrative 
Accommodation Project abortive costs of £1.091m.  8 existing schemes 
repaid their annual instalments totalling £0.837m.  This included 
£0.437m for LPSA 2007/08 and £0.245m for Amy Johnson Way. 

 
48. In 2008/09 the Venture Fund has been used to fund the abortive costs 

from the administrative accommodation project at £1,091k, these funds 
will not be repaid.  In addition the Administrative Accommodation project 
will need to drawdown funds from the Venture Fund of c£1.061m 
between 2010/11 and 2012/13.  This is to fund the initial finance costs of 
borrowing in the early years of the project prior to the revenue budgets 
coming available from previously leased establishments.   

 
49. It is currently projected that in 09/10 - when £696k of loans are repaid 

and advances of £750k have been made (£100k for street lighting as 
approved at Council in February 2009 and £650 for the Easy at York 
programme) - the balance on the Venture Fund will be £2.221m.  Over a 
five year forecast to 2013/14 the balance of the Venture Fund will be 
£1.416m.  The Venture Fund is forecast to have sufficient funds to meet 
the required draw downs of the Administrative Accommodation project 
over the next five years  

 
Financial Implications - Budget Outturn 

 
50. Treasury Management activity is contained within the Corporate Budget, 

which was approved by Council on 21st February 2008 at £6,937k for 
2008/09.  Since the budget was set there have been a number of 
changes made by the Executive and under officers’ delegated power 
which has resulted in a revised budget of £6,984k.  The increase in 
budget was due to the requirement for increased departmental 
prudential borrowing during the year and a transfer of that budget from 
departments.   

 

Page 388



51. The outturn was £5,885k, an underspend of £1,099k.  The main report 
explains the underlying reasons for this underspend, namely the 
favourable conditions on the money markets in the first half of the year 
as a result of the credit crunch and dislocation of market investment 
interest being more favourable compared to the base rate.   

 
52. It should be noted the underspend projected at monitor 3 was £1,226k 

compared to an actual underspend of £1,099k. This was due to a larger 
amount of interest being paid to departments on their surplus balances 
than originally expected. 

 
53. The Council received one Bank of Credit and Commerce International 

(BCCI) dividends during 2008/09 as the seventh dividend payment 
made.  A total of £42k was received taking the total recovered losses to 
£1,318k, which is 94% of the investments made with the BCCI in 1990 
when it collapsed.  The amount recovered is now £452k more than was 
written off by the Council and represents additional unbudgeted for 
income.   

 
Review of the Prudential Indicators 
 

54. In accordance with the Prudential Code, the Prudential Indicators set by 
full Council on 21st February 2008 must be reviewed. Full detail on the 
indicators are given in Annex C. 

 
Human Resources Implications 
 

55. There are no HR implications as a result of this report. 
 
Equalities 
 

56. There are no equalities implications as a result of this report. 
 
Legal Implications 
 

57. Treasury Management activities have to conform to the Local 
Government Act 2003, which specifies that the Council is required to 
adopt the CIPFA Prudential Code and the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code of Practice.  The scheme of Minimum Revenue Provision (“MRP”) 
was set out in former regulations 27, 28 and 29 of the Local Authorities 
(Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 [SI 
2003/3146, as amended] (“the 2003 Regulations”).  This system has 
been revised by the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) 
(England) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 [SI 2008/414], (“the 2008 
Regulations”) in conjunction with the publication by CLG of this MRP 
guidance.   

 

Page 389



Crime and Disorder Implications 
 

58. There are no crime and disorder implications as a result of this report. 
 
Information Technology Implications 
 

59. There are no IT implications as a result of this report 
 

Property Implications 
 

60. There are no property implications as a result of this report. 
 
Risk Management 
 

61. The treasury function is a high-risk area because of the level of large 
money transactions that take place.  As a result of this there are strict 
procedures set out as part of the Treasury Management Practices 
statement. 

 
Recommendations 
 

62. The Executive is advised to: 
a) Note the 2008/09 performance of the Treasury Management 

activity, movements on the Venture Fund and the Treasury 
Management Outturn. 

b) Approve the addition of Nationalised Banks to the Investment 
Credit Criteria Policy, paragraphs 30 to 38 refer  

c) Note the movements in the Prudential Indicators. 
d) Note the Councils proactive and prudent management of the 

Treasury Management portfolio in light of the Icelandic banking 
crisis. 

 
Contact Details 

  
Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Louise Branford-White 
Technical Finance Manager 
Ross Brown  
Principal Accountant  

Ian Floyd 
Director of Resources 

 Report 
Approved 

�  Date 21/07/09 

  Keith Best 
Assistant Director of Resources (Finance) 

     

 

Wards Affected:  All � 
 None 

Page 390



Specialist Implication Officers:  None  
 For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
Background Papers 
Cash-flow Model 08/09, Investment Register 08/09, PWLB Debt Register, 
Capital Financing Requirement 08/09 outturn, Venture Fund 08/09, Prudential 
Indicators 08/098, Statistics 08/09. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 391



Bank Rate vs. Investm ent Rates 2008-09 and Spread Between 3 M onth Libid & Bank Rate

0.0

0.5

1.0

1.5

2.0

2.5

3.0

3.5

4.0

4.5

5.0

5.5

6.0

6.5

7.0

0
1
-A

p
r-
0
8

0
1
-M

a
y
-0

8

0
1
-J
u
n
-0

8

0
1
-J
u
l-
0
8

0
1
-A

u
g
-0

8

0
1
-S
e
p
-0

8

0
1
-O

c
t-
0
8

0
1
-N

o
v
-0

8

0
1
-D

e
c
-0

8

0
1
-J
a
n
-0

9

0
1
-F
e
b
-0

9

0
1
-M

a
r-
0
9

0
1
-A

p
r-
0
9

Date

In
te

re
st
 R
a
te

s 
(%

)

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.8

S
p
re
a
d
 (
%
)

3 M onth LIBID 1 Year LIBID Bank Rate Spread (3 M onth Libid-Bank Rate)

15th Sept: Lehm an Brothers files 

for bankruptcy

7th October: Icelandic Governm ent takes 

control of banks

13th Oct: £37bn cash injection into RBS, 

HBOS and Lloyds

19th January: UK Bank Support Package 2, 

including plans for QE.

6th M ar: Lloyds Banking Group announces 

'Asset Protection' deal.

                Annex A

P
a
g

e
 3

9
2



               Annex B 
 

PW LB Borrowing Rates vs. Bank Rate 2008-09

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

0
1
-A
p
r-
0
8

0
1
-M

a
y
-0
8

0
1
-J
u
n
-0
8

0
1
-J
u
l-
0
8

0
1
-A
u
g
-0
8

0
1
-S
e
p
-0
8

0
1
-O

c
t-
0
8

0
1
-N
o
v
-0
8

0
1
-D
e
c
-0
8

0
1
-J
a
n
-0
9

0
1
-F
e
b
-0
9

0
1
-M

a
r-
0
9

Date

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 (
%

)

5 Year PW LB 10 Year PW LB 50 Year PW LB Bank Rate

15th Sept: Lehm an Brothers files for 

bankruptcy

7th October: Icelandic Governm ent takes 

control of banks

13th Oct: £37bn cash injection into 

RBS, HBOS and Lloyds

19th January: UK Bank Support Package 

2, including plans for QE.

6th M ar: Lloyds Banking Group 

announces 'Asset Protection' deal.

 
 

P
a
g
e
 3

9
3



Page 394

This page is intentionally left blank



            
           Annex C 
 

Annex C - Prudential Indicators 2008/09 Outturn 
      

  PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS   2007/08 2008/09 2008/09 

      actual estimate actual 
1) Capital Expenditure   £'000 £'000 £'000 

      Non - HRA 33,132 53,199 51,066

      HRA 7,669 7,338 7,470
  

To allow the authority to plan for capital financing as a result of the 
capital programme.  To enable the monitoring of capital budgets to 
ensure they remain within budget. 

    TOTAL 40,801 60,537 58,536

        
2) Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream     

      Non - HRA 3.76% 4.68% 5.40%

      HRA 2.39% 2.86% 2.33%

  

This indicator estimates the cost of borrowing in relation to the net cost 
of Council services to be met from government grant and council 
taxpayers. In the case of the HRA the net revenue stream is the 
income from Rents and Subsidy. 

  
  

        
3) Incremental impact of capital investment decisions - Council Tax  £   p £   p £   p 

  

Shows the actual impact of capital investment decisions on council tax. 
The impact on council tax is a fundamental indicator of affordability for 
the Council to consider when setting forward plans. The figure relates 
to how much of the increase in council tax is used in financing the 
capital programme and any related revenue implications that flow from 
it. 

Increase in Council Tax (band 
D) per annum

6.18 13.64 25.62

        
4) Incremental impact of capital investment decisions - Hsg Rents  £   p £   p £   p 

  

Shows the actual impact of capital investment decisions on HRA rent.  
For CYC, the HRA 2008/09 planned capital spend is based on the 
government's approved borrowing limit so there is no impact on HRA 
rents. 

Increase in average housing 
rent per week 

0.00 0.00 0.00 

        
5) Capital Financing Requirement as at 31 March   £'000 £'000 £'000 

  Non - HRA 80,527 86,669 87,329

  HRA 11,035 12,035 11,235

  

Indicates the Council's underlying need to borrow money for capital 
purposes. The majority of the capital programme is funded through 
government support, government grant or the use of capital receipts.  
The use of borrowing increases the CFR. 

TOTAL 91,562 98,704 98,564

        

6a) Authorised Limit for external debt -   £'000 £'000 £'000 

  borrowing 128,860 146,500 146,500
  other long term liabilities 0 0 0

  

The authorised limit is a level set above the operational boundary in 
acceptance that the operational boundary may well be breached 
because of cash flows.  It represents an absolute maximum level of 
debt that could be sustained for only a short period of time.  The 
council sets an operational boundary for its total external debt, gross of 
investments, separately identifying borrowing from other long-term 
liabilities for 3 financial years. 

TOTAL 128,860 146,500 146,500

      
6b) Operational Boundary for external debt -   £'000 £'000 £'000 

  borrowing 118,860 125,200 125,200

  other long term liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00

  

The operational boundary is a measure of the most likely, prudent, 
level of debt.  It takes account of risk management and analysis to 
arrive at the maximum level of debt projected as part of this prudent 
assessment.  It is a means by which the authority manages its external 
debt to ensure that it remains within the self-imposed authority limit.  It 
is a direct link between the Council’s plans for capital expenditure; our 
estimates of the capital financing requirement; and estimated 
operational cash flow for the year. 

TOTAL 118,860 125,200 125,200

       
7) Adoption of the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management     
  in Public Services     
  TM Policy Statement � � �

  

Ensuring Treasury Management (TM) Practices remain in line with the 
SORP. 12 TM Practices � � �

   Policy Placed Before Council � � �

   Annual Review Undertaken � � �

8a) Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure     
  Net interest re fixed rate 

borrowing / investments
108% 146% 107%

  

The Council sets limits to its exposures to the effects of changes in 
interest rates for 3 years.  The Council should not be overly exposed to 
fluctuations in interest rates which can have an adverse impact on the 
revenue budget if it is overly exposed to variable rate investments or 
debts.   

Actual Net interest re fixed 
rate borrowing / investments

 

  
         

Page 395



8b) Upper limit for variable rate exposure     

  Net interest re variable rate 
borrowing / investments

-8% -46% -7%

  

The Council sets limits to its exposures to the effects of changes in 
interest rates for 3 years.  The Council should not be overly exposed to 
fluctuations in interest rates which can have an adverse impact on the 
revenue budget if it is overly exposed to variable rate investments or 
debts.  Actual Net interest re variable 

rate borrowing / investments
 

  
     £'000 £'000 £'000 
9) Upper limit for total principal sums invested for over 364 days  £10,000 £10,000 £10,000 

  Investments over 364 days £9,000 £4,000 £4,000 

  

To minimise the impact of debt maturity on the cash flow of the 
Council.  Over exposure to debt maturity in any one year could mean 
that the Council has insufficient liquidity to meet its repayment 
liabilities, and as a result could be exposed to risk of interest rate 
fluctuations in the future where loans are maturing.  The Council 
therefore sets limits whereby long-term loans mature in different 
periods thus spreading the risk. 

  

  
       
10) Maturity structure of new fixed rate borrowing during 2008/09  Actual 

(£104,365k)
Upper 
Limit

Actual 
(£102,065k) 

  under 12 months 5% 10% 4% 
  12 months & within 24 months 4% 10% 4% 
  24 months & within 5 years 7% 25% 3% 
  5 years & within 10 years 14% 25% 14% 
  

The Council sets an upper limit for each forward financial year period 
for the level of investments that mature in over 364 days. These limits 
reduce the liquidity and interest rate risk associated with investing for 
more than one year. The limits are set as a percentage of the average 
balances of the investment portfolio. 

10 years & and above 70% 90% 75% 

            

Glossary Of Abbreviations     

HRA Housing Revenue Account CYCCapital Financing Requirement 

SORP Statement of Recommended Practice - for Local Authority Accounting CFRCity of York Council  

 
1. In accordance with the Prudential Code, the Prudential Indicators set by full Council 

on 21st February 2008 for the financial year 08/09 must be monitored and reported at 
Outturn.  The Prudential Indicators are detailed above and some of the key points are 
explained below: 

 
2. Size of the Capital Programme (Indicator 1) - The capital programme expenditure at 

monitor 3 was estimated to be £60.537m and outturn was £58.536m.  The Capital 
Programme Outturn 2008/09 report has further details with regards to this movement.  
There has been slight slippage on some projects and the funds should be used during 
2009/10 

 
3. Net revenue Stream (indicator 2) - This indicator represents how much borrowing for 

the capital programme will cost as a percentage of the net revenue stream. The 
General Fund indicator is 5.40% compared to a budgeted level of 4.68%, with the 
increase due to the change in market conditions during the year as a result of the 
credit crunch resulting in a reduction in the level of interest earned and a larger 
amount of interest being paid to departments on their surplus balances than originally 
expected.  The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) version of the indictor is 2.33% 
compared to the budgeted level of 2.33%, the difference is again due to a larger 
amount of interest being paid to the HRA. 

 
4. Incremental Impact on the Level of Council Tax (Indicator 3) – This indicator shows 

the impact of capital investment decision on the bottom line level of Council Tax.  The 
Council can fund its discretionary capital programme from two main sources, from 
unsupported borrowing or using capital receipts from the sale of surplus assets.  The 
Council’s policy is to use capital receipts to fund the Capital programme, however in 
the current economic environment with reduced capital receipts there is the 
requirement to use unsupported borrowing to support the capital programme, which 
has an impact on Council Tax.  The unsupported borrowing is not taken unless it is 
affordable, sustainable and prudent and can be supported by an existing budget.  In 

Page 396



2008/09 the increased impact on council tax is £25.62 per Band D charge.  This has 
risen from the restated estimate of £13.64 due to a revision in the calculation of the 
prudential indicator to ensure all schemes supported by unsupported borrowing are 
captured. 

 
5. Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) (Indicator 5) - The CFR at outturn was 

£98.564m, which is the Council’s underlying need to borrow for all capital investment 
over time. At year-end when the Capital programme is financed the CFR can change 
when decisions are made with regards to use of external funding, capital receipts etc 
to support the Capital investment of the Council. 

 
6. Authorised Limit / Operational Boundary (Indicator 6) - The Council took on additional 

debt of £16.5m, but repaid £18.5m leaving the Council’s total level of debt at £102.1m.  
The Council’s Operational Boundary (maximum prudent level of debt) was revised to 
£125.2m as part of the 2008/09 budget setting process and the Authorised Limit 
(maximum allowed debt) revised to £146.5m.  The headroom available within these 
limits allows the Council the ability to borrow in advance of need in accordance with its 
3 year forecast Capital programme.  If these limits were breached the LG Act 2003 
requires full Council approval.  Debt levels have remained within the limits set. 

 
7. Adoption of the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury Management (Indicator 7) – In 

accordance with the Prudential Code the Council has adopted the Treasury 
management Code of Practice and as detailed in the table has adhered to the 
requirements. 

 
8. Upper Limit for Fixed and Variable Interest rate Exposure (Indicator 8) – Interest rate 

exposure on debt is positive due to it being in relation to interest paid and on 
investments is negative as it is interest being received.  When the variable and fixed 
interest rates are totalled, it will always be 100%.  The majority of the interest received 
for the Council relates to variable rated investments, where as the interest paid on 
debt is fixed.  The limits set in the budget were not breached and the outturn stands at 
107% for fixed interest arte exposure and –7% for variable interest rate exposure. 

 
9. Upper Limit for total principal sums invested for over 364 days (Indicator 9) – This has 

been set at £10m and is approximately 25% of the total portfolio.  In the year £4m has 
been invested for longer than 364 days in accordance with the long-term cash flow 
projections. 

 
10. Maturity Structure of Fixed rate Borrowing in 2008/09 (Indicator 10) – The borrowing 

portfolio is spread across different time periods to ensure that the Council is not 
exposed to the requirement to take new borrowing in any one year and be exposed to 
interest rates in any one year.  In 08/09 the borrowing portfolio maturity profile was 
within the limits set. 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 397



Page 398

This page is intentionally left blank



      

 

  
 

   

 
Executive  
 

21 July 2009 

 
Report of the Director of Resources 

 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME OUTTURN 2008/09 AND REVISIONS TO THE 
2009/10 – 2013/14 PROGRAMME 
 

 Report Summary 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to: 
 

• Highlight significant achievements from the Councils capital programme for 
2008/09; 

 

• Provide the Executive with the final outturn position of the capital programme 
for 2008/09; 

 

• Seek approval of the statutory declaration on the funding of the 2008/09 
capital programme to show how the Councils expenditure has been financed, 
along with any financial implications this may result in; 

 

• Inform the Executive of any under or overspends and seek approval for any 
resulting changes to the programme; 

 

• Inform the Executive of any slippage and seek approval for the associated 
funding to be slipped to or from the financial years to reflect this. 

 

• Provide an update on future years capital programme. 
 

 Summary of the 2008/09 Capital Programme 
 
2. Capital expenditure in 2008/09 totalled £58.536m. This represents the largest 

ever capital programme delivered by the City of York Council. Figure One 
illustrates the increase in capital programme size since 1999/00, during which 
time it has risen from £19.5m to this years outturn of £58.536m. 

Agenda Item 14Page 399



Capital Spend 1999/00 - 2008/09 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

50

55

60
1

9
9

9
/0

0

2
0

0
0

/0
1

2
0

0
1

/0
2

2
0

0
2

/0
3

2
0

0
3

/0
4

2
0

0
4

/0
5

2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0

0
7

/0
8

2
0

0
8

/0
9

£m

  
Figure 1:  CYC Capital Programme Expenditure 1999/00-2008/09 

 
3. Figure 2 shows the 2008/09 £58.536m expenditure split by departments. 
 

Capital Expenditure 2008/09 £58.536m

£2.016m

Admin Accom £0.344m

Chief Execs

£1.241m

Resources

£31.774m

Children Services

£4.348m

Leisure & Heritage

£0.680m

Corporate

£8.310m

City Strategy

£0.243m

Social Services

£9.328m

Housing

£0.045m

Economic 

Development

£0.207m

Neighbourhood 

Services

 
Figure 2 Capital Outturn by Department 2008/09 

 

Page 400



4. Capital receipts realised during 2008/09 were £2.07m, compared with £9.1 in 
2007/08, reflecting the current economic environment and the subsequent 
reduction in land and property acquisitions.  

 
5. The Council continues to be successful in attracting strong support from the 

government with funding for roads, schools, housing and leisure amounting to 
more than £34.5m being received in 2008/09.  

 
6. Within the programme a number of significant schemes have been delivered or 

have commenced during 2008/09, some of the key achievements for the year 
are: 

 
a. Expenditure of £3.590m on the construction of the new York High Pool has 

resulted in the scheme progressing ahead of schedule in 2008/09. The 
scheme is on course to be completed in 2009/10. 

 
b. Contributions totalling £400k have been made to the in the Museums Trust. 

200k was paid to the Trust to support work at the Art Gallery, and a further 
100k has been paid for work at the Castle Museum. The remaining £100k 
was paid over to the Trust in March 2009 to fund work at the Yorkshire 
Museum.  

 
c. Works totalling £2.6m on New Deals for Schools (NDS) modernisation 

programmes has allowed schools to invest in buildings, grounds and ICT 
equipment enabling schools to improve their pupils’ educational standards. 

 
d. Expenditure totalling £1.68m in year has resulted in all 5 of the Integrated 

Children’s Centres (St Lawrences, New Earswick, Haxby Road, Carr and 
Tang Hall) being completed which aim to bring together the work of 
schools, health and social services and stream line service delivery on 
these sites.  

 
e. An in year spend of £1.5m on the New Deals for Schools (NDS) devolved 

capital programmes provided schools with direct funding for the priority 
capital needs of their buildings (capital repair, remodelling or new build) and 
investment in ICT equipment.  Many schools use their allocations to 
contribute to larger projects at their school within the Children’s Services 
capital programme. 

 
f. Work is progressing well on site on the new £28m Joseph Rowntree 

Secondary School as part of the Government’s One School Pathfinder 
project, with over £9m spent in 2008/09. the projected completion date is 
on schedule for February 2010, ready for occupation from Easter 2010 and 
is currently on budget.  

 
g. Works totalling £10.9m has taken place on the York High School project to 

refurbish and expand the school as part of the school review on the West of 
the city resulting in the school opening on schedule after Christmas and 
proving popular with both staff and students. 

 

Page 401



h. Expenditure in year of £2.9m resulted in Manor School nearing completion 
in 2008/09 with the school opening early in the 2009/10 financial year.  

 
i. A substantial amount of work has been completed within the £6.4m Local 

Transport Plan (LTP). This has resulted in improvements around the city 
including Boroughbridge road Road/Beckfield Lane junction area 
(signalling, access and cycling improvements), traffic management, bus 
priority and cycling and pedestrian improvements on Fulford Road, the 
improvement of cycling and pedestrian movements at Walmgate Bar, 
improvements to cycle lane at Moor Lane bridge and improvements of the 
Orbital Route as part of the Cycling City Project. 

 
j. Expenditure of £1.1m has seen the delivery of the largest structural 

maintenance programme for several years resulting in improvements to 70 
streets including 25 footway replacement schemes. 

 
k. More than £9.3m has been spent on projects relating to Housing with more 

than 1,500 individual projects on homes across the city being completed as 
part of the modernisation and tenants choice programmes.   

 

Background 
 

7. The 2008/09 – 2010/11 capital programme was approved by Council on 21
st
 

February 2008. Since then a number of amendments have taken place as 
reported to the Executive in the 2007/08 Capital Outturn paper and the 2008/09 
Monitor one, two and three papers. These changes have resulted in a current 
approved capital programme for 2008/09 of £60.249m, financed by £46.237 m of 
external funding, leaving a cost to the Council of £14.012m to be financed from 
capital receipts. Table 1 illustrates the movements from the start budget to the 
current approved position at monitor 3.   

 
8. As part of this year end outturn report it has been necessary to include the 

£0.680m capitalisation of Equal Pay costs. This item has been reported outside 
the main capital programme to date due to the directive that permits the 
capitalisation of these revenue costs typically being granted toward the end of 
the financial year. The inclusion of this additional item in the analysis increases 
the final capital programme budget to £60.929m. 

 
9. The changes to the original 2008/09 approved capital programme budget are 

summarised in Table 1. 
 

 Gross 
Budget 

£m 

 External 
Funding 
£m 

 Cost to 
CYC 
£m 

Original Budget Approved by Council 
at 21 Feb 2008 

86.152  63.087  23.065 

Slippage Carried Forward to 09/10 & 
10/11 from 07/08 outturn report 

(10.997)  (11.526)  0.529 

Additions from 07/08 outturn report 
 

0.787  0.814  (0.027) 

Page 402



Amendments from Monitor 1 report 
 

(12.012)  (6.530)  (5.482) 

Amendments from Monitor 2 report (3.393) 
 

 (0.149)  (3.244) 

Amendments from Monitor 3 report (0.288)  0.541  (0.829) 

Current Approved Capital 
Programme 

60.249  46.237  14.012 

Addition of the Equal Pay 
Capitalisation 

0.680  0.000  0.680 

Revised Capital Programme 
Budget 

60.929  46.237  14.012 

 
10. Table 1 – Current Approved Capital Programme  
 

 Consultation 
 

11. The 2008/09 Capital Programme was approved by Full Council on 21 February 
2008 after departments were invited to bid for capital receipt funding through the 
Capital Resource Allocation Model (CRAM). The CRAM process rigorously 
evaluates scheme submissions against key corporate objectives and national 
government priorities. Each departmental EMAP is consulted in relation to the 
bids to be put forward. 

 

Options 
 

12. The report is mainly for information, providing the Executive with the final outturn 
of the 2008/09 capital programme. However, there are a number of requests for 
slippage of funding in to the 2009/10 capital programme and future years. These 
requests are highlighted in the main body of the report. 

  
2008/09 Capital Programme Outturn and Overview 
 

13. The 2008/09 capital outturn of £58.536m represents an under spend of £2.393m 
against the restated budget of £60.929m, a variance of 4.0%.   

 

14. There are requests for budgets to be carried forward (slipped) in to future years 
totalling £2.997m, and updates to the spend profile of future years schemes to 
improve the budgetary control of the capital programme. Further details are 
provided in the following departmental analysis paragraphs. The total variances 
for individual committee capital programmes along with requests for slippage and 
other key information are highlighted in Table 2. 

 

Page 403



 
Table 2 –Approved Budget vs. Outturn & Requests for Slippage 

 
 
15. The under/over spend represents in the main additions to the approved budget 

as at monitor 3. Non of these additions require extra Council resources and are 
funded from external resources. For example the housing increase of £0.392m is 
comprised of extra CLG grant of £212k in relation to the Arclight project and an 
additional £168k on Major Repairs Allowance. 

 
Children’s Services (Budget £33.800m, Outturn £31.774m) 
16. The outturn of the 2008/09 Education Capital Programme is £31.774m against a 

budget of £33.800m. The variance of £2.026k is attributable to a number of 
schemes as detailed below. 

 
17. In 2008/09 the Harnessing technology scheme devolved £200k to schools with 

the remainder being retained by the local authority to support the procurement of 
a new broadband contract and the provision of learning platforms. As the 
procurement process has been subject to delays, the remaining budget of £312k 
requires re-profiling into 2009/10 

 
18. A total of 24 projects were allocated funding in 2008/09 under the Schools 

Access Initiative programme  with schemes ranging from extensive work to doors 
and ramps at Westfield Primary School to the provision of sound-proof partitions 
at Copmanthorpe Primary.  Although most of these schemes have been 
substantially completed in 2008/09, delays in completion requires re-profiling of  
£227k into 2009/10. 

 

Committee Budget 
Mon 3 

Outturn 
 

Variance 
 

(Under) 
/Over 
Mon 3 

Budget 
 

Slippage 
 

 £m £m £m £m £m 

Children’s Services 33.800 31.774 (2.026) 0.026 (2.052) 
City Strategy 8.479 8.270 (0.209) 0.016 (0.225) 
City Strategy – Admin Accom 2.985 2.017 (0.968) 0.000 (0.968) 
Economic Development 0.158 0.045 (0.113) 0.000 (0.113) 
Housing 8.795 9.328 0.533 0.392 0.141 
Leisure and Culture 3.867 4.348 0.481 0.076 0.355 
Neighbourhood Services 0.311 0.207 (0.104) (0.010) (0.094) 
Resources 1.196 1.241 0.045 0.045 0.000 
Chief Executive 0.276 0.344 0.068 0.000 0.068 
Social Services 0.282 0.243 (0.039) 0.010 (0.049) 
Hazel court 0.100 0.040 (0.060) 0.000 (0.060) 

Subtotal  60.249 57.856 (2.393) 0.555 (2.997) 
Equal Pay Capitalisation 0.680 0.680 0.000 0.000 0.000 

Total Capital Budget 60.929 58.536 (2.392) 0.555 (2.997) 

Page 404



19. The five new Phase 2 Children’s Centres have now been completed however re-
profiling totalling £276k is required on the individual schemes to fund minor 
outstanding expenditure issues and final contract retentions. 

 
20. Joseph Rowntree one school pathfinder is progressing well with completion on 

schedule for February 2010, ready for occupation from Easter 2010. Re-profiling 
of £1,151k is required into 2009/10 due to delays encountered as a result of the 
weather. It should be noted that the contractors are now back on timetable  to 
achieve the original February completion date. 

 
21. The Fulford School Science Labs and Classrooms for the provision of new 

science labs and classrooms is now almost complete however due to delays re-
profiling of £215k is required into 2009/10. 

 
22. York High School opened on schedule after Christmas and the new building is 

proving popular with staff and students. The account for construction is currently 
being finalized and it is anticipated that there may be some cost pressures which 
could affect the final valuation. These include remedial work to the main school 
hall, the kitchen and one corridor where leaking roofs and a blocked drain 
caused major damage while the school was closed during the build programme.   
Any additional costs resulting from these items will be reported to Members and 
will need to be funded from the Authority’s Modernisation allocation.  An amount 
of £293k has been brought forward from 2009/10 to fund further expenditure 
ahead of the financial profile reflected in the capital programme. 

 
 

City Strategy (Budget £8.479, Outturn £8.270m) 
23. The outturn of the City Strategy Capital Programme is £8.270m against a budget 

of £8.479m. The variance of £209k is principally attributable to delays in the 
Highways Resurfacing and Reconstruction programme (£145k) and adjustments 
to the Integrated Transport and City Walls programmes (£64k). 

 
24. Delays were encountered in the deliver of the planned Highways Resurfacing 

and Reconstruction schemes however schemes totalling over £1.1m were 
delivered in the year. The under spend to the Structural Maintenance section of 
the budget was caused by a number of factors.  

 
25. These factors include a number of schemes that were deferred at the end of the 

year to reduce the impact of traffic disruption on local residents and businesses. 
These included resurfacing of Bishopthorpe Road which was completed in April 
and Harrogate Road which is planned to be delivered later in 2009/10. Old Moor 
Lane was also deferred late in the year as progress on the adjacent bridge by 
Network Rail was slower than anticipated. Schemes such as Church Lane and 
Main Street, Wheldrake were started right at the end of the year and completed 
in April. And the actual cost of works for some schemes was lower in 2008/09 
due to the deferral of elements of the projects to 2009/10. For example the 
drainage works on the A1237 were removed from the resurfacing contract for 
delivery separately in 2009/10. 

 
26. The under spend on the Integrated Transport section of the budget was 

principally due to minor delays in the delivery of schemes right at the end of the 

Page 405



financial year which were actually completed early in 2009/10. e.g. Beckfield 
Lane cycle route and junction improvement schemes and Walmgate Bar 
pedestrian crossing. Additional elements of the cycling city maintenance 
allocation was funded from the revenue budget to match the grant income. 

 
27. The Local Transport Plan (LTP) required budget to be re-profiled from 2009/10 

into 2008/09 due to the good rate of progress achieved in year. Overall spend in 
year was £6.4m. 

 
City Strategy Administrative Accommodation 

 
28. The outturn figure of £2.017m for administrative accommodation includes the 

abortive in year costs of £520k which is part of the overall abortive costs of 
£1.091m. This is in order to show the gross capital expenditure correctly prior to 
reduction due to abortive costs in the same way the entire programme is shown 
gross prior to impairment. 

 
Economic Development (Budget £158k, Outturn £45k) 

29. The outturn of the Economic Development Programme is £45k against a budget 
of £158k. The variance of £113k is attributable to both the Small Business 
Workshops and the Visitor Information Centre.  

 
30. The £58k budget for the Small Business Workshops which opened in September 

2008 is likely to be required to fund the disposal of the original site at Parkside 
once a decision on its future has been made and in the meantime the budget will 
need to re-profiled into 2009/10.   

 
31. Work has progressed on the new Visitor Information Centre (VIC), regarding the 

relocation of the VIC service from the De Grey Rooms to 1 Museum Street. The 
Conservation Trust has been carrying out a number of works on the building, and 
a final design for the VIC operation is being agreed prior to progressing work with 
completion projected for autumn 2009. Yorkshire Forward have also agreed to 
provide £481k additional funding for the refurbishment. The remaining £55k 
budget will need to be re-profiled in to 2009/10. 

 
Housing Services (Budget £8.795m, Outturn £9.328m) 

32. The 2008/09 Housing Services Capital Programme outturn was £9.328m against 
a budget of £8.795m. The reasons for the overspend of £533k is set out below.  

 
33. Schemes under the Major Repairs Allowance heading have spent £178k over the 

budget. £10k of this is budget requires bringing forward from 2009/10 and the 
remaining £160k is to be funded from additional external grant. This overspend 
was driven primarily by Tang Hall tenants choice schemes. 

 
34. The Arclight project which is now complete and incurred expenditure of £212k in 

year. This expenditure was incurred on the basis that a grant had been awarded 
to York Housing Association by the CLG to cover the costs. No costs of this were 
bourn by the Council. 

 
35. In addition Repairs to Local Authority Properties required budget to be re-profiled 

from 2009/10 into 2008/09. This is driven mainly by the need to replace boiler 

Page 406



systems at a faster rate than originally projected and was budgeted to take place 
in 2009/10. 

 
Leisure and Culture (Budget £3.867m, Outturn £4.348m) 

36. The outturn of the Leisure and Culture Programme is £4.348m against a budget 
of £3.867m. The variance of £481k is attributable to the York Pools Strategy.   

 
37. The main construction work on the new York High Pool has progressed well, with 

completion forecast to be on schedule.  Progress made in year  was ahead of 
the estimated expenditure profile therefore a significant  amount of budget has 
been brought forward from 2009/10 (£410k). At this stage indications are that 
there is a potential overspend on the overall scheme, believed to be in the region 
of £40k which officers are currently investigating. It is expected that further 
information on this will be available at the time of the first monitor for 2009/10. 
 
Neighbourhood Services (Budget £0.311m, Outturn £0.207m) 

38. The outturn of the Neighbourhood Services capital programme is £0.207m 
against a budget of £0.311m. The variance of £104k is attributable to minor 
variations on a number of smaller schemes and a variation of £61k for Silver 
Street toilets. 

 
39. The 2008/09 Silver Street toilets budget reprogrammed £172k into 2009/10 at 

monitor 3 due to a delay in the tendering process.  The alteration of the 
specification was required after additional stabilisation works were identified 
delaying the process still further leading to the variation of £61k. The budget will 
therefore need to be re-profiled into 2009/10 along with £33k for the remaining 
smaller schemes. 

 
Resources (Budget £1.196, Outturn £1.241m) 

40. The Resources outturn was £1.241m, against a budget of £1.196m.  
 
41. The variation was caused by a small overspend on IT equipment to be funded 

from prudential borrowing to be paid for from the IT equipment revenue budget. 
 

Social Services (Budget £0.282m, Outturn £0.243m) 
42. The outturn of the Social Services capital programme is £0.282m against a 

revised budget of £0.243m. 
 

Equal Pay Capitalisation (Outturn £0.680m) 
43. The costs of settling equal pay claims and job evaluation represents a significant 

cost pressure to Council’s across the country. The government have recognised 
this and have allowed Council’s with a low reserve base to bid to capitalise some 
of the equal pay costs. The Council have been successful in their bid and have 
been issued with a capitalisation directive which allows the capitalisation of 
£680k of costs which would otherwise have to be met from revenue funds. The 
Council will prudentially borrow the £680k to finance the expenditure. The 
borrowing has to be repaid at a minimum rate of 4% per annum. However, it is 
more prudent to repay the debt over a shorter period of time, and it is proposed 
that it is repaid over 7 years, which is consistent with the Council’s past treatment 
of such debt. The annual revenue costs of repayment will be £116k per annum. 

 

Page 407



44. As a guide based on previous years settlements officers expect the figure for the 
2009/10 financial year should be between £600k and £700k. Members should be 
aware that the final figure is decided upon by the Secretary of State and cannot 
as yet estimated with a high degree of accuracy as capitalisation directive levels 
change year on year. 
 

Funding the 2008/09 Capital Programme 
 

45. The 2008/09 capital programme of £58.536m has been funded from £41.468m 
external funding and £17.068m of internal funding. The internal funding is 
comprised of £1.091m revenue contributions, Supported Capital Expenditure of 
£7.830m, £130k Right to Buy receipts, £6.162m of capital receipts and £1.856m 
of reserves.. 

 
46. Due to the lower than anticipated level or capital receipts realised in year, officers 

used a number of internal funding sources such as unapplied capital grants and 
use of the capital reserves to reduce the potential cost of the Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP) caused by having to fund a capital programme by use of 
prudential borrowing. Had this funding switch not taken place it would have 
resulted in reduced treasury management revenue costs in 2009/10 of over 
£260k. 

 
47. The statutory funding statement in Annex 1 provides full details of how the 

2008/09 capital programme has been financed. 
 

Update on the 2009/10 – 2013/14 Capital Programme 
 

48. Table 3 shows the revised start budget for 2009/10 by portfolio taking into 
account the requests for slippage arising from the 2008/09 programme. If the 
slippage is approved the total capital programme for 2009/10 will be £68.974m, 
£10.437m more than the 2008/09 outturn. The increase against the currently 
approved 2009/10 programme of £64.741m is comprised of £0.820m of 
additions and £2.997m of slippage from the 2008/09 programme. 

 
49. The 2009/10 additions relate to the DCSF wave 2 play builder grant for £1.120m 

in the education directorate and the reduction in the Targeted Capital Fund 14-19 
scheme. 

 
50. Members will be aware of the transfer of some capital programme schemes from 

the City Strategy directorate to the Neighbourhood Services directorate. This 
report sets out the individual schemes which have moved. In total 3 schemes 
have moved, they are the Highways Resurfacing and Reconstruction, Special 
Bridge Maintenance and Street Lighting Modernisation. Including the 
adjustments for slippage as set out this report the total value transferred across 
to Neighbourhood Services is £3.305m. This transfer is included in table 3 below 
that shows the revised 2009/10 capital programme. 

 

Page 408



 
Table 3 – Revised Start Budget for 2009/10 Capital Programme following Slippage 
and Revisions 
 
51. The restated capital programme for 2009/10 to 2013/14 split by portfolio is 

shown in table 4. The individual scheme level profiles can be seen in Annex 2. 
 

Table 4 – Restated Capital Programme 2009/10 to 2013/14 
 

Total by Department Position 
at Budget 

08/09 
Mon 3 

Amend- 
ments 

Slippage 
from 
08/09 

outturn 

Revisions 
from 08/09 

outturn  

Latest 
2009/10 
Budget 

 £m  £m £m £m 
Children’s Services 30.848 (0.655) 2.052 0.820 33.281 
City Strategy 5.323 0.069 0.007 0.000 5.399 
City Strategy Admin 
Accommodation  

5.926 0.000 0.968 0.000 6.894 

Economic Development 0.000 0.000 0.113 0.000 0.113 
Housing 8.721 0.052 (0.141) 0.000 8.632 
Leisure and Culture 6.294 0.000 (0.355) 0.000 6.139 
Neighbourhood Services 3.915 0.430 0.312 0.000 4.657 
Chief Executives 2.521 0.590 (0.068) 0.000 3.043 
Resources 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
Social Services 0.407 0.000 0.049 0.000 0.456 
Contingency/Other 0.300 0.000 0.060 0.000 0.360 

Total 64.255 0.486 2.997 0.820 68.974 

Total by 
Department 

2009/10 
Budget 

2010/11 
Budget 

2011/12 
Budget 

2012/13 
Budget 

2013/14 
Budget 

Total 
Budget 

 £m  £m £m £m £m £m 
Children’s Services 33.281 20.181 0.000 0.000 0.000 53.462 
City Strategy 5.399 4.770 3.617 3.605 3.605 20.996 
City Strategy Admin 
Accommodation  

6.894 10.187 12.274 8.526 0.000 37.881 

City Strategy 
Community Stadium 

0.000 0.000 4.000 0.000 0.000 4.000 

Economic 
Development 

0.113 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.113 

Housing 8.632 9.121 10.205 9.807 10.888 48.653 
Leisure and Culture 6.139 1.100 0.000 0.000 0.000 7.239 
Neighbourhood 
Services 

4.657 3.388 5.555 3.055 3.055 19.710 

Chief Executives 3.043 0.700 1.250 0.000 0.000 4.993 
Resources 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
Social Services 0.456 0.351 0.235 0.245 0.255 1.542 
Contingency/Other 0.360 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.360 

Total 68.974 49.798 37.136 25.238 17.803 198.949 

Page 409



52. Members will note from Table 4 that the size of the capital programme as 
presented reduces significantly in 2010/11. The decline is attributable to the 
reduction in Children’s Services and Leisure schemes. From 2011/12 onwards 
the funding for the Children’s Services capital are not as yet known hence the 
entry zeros. Annex 2 shows the individual schemes that make up the totals for 
each department shown in table 4. Note the annex also includes the 08/09 
outturn figures therefore increases the total budget figure in the table above from 
£198.949m to £257.485m (08/09 outturn £58.536m). 

 
53. Table 5 shows the projected call on Council resources going forward. 
 

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 Total   

£m £m £m  £m £m 

Gross Capital 
Programme 

68.974 49.798 37.136 25.238 17.803 198.949

Funded by       

  External Funding 31.536 21.776 8.888 8.428 9.603 80.231

  Council  Controlled     
Resources 

37.438 28.022 28.248 16.810 8.200 118.718

  Total Funding  68.974 49.798 37.136 25.238 17.803 198.949

 
Table 5  - 2009/10 –2013/14 Capital Programme Financing 

a.   

54. It should be recognised that capital receipts which form part of the Council 
Controlled Resources should be considered at risk of not being realised within 
set time frames and to estimated values until the receipt is received. The capital 
programme is predicated on a small number of large capital receipts, which if not 
achieved would cause significant funding pressures for the programme. The 
Director of Resources closely monitors the overall funding position to ensure that 
the over the full duration of the capital programme it remains balanced, any 
issues with regard to financing will be reported as part of the standard reporting 
cycle to the Executive. 

 

Corporate Objectives 
 
55. All schemes approved as part of the capital programme have been scored 

through the Capital Resource Allocation Model (CRAM), which rigorously 
evaluates scheme submissions against key corporate objectives and national 
government priorities. 

 
 

Financial Implications  

 
56. The financial implications are considered in the main body of the report. 
 

Human Resources Implications 
 

57. There are no HR implications as a result of this report 

Page 410



 

Equalities Implications 
 

58. The capital programme seeks to address key equalities issues that affect the 
Council and the public.  Schemes that address equalities include the Disabilities 
Support Grant, the Schools Access Initiative, the Community Equipment Loans 
Store (CELS) and the Disabilities Discrimination Act (DDA) Access 
Improvements.  The Easy@York project is also aimed at improving access to 
Council services for all residents. 

 

Legal Implications 
 

59. As stipulated by the CIPFA Prudential Code, the Council is required to present a 
statutory declaration of the 2008/09 capital expenditure and its funding to the 
secretary of state responsible for local government as set out in the 2003 Local 
Government. The statutory declaration as signed by the Director of Resources 
who is the Council’s Section 151 officer is attached in Annex 1. 

 

Crime and Disorder 
 

60. There are no crime and disorder implications as a result of this report 
 

Information Technology 
 

61. There are no information technology implications as a result of this report 
 

Property 
 

62. The property implications of this paper are included in the main body of the 
report which covers the funding of the capital programme from capital receipts. 

 

Risk Management 
 

63. The capital programme is regularly monitored as part of the corporate monitoring 
process. In addition to this the Corporate Capital Monitoring Group (CAPMOG) 
meets regularly to plan monitor and review major capital schemes to ensure that 
all capital risks to the Council are minimised. 

 

Recommendations 
 
64. The Executive is requested to: 

• Note the 2008/09 capital outturn position and approve the requests for 
slippage to and from the 2009/10 capital programme. 

• Approve the restated 2009/10 to 2013/14 programme as summarised in 
Table 4 and detailed in Annex 2. 

• Approve the statutory declaration of the 2008/09 capital expenditure as 
required by the Local Government Act 2003 part l as set out in Annex 1. 

 
 Reason:  

Page 411



• To allow the continued effective management of the capital programme in 
2009/10 and beyond. 

• To fulfil its statutory function. 
  

Page 412



Contact Details 
 
Author: 

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Ian Floyd 
Director of Resources 
 

Report 
Approved 

tic
k 

Date 30/06/2009 

 
Keith Best  
Head of Finance 

tic
k 

 
Ross Brown 
Corporate Accountant 
01904 551207 
 
Louise Branford White 
Corporate Finance Manager 
01904 551187 
 

Report 
Approved 

 

Date 30/06/2009 

 
Specialist Implications Officer(s)   
None 
 

All tick Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
 

For further information please contact the author of the report 
Background Papers 2008/09 monitoring working papers and respective EMAP 
reports. 
 
Annex 1 – Statutory declaration of Funding 2008/09 
Annex 2 – Capital Programme by year 2008/09 – 2013/14 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 413



Page 414

This page is intentionally left blank



Annex 1

Statutory Declaration on the Funding of 2007/08 Capital Expenditure 

as required by part I of Local Government Act 2003 (Prudential Code)

£'000 £'000

Expenditure

Capital Expenditure requiring Financing 58,536             

Resources

Borrowing

Supported Capital Expenditure 7,830                  

Prudential Borrowing - Other 2,386                  

10,216             

Grants & Contributions

Government Grants 37,915                

Non-Government Grants 5                         

Developers' Contributions 948                     

Other Contributions / Donations 214                     

39,082             

Capital Receipts

6,293                  

6,293               

Capital Expenditure met from Revenue Accounts

Housing Revenue Account 935                     

General Fund Revenue Account 2,010                  

2,945               

Total Resources Applied * 58,536             

Ian Floyd

Signed : Ian Floyd S151 Officer

Page 415



Page 416

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 2

Capital Budget - 2008/09 to 2013/14 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 Gross

Revised Revised Revised Revised Revised Capital

Outturn Programme

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget 08/09 -13/14

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Children's Services
NDS Condition Funding 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

NDS Devolved Capital 1,494 2,275 2,275 0 0 0 6,044

Fulford Secondary TCF Phase 1 37 0 0 0 0 0 37

Fulford Secondary TCF Phase 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Harnessing Technology 223 835 528 0 0 0 1,586

Targeted Capital Fund 14-19 Diploma 376 1,589 5,500 0 0 0 7,465

Huntington School Improvements TCF 6 100 0 0 0 0 106

NDS Modernisation 2,631 1,692 2,693 0 0 0 7,016

Neighbourhood Nurseries Initiative 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Robert Wilkinson Basic Need (Phase 2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Robert Wilkinson Basic Need (Phase 1) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Schools Access Initiative 112 560 288 0 0 0 960

Skills Centre 109 0 0 0 0 0 109

Sure Start 263 1,482 1,059 0 0 0 2,804

Specialist Schools Status 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Integrated Children's Centres 1,680 361 0 0 0 0 2,041

Integrated Children's System Grant 35 0 0 0 0 0 35
Westside Review - Oaklands / York High 10,874 189 0 0 0 0 11,063

Westside Review - Manor 2,926 35 0 0 0 0 2,961
Youth One Stop Shop 16 0 0 0 0 0 16

Oaken Grove Community Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Joseph Rowntree One School Pathfinder 9,099 18,581 1,574 0 0 0 29,254

Extended Schools 261 265 137 0 0 0 663
Primary School Strategic Programme 90 2,910 5,378 0 0 0 8,378

Devolved Formula Capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Derwent MUGA 584 57 0 0 0 0 641

Condition Led Projects 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ICT Mobile Technology for Childrens Social Workers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Connexions Building Works 94 0 0 0 0 0 94
Fulford School Science Labs and Clasrooms 785 481 0 0 0 0 1,266

Youth Capital Fund 79 70 70 0 0 0 219

Children's Centres Phase 3 0 679 679 0 0 0 1,358

DCSF Wave 2 PlaybuilderFunding 0 1,120 0 0 0 0 1,120

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 31,774 33,281 20,181 0 0 0 0 85,236

City Strategy (Planning & Transport)
Highway Repairs & Renewals (Struct Maint) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Local Transport Plan (LTP) 6,427 3,895 3,485 3,485 3,485 3,485 24,262

York City Walls - Repairs & Renewals (City Walls) 66 110 90 90 78 78 512

Robin Hood's Tower Strengthening (City Walls) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

York City Walls - Health & Safety (City Walls) 26 34 0 0 0 0 60

Developer Contribution schemes (LTP Struct) 35 0 0 0 0 0 35

Government Grants (LTP Struct) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Road Safety 44 43 42 42 42 42 255

Flood Pump - Elvington 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Oulston Reservoir 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Foss Islands Depot 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cycling City 312 1,135 1,153 0 0 0 2,600

Housing and Planning Delivery 135 0 0 0 0 0 135
Annex2CapitalProgrammeOutturne0.xls  0809 outturn

P
a
g
e
 4

1
7



ANNEX 2

Capital Budget - 2008/09 to 2013/14 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 Gross

Revised Revised Revised Revised Revised Capital

Outturn Programme

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget 08/09 -13/14

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Public Footpath, Rawcliffe No 1 - Riverbank slip 0 81 0 0 0 0 81

Energy conservation in homes 0 100 0 0 0 0 100

Highway Resurfacing & Reconstruction (Struct Maint) 1,135 0 0 0 0 0 1,135

Special Bridge Maintenance (Struct maint) 90 0 0 0 0 0 90

Street Light Modernisation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 8,270 5,399 4,770 3,617 3,605 3,605 29,266

City Strategy (Admin Accom)
Admin Accom 2,016 6,894 10,187 12,274 8,526 0 43,803

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 2,016 6,894 10,187 12,274 8,526 0 0 43,803 0

City Strategy (Community stadium)
Community Stadium 0 0 0 4,000 0 0 4,000

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 0 0 0 4,000 0 0 0 4,000 0

City Strategy (Economic Development)
ABB Site Regeneration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Small Business Workshops 0 58 0 0 0 0 58

Visitor/Tourist Information Centre 45 55 0 0 0 0 100

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 45 113 0 0 0 0 158

Neighbourhood Services (Environmental Services) 
Air Quality Monitoring 21 33 0 0 0 0 54

Flood Pump 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Grey Bin Replacement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Household Waste Sites (Hazel Court) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Household Waste Sites (Towthorpe) 26 0 0 0 0 0 26

Purchase of Recycling Containers 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contaminated Land Investigation 30 12 0 0 0 0 42

Waste Efficiency Performance Grant 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Waste Infrastructure Capital Grant (WICG) 0 721 133 0 0 0 854

Silver Street Toilets 30 308 0 0 0 0 338

Ward Committees - Improvement Schemes 100 56 0 0 0 0 156

EcoDepot Security Gate / Reception 0 222 0 0 0 0 222

West of York Recycling Site 0 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500

Highway Resurfacing & Reconstruction (Struct Maint) 3,020 2,855 2,855 2,855 2,855 14,440

Special Bridge Maintenance (Struct maint) 185 200 200 200 200 985

Street Light Modernisation 0 100 200 0 0 0 300

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 207 4,657 3,388 5,555 3,055 3,055 19,917

Housing
Modernisation of Local Authority Homes 292 319 214 1,378 1,412 1,358 4,973

Repairs to Local Authority Properties 1,830 959 1,052 701 729 689 5,960

Assistance to Older & Disabled People 416 300 300 300 300 300 1,916

Housing Grants & Associated Investment (Gfund) 920 900 950 1,000 1,050 1,100 5,920

Howe Hill Homeless Hostel (Gfund) 76 0 0 0 0 0 76

Commuted Sums (Cont to Affordable Hsg) (Gfund) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Travellers (Gfund) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Annex2CapitalProgrammeOutturne0.xls  0809 outturn

P
a
g

e
 4

1
8



ANNEX 2

Capital Budget - 2008/09 to 2013/14 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 Gross

Revised Revised Revised Revised Revised Capital

Outturn Programme

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget 08/09 -13/14

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Bungalow Buy Back 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

MRA Schemes 4,932 5,304 5,755 5,976 5,466 6,591 34,024

Arclight (Gfund) 212 0 0 0 0 0 212

Disabled Facilities Grant (Gfund) 650 850 850 850 850 850 4,900

Discus Bungalows 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 9,328 8,632 9,121 10,205 9,807 10,888 57,981

Leisure and Culture
Acomb Library 28 7 0 0 0 0 35

Chapelfields Community Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Community Resource Centre at Haxby / Wigginton 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Danebury Drive Allotments 0 3 0 0 0 0 3

Hull Road Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Knavesmire Culverts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Museum Service Heritage Lottery Bid 400 763 200 0 0 0 1,363

Oaken Grove Community Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Oakland's Sports Centre 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Oakland's Sports Centre Pitch 5 1 0 0 0 0 6

Parks and Open Spaces Development 289 0 0 0 0 0 289

River Bank Repairs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

West Bank Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

War Memorial Gardens 0 10 0 0 0 0 10

York Pools Strategy - 3,626 4,261 900 0 0 0 8,787

Youth Service One Stop Shop 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Free Swimming for Over 60's 0 44 0 0 0 0 44
Milfield Lane Comm Sports Centre 0 550 0 0 0 0 550

York Explore Centre 0 500 0 0 0 0 500

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 4,348 6,139 1,100 0 0 0 0 11,587

Chief Execs
Carbon Management 0 500 0 0 0 0 500

Dealing with Repairs Backlog 132 -42 0 0 0 0 90

Fire Safety Regulations - Adaptations 6 194 100 0 0 0 300

Health & Safety / DDA 46 98 0 0 0 0 144

Holgate Windmill 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

25 Hospital Fields Road 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

35 Hospital Fields Road 0 18 0 0 0 0 18

James St Business Park 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Knapton Recreational Field 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Property Key Components (H&S) 39 748 100 0 0 0 887

Preserving Property Assets 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Removal of Asbestos 43 19 0 0 0 0 62

St Clements Hall Refurbishment 78 1,043 0 0 0 0 1,121

Urgent River Bank Repairs 0 400 0 0 0 0 400

Acomb Office 0 0 500 1,250 0 0 1,750

Mansion House External Repairs 65 65

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 344 3,043 700 1,250 0 0 5,337

Resources

Annex2CapitalProgrammeOutturne0.xls  0809 outturn

P
a
g
e
 4

1
9



ANNEX 2

Capital Budget - 2008/09 to 2013/14 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 Gross

Revised Revised Revised Revised Revised Capital

Outturn Programme

Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget 08/09 -13/14

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

IT Equipment 1,132 0 0 0 0 0 1,132

Easy @ York 109 0 0 0 0 0 109

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 1,241 0 0 0 0 0 1,241

Social Services
Joint Equipment Store 115 105 105 105 105 105 640

Relocation of Hebden Rise 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Modernising EPHs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

22 The Avenue Improvements 26 0 0 0 0 0 26

Improving the Care Home Env' for Older People 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Information Management Improvements 2 49 0 0 0 0 51

Disabled Support Grant 100 110 120 130 140 150 750

Morrell House 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Telecare Equipment 0 100 75 0 0 0 175

Adults Social Care IT grant 0 92 51 0 0 0 143

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 243 456 351 235 245 255 1,785

Miscellaneous
Equal Pay Capitalisation 680 0 0 0 0 0 680

Fleet Finance Leases 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Hazel Court Depot 40 60 0 0 0 0 100

Contingency 0 300 0 0 0 0 300

TOTAL GROSS EXPENDITURE 720 360 0 0 0 0 0 1,080 0

Gross Expenditure by Department

Children's Services 31,774 33,281 20,181 0 0 0 85,236

City Strategy (Planning & Transport) 8,270 5,399 4,770 3,617 3,605 3,605 29,266

City Strategy (Admin Accom) 2,016 6,894 10,187 12,274 8,526 0 0 43,803

City Strategy (Community stadium) 0 0 0 4,000 0 0 4,000

City Strategy (Economic Development) 45 113 0 0 0 0 158

Housing 9,328 8,632 9,121 10,205 9,807 10,888 57,981

Leisure and Culture 4,348 6,139 1,100 0 0 0 11,587

Neighbourhood Services (Environmental Services) 207 4,657 3,388 5,555 3,055 3,055 19,917

Chief Execs 344 3,043 700 1,250 0 0 5,337

Resources 1,241 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,241

Social Services 243 456 351 235 245 255 1,785

Miscellaneous 720 360 0 0 0 0 0 1,080

Total by Department 58,536 68,974 49,798 37,136 25,238 17,803 261,391

Annex2CapitalProgrammeOutturne0.xls  0809 outturn

P
a
g

e
 4

2
0



   

 

  

 

   

 

Executive 21 July 2009 

 
Report of the Assistant Director of Resources (Customer Service & Governance) 
  
 

Revised Financial Regulations  
 
Summary  

1 The purpose of this paper is to present to Executive for discussion and 
approval the revised Financial Regulations. 

Background 

2 The council’s current Financial Regulations were introduced in 2006 and 
formed supplementary guidance to the Constitution.  The purpose of the 
regulations is to lay down the rules and guidelines to be followed by the 
organisation to ensure the integrity of its financial arrangements. 

3 The current regulations have provided an effective regulatory framework that 
has allowed the organisation to operate with minimum risk.  They were 
however more comprehensive than was required with substantial sections of 
the Constitution being repeated within the regulations with several layers of 
officer and member decision-making.  To ensure the council can react 
quicker, improve its customer service and become more efficient the current 
regulations have at times worked against this ethos.            

The Regulations 

4 The purpose of the revised Financial Regulations (Annex A) is to provide a 
more flexible set of regulations maintaining the key principles of the current 
regulations but reflecting the more devolved decision making framework 
adopted by the council.  The revised regulations also take out unnecessary 
repeated elements of the Constitution to try to provide a more concise user-
friendly document.  

5 A second part of the current regulations is often referred to as the 
Procurement Regulations. In line with many other authorities this element has 
been separated into a devolved set of regulations and renamed as the 
Contract Procedure Rules (CPRs).  The Financial Regulations along with the 
CPRs are underpinned by a set supplementary guidance documents to form 
a comprehensive set of financial procedures as shown at Table 1 below: 

 

Agenda Item 15Page 421



Table 1  

Financial Procedures 

Financial Regulations & Contract Procedure Rules 

Supporting supplementary 
guidance: 

 Asset Disposal Policy 

  Income Policy 

  Corporate Procurement 
Guidance Manual 

  Risk Management Policy & 
Strategy 

  External Funding/Grant Guidance 
Manual 

  Petty Cash Rules 

  

6 The chronological history of the amendments made to the financial 
regulations is available on the following the link (Track changed chronology of 
the regulations). In summary there are a number of key changes to the 
regulations some of these are relatively minor and include: 

   
a) removing duplication of information already contained elsewhere in the 

Constitution; 

b) separating the contract procedure rules (CPRs) into a single 
document; 

c) future proofing in terms of electronic solutions; 

d) updating of terminology to reflect current regulations, corporate policy 
and strategy; 

e) provision of a proper index and page numbering; 

f) reference to new supplementary guidance (as set out at Table 1 
above) where appropriate; 

g) provision of a consolidated summary section showing all delegated 
thresholds. 

 

 

 

 

Page 422



Further changes provide an improvement in the clarity and consistency in 
relation to the levels of delegation including:     

Individual Revenue virements: 
 

a) Executive’s approval threshold increased from £250K to over £500K; 
 

b) Executive Member only delegation merged with Directors delegation. 
New Directors’ delegation in consultation with Executive Member 
increased to over £100K and up to and including £500K;   

 
c) Chief Officer delegation within service plans increased from £25K to up 

to and including £100K. 
 

Individual Capital virements: 
 

a) Executive’s approval threshold increased from £250K to over £500K;                                                                                                              
 

b) Executive Member only delegation merged with Directors’ delegation. 
New Directors’ delegation in consultation with Executive Member 
increased to over £100K and up to and including £500K;  

 
c) Directors’ delegation between schemes up to and including £100K. 

 
Individual Debt Write-Off: 

 
a) Executive threshold over £200K; 

 
b) Executive Member over £10K and up to and including £200K; 

 
c) Executive Member in consultation with CFO raised from £2K to over 

£5K and up to and including £10K; 
 

d) CFO raised from less than £2K to over £100 and up to and including 
£5K; 

 
e) Head of Financial Procedures up to and including £100. 

 
Finally in the spirit of encouraging medium-term financial planning the 
regulations seek to allow directorates greater flexibility and certainty over their 
funding allocations including:   

 
a) Directorates will be allowed to retain a percentage of any underspend 

to be carried forward into a general directorate reserve this could be as 
high as 50% of any underspend at the discretion of the Director of 
Resources; 

 
b) Directorates will be able to make further specific requests to the 

Executive for carry forward on particular schemes;   
 

Page 423



c) Where an overspend has to be carried forward by a Directorate there 
will be a facility to spread any repayment over a maximum three year 
term. 

7 Any changes to the financial regulations, key procedures and thresholds can 
only be approved by Executive.  There are however, times where minor 
changes in terminology or wording may be needed which do not change 
either the fundamental procedures or thresholds and this report asks 
Executive for the power to make these minor changes to be delegated to the 
Director of Resources. 

8 The revised CPRs are at an early draft format and will be presented to 
Executive in the autumn for approval.  The Income Policy and Corporate 
Procurement Guidance Manual have already been approved by Executive. 
The Asset Disposal Policy was approved by Audit & Governance Committee 
in March 2009. The External Funding/Grant Guidance Manual is at an earlier 
stage but should be developed over the summer and be presented to 
Executive in the autumn along with the CPRs. 

9 The regulations and supporting documentation will not be effective unless all 
relevant officers and members are aware of the changes and any new rules.  
It is intended that once approved by Executive a formal training programme 
will be delivered in the autumn to help raise awareness and embed the 
regulations across the organisation.   

Consultation 
 
10 The draft Financial Regulations have been issued to all finance managers for 

consultation purposes along with other key officers across the council.  
Member consultation has also been undertaken at Audit & Governance 
Committee on 29 June 2009.    

 Options  

11 There are only two options associated with this report: 
 

a) Agree the revised Financial Regulations ; 
 
b) Retain the existing Financial regulations. 

 
Analysis 
 
12 Not applicable to this report. 
 
Corporate priorities 
 

13 The implementation of effective financial control is critical in contributing to 
the delivery of an ‘Effective Organisation’ and helps to underpin and support 
all the priorities that form the Corporate Strategy.  

 

 

Page 424



Implications 
 

(a) Financial – Financial implications are contained within the Annex to 
the report. 

 

(b) Human Resources (HR) - There are no implications. 
 

(c) Equalities - There are no implications. 
 

(d) Legal - There are no implications. 
 

(e) Crime and Disorder  - There are no implications. 
 

(f) Information Technology (IT)  - There are no implications. 
 

(g) Property - There are no direct implications. 
 

Risk Management  
 

14 The organisation is at risk if it does not have effective and appropriate 
financial regulations that provide for proper stewardship and integrity of its 
financial arrangements.  The regulations also need to ensure that the council 
can operate efficiently in delivering its services and projects.     

Recommendations 

15 Executive are asked to: 
 

a) comment on and approve the revised Financial Regulations attached 
to this report at Annex A; 

  
Reason 

 

To gain Executives approval that  the revised Financial Regulations are 
appropriate in improving and maintaining the integrity of the council’s financial 
arrangements. 
 
b) Approve the delegation of minor non-procedural or financial threshold 

changes to the Director of Resources (Paragraph 7).  
 

Reason  
 
To ensure that the regulations can be kept in an up to date format without the 
necessity to have to go to Executive for minor non-procedural or financial  
threshold changes.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 425



 

Author: 

 

Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 

 
David Walker 
Head of Financial Procedures  

 
Pauline Stuchfield  
Assistant Director (Customer Services & 
Governance) 

 

Ext 2261  Report 
Approved 

√ Date 9/7/09 

  

     

     

 

Specialist Implications Officer(s)   
 

Wards Affected  Not applicable   

  

 

For further information please contact the author of the report 

 

Background Papers 
 
Draft Revised Financial Regulations Report to A&G 29 June 2009  
 
Annexes 
 

Annex A – Draft Financial Regulations 
 
 
 

Page 426



Annex A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF YORK COUNCIL 

 

 

Financial Regulations 

(Draft) 

 

 

 

 

Version 1 June 2009 

 

Page 427



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 2 

City of York council 

Financial Regulations 

Contents 
 

Status of Financial Procedure Rules  
 Page 

 Introduction  4 

 Observing these regulations  4 

 Maintaining these regulations  4 

 Sanctions and remedies for non-compliance  5 

Part A – Financial Management Standards   

 Introduction  6 

 Member roles & responsibilities  6 

 The Chief Financial Officer (CFO)  6 

 The Chief Internal Auditor (CIA)  8 

 Directors  8 

Part B Financial Planning & Budgeting   

 Introduction  10 

 Budget planning  10 

 Budget monitoring & control  12 

 Schemes of virement  14 

 The capital programme   15 

 Medium term financial planning  18 

 Reserves & balances  19 

 The Venture Fund  19 

Part C Audit & Risk Management   

 Audit & inspection  21 

 Preventing fraud & corruption  23 

 Managing Risk  24 

Part D Systems & Procedures   

 Introduction  25 

 Accounting systems  25 

 Income  26 

 Expenditure  29 

 Banking arrangements  32 

 Treasury management  33 

 Taxation  34 

Page 428



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 3 

 Stocks & stores  34 

 Inventories & asset management  35 

 Trading accounts  37 

Part E External Arrangements   

 Introduction  38 

 Partnerships & joint working  38 

 External Funding  39 

 Work for third parties  39 

Annex A Summary of Delegation & Reporting  41 

Glossary of Terms  44 

 

Page 429



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 4 

Status of Financial Procedure Rules 

Introduction 
 

1 These Financial Regulations (Regulations) provide the 
governance framework for managing the Council’s 
financial affairs.  They apply to every Member and Officer 
of the Council and to anyone acting on its behalf.  
  

 Observing these regulations  
 

2 These Regulations apply across all parts of the whole 
organisation, including all Member fora and Directorate 
services, as well as all arms length organisations, agencies 
and partnerships with whom the Council does business and for 
whom the Council is the relevant accounting body. Where the 
Council is not the relevant accounting body, but is a 
responsible partner, officers must ensure that the accounting 
body has in place adequate Regulations and proper schemes 
of delegation. Schools are bound by these Regulations unless 
the School Standards and Framework Act 1988 (SSFA98) 
specifically exempts them from any particular provisions set 
out herein (e.g. financial thresholds, if the Framework provides 
differently). 

 

3 All Council members and staff have a general 
responsibility for taking reasonable action to provide for 
the security of the assets under their control and for 
ensuring that the use of these resources is legal, properly 
authorised, provides value for money (VFM) and 
achieves best value (notwithstanding the delegated 
authorities of any given committee or officer). In doing so, 
proper consideration must be given at all times to matters 
of probity and propriety in managing the assets, income 
and expenditure of the Council. 

 

 Maintaining these regulations  
 
4 The Council operates a system of managerial and 

financial control whereby the Chief Finance Officer (CFO) 
has overall responsibility for the proper management of 
the finances of the Council as a whole but the 
responsibility for the day-to-day financial control and 
administration in each Directorate is devolved to the 
Director.  

 

5 The overall responsibilities of the CFO in respect of these 
regulations are therefore to: 

 

Page 430



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 5 

a) maintain these Regulations and submit any 
additions or changes necessary to Full Council for 
approval in consultation with the Monitoring Officer 
(MO); 

 

b) issue explanatory advice and guidance to underpin 
these Regulations as necessary. Where such 
advice and guidance is issued, members, officers 
and others acting on behalf of the Council are 
required to comply with it in accordance with the 
general provisions of these Regulations; 

 

c) require any officer to take any action deemed 
necessary (as is proportionate and appropriate) to 
ensure proper compliance with these Regulations; 

 

d) report, where appropriate, any breaches of these 
Regulations to Members; 

 

 

6 These regulations have been drafted with a view to avoiding any 
uncertainty or ambiguity as to the principles, standards and 
procedures to be observed. Should any uncertainty or dispute 
arise pursuant to these Regulations, the matter must be referred 
to the CFO for interpretation and/or arbitration. 

 

Sanctions & remedies for non-compliance  
 
7 Failure to comply with any part of these Regulations may 

constitute misconduct and lead to formal disciplinary action.  
 

Page 431



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 6 

Part A 
 

Financial Management Standards 
 

Introduction 
 

1 This Part of the Regulations set out the overall framework 
of financial management responsibilities at the Council, 
including the accounting policies, standards, record 
keeping and financial statements the organisation is 
required to maintain in managing its finances and 
financial affairs. 

 
2. All members and staff have a common duty to abide by 

the highest standards of probity and propriety when 
making decisions about the use of public monies. It is 
important for the way in which this is done to be 
transparent, properly accounted for in respect of the 
correct accounting year and reported in accordance with 
recognised accounting standards, conventions and 
policies 

 

Member roles & responsibilities 
 

3. Member responsibilities for the overall management of 
the Council's financial affairs are exercised through: 

 

• Full Council, which is responsible for the 
Council’s overall Policy Framework and for setting 
the Budget within which the Executive will operate 
(See Constitution Part 3).   

• The Executive, which is responsible for proposing 
policy and the Budget to the Full Council. 

• The Audit & Governance Committee, which is 
responsible for approving the statement of 
accounts.  

 

 The Chief Finance Officer (CFO) 
 

4. The functions and responsibilities of the CFO are directed 
in the first instance by legislation that imposes statutory 
duties on the CFO for the proper management, financial 
administration and stewardship of Council assets and the 
fiduciary interests of local tax payers. These statutory 
responsibilities cannot be overridden and arise from: 

 

• Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972; 

• The Local Government Acts 2000 & 2003; 

• The Local Government Finance Act 1988; 

• The Local Government and Housing Act 1989; 

Page 432



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 7 

• The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003, as 
amended by the Accounts & Audit (Amendment) 
(England) Regulation 2006 

 

5. These responsibilities include:  
 

a) the preparation of the Council's annual Statement 
of Accounts and the compilation and retention of 
all supporting accounting records and working 
papers, in accordance with the proper professional 
practices and set out in the format required by the 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in 
the United Kingdom: A Statement of 
Recommended Practice - the SORP 
(CIPFA/LASAAC). The financial year observed by 
the Council runs from 1 April to the following 31 
March; 

 
b) the proper administration of the Council’s financial 

affairs, systems and procedures; 
 

c) setting and monitoring compliance with financial 
management standards and controls; 

 

d) ensuring proper professional practices are 
adhered to in acting as the Head of Profession in 
relation to the standards, performance and 
development of all finance staff across the 
organisation; 

 

e) providing advice on the key strategic controls 
necessary to secure sound financial management 
(including the operation of an effective internal 
audit function); 

 

f) ensuring that financial information is available to 
enable accurate and timely monitoring and 
reporting; 

g) determining the contents of all financial procedure 
manuals and ensuring compliance with the 
requirements of the Financial Regulations  

 

6. The CFO can choose to delegate his day-to-day 
responsibilities in respect of his/her functions and 
responsibilities as defined by these Regulations in 
accordance with the Council's Scheme of Delegation and 
any corresponding Directorate schemes of delegation. 
The CFO may delegate his/her responsibilities to an 
appropriate representative(s). Where this is the case the 
delegation and officer responsibilities must be clearly 
documented in the relevant Directorate scheme of 
delegation and be kept under regular review by the CFO 
further to these Regulations. 

Page 433



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 8 

The Chief Internal Auditor (CIA) 

 
7 The CIA is designated by the CFO as part of his/her 

Directorate Scheme of Delegation further to Article 13 of 
this Constitution and plays a key role in providing 
assurance to the Members, the CFO, the Head of Paid 
Service and Corporate Management Team about the 
practical deployment and effectiveness of financial 
management arrangements across the organisation.  

 

8 The CIA has rights of access to information and data held 
by officers or members of the Council at all reasonable 
times and is responsible for the overall management and 
deployment of internal audit resources at the Council. 
He/she also has the right to report on any relevant matter 
of concern to senior management and members of the 
Council outside normal line management arrangements 
should he/she deem this necessary in protecting the 
interests of the Council and/or local tax payers. 

 

Directors 
 

9 Whilst the CFO has overall responsibility for the finances 
of the Council, Directors are responsible for the day-to-
day management of their Directorate's finances. Their 
responsibilities in relation to financial management 
include: 

 

a) maintaining a satisfactory financial management 
function within their Directorates with sufficient 
staff, accommodation and other resources 
(including legal advice where this is necessary) to 
carry out the duties specified by legislation or 
otherwise directed by these Regulations; 

 

b) promoting and ensuring compliance with the 
financial management standards and practices set 
by the CFO in their Directorates; 

 

c) consulting with the CFO on any matter which is 
liable to materially affect the resources of the 
Council. This must be done before any 
commitment is incurred, or a report made to an 
Executive Member or to a Committee for decision; 

 

d) ensuring that Executive Members are advised of 
the financial implications of all proposals and that 
these have been agreed by the CFO or his/her 
nominated representative; 

 

e) signing contracts on behalf of the Council in 
accordance with the contract procedure rules set 
out in Part D of these Regulations; 

 

Page 434



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 9 

f) reporting suspected fraud and irregularities to the 
CIA for investigation and referral to the Police as 
necessary; 

 

g) ensuring that the common officer delegations 
relating to financial management and 
administration as set out in the Council's Scheme 
of Delegation within their Directorates are 
exercised with due regard to the detailed 
requirements of these Regulations; 

 

h) implementing the management recommendations 
of the Internal Audit  provider and external auditors 
agreed with the Director and/or the relevant Chief 
Officers and Heads of Service. 

 
 

 

Page 435



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 10 

Part B 
 

Financial planning & budgeting 
 

Introduction 
 

1 The purpose of financial planning is to set out and 
communicate the organisations objectives, resource 
allocations and related performance targets and to 
provide an agreed basis for subsequent management 
control, accountability and reporting.  

 

2 The Council's Budget sets agreed parameters around the 
annual activities and functions of Directorates and their 
services. The Council's Medium Term Financial Plan 
represents a three year financial plan to address those 
issues which have medium to long term financial 
implications for the organisation. 

 

Budget Planning 
 

3 The revenue budget must be constructed so as to ensure that it 
properly reflects the priorities of the Council and Service Plan 
considerations.  Budgets are needed so that the Council can 
plan, authorise, monitor and control the way money is allocated 
and spent. It is illegal for the Council to budget for a deficit.  

 

4 The budget process must ensure that resources are: 
 

• required in accordance with the law and properly 
authorised; 
 

• used only for the purpose intended to achieve approved 
policies, objectives and service priorities; 
 

• held securely for use when required; 
 

• used with the minimum level of waste, inefficiency or loss. 
 
 

5 The CFO in consultation with each Director is responsible for: 
 

a) ensuring that an annual revenue budget is prepared in the 
context of a medium term three year financial plan for 
consideration by the Executive and its recommendation to 
Full Council.   

 

b) maintaining  a resource allocation process that properly 
reflects all due consideration of the Council's Policy 
Framework, ambitions and priorities; 

 

c) advising the Executive on the format of the budget for 
approval by Full Council; 

 

Page 436



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 11 

d) allocating central budgets for example inflation and 
superannuation; 

 

e) providing advice and guidance to the Executive further to 
it's responsibility for issuing guidance on budget 
preparation to take all due account of: 

 

• legal requirements; 

• medium term planning prospects and known issues; 

• the Corporate Strategy; 

• available resources 

• spending pressures; 

• government initiatives and public policy 
requirements; 

• internal policy directives; 

• cross cutting issues and Council priorities. 
 

f) determining the detailed form of revenue estimates 
consistent with the budget approved by Full Council after 
consultation with the Executive and Directors; 

 

g) reporting to the Executive on the aggregate spending 
plans of Directorates and on the resources available to 
fund them, identifying any implications for Council Tax 
levies; 

 

h) advising on the medium term implications of spending 
decisions and funding options; 

 

i) encouraging the best use of resources and value for 
money by working with Directors to identify opportunities to 
improve economy, efficiency and effectiveness and by 
encouraging good practice in conducting financial 
appraisals of growth or savings and developing the 
financial aspects of effective Service Planning; 

 

j) advising the Full Council on the Executive's budget 
proposals in accordance with his/her responsibilities under 
S151 of the Local Government Act. 

 

6 Directors are responsible for ensuring: 
 

a) budget estimates of income and expenditure are a realistic 
reflection of agreed corporate and service priorities, and 
that they are submitted to the Executive as part of the 
overall budget setting process. These estimates must be 
consistent with any relevant cash limits, the annual budget 
cycle and prepared in line with guidance issued by the 
Executive on the advice of the CFO. In drawing up draft 
budget plans Directors must have regard to; 

 

• spending patterns and pressures revealed through 
the budget monitoring process; 

 

• legal requirements; 
 

Page 437



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 12 

• policy requirements as defined by Full Council and 
set out in the Policy Framework; 

 

• initiatives already under way. 
 

 

b) effective budgetary control within their Directorates, 
establishing detailed budgets for each service area in 
advance of the financial year and requiring such budgets 
to be properly managed by responsible named budget 
holders; 

 

c) financial and budget plans are integrated into service 
planning. 

 
d) If Directors are unable to keep within their agreed budget 

limits they must consult with the CFO,  who has a statutory 
duty to report any significant issues to Members. 

 

Budget monitoring and control 
 

7 The Council Budget sets an annual cash limit. To ensure the 
Council does not exceed its budget, each service area is required 
to manage its own income and expenditure within the cash 
limited budgets allocated to them to be spent on agreed service 
activities and functions.  

 

8 The CFO is responsible for establishing a robust framework of 
budgetary management and control that ensures that: 

 

a) budget management is exercised within annual cash limits; 
 

b) appropriate and timely financial information is available to 
Directors and budget holders that enables budgets to be 
monitored and controlled effectively; 

 

c) expenditure is committed only against approved budget 
heads and associated structure of detailed cost centres; 

 

d) all officers responsible for committing expenditure comply 
with  these Regulations; 

 

e) each cost centre is delegated to a named budget holder to 
be determined by the relevant Chief Officer (budget 
responsibilities should be aligned as closely as possible 
with those making day to day decisions to commit 
expenditure); 

 

f) significant variances from budget are investigated and 
reported by budget holders on a regular basis. 

 

9 The CFO must monitor and control the level of income and 
expenditure against budget allocations overall. He/she must 
ensure that monitoring  reports are provided through the Finance 
and Performance Monitoring Framework for Members to consider 
on a regular basis throughout the financial year (to be determined 

Page 438



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 13 

and advised by the CFO) and a report after the year end setting 
out the revenue outturn.  Budget monitoring reports must include: 

 
 

a) explanations of all variations to service budgets where 
deemed appropriate by the CFO; 

 

b) explanations of financial implications and material 
considerations such as: 

 

• part and/or full year consequences of variances; 
 

• one off and/or recurring costs and income; 
 

• total scheme costs and sources of funding; 
 

• asset rental costs or leasing effects; 
 

• costs associated with staffing matters including the 
costs of redundancy and effects on the pension fund; 

 

• service plan implications and impact on service 
delivery (both within the service plan area and across 
other services or portfolios as appropriate). 

 

10 Reports containing budget monitoring information must be 
reviewed by the CFO, or by his/her nominated representative(s) 
(where not otherwise prepared by his/her nominated 
representative in Directorates) at least 5 working days in advance 
of the relevant committee distribution date.  

 

11 The CFO is also responsible for: 
 

a) reporting to the Executive and Full Council in consultation 
with the relevant Director if he/she is unable to balance 
expenditure and resources within their existing budgets 
and a supplementary estimate is required; 

 

b) jointly preparing with the relevant Director(s) reports to the 
Executive regarding virements (Para13) which are in 
excess of £500,000 (either as individual items in-year or 
when taken in aggregate across the same category of 
budgeted income or expenditure in any one financial year); 

 

c) reporting regularly to the Executive (as determined and 
advised by the CFO) on the overall revenue budget 
position and the Council's available contingencies, 
balances and reserves. 

 

12 It is the responsibility of Directors to:  
 

a) ensure effective budgetary control arrangements exist and 
are observed within their own Directorates in accordance 
with these Regulations; 

b) ensure spending remains within the relevant cash limits by 
controlling income and expenditure within their Directorate, 
monitoring performance and taking corrective action where 
significant variations from budget are forecast, taking 
account of any financial information and/or advice provided 
by the CFO or his/her nominated representative(s). 

Page 439



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 14 

 

c) regularly report performance and variances within their 
own areas  and take action to avoid exceeding their 
budget allocation, alerting the CFO to any known or 
expected budget problems; 

 

d) report to the Executive and Full Council as necessary the 
financial implications of any new in-year proposal or 
amendment that will: 

 

• create financial commitments in future years; 
 

• change existing policies, initiate new policies or 
result in existing policies ceasing to operate; 

 

• materially extend or reduce the Council's services. 
 

Schemes of virement 
 

13 The term virement refers to transfers of resources between or 
within approved cost centres for both revenue and capital 
purposes. A virement does not create additional budgetary 
liabilities. Instead the virement mechanism exists to enable the 
Executive, Chief Officers and their staff to manage their budgets 
with a degree of flexibility within the overall Policy Framework and 
Budget set by Full Council, thereby optimising the use of 
resources throughout the financial year. The virement schemes 
for revenue and capital do not exist as a means of remedying 
poor budgetary control or financial planning for known 
commitments and service priorities, or otherwise excuse Chief 
Officers and budget holders from the need to manage their 
budgets prudently and responsibly. Nor may virements be 
effected after the year end to retrospectively fund over or under 
spends unless approved in advance by the CFO.  

 

14 It is important that the scheme is carefully controlled within 
guidelines established by Full Council and administered by the 
CFO. Any variation from those guidelines must be approved by 
Full Council. All virements must: 

 

• not commit the Council to any on-going additional 
expenditure in future years unless virements are 
permanent redirections of resources; 

 

• be notified in writing to the CFO or his/her nominated 
representative; 

 

• be reported in budget monitoring reports to the Executive 
in accordance with the scheme of virement operated by 
the Council 

 

• be recorded in the Council's financial systems.  
 
 
15 The scheme of revenue virement and agreed thresholds for 

delegated decision making purposes is set out below. 
  

Page 440



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 15 

Scheme of revenue virement delegations 
 

Decision maker Delegated powers & authority Thresholds 

   

The Executive To approve virements between Service Plans in 
excess of £500k (either individually or in aggregate 
for the financial year) 

Over £500k up to 
the cash limits set 

by the Budget 
   

 To approve allocations of resources from approved 
contingencies and reserves 

As set by the annual 
Budget 

   

 To make recommendations to Full Council for the 
release of budget resources in excess of the 
approved contingencies and reserves 

As set by the annual 
Budget 

   

 To approve virements from within existing Service 
Plans or between Service Plans into new or 
otherwise unplanned functions and activities if 
savings are available to be re-directed into the new 
activity  

Over £500k  

   

   

Directors To approve virements within or between Service 
Plans within their Directorates in excess of £100k 
and up to £500k (either individually or in aggregate 
for the financial year) in consultation with the 
relevant Executive Member 

Over £100k and up 
to £500k 

 To approve virements from within existing Service 
Plans or between Service Plans within their 
Directorates into new or otherwise unplanned 
functions and activities if savings are available to 
vire into the new activity 

Over £100K and Up 
to £500k in 

consultation with the 
relevant Executive 

Member 

 To approve virements between directorates in 
consultation with the relevant directors 

Up to and including 
£50K in consultation 

with the relevant 
Executive Member 

   

   

Other Chief 
Officers 

To approve virements within their Service Plans up 
to £100k (either individually or in aggregate for the 
financial year) 

Up to £100k 

   

 

The Capital Programme  

 

16 The Capital Programme is a plan that sets out the resource 
allocations to be made to capital schemes that have the approval 
of Full Council. Capital expenditure involves acquiring or 
enhancing fixed assets with a long term value to the organisation, 
such as land, buildings, major items of plant, equipment or 
vehicles  

  

17 The Regulations and standards relating to budgetary 
management and control of the revenue Budget apply equally to 
capital expenditure and any changes to revenue budgets arising 
out of changes to the Capital Programme must be dealt with 
accordingly. All capital expenditure is incurred or committed on a 

Page 441



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 16 

scheme by scheme basis. Capital expenditure must be reported 
gross of any funding and controlled at that level. 

 

18 No expenditure may be incurred on a project unless it has been 
approved as part of the Capital Programme. Equally, no scheme 
requiring Government sanction or funding either in full or in part 
may begin until the sanction and/or funding has been officially 
confirmed.  All credit agreements must be referred to the CFO for 
approval prior to schemes being included in the Programme. 

 

19 All capital expenditure must be incurred by 31 March of the 
financial year for which it is approved, although approvals can be 
slipped provided the position is reported to the Executive, unless 
there is an external requirement to spend within any given year. 
Where schemes are part of a rolling programme or span a 
number of years, approval is required for each year's expenditure 
when the scheme is approved for inclusion in the Programme.  

 

 20 As with the revenue Budget, it is possible to vire between 
schemes within the approved Capital Programme where known 
funding shortages and/or underspends have arisen. The same 
rules and principles set out in paragraphs 13 - 15 above for 
revenue virement apply to the Capital Programme. If shortfalls in 
funding or overspends cannot be met by transferring resources 
between schemes within the agreed Capital Programme, 
requests of additional funding from reserves must be prepared by 
the relevant Director in consultation with the CFO for approval by 
the Executive. The scheme of capital virement and thresholds for 
delegated decision making purposes is set out in the table below.  

 

Scheme of capital virement delegations 
 

Decision maker Delegated powers & authority Thresholds 

   

The Executive To approve individual virements between schemes 
in excess of £500k  

Over £500k  

   

 To re-phase approved scheme expenditure 
between years in excess of £500k for each scheme 

Over £500k 

   

   

Directors To approve individual virements between schemes 
in excess of £100K up to a maximum of £500k in 
consultation with the relevant Executive Member 

Over £100K and 
Up to and 

including £500k 
   

 To approve individual virements between schemes 
up to a maximum of £100k 

Up to and 
including £100k 

   

 
 
 
21 In relation to the Capital Programme the CFO is responsible for: 
 

Page 442



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 17 

a) ensuring that an annual capital programme is prepared for 
consideration by the Executive for recommendation to Full 
Council; 

 

b) reporting to the Executive on income, expenditure and 
resources compared with approved estimates; 

 

c) issuing guidance on capital schemes and controls and 
defining what will be regarded as capital having proper 
regard to Government regulations and accounting 
conventions; 

 

d) ensuring that all schemes relying on the use of prudential 
borrowing powers for funding purposes are properly 
appraised on the basis of a robust business case as part 
of the CRAM process. Detailed practitioner guidance on 
the nature and use of prudential borrowing and ‘Prudential 
Scheme’ are set out in ‘The Guide to Prudential Borrowing’ 
issued by the Council’s Corporate Accountancy team; 

 

e) directing the activities and functions of the Corporate 
Capital Monitoring Group (CAPMOG) and its 
responsibilities for monitoring the Capital Programme on 
an on-going basis and managing the CRAM process; 

 

f) maintaining a record of the current capital budget and 
expenditure on the Council's financial systems. 

 
22 In relation to the Capital Programme Directors are responsible 

for: 
 

a) complying with the guidance issued by the CFO regarding 
capital schemes and controls; 

 

b) ensuring that all capital schemes put forward for 
consideration in the CRAM process have been properly 
appraised and that each scheme and estimate includes a 
proper project plan, progress targets and sets out the 
sources of funding for the scheme including all associated 
revenue expenditure; 

 

c) preparing regular reports reviewing the Capital Programme 
provisions for their services; 

 

d) ensuring adequate records and audit trails are maintained 
in respect of all capital contracts; 

 

e) monitoring capital expenditure and receipts against 
approved capital budgets on a scheme by scheme basis 
and reporting to the relevant Executive Member on a 
regular basis in accordance with the standard revenue 
budget monitoring arrangements set out above; 

 

f) reporting to the Executive if proposed sources of funding 
are not secured (if planned funding from linked assets 
sales or external grants and contributions cannot be 
realised, corporate funding support must be sought). 

Page 443



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 18 

 

Medium term financial planning 
 

23 Medium term financial planning allows the Council to think 
beyond the constraints of any given financial year and annual 
budget and prepare for future events. The Director of Resources 
is delegated as part of the final accounts process to make proper 
provision for known future commitments, which are consistent 
with agreed budgetary and/or policy framework.  In doing so it is 
important that there is a mechanism for the carry forward of in-
year budget under or overspends - in effect a virement of 
resources between accounting years. The ability to do this is 
central to effective medium term financial planning in a devolved 
financial management environment such as at the Council, 
serving to both: 

 

• empower budget holders to think beyond immediate 
service needs and plan over longer time frames to achieve 
significant changes and improvements and make best use 
of resources; 

 

• hold budget holders to account for their budget 
management performance in so far as budget overspends 
will not be written off at the end of each financial year but 
will have to be carried forward.   

 

24 The CFO is responsible for reporting a medium term financial 
strategy to the Executive for recommendation to Full Council. In 
doing so he/she is responsible for setting and reviewing 
parameters around the carry forward of over and underspends on 
Service Plan budgets within any given planning period and 
issuing advice and guidance on how these will be applied.   

 

25 Any overspending on service estimates in total on budgets under 
the control of a Director must be reported by the CFO to the 
Executive.  Where overspending is such that it appears the 
overall budget will be exceeded, and there is a need for an 
additional call on the council reserves the CFO must report the 
issue to full council.. Directorates will be allowed the facility to 
spread repayments over a maximum of three years however any 
overspending should be met, where possible, from any 
Directorate Reserves that are in existence. At the Discretion of 
the Executive, the requirement for overspending to be carried 
forward can be waived/reduced. This discretion may be applied in 
cases where the overspending arises from exceptional items, or 
where the implications of carrying forward the overspending 
would result in significant service implications. As a minimum 
Directorates will receive 25% of any underspending in year, to be 
carried forward into a general Directorate Reserve. At the 
Discretion of the Director of Resources, up to 50% of an in year 
underspend may be carried forward, subject to this not leading to 
any overall net overspending for the Council as a whole. The 
Director of Resources will determine the relevant maximum 

Page 444



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 19 

percentage to be allowed to be carried forward, up to a value of 
50% Directorates will be able to make further specific requests to 
the Executive for carry forward on particular schemes, however 
this will be informed by consideration of the level of Directorate 
Reserves, and the level of general carry forward (if any) that has 
already been granted. Where there is a major exceptional item, 
this may be taken into account in the calculation of any carry 
forwards.  

 

26 All internal surpluses arising from in-house trading 
activities/business units shall be retained for the benefit of the 
Council subject to any provision to do otherwise set out in the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 

27 Schools' balances will be available for carry forward to support 
the necessary expenditure of the school concerned. Where an 
unplanned deficit occurs, the governing body shall prepare a 
detailed financial recovery plan for consideration by the Chief 
Education Officer and the Executive Member concerned in 
consultation with the CFO.  

 
28 Schools must prepare a plan to recover the deficit within a 

defined period. In exceptional circumstances schools may seek to 
incur expenditure to be financed by anticipating future year 
budgets. Any such arrangement must be approved by the 
relevant Executive Member and proposals to do so accompanied 
by a detailed plan setting out how the arrangement is to be 
accommodated as a first call on their future budget share. 

 

Reserves & balances 
 

29 Financial reserves and balances are maintained as a matter of 
prudence against unforeseen events and future contingencies. 
The CFO is responsible for advising the Executive and Full 
Council on prudent levels of reserves and balances for the 
Council as part of the annual budget setting process based on a 
reasoned assessment of risk.  

 

30 The Council must decide the level of its general reserves in 
determining the level of Council Tax. The purpose, usage and 
basis of transactions must be clearly set out in respect of each of 
the reserves and balances held by the Council. Expenditure from 
Council reserves and balances can only be made with the prior 
approval of the Council, unless delegated authority to do so has 
been conferred by the Executive to an Executive Member or 
Director. 

 

The Venture Fund 
 

31 The Council maintains a Venture Fund as part of its reserves 
designed to provide some capacity to support one-off 'Invest to 
Save' type initiatives that might otherwise struggle to secure 
funding in the annual budget setting process.  

Page 445



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 20 

 

32 Officers are able to bid for Venture Fund monies each year with a 
view to any advances from the Venture Fund being re-paid within 
a 7 year period at an internal borrowing rate fixed in relation to 
the councils Consolidated Rate of Interest to be determined by 
the CFO. All bids to the Venture Fund must be made in the form 
of a business case setting out the nature and purpose of the 
proposal, forecast income and expenditure and payback period. 

 

33 The CFO is responsible for convening a panel of at least 3 
suitably experienced officers to consider all bids to the Venture 
Fund. The Panel will meet to determine which bids to support 
based on the merits of the individual business case and the level 
of balances in the Fund available for investment over the course 
of the financial year.  Where there are competing demands for 
resources the Panel will determine a scoring model based on an 
assessment of fit with corporate objectives, the strength of the 
financial business case, risk of return, impact, customer benefits 
and alternative funding opportunities including Prudential 
borrowing if budget is available.  

 

34 All bids must be sponsored by the relevant Chief Officer and have 
been considered by the local Finance Manager before being 
submitted to the Venture Fund Panel for consideration. The CFO 
has delegated authority to approve bids up to £100,000 from 
either the Venture Fund or through Prudential borrowing. 
Delegated decisions will be advised to the Executive as part of 
the budget monitoring and reporting process. Bids in excess of 
£100,000 must be referred to the Executive for approval. 

Page 446



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 21 

Part C 
 

Audit & Risk Management  
 

Audit & inspection  
 

1 Audit is a key management tool that Members and Chief Officers 
should rely on to provide an independent and objective 
assessment of the probity, legality and value for money of 
Council arrangements. It examines, evaluates and reports on the 
adequacy of internal systems of control in the proper, economic, 
efficient and effective use of resources.  Legislation requires that 
the Council provides for the function of both internal and external 
audit services.  

 

2 The statutory requirement for the Council to maintain "an 
adequate and effective system of internal audit" is set out in 
Regulation 5 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations Act 2003, as 
amended by the Accounts & Audit (Amendment) (England) 
Regulation 2006 and further to S151 of the Local Government Act 
1972.  

 

3 In summary, the service exists to: 
 

a) provide assurance to Members, Chief Officers and the 
general public on the effective operation of governance 
arrangements and the internal control environment 
operating at the Council; 

 

b) objectively examine, evaluate and report on the probity, 
legality and VFM of Council arrangements for managing all 
items of income, expenditure and safe-guarding assets; 

 

c) review arrangements for ensuring proper accounting 
controls, systems and administration are maintained and 
make recommendations for action and improvement; 

 

d) help to secure the effective operation of proper controls to 
minimise the risk of loss, the inefficient use of resources 
and the potential for fraud and other wrongdoing; 

 

e) act as a means of deterring all fraudulent activity, 
corruption and other wrongdoing, conducting 
investigations into any matter referred to it for investigation 
by management or officers and members of the public and 
reporting its findings to Directors and Members as 
appropriate for action; 

 

f) undertake the prioritised investigation of all instances of 
alleged housing benefit fraud and prosecute those cases 
where fraud has been identified to protect the Council and 
fiduciary interests of the community and the public purse; 

 

g) conduct investigations into suspected fraudulent activity 
and improper conduct as reported by Members, Governors 

Page 447



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 22 

and employees referred to it further to the Council’s 
Whistle-blowing policy; 

 

h) report all known breaches of these regulations and Council 
Standing Orders and any other action leading to 
expenditure incurred ultra vires, identifying any areas of 
poor financial probity and stewardship problems for action 
by Chief Officers and Members as appropriate; 

 

i) advise the CFO and MO as to any necessary intervention 
in decision making if it is likely that any proposed action 
will lead to unbudgeted or unlawful expenditure or activity; 

 

j) review the Council's arrangements for ensuring the income 
and expenditure of the organisation is properly and 
regularly monitored in line with the budget setting, 
monitoring and reporting requirements set out in these 
Regulations; 

 

k) advise officers and members of value for money issues 
and/or the poor or inappropriate use of Council resources 
and make recommendations for improvement; 

 

l) review the optimisation of income generation opportunities 
from grants and subsidies monies available from 
Government; 

 

m) advise the CFO of any appropriate action necessary to 
safeguard the fiduciary interests of the Council and current 
and future Council Tax payers. 

 
4 The internal Audit & Fraud  provider and the external auditors 

must be allowed to act independently and objectively in their 
planning and operation without undue influence by either 
Directors or Members.  

 

5 The CIA is designated by the CFO.  He/she, or his/her nominated 
representative(s), has rights of direct access and reporting to the 
CFO, the Assistant Director of Resources (Customer Service & 
Governance) who is the client officer for the Audit & Fraud 
provider, all Directors and Members. His/her staff have rights of 
access to all Council buildings and properties, information and 
data at all reasonable times. 

 

6 The Audit Commission is responsible for appointing external 
auditors to Councils. The duties of the external auditor are 
governed by section 15 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1982, as amended by section 5 of the Audit Commission Act 
1998 and the Local Government Act 2000. These variously 
include rights of access and the right to report publicly on their 
findings and recommendations. The external auditors must 
comply with the provisions of a Code of Audit Practice in planning 
and conducting their work. This includes the audit of the Council's 
financial statements, the financial aspects of corporate 
governance and performance management. The work of the 

Page 448



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 23 

District Auditor is reported to the Executive and Full Council in 
his/her annual management letter.  

 

7 The Council may also be subject to audit, inspection or 
investigation by external bodies such as HM Revenues & 
Customs, and various other Inspectors of service at any time. 

 

Preventing fraud & corruption 

 

8 The Council will not tolerate fraud or corruption in the 
administration of its responsibilities, whether perpetrated by 
Members, officers, customers of its services, third party 
organisations contracting with it to provide goods and/or services, 
or other agencies with which it has any business dealings. There 
is a basic expectation that Members and all staff will act with 
integrity and with due regard to matters of probity and propriety, 
the requirement to act lawfully and comply with all rules, 
procedures and practices set out in legislation, the Constitution, 
the Council's Policy Framework and all relevant professional and 
other codes of practice. To that end the Council has adopted an 
anti-fraud and corruption strategy, fraud prosecution policy and 
whistle-blowing policy along with codes of conduct governing the 
behaviour of Members and officers. 

 

9 All staff and Members of the Council must inform the CIA 
immediately if they suspect or know of any impropriety, financial 
irregularity, fraud or corrupt practice. The CIA is responsible for 
determining the nature of any investigation work required in 
respect of any allegation of wrong doing, and/or any other action 
required and may refer matters to the Police or other appropriate 
external body as he/she sees fit in consultation with the contract 
client officer (Assistant Director of Resources - Customer Service 
& Governance)   

 

10 The internal Audit & Fraud  providers are required to investigate 
all referrals of fraud at the direction of the CIA and client manager 
and in doing so have: 

 

a) rights of access to all Council premises and property, all 
data, records, documents, and correspondence relating to 
any financial matter or any other activity of the Council; 

 

b) the right to require any member of staff or Member to 
provide any information or explanation needed in the 
course of their investigations; 

 

c) the right to prosecute cases of benefit related fraud in the 
courts; 

 

d) the right to refer investigations to the Police in consultation 
with the relevant Director(s), client manager and CFO.  

 
 
 

Page 449



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 24 

11 In addition, the CIA should to: 
 

a) refer cases directly to the Police if he/she believes that 
normal consultation practices would compromise the 
integrity of the investigation against the interests of the 
Council or the general public; 

 

b) notify the District Auditor of any matter that they would 
rightly expect to be informed of in order to support the 
function of an effective and robust external audit service; 

 

c) require any officer or member to:.   
 

− make available such documents relating to the 
accounting and other records of the Council that are 
necessary for the purpose of the audit; 

 

− supply any information or explanation considered 
necessary for that purpose. 

 

Managing risk 
 

12 Risk Management is inherent to good management practice and 
essentially; it is concerned with identifying potential events (risks), 
establishing what could go wrong (threats) and the potential for 
success (opportunities) with the aim of trying to achieve the right 
balance between the two. The outcome from proper risk 
consideration ensures that managed controls are in place and the 
effective prioritisation and allocation of potentially scarce 
resources to the most appropriate area (high risk), to ensure 
service continuity and performance improvement.  Full details of 
the way that the Council manages its risks are set out in the Risk 
Management Policy and Strategy and form part of the 
supplementary guidance to these regulations  

 
  

 

Page 450



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 25 

Part D 
 

Systems & procedures 
Introduction 
 

1 Good systems and procedures are essential to the effective 
management and administration of the Council's financial affairs.  
This section covers: 

  

• Accounting systems 

• Income 

• Expenditure 

• Banking arrangements 

• Treasury management 

• Taxation 

• Stock & stores 

• Trading accounts 

 

Accounting systems 
 

2 The Council relies on a variety of different financial and 
accounting systems in controlling and administering the finances 
of the organisation. It is vital that these systems ensure 
information is recorded accurately, completely and in a timely 
manner and that all necessary controls are in place to ensure that 
all transactions are properly processed and any errors detected 
promptly and rectified.  

 
3 The CFO is responsible for: 
 

a) determining the Council's main accounting system for the 
preparation of the Council's accounts and for monitoring all 
income and expenditure. The main accounting and 
budgeting system used at the Council is known as the 
Financial Management System (FMS); 

 

b) determining any other key financial systems which may sit 
outside the FMS; 

 

c) ensuring that all financial systems are sound and properly 
integrated and interfaced; 

 

d) issuing advice, guidance and procedure notes on the use 
and maintenance of FMS and related financial systems 
and for ensuring that all finance staff are trained and 
competent in the using financial systems.   

 

4 Directors have devolved responsibility for the finances of their 
Directorates and must ensure that proper accounting and 
financial systems exist and incorporate adequate internal controls 

Page 451



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 26 

to safeguard against waste, loss or fraud. They must also ensure 
that officers in their Directorates are aware of and have access to 
copies of these Regulations and any supplementary advice and 
guidance issued by the CFO.  

 

5 Further to this, Directors are specifically responsible for: 
 

a) ensuring all accounting records are properly maintained 
and held securely, including any supporting vouchers, 
documents, contracts etc with financial implications; 

 

b) ensuring FMS is used as the prime means of monitoring 
expenditure and income in their departments and for 
comparing spend against budgets, except and unless the 
CFO advises or agrees that alternative arrangements may 
be made; 

 

c) ensuring that FMS is used to accurately record the 
financial transactions of their departments in accordance 
with the advice and guidance given by the CFO and in a 
way that ensures compliance with all legal requirements, 
proper accounting practice and enables returns to be 
made to central government, taxation authorities and other 
relevant bodies and provides a complete audit trail; 

 

d) the effective operation of financial systems within their own 
Directorate to the extent that they are operated and 
controlled within their Directorate; 

 

e) ensuring regular reconciliations between other 
departmental systems of financial administration with the 
Council's financial management systems (FMS); 

 

f) reporting systems failure to the CFO and consulting with 
him/her about any changes or new developments; 

 

g) ensuring there is a documented and tested disaster 
recovery plan as part of an agreed business continuity 
strategy for financial administration; 

 

h) ensuring that systems are documented and all staff have 
been properly trained in their use. 

 

Income  
 

6 Income can be a vulnerable asset and effective income collection 
systems are necessary to ensure that all income due is identified, 
collected, receipted and banked properly. It is preferable to obtain 
income in advance of supplying goods or services as this 
improves the Council's cash flow in line with the Councils Income 
Policy that forms supplementary guidance to these regulations.  

 

7 All cash received must be acknowledged by the issue of an 
official receipt and all monies then accounted for and paid over to 
central Cashiers or directly into an approved bank account. 

Page 452



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 27 

Details of all cash receipted on a local basis must be forwarded to 
the CFO for allocation to the correct accounts. 

 
8 Income must never be used to directly fund expenditure (ie all 

transactions must be shown separately in the ledger, both income 
and expenditure). Officers are directly responsible for the safe 
custody of any money received until it has been paid into the 
bank or handed over to another officer. Receipts should be given 
and retained in such circumstances. 

 
9. Procedures for writing off debts shall be as follows: 
 

Decision maker Delegated powers & authority Thresholds 

   

The Executive Amounts exceeding £200,000 may only be written 
off on the authority of the Executive. The CFO  
shall maintain a record of all such write-offs 
showing attempted recovery action taken and the 

justification for non-recovery. 

Over £200k  

   

Executive Member Amounts over £10,000 and not exceeding 
£200,000 on the authority of the Executive Member 
(Corporate Services) in consultation with the CFO. 
The CFO shall maintain a record of all such write-
offs showing attempted recovery action taken and  
the justification for non-recovery 

Over £10k and up 
to and including 

£200K 

   

   

CFO Amounts over £5,000 and not exceeding £10,000 
on the authority of the CFO in consultation with the 
Executive Member (Corporate Services). The CFO 
shall maintain a record of all such write-offs 
showing attempted recovery action taken and the 
justification for non-recovery.   

Over £5k and up 
to and including 

£10k 

   

Chief Officers Amounts not exceeding £5000 may be written off 
by any Chief Officer in consultation with the CFO, 
who shall maintain a record of all such write-offs 
showing attempted recovery action taken and the 
justification for non-recovery.   

Over £100 and up 
to and including 

£5k 

   

   

Head of Financial 
Procedures 

Amounts not exceeding £100 may be written off by 
the Head of Financial Procedures, who shall 
maintain a record of all such write-offs showing 
attempted recovery action where taken and the 
justification for non-recovery.   

Up to and 
including £100 

   

 
 

10 The CFO is responsible for making arrangements for the 
collection of all income due to the Council and approving the 
procedures, systems and documentation used in its collection.   
Preparing a corporate Debt Management Policy in consultation 
with other Directors for approval by the Executive.  Regularly 
reviewing all fees and charges levied by services and ensuring 
they are set with due regard to comparable market rates, the 

Page 453



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 28 

legal responsibilities of the organisation, the Income Policy and 
any relevant social or economic policy objectives set out in the 
Council's Policy Framework 

 

11 Directors are responsible for: 
 

a) collecting income for which there is budget provision within 
the budgets for which they are responsible; 

 

b) using the systems for the collection and recording of cash 
and credit income provided by the CFO unless they have 
the approval of the CFO to make alternative 
arrangements; 

 

c) the proper separation of duties between staff raising 
accounts and those responsible for income collection; 

 

d) collecting all income and initiating all appropriate recovery 
action for debts that are not paid promptly where local 
arrangements for doing so have been agreed with the 
CFO; 

 

e) requiring at least two staff to be present when post is 
opened to ensure any money received in that way is 
properly identified, recorded and safeguarded; 

 

f) issuing official receipts as necessary and maintaining all 
other documentation for income collection purposes and 
ensuring controlled stationery is securely stored; 

 

g) keeping all income received in secure storage and 
ensuring cash holdings do not exceed insurance limits; 

 

h) ensuring all income is paid fully and promptly into 
approved bank accounts in the form in which it is received 
and that all details are properly recorded on paying in slips 
which are retained for audit trail purposes. Money 
collected and deposited must be reconciled to the bank 
account on a regular basis; 

 

i) ensuring income is not used to cash personal cheques or 
used to make other payments; 

 

j) supplying the CFO with all details relating to works done, 
services supplied or other amounts due to be raised 
through the corporate invoicing system; 

 

k) establishing charging policies for the supply of goods and 
services levied by their Directorate's services and ensuring 
all fees and charges are set with due regard to income 
policy, the legal responsibilities of the organisation and any 
relevant social or economic policy objectives set out in the 
Council's Policy Framework; 

 

l) assisting in the collection of debts originating from their 
Directorates by providing information and taking any 
recovery action necessary on a local basis with the 
agreement of the CFO; 

Page 454



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 29 

 

m) recommending to the CFO all debts to be written off and 
maintaining records of all sums written off. Once raised on 
the accounting system, no bona fide debt can be cancelled 
except by full payment or by being formally written off in 
the accounts. Credit notes can only be issued to correct a 
factual inaccuracy or administrative error in the calculation 
and/or billing of the original debt and must not be used for 
any other purpose; 

 

n) notifying the CFO of any outstanding income due in 
relation to the previous financial year as soon as possible 
in line with the annual timetable for the closedown of the 
accounts determined by the CFO. 

 

12 All officers are responsible for the safe custody of any money 
received until it has been paid into the bank or handed over to 
another officer.  

 

Expenditure  
 
13 Expenditure may be incurred provided there is funding available 

through normal ordering and invoicing processes, entering into a 
contract arrangement, through the payment of salaries, wages 
and allowances or in exceptional circumstances through raising a 
cheque requisition. Directors, or their nominated representatives, 
are authorised to incur expenditure on works, goods and services 
where there is an approved budget for which they are 
responsible, provided such expenditure is legally incurred and 
within the Policy Framework. Expenditure must be shown 
separately to income and expenditure proposals that attract 
amounts of income must be shown gross in the accounts. The 
determination of any financial thresholds or bandings referred to 
by these Regulations must therefore be done with reference to 
the gross amount. 

 

Ordering works, goods and services 
 

14 Directors must use the FMS system except in the case of 
emergencies or if approval has been given by the CFO to an 
alternative arrangement.  

 

15 Official orders which including e-orders must be issued for all 
purchases except: 

 

• payments made on the basis of a formal contract; 
 

• purchases made through petty cash 
 

• continuous charges for supply (ie periodic accounts for gas, 
electricity, water etc). 

 

Page 455



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 30 

16 Official orders electronic or otherwise must be in an approved 
form as determined by the CFO. They may only be authorised by 
signatories up to the limits of their delegation as set out in the 
relevant Directorate schemes of delegation. This record must be 
accurate, complete and kept up to date. If it is necessary for an 
oral order to be placed for any good reason, it must be followed 
up by a  official order as soon as it possible to do so. Orders must 
be clear and specific (ie they should state quantity, price, nature 
of the goods or service etc so that meaningful comparison 
between what was ordered and what has been received can be 
made and the invoice can be matched to the order). Official 
orders may not be raised for personal or private purchases. 
Schools have their own ordering procedures and must abide by 
the regulations set out in the Local Management of Schools 
scheme.  

 

Payments for works, goods and services 
 

17 Payments for works, goods and services must only be made: 
 

• on receipt of an invoice or contract certificate which 
satisfies VAT regulations, or; 

 

• where the liability for payment is clearly established and 
evidenced; 

 

• in accordance with contractual commitments. 
 

18 All Directors must use the FMS system unless they have the 
approval of the CFO to make alternative arrangements. Officers 
must ensure payments for works, goods and services are not 
made unless: 

 

• they are supplied in accordance with an official order, or 
contract, and the invoice amount/contract certificate is 
correct; 

 

• payment is in respect of a periodic account or for a service 
regularly supplied and the amount invoiced is properly 
payable. 

 

19 Payments in advance must be avoided except where this is the 
accepted practice for the type of expenditure involved (e.g. 
leasing payments, travel or conference facility fees). Advance 
payments in excess of £5,000 can only be made with the 
approval of the CFO all sums below this amount, which are not 
accepted practice can be approved by the relevant Director. 
Where interim or part payments form part of a contract, interim 
certificates or part invoices must be authorised for payment only 
after the value of the work done or goods or services received 
has been confirmed. 

 

20 A proper separation of duties between staff responsible for 
creating contractual commitments (or otherwise ordering works, 
goods and services) and those authorising invoices for payment 

Page 456



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 31 

which should in turn be kept separate from staff responsibilities 
for receiving and checking works, services and goods. Directors 
must agree alternative arrangements with the CFO if it is not 
practically possible to maintain an adequate separation of duties 
for any reason. 

 

21 All invoices and receipts must be original documents which 
comply with VAT regulations (invoices and receipts scanned 
through the Councils EDRMS system are accepted as original 
documents).  Invoice coding slips for use in exceptional 
circumstances must be properly completed detailing the correct 
VAT code, finance ledger codes, sufficient narrative description to 
allow invoices to be matched and properly described in the ledger 
and all necessary signatures electronic or otherwise for 
authorisation and payment. 

 

22 Directors must ensure that payments are made in an appropriate 
timescale that will not unduly disadvantage the Council's cash 
flow, result in the Council incurring late payment penalties or 
prejudice the financial position of those to whom the payment is 
to be made. The performance standard for the payment of 
invoices is 30 days. This is a Local Performance Indicator that is 
monitored by CMT and reported to Executive.  

 

Contracting for works, goods and services 
 

23 The Contract Procedure Rules are issued as a supplementary 
guidance document to these regulations and set out the specific 
procurement rules and procedures to be observed in contracting 
for the provision of works, goods and services.  

 

Payments of salaries, wages & allowances 
  

24 Staff costs form the largest item of expenditure made by the 
Council. It is important that payments are accurate, complete, 
timely and made in accordance with what is due consistent with 
the individual conditions of employment and/or the terms of any 
officer or Member allowance scheme and that such payments are 
fully recorded and accounted for in the accounting system.  

 

25 The CFO is responsible for providing a corporate payroll system 
for recording all payroll data and generating payments to 
employees and Members. The system must allow for the proper 
calculation of all pay and allowances, National Insurance and 
pension contributions, Income Tax and all other deductions. 
Directors must use the corporate payroll system for all payments 
to employees. Directors are responsible for ensuring that all 
information relating to an employee's entitlement to pay and/or 
the payment of allowances are forwarded to the Payroll team 
within agreed timescales or otherwise properly and completely 
input on a local basis (if that arrangement has been agreed with 
the CFO). All supporting evidence of entitlement must be 
provided to payroll at the same time (i.e. signed timesheets, 

Page 457



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 32 

appointment forms, changes in pay scales, approval for 
responsibility payments etc). Schools are permitted to make their 
own payroll arrangements but if they choose to do so they must 
provide the CFO with all necessary information to provide 
assurance to the auditors that any alternative system is well 
controlled, managed and resulting in the correct payments being 
made to the correct staff. 

 

26 Directors must have the approval of the CFO if they wish to pay 
an individual a wage or salary outside the payroll system. Any 
such circumstance must be regarded as exceptional and 
Directors must give careful consideration to the employment 
status of the individual in doing so (ie self employed, consultant 
or sub-contractor) and the taxation implications of making 
alternative arrangements. 

  
Petty cash and disbursements 
 

27 The CFO will provide petty cash floats to a maximum amount 
agreed with Directors for the purpose of meeting minor expenses. 
Directors are responsible for ensuring all petty cash monies are 
securely stored and are only used for the purposes intended. 
VAT receipts must be provided with requests for reimbursements. 
All receipts and vouchers must be retained and regular 
reconciliations carried out and recorded by staff responsible for 
managing petty cash floats. 

 

Banking arrangements   
 

28 It is the responsibility of the Executive to approve the banking 
arrangements of the Council and for the CFO to manage the 
banking contract on a day to day basis. Council payments must 
be made by cheque, BACS or other instrument drawn on the 
Council's bank account by the CFO. Directors must have the prior 
approval of the CFO to operate local bank accounts and this will 
only be allowed in exceptional circumstances. Detailed advice on 
the use and operation of local bank accounts is given in the 
Council's Guide to Managing Financial Risks and the Local 
Management of Schools finance manual.  

 

29  The CFO is responsible for ensuring regular reconciliations are 
carried out for all the main bank accounts to the financial records 
of the Council. Responsibility for the regular reconciliation of local 
bank accounts resides with the relevant Directors. All cheques on 
the main bank account are to be ordered and controlled by the 
CFO who will make arrangements for the safe custody of all 
blank cheques and the preparation, signing and dispatch of 
cheques. All withdrawals or transfers with an individual excess of 
£50,000 must be counter-signed by another authorised signatory 
to the bank account. Directors must make arrangements for the 
safe custody of all blank cheques and the preparation, signing 
and dispatch of cheques for all other local bank accounts.  

 

Page 458



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 33 

 
Treasury Management 
 

30 The Council has adopted the recommendations set out in the 
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) 
which have been observed in setting out the Council's Treasury 
Management Strategy and policy statements. 

 
31 The CFO is responsible for: 
 

a) preparing a Treasury Management Strategy setting out the 
objectives, policies, working practices and controls to be 
observed in the Council's treasury management activities 
for approval by the Executive; 

 

b) ensuring the implementation of the strategy and its 
periodic review, reporting progress and any necessary 
changes to meetings with the Executive Member for 
Corporate Services on a regular basis; 

 

c) all investment, borrowing and credit agreements entered 
into on behalf of the Council, credit cards, hire purchase 
arrangements and finance leases will not be approved for 
use except in very special circumstances; 

 

d) approving the set up of any company, joint companies, 
joint ventures, partnerships or investments; 

 

e) the custody of all financial securities which are the 
property of the Council, or are held in its name; 

 

f) the registration of all Council owned stocks, bonds, 
mortgages and loans; 

 

g) effecting all loans in the Council's name to meet its needs 
on the most economic terms available. 

 

32 Directors are responsible for: 
 

a) ensuring that loans or guarantees are not given to third 
parties and that interests are not acquired in companies, 
joint ventures or other enterprises without the approval of 
Full Council following consultation with the CFO; 

 

b) arranging for all trust funds to be held in the name of the 
Council wherever possible and ensuring that trust funds 
operate within the law and the specific requirements for 
each trust. All officers acting as trustees by virtue of the 
position with the Council shall deposit securities relating to 
the trust to the custody of the CFO unless the deeds 
specifically require otherwise; 

 

c) arranging the secure administration of funds held on behalf 
of third parties and partnerships ensuring that the systems 
and controls for administering such funds are approved by 
the CFO and subject to regular audit. 

 

Page 459



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 34 

Taxation 
 

33 The CFO is responsible for ensuring: 
 

a) the completion of all Inland Revenue returns regarding 
PAYE; 

 

b) the completion of a monthly return of VAT inputs and 
outputs to HM Revenues & Customs; 

 

c) the provision of details to the Inland Revenue regarding 
the construction industry tax deduction scheme; 

 

d) the provision and maintenance of up to date guidance for 
Council employees on taxation issues in relevant 
accounting and taxation manuals and through advice 
provided by the Corporate Accountancy team. 

 

34 Directors are responsible for ensuring that: 
 

a) the correct VAT liability is attached to all income due and 
that all VAT recoverable on purchases complies with HM 
Revenues & Customs; 

 

b) where construction and maintenance works are 
undertaken, the contractor fulfils the necessary 
construction industry scheme (CIS) deduction 
requirements; 

 

c) all persons employed by the Council are added to the 
Council's payroll and tax deducted from any payments 
made to them (with approved exceptions agreed by the 
CFO where the individuals concerned are bona fide self-
employed or are employed by a recognised agency); 

 

d) all advice and guidance on taxation issued by the CFO is 
followed and adhered to by staff in their own Directorates. 

 

Stocks & stores 

 
35 Directors may hold reasonable levels of stocks and stores of 

consumable items, materials, equipment and goods for resale. 
They are responsible for the receipt and custody of stock items 
and for writing off any items of stock. Directors must take VFM 
considerations into account in holding stocks and stores and 
ensure unnecessarily high levels of stocks are not allowed to 
accumulate. The value of stocks and stores held at the year end 
must be certified by and authorised officers and forwarded to the 
CFO.  

 

36 Procedures for the disposal of redundant stocks and equipment 
are set out in the guide to the disposal of assets which forms 
supplementary guidance to these regulations.  

 
 

Page 460



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 35 

Inventories & asset management 
 
37 The Council holds tangible assets in the form of property, 

vehicles, equipment, furniture and other items worth many 
millions of pounds. It also makes use of other non-tangible assets 
such as intellectual property. It is essential to the financial health 
and well being of the Council that these assets are safeguarded 
and used efficiently and effectively in supporting the delivery of 
Council services. All staff are responsible for safeguarding the 
assets and information used in their day to day activities and 
must ensure they are aware of their responsibilities in respect of 
the Data Protection Act, software copyright legislation, and the 
security of the Council's information systems. These 
responsibilities are laid out fully in the IT Regulations and E-
Communications Policy that form part of the Constitution. 

 
38 The CFO is responsible for: 
 

a) ensuring that an asset register is maintained in 
accordance with good practice for all fixed assets valued in 
excess of £5,000 and that asset valuations are made in 
accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting: A Statement of Recommended 
Practice (the SORP); 

 

b) arranging for all insurances and requiring Directors to 
ensure all assets are kept securely and used efficiently 
and effectively; 

 

c) ensuring compliance with the rules in relation to 
contractual commitments for the acquisition and disposal 
of assets set out in these Regulations; 

 

d) ensuring advice on the VAT implications of proposed land 
& building acquisitions and sales is sought at the planning 
stage; 

 

e) ensuring that all asset acquisitions and disposals are 
properly recorded within asset records and comply with the 
disposal policy which forms supplementary guidance to 
these regulations. 

 

39 The CFO has formally delegated some of his responsibilities and 
delegated decision making powers in relation asset management 
matters, to the Head of Property Services (Corporate Landlord) 

who acts on his behalf in managing the Council's property 
portfolio and day to day operations. The Corporate Landlord (CL) 
is responsible for the proper management of all corporate land 
and buildings owned by the Council including: 

 

a) maintaining up to date records of all land and buildings, 
including valuations in the form of a corporate asset 
register for the Council and these records must as a 
minimum be reviewed on an annual basis; 

 

Page 461



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 36 

b) ensuring all rents, charges, fees etc due in respect of 
properties and land are raised and all income is collected 
and accounted for in the Council's accounting systems; 

 

c) ensuring that all land and buildings are maintained and 
insured so as to best protect and safeguard the Council's 
interests; 

 

d) ensuring all lessees and other prospective occupiers of 
Council land and buildings are not allowed to take 
possession or enter the property until a lease or 
agreement in a form approved by the CFO has been 
made; 

 

e) the disposal of surplus assets, land and buildings up to the 
value of £100,000 on behalf of the Council and its 
Directorates, in consultation with the CFO, the relevant 
Director(s) and Executive Member for Corporate Services, 
except where the disposal is not to the highest bidder or 
there is a significant discrepancy between the estimated 
sales value and the actual sales figure. All disposals must 
comply with the Contract Procedure Rules that form 
supplementary guidance to these regulations and the 
Rules in Relation to Contractual Commitments set out in 
the Guide to Managing Financial Risks. All disposals 
valued in excess of £100,000 must be referred to the 
Executive for decision; 

 

f) the acquisition of all land and buildings on behalf of the 
Council and its Directorates in consultation with the CFO 
and having due regard to the provisions of the Asset 
Management Strategy, Capital Programme and Medium 
Term Financial Strategy. All acquisitions in excess of 
£100,000 must be reported to the Executive for approval; 

 

g) to act as custodian for all title deeds for the Council; 
 

h) arrange for the valuation of all land and buildings as 
necessary to meet the accounting requirements of the 
CFO; 

 

i) the CFO may chose to resume his/her full responsibilities 
for asset management at anytime and without notice. 

 

40 The Assistant Director of Resources (Transformation and 
Efficiency) is responsible for purchasing, recording and insuring 
items of Information Technology equipment (except equipment 
purchased from schools delegated budgets). Directors are 
responsible though for ensuring such equipment is kept securely, 
protected from loss, theft, damage etc.  

 
 
 

41 In addition, Directors are responsible for: 
 

Page 462



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 37 

a) providing the CL with information and all relevant 
documentation regarding all assets owned or used in 
relation to services provided by the Directorate(s) for the 
purposes of maintaining an up to date and complete asset 
management register; 

 

b) ensuring the proper security and safe custody of all assets 
under their day to day operational control and consult with 
the CL in any case where security concerns exist or if it is 
considered that special security arrangements are 
required; 

 

c) to record all disposals or part exchange of non-land and 
building assets, in line with the disposal policy which forms 
supplementary guidance to these regulations ; 

 

d) to maintain local inventories recording adequate 
descriptions of all furniture, fittings, equipment, plant & 
machinery above £500 and record items of a lower value 
where the risk is considered to be significant; 

 

e) reporting all assets that are lost, stolen or destroyed to the  
Insurance Manager for recording purposes and where 
necessary the CIA in compliance with the asset disposal 
policy; 

 

f) making sure property is only used in the course of the 
Council's business, unless specific permission has been 
given by the Director to do otherwise. 

 

Trading accounts   
 

42 The CFO is responsible for advising Directors and Members on 
the establishment of trading accounts and business units.  

 

43 Directors are responsible for: 
 

a) consulting the CFO where a business unit wishes to enter 
into a contract with a third party where the contract expiry 
date exceeds the remaining life of their main contract with 
the Council. In general such contracts should not be 
entered into unless they can be terminated within the main 
contract period without penalty; 

 

b) observing all statutory requirements in relation to business 
units, including the maintenance of a separate revenue 
account to which all relevant income is credited and all 
relevant expenditure, including overhead costsare charged 
and to produce an annual report in support of the final 
accounts; 

 

c) ensuring the same accounting principles are applied in 
relation to trading accounts as for other services or 
business units. 

Page 463



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 38 

Part E 
 

External arrangements 
 
 

Introduction 
 

1 The Council exercises an important community leadership role, 
helping to orchestrate the contributions of various stakeholders in 
discharging its statutory responsibilities for promoting and 
improving the economic, social and environmental well-being of 
the area. 

 

Partnerships & joint working 
 
 

2 The CFO must satisfy him/herself that the accounting 
arrangements for all partnerships and joint ventures are proper 
and appropriate, including all audit and inspection requirements. 
He/she must also consider overall corporate governance 
arrangements and any legal and taxation issues when 
partnerships are arranged with external bodies.  He/she must 
ensure all known risks are appraised before entering into 
agreements with external bodies and seek to ensure VFM is 
obtained.  

 

3 The CFO is also be responsible for advising on the funding and 
financing of a project including: 

 

a) financial viability in current and future years; 
 

b) risk appraisal and risk management arrangements; 
 

c) resourcing and taxation; 
 

d) audit, security and control requirements; 
 

e) carry forward arrangements. 
 

4 Directors are responsible for: 
 

a) maintaining local registers of partnerships and entered into 
with external bodies in accordance with procedures 
specified by the CFO and providing information about 
those to the Head of Paid Service as required; 

 

b) ensuring that a risk management assessment has been 
carried out before entering into agreements with external 
bodies; 

 

c) ensuring that such agreements and arrangements do not 
impact adversely upon the services provided by the 
Council; 

 

d) ensuring that all agreements and arrangements are 
properly documented; 

Page 464



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 39 

 

e) providing appropriate information to the CFO to enable 
relevant entries to be made in the Council's Statement of 
Accounts concerning material items; 

 

f) ensuring that the appropriate approvals are obtained 
before any negotiations are concluded in relation to work 
with external bodies. 

 

External funding  
 

5 External funding can prove a very important source of additional 
income to an authority, but funding conditions need to be 
carefully examined before entering into any agreement to ensure 
they are compatible with the aims and objectives of the Council. 
Councils are being encouraged to provide seamless service 
delivery by working closely with other agencies and service 
providers (both public and private). Funds from external agencies 
such as the National Lottery and the single regeneration budget 
can provide additional resources for services. However, whilst the 
scope for funding has increased, it is usually linked to 
increasingly tight specifications and may not be flexible enough to 
meet the aims and objectives of the Council ambitions and plans.  

 

6 The CFO is responsible for: 
 

a) ensuring that all external funding is received and properly 
recorded in the Council’s accounts; 

 

b) match funding requirements are considered prior to 
entering into any agreement and that future revenue 
budgets reflect these requirements; 

 

c) ensuring all audit requirements are met. 
 

d) Provision of standard application documentation for 
discretionary grants. 

 
7 Directors are responsible for ensuring that: 
 

a) all claims for funds are made by the due date; 
 

b) the project progresses in accordance with the agreed 
project plan and all expenditure is properly incurred and 
recorded. 

 

Work for third parties 
 
8 Current legislation enables the Council to provide a range of 

services to other bodies. Such work may enable a unit to 
maintain economies of scale and existing expertise. 
Arrangements must be put in place to ensure that any risks 
associated with undertaking such work is minimised and that the 
work is done intra vires. All work should be properly costed in 

Page 465



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 40 

accordance with the advice and guidance of the CFO and done 
on the basis of a proper contract according to the  Contract 
Procedure Rules set out as supplementary guidance to these 
Regulations. 

 

9 The relevant Executive Member(s) are responsible for approving 
the contractual arrangements for work undertaken on behalf of a 
third party or external bodies. The CFO is responsible for issuing 
guidance with regard to the financial aspects of any third party 
contracts and the maintenance of the contracts register. Directors 
are responsible for: 

 

a) ensuring that the approval of the Executive Member is 
obtained before any negotiations are concluded to work for 
third parties; 

 

b) maintaining a register of all such contracts entered into 
with third parties in accordance with procedures specified 
by the CFO; 

 

c) ensuring that appropriate insurance arrangements have 
been made; 

 

d) ensuring that the Council is not put at risk from any bad 
debts; 

 

e) ensuring that no contract will be subsidised by the Council; 
 

f) ensuring that the service has the appropriate expertise to 
undertake the contract; 

 

g) ensuring that such contracts do not impact adversely upon 
the services provided to the Council; 

 
h) providing appropriate information to the CFO to allow 

entries to be made in the Council's final Statement of 
Accounts. 

 
i) ensuring that there is no conflict of interest with any third 

party provider 
 

Page 466



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 41 

Annex A 
Summary of Delegation & Reporting 

 

Revenue Virements 

 

Decision maker Delegated powers & authority Thresholds 

   

The Executive To approve virements between Service Plans in 
excess of £500k (either individually or in aggregate 
for the financial year) 

Over £500k up to 
the cash limits set 

by the Budget 
   

 To approve allocations of resources from approved 
contingencies and reserves 

As set by the annual 
Budget 

   

 To make recommendations to Full Council for the 
release of budget resources in excess of the 
approved contingencies and reserves 

As set by the annual 
Budget 

   

 To approve virements from within existing Service 
Plans or between Service Plans into new or 
otherwise unplanned functions and activities if 
savings are available to be re-directed into the new 
activity  

Over £500k  

   

   

Directors To approve virements within or between Service 
Plans within their Directorates in excess of £100k 
and up to £500k (either individually or in aggregate 
for the financial year) in consultation with the 
relevant Executive Member 

Over £100k and up 
to £500k 

 To approve virements from within existing Service 
Plans or between Service Plans within their 
Directorates into new or otherwise unplanned 
functions and activities if savings are available to 
vire into the new activity 

Over £100K and Up 
to £500k in 

consultation with the 
relevant Executive 

Member 

 To approve virements between directorates in 
consultation with the relevant directors 

Up to and including 
£50K in consultation 

with the relevant 
Executive Member 

   

   

Other Chief 
Officers 

To approve virements within their Service Plans up 
to £100k (either individually or in aggregate for the 
financial year) 

Up to £100k 

   

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 467



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 42 

Capital Virements 
 

Decision maker Delegated powers & authority Thresholds 

   

The Executive To approve individual virements between schemes 
in excess of £500k  

Over £500k  

   

 To re-phase approved scheme expenditure 
between years in excess of £500k for each scheme 

Over £500k 

   

   

Directors To approve individual virements between schemes 
in excess of £100K up to a maximum of £500k in 
consultation with the relevant Executive Member 

Over £100K and 
Up to and 

including £500k 
   

 To approve individual virements between schemes 
up to a maximum of £100k 

Up to and 
including £100k 

   

 

Venture Fund Bids 

 
Up to and including £50K CFO & Leader of Council 
Over £50K Executive 

 

Payment in Advance 

 
Up to and including £5K  Relevant Director 
Over £5K CFO 

 
Disposal of Surplus Assets (Land & Buildings) 
 
Up to and including £100K Head of Property Services (CL) in 

Consultation with CFO (Para 39 Page 45)  
Over £100K Executive 

 
Acquisition of Assets (Land & Buildings) 
 
Up to and including £100K Head of Property Services (CL) in 

Consultation with CFO (Para 39 Page 45) 
Over £100K Executive 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 468



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 43 

Debt Write-Off 

 

Decision maker Delegated powers & authority Thresholds 

   

The Executive Amounts exceeding £200,000 may only be written 
off on the authority of the Executive. The CFO  
shall maintain a record of all such write-offs 
showing attempted recovery action taken and the 
justification for non-recovery. 

Over £200k  

   

Executive Member Amounts over £10,000 and not exceeding 
£200,000 on the authority of the Executive Member 
(Corporate Services) in consultation with the CFO. 
The CFO shall maintain a record of all such write-
offs showing attempted recovery action taken and  
the justification for non-recovery 

Over £10k and up 
to and including 

£200K 

   

   

CFO Amounts over £5,000 and not exceeding £10,000 
on the authority of the CFO in consultation with the 
Executive Member (Corporate Services). The CFO 
shall maintain a record of all such write-offs 
showing attempted recovery action taken and the 
justification for non-recovery.   

Over £5k and up 
to and including 

£10k 

   

Chief Officers Amounts not exceeding £5000 may be written off 
by any Chief Officer in consultation with the CFO, 
who shall maintain a record of all such write-offs 
showing attempted recovery action taken and the 
justification for non-recovery.   

Over £100 and up 
to and including 

£5k 

   

   

Head of Financial 
Procedures 

Amounts not exceeding £100 may be written off by 
the Head of Financial Procedures , who shall 
maintain a record of all such write-offs showing 
attempted recovery action where taken and the 
justification for non-recovery.   

Up to and 
including £100 

   

 
 

. 

Page 469



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 44 

Glossary of terms 
 

 

Common terms 
  

   

 Budget A plan expressed in financial terms 

 Cost centre A budgeting level which usually reflects a whole service area, 
or main sub-category of a service. It encompasses a number 
of standard ‘subjective’ coding areas such as those used for 
staffing related costs, supplies & services, income etc 

 Capital The organisation’s total assets less its liabilities 

 Capital 
expenditure 

Expenditure to acquire fixed assets that will be of use for more 
than the year in which they are acquired and which adds to 
the Council’s tangible assets rather than simply maintaining 
existing ones 

 Revenue Income or expenditure, arising from or spent on, day to day 
activities and short lived commodities or consumables 

 Service plan A plan setting out the priorities and service ambitions 

 Virement A transfer of resources between or within approved cost 
centres for both revenue and capital purposes 

   

Acronyms   

   

 CFO The Chief Finance Officer 

 CIA The Chief Internal Auditor 

 CL Corporate Landlord 

 FMS The principal budgeting and financial information management 
system used at the Council 

 ITT Invitation to tender 

 MEAT Most Economically Advantageous Tender 

 MO The Monitoring Officer 

 NI(C) National Insurance (contributions) 

 PAYE Pay as you earn 

 VFM Value for Money 

 VAT Value Added Tax 

   

 

 

 

Page 470



City of York Council Financial Regulations  

 45 

Organisations   

   

 CIPFA The Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountancy 

 SOLACE Society of Local Authority Chief Executives 

 The Audit 
Commission 

Quasi autonomous non-governmental body charged with the 
independent audit of public sector organisations in the Local 
Government and Health arena  

 The District  
Auditor 

Independently appointed person responsible for the external 
audit of the Council. The District Auditor has various statutory 
powers and responsibilities for public reporting of the audit 

   

 

 

Page 471



Page 472

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 

   

 

Executive 21st July 2009 

 
Report of the Corporate Landlord 

 

Land at the Rear of Acomb Explore, Front Street, Acomb 

Summary 

1. This report asks members to approve the acquisition of two sites at the rear 
of Acomb Explore as an ‘opportunity purchase’ 

2. This report does not seek commitment to any proposed scheme.  

3. A further report will be brought to members when an option appraisal and 
business case have been concluded. 

4. This report also asks members to amend the capital programme and bring 
forward funding already approved from 2010/11 to 2009/2010. 

 Background 

5. On 16th February 2009, under minute number 187 (i) c) the Executive 
agreed, as part of the Capital Programme Budget – 2009/10 to 2013/14, the 
provision of £1.75m gross for the relocation of the current Acomb Office at 
50 York Road.  

6. The progress of this project and consequent expenditure to be dependant 
upon a full appraisal and business case, to be submitted to the Executive at 
a future meeting. 

7. The Corporate Landlord was aware of the availability of this land and had 
begun, in accordance with good asset management practice, to consider 
the ‘opportunities’ that may exist from its acquisition to support services in 
the Acomb area of the city. The ongoing Area Asset Management Plan for 
that area will identify needs from within the council, our partner 
organisations and the community. 

8. The Corporate Landlord, in consultation with HASS and the Admin Accom 
team, was also considering the future needs of 50 York Road, the Acomb 
Office. 

9. The subject sites comprise the following: 

 

Agenda Item 16Page 473



 

a. Acomb Bowling Club – shown edged blue on the attached plan at 
Annex A. Extends to an area of approximately 0.6 acres. Due to 
dwindling numbers and the age profile of the membership the trustees 
are looking to wind up the club and sell the site. Negotiations with the 
club have resulted in provisional agreement for the Council to acquire 
the property for the sum set  out in Exempt Annex 2, subject to 
planning consent being obtained for offices and Council related uses, 
satisfactory site survey and an overage provision should the Council 
not in the end proceed with any scheme and the land sold on for other 
more valuable uses. 

b. Land owned by Reynolds Homes – shown edged green on the plan at 
Annex A. Extends to an area of approximately 0.3 acres. The land has 
the benefit of detailed planning consent for the erection of three 
detached houses.  Provisional agreement has been reached to acquire 
the land for the sum set out in Exempt Annex 2 on an unconditional 
basis. 

10. The acquisition of these two parcels of land affords the opportunity to: 

a. create a new integrated service facility, subject to obtaining the 
relevant planning approvals, to combine council services in this part of 
York, notably the relocation of Acomb Housing Office. All directorate 
and service needs are being considered in that area of the city as part 
of the Area Asset Management Planning process. The Corporate Asset 
Management Group (CAMG) has, to date, received interest from 
several internal service needs as well as ongoing discussions with our 
partners at the PCT and North Yorkshire Police. North Yorkshire 
Ambulance Service already have a presence on site. 

b. Consider the release of land and property that would be no longer 
needed following successful relocation and rationalisation of services. 

c. The site may also offer the opportunity for the development and 
provision of affordable homes. 

11. The minute of the Executive on 16th February 2009 agreed that the £1.75m 
gross be split £0.5m in 2010/11 and £1.25m in 2011/2012. The Bowling 
Club acquisition is subject to planning and therefore the expenditure will not 
be incurred until 2010/11. However, Reynolds Homes are not prepared to 
wait until the next financial year, as they are wanting to acquire another site 
to replace the subject one. 

Consultation  

12. This report has been prepared in consultation with the Extended Corporate 
Asset Management Group, which includes representatives from North 
Yorkshire Fire and Rescue, North Yorkshire Police, and the local Primary 
Care Trust. 

Page 474



 

13. As part of the Acomb (South) Area Asset Management Plan consultation 
has taken place with local Ward members and residents, which has 
identified the need for additional service need in this area, particularly for 
young people. 

14. If option a) below is approved the next stages will be as follows: 

a) further extended meeting of the Corporate Asset Management Group to 
look at requirements for the site. 

b) Formation of a project team to take forward the scheme. 
c) Consultation with local ward members and conclusion of Acomb Area 

Asset Management Plan. 
d) Public consultation on use of the site and relocation of existing facilities. 
e) The provision of an option appraisal and a business case to be submitted 

to this Executive 
 

Options  

15.  The following three options are available: 
 

a) Acquire both sites and recommend to Full Council bringing forward 
expenditure in the Capital Programme to 09/10 to fund the acquisition of 
the land owned by Reynolds Homes and carry out initial scoping and 
feasibility work. 

b) Acquire the Bowling Club site only, funded in accordance with the 
approved Capital programme. 

c) Not proceed with the acquisitions. 
 

Analysis 
 

16. Option a) – acquire both sites. 
 
 Advantages : 
 Offers a unique opportunity to acquire land adjacent to an existing successful 

Council facility and develop to meet identified needs and facilities for the 
council and our partner organisations. This will allow them to be housed in 
more efficient and environmentally friendly buildings, thus allowing the Council 
to relinquish properties less suitable and more costly to run.  

 
 Disadvantages: 
 Funding in the Capital Programme would have to be brought forward from 

2010/2011, however, if this doesn’t happen Reynolds Homes have advised 
that they will commence work on site and the opportunity will then be lost. 

 
17. Option b) – acquire the Bowling Club site only 
 
 Advantages: 
 Would allow the appraisal and business case, as identified in the Capital 

Programme, to proceed as originally planned. 
 

Page 475



 

 Disadvantages: 
 A very much reduced site area and therefore limited as far as the co-location 

and relocation of services is concerned. Potential conflict with adjacent 
housing site once developed, especially as far as vehicle movements are 
concerned. 

 
18. Option c) – not proceed with acquisitions 
 
 Advantages: 
 Would allow Capital to be spent on other projects. 
 
 Disadvantages: 
 A lost opportunity to pursue good asset management practice and to relocate 

service provision from less efficient and less environmentally friendly buildings 
and co-locate services from partner organisations. 

 

Corporate Priorities 

19. The successful delivery of this scheme will help to achieve a number of the 
themes of the Corporate Strategy 2009/10 including: 

a) Sustainable City – any new development taking place will be in 
accordance with the Council’s sustainable objectives and will allow the 
release of less environmentally friendly buildings. 

b) Safer city – from the possible Police presence on site. 

c) Inclusive City – this scheme has the potential to make Council services 
easier to access. 

d) Healthy City – potential co-location of services with the PCT 

e) Effective Organisation – adhering to government guidelines regarding best 
practice in asset management; much better and more effective working 
conditions for staff. 

f) Admin Accomm – moving from a less efficient building, and saving on rent 
and service charge. 

g) Corporate Asset Management Plan – Property Output 7 encouraging the 
sharing of assets with other Council and partner services. 

20. Implications 

a) Financial – funding identified in the Capital Programme 2009/10 to 
2013/14 totals £1.75m and is split £0.5m in 2010/11 and £1.25m in 
2011/12.  In order to purchase both parcels of land part of the funding 
needs to be brought forward to 2009/10. As a result there will be a need 
for short term prudential borrowing which will result in increased finance 
costs. This is estimated at £40k, which will be met from the existing 
corporate treasury management budget allocation.   

Page 476



 

b) It should be noted that a detailed business case needs to be drawn up for 
approval before the £1.75m scheme can proceed in 2010/11 to ensure it is 
financially robust.  If the scheme is not financially viable then it will be 
withdrawn from the Capital Programme. 

c) In the interim, if approval is given to purchase the land and then the 
scheme is not approved overall, then the land can be sold and the capital 
receipt received used to support the rest of the Capital programme.   

d) Human Resources (HR) – there are no HR implications 

e) Equalities – easier access to facilities. 

f) Legal - there are no legal implications other than the usual legal 
formalities associated with conveying the sites, subject to any 
conditions/covenants as set out in this report. 

 
g) Crime and Disorder – there are no crime and disorder implications other 

than the potential for a Police presence on site should this scheme 
proceed. 

h) Information Technology (IT) – there are no IT implications. 

i) Property – the implications are set out in this report. The Corporate 
Landlord approves this proposal as it has been discussed at the Corporate 
Asset Management Groups and is in accordance with objectives set out in 
the Corporate Asset Management Plan 2007-2012. See paragraph 6 
above. 

 Risk Management 
 

21. Bowling Club site – risk of not obtaining planning permission for offices and 
Council related uses and thus possibly losing deposit, although not yet 
agreed. 

  
22. Reynolds Homes site – as above there is the risk of planning consent not 

being forthcoming. However, with the existing planning consent the site could 
be used for affordable housing or be sold on. As a minimum the acquisition 
cost will be covered as it is anticipated that, in time to come, market 
conditions will improve.  

 

 Recommendations 

23. Members are asked to: 

 Approve Option a): Acquire both sites and recommend to Full Council bringing 
forward expenditure in the Capital Programme to 09/10, as identified in the 
exempt section of this report, to fund the acquisition of the land. 

 
22. Reason: to secure land at the rear of Acomb Explore as an opportunity 

purchase. In addition this will provide the opportunity for further rationalisation 

Page 477



 

of Council properties and joint working with partner organisations in one 
location. 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Chief Officer’s name: Neil Hindhaugh  
Title: Assistant Director Property Services 
 

Report Approved √ Date 9 July 2009 

Author’s name: Tim Bradley  
Title: Asset Manager 
Dept Name: Property Services 
Tel No. 553355 
 

 

Specialist Implications Officers 
Louise Branford-White 
Technical Finance Manager 
Strategic Finance 
Tel No. 551197 
 
Quentin Baker 
Head of Civic Democratic and Legal Services 
Tel No. 551004 

  Ward Affected:  Westfield 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 

Background Papers: 
 

File No. G00121 held in Asset and Property Management, Property Services 
Minute No. 187 of the Executive Meeting on 16th February 2009. 
 
Annexes 
Annex 1 – Plan showing the sites at the Rear of Acomb Explore 
Exempt Annex 2 – The offers made for the purchase of the two sites and the current 
rent and service charge at 50 York Road, Acomb. 
 

Page 478



Page 479



Page 480

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 481
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 482

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 

   

 

Executive 
 

21 July 2009  

 
Report of the Director of Learning, Culture and Children’s Services 

 

Secondary Education Provision on the East side of the City 

Summary 

1. This report summarises a complex set of issues and challenges facing the local 
authority and its schools on the east side of the city and seeks the views of members 
on a preferred way forward. This is an urgent item in order to fulfil a commitment from 
the local authority to consider options before the end of term.  

Background 

2. Demographic changes have seen secondary school numbers in York decline since 
2003, a trend that will continue until 2015. Based on children already in the system, 
numbers will however rise again in secondary schools from 2016, reflecting a rising 
birth rate in York over recent years. 

3. Other factors will also affect future demand for school places. The potential impact of 
planned new housing developments at Derwenthorpe, Germany Beck and the 
University expansion as well as possible longer term demand arising from the Local 
Development Framework (LDF), makes forecasting the required numbers of school 
places particularly difficult. 

4. Declining numbers of secondary students across the city has increased the choice of 
secondary school available to many parents. As a result more have been getting their 
stated first preference of secondary school. However, one further consequence of this 
has been a significant reduction in the number of parents who live within the catchment 
area of Burnholme Community College choosing the local school for their children.  

5. It is, however, important to recognise that those parents who have chosen Burnholme 
value the school very highly. This is evident from the well attended public meeting held 
at the school recently, ongoing media coverage, correspondence received during 
recent weeks, and parental views set out in the recent Ofsted report. 

6. In 2008 the school was listed as a “National Challenge” school because fewer than 
30% of students were attaining 5+ A*–C at GCSE including English and Maths. This 
report details recent significant improvements in standards. Importantly, the recent 
Ofsted inspection of the school rated it as “Good” in all key judgements. Examination 
results for 2009 are expected to improve from 2008 and to be well above the level set 
for National Challenge schools. 

Agenda Item 18aPage 483



7. Burnholme Community College is an important community facility and resource, 
providing nursery, adult education and sports facilities. 

8. Local authorities are required by the Audit Commission to keep surplus capacity under 
review and to ensure that, as far as possible, the supply of school places matches 
demand. This ensures that money intended for educating children is not being used to 
maintain empty buildings.  

Analysis  

9. Annex 1 shows the expected number of 11–16 students across the city as a whole 
between 2001 and 2020. Overall numbers will continue to fall until 2015 and then begin 
to rise. This is shown in primary school numbers, which are now starting to rise 
reflecting an increasing birth rate. 

10. Annex 2 shows the numbers of secondary students living within the catchment area of 
Burnholme Community College. This shows a secondary school age population of over 
650 during the period 2002–20. The annex also shows the number actually attending 
the Community College. This has fallen from around 500 in 2001 to around 363 in 
September 2009. 

11. Future projections are largely dependent upon the impact of parental preference and 
assumptions about future housing developments. If recent patterns of parental 
preference continue, it seems highly likely that the school roll will fall to between 270 
and 320 by 2012. However, it should be noted that future projections of student 
numbers can only be rough estimates as parental preferences can change quickly. 

12. In 2009 the school received around 40 first preferences and a total of 50 children are 
expected to start at the school in September. The college needs a Year 7 intake of at 
least 60 to maintain an overall number of 300 students and an intake of 80 each year to 
maintain 400. There are around 140 children living in the Burnholme catchment area 
seeking admission to City of York schools in September 2009.  

13. The planned housing development at Derwenthorpe is expected to generate a total of 
around 80 additional secondary age students. Other various small developments in the 
catchment area are likely to generate an additional small number of secondary age 
students. Derwenthorpe plans include the use of, and a contribution to, the leisure 
facilities already on the Burnholme site. 

14. Other housing developments are planned in neighbouring areas (e.g. Germany Beck) 
where schools are already full, although the current financial climate has slowed the 
pace of those developments.   

15. Declining student numbers means that schools receive less funding, usually resulting in 
a reduction in the number of staff. It then becomes more difficult to maintain a full 
curriculum and to offer a range of options particularly at 14, or to organise subject 
teaching in ability groups where that is appropriate. Staff cannot be replaced when they 
leave and there are fewer opportunities for promotion to retain ambitious staff. 

16. Burnholme Community College has been successful over the last three years in 
managing declining numbers and maintaining curriculum choice; however it is 
becoming increasingly difficult for the school to balance its budget. Nevertheless, the 
school and its governors are powerful advocates of the merits of maintaining a 

Page 484



relatively small school within the overall framework, particularly in terms of a more 
personalised approach to teaching and learning. 

Consideration of Options 

17.  Recent legislation has increased the range of options to be considered when schools 
are challenged by falling roles or where they are subject to the National Challenge. The 
local authority has had discussions with the DCSF (National Challenge), the Office of 
the Schools’ Commissioner and Governing Bodies. The following options have been 
considered : 

a) Maintaining the school by providing additional financial support  as numbers of 
students fall   

b) Consultation on a potential future closure of Burnholme Community College and 
expansion of other schools. 

c) Creation of a new Academy School 

d) Federation with other schools 

e) Merging with another school 

f) Creation of an all-through primary and secondary school 
 
g) Development of a new Partnership with other educational providers to enhance 

provision on the Burnholme   Community College 

18. After careful analysis and discussion with governing bodies, officers believe that at this 
time only options (a) and (b) represent possible sustainable ways forward for the 
school, and a more detailed assessment of each of these options is set out below.  

Option A - Maintaining the school 

19. This option seeks to maintain the present arrangements by providing additional 
financial support to the school whilst numbers are low (the financial implications are set 
out from paragraph 30 below). The Governing Body at Burnholme Community College 
have proposed a strategy for attracting additional students in future years by building 
on its recent very positive Ofsted report, improved examination results, and a sustained 
campaign of local community engagement. Governors are seeking a clear statement of 
support from the local authority in order to give parents and the community confidence 
that the school has a future as the next admission round approaches. 

20.  A key consideration is that of educational standards. The college achieved its best 
ever 5+ A*–C GCSE results in 2008 (up from 52% to 54%), although the figure 
including English and Maths was 21%, placing the college below the National 
Challenge threshold of 30%. However the school is expecting in 2009 to achieve 44% 
for 5+ A*–C including English and Maths, and 58% 5+ A*-C. This would be a very 
noteworthy performance.   

21. These significant improvements have been recognised by Ofsted in their most recent 
(2009) report, This concluded that “Burnholme provides a good and improving quality 
of education”. Ofsted reported that the “school has moved forward considerably under 
the strong new leadership of the headteacher”, that “Governance is strong” and that the 

Page 485



school has “good capacity to improve further”. Ofsted also conclude that that the school 
achieves “good value for money” and concluded that “achievement is good throughout 
the school”. 

22. For many parents a real strength of the school is its small size, promoting a very 
personalised approach to learning. Parental responses to Ofsted were “very positive” 
and indicated a “high level of support”. The inspector noted: ”there are improved links 
with parents but the school recognises that levels of engagement with some parents 
are not yet high enough to raise attendance further”. 

23. The LA has considered the governing body ’s proposal and officers believe that the 
school fully recognises the scope and financial implications of the current situation. The 
governors have set out a vision that maximises the opportunities created for the school 
by the positive contents of the recent Ofsted inspection. The governors have 
researched in some detail the reasons why parents have been seeking alternative 
schools in recent years. The governors are seeking new partnerships with the private 
sector but are realistic about the level of funding which may be accessed through this 
route.  

24. Officers also consider that the proposals need further development in some key areas, 
notably in the detail of the planned marketing strategy and of ways of improving 
Burnholme’s reputation with local parents. The delivery is dependent upon the capacity 
of current volunteer governors and a senior leadership team also charged with the day 
to day running of the school. Further support to the work of the governing body would 
be available from the local authority. 

25. A key question for the local authority is how the school will maintain the quality of 
teaching and learning with a falling school roll. The Assistant Director responsible for 
school improvement in York has met with the Headteacher to discuss future curriculum 
and staffing plans. She considers that the school has taken realistic and considered 
steps to maintain both the breadth and quality of curriculum during this period of 
financial constraint. This has been achieved by flexible sharing of internal roles and 
through creative use of partnerships with other schools.  

26. Provided that the recent improvements in standards are sustained, and the school is 
able to be innovative and creative it marketing itself, officers believe that the school has 
a realistic chance of attracting and retaining additional students in future years.   

Option B phased closure of Burnholme and the expansion of other secondary 
schools. 

27. A second option would be to prepare for a formal public consultation on the future of 
the school. Such consultation could be initiated through an Executive decision in the 
autumn. This would include consideration of a phased closure of Burnholme and the 
expansion of other secondary schools 

28. However, before commencing a public consultation the council would need to be 
confident that a phased closure is deliverable, affordable and in the best interests of 
students and the wider schools community. This would require further consideration of 
several key issues including: 

Page 486



• balancing the financial pressures on the school with the longer term uncertainty 
about student numbers on the east of the city in light of potential future housing 
developments and rising birth rates; 

• the availability of capital funding to support expansion of other schools, given  the 
current lack of clarity about the future of the Building Schools for the Future (BSF) 
programme; 

• the views of the governing bodies of other schools; 

• in the event of closure, an assessment of the number of parents who will express a 
preference for places at non-faith schools; 

• recognition that the process of consulting on the future of the school could, of itself, 
be damaging and become self-fulfilling – leading to a steep decline in applications 
for places at the school for September 2010. 

29. This proposal would address the immediate issue of surplus places. Despite enhanced 
CVA results and overall performance improvements, the number of parents making 
Burnholme Community College their school of choice has not increased to date, 
although uncertainty about the future of the school has no doubt impacted upon this. 
Creating some additional capacity at other local schools appears as a logical option. 
However, it should also be recognised that: 

• Burnholme Community College has a strong local identity and important community 
facilities are provided through the school. 

• Burnholme Community College is the school of choice for at least 40 families per 
year at present. 

• Burnholme Community College has a higher than average proportion of children 
with Special Educational Needs. It has been argued that these needs are better met 
in a smaller and local school setting. 

• The recent “good” Ofsted report and improved examination results may help attract 
more students to the school, making a considerable difference to current projected 
numbers. 

• An increase in capacity at other schools would require significant capital investment 
with some disruption to school life. 

• Any proposed closure would need to ensure that key staff are retained and 
redeployed to ensure continuity for students through a period of change. 

These issues would be fully explored in a further report to the Executive in the autumn if 
required.  
 

Corporate Objectives 

The issues in this paper clearly relate to the Learning City priority of the Corporate 
Strategy which strives to ensure “that local people have access to world-class education 
and training facilities and provision” that will “help them to develop the skills and 
aspirations they need to play an active part in society and contribute to the life of the city”.  

Page 487



 

Financial Implications 

30. In 2006 the Schools’ Forum agreed to change several factors within the funding 
formula for schools. These included increases in funding for schools on split-sites and 
the introduction of a small schools factor that provides additional resources where a 
secondary school falls below 450.  

31. Burnholme is the smallest secondary school in the city serving some of the most 
deprived areas of the city and, as a consequence, the school has the highest level of 
per pupil formula funding at around £5,052 per pupil for 2009/10, compared to an 
average across the city of £3,680. 

32. Research indicates that there are around 20 secondary schools in the country that are 
between 300 and 400 students, of which 9 are in urban settings. Comparison of 
spending per pupil shows that Burnholme is currently at the lower end of the range of 
expenditure per pupil at these particular schools.  

33.  In 2009/10 the school has a revenue budget of around £2.366m. The school has a 
cumulative revenue deficit at 31 March 2009 of £121k. The in-year deficit is expected 
to be £72k in 2009/10. This is after allowing for the small school factor built into the 
funding formula. If the school remains open, the deficit will increase further as overall 
pupil numbers fall unless expenditure is reduced further or additional resources are 
identified. 

34. More detail is provided at Annex 3.This shows three different scenarios, the first 
showing the impact on school finances assuming that only 50 students join the school 
each year. The second scenario assumes a small rise in numbers joining the school 
(rising to from 50 to 60 by 2011). The third assumes a more optimistic rise in pupil 
numbers that the school believes is achievable (rising from 50 to at least 70 by 2011). 

35. Under the 3 scenario’s the school will require an additional amount of around £335K 
(including the existing  £121k deficit) up until the end of the current school funding 
period at 31 March 2011.   

36. As the allocation of Direct Schools Grant (DSG) has already been set until the end of 
2010/11 there is little scope to redirect resources that have already been allocated to 
other schools. There is, however, a one-off provision of £176k within the Schools 
Specific Contingency budget for 2009/10 that could be used for this purpose. This 
would leave around £160k (including the cumulative deficit), to be found from other 
sources.  

37.  Members do have the option of topping up the Dedicated Schools Grant from the 
General Fund resources, particularly if it was felt that the decision to support a small 
school in Burnholme's circumstances was seen as a wider community issue, not just an 
educational one. One option for the Executive would be to write-off the current deficit 
(£121K) through a one-off payment from the council’s contingency provision. Any such 
funding would need to be viewed as a one-off payment to support a school in 
exceptional circumstances which does not set a precedent for additional support to 
schools in any other circumstances. If this option was agreed, a further £38K would 
need to be met from the general school contingency  in 2010/11.   

Page 488



38.  The additional resources to be met from the  DSG beyond 2010/11 will depend upon 
the number of students joining the school each year and this is shown in Annex 3.  The 
Schools Forum will be fully consulted on any further changes to the funding formula 
that may be required. The Local Authority would work closely with the school in 
monitoring the school budget and progress would be reported to the Executive 
member.  

39. The General Contingency for 2009/10 was set at £600k.  Potential areas that might 
require funding during the year were identified as part of the budget process, and 
totalled just under £1m, which included £400k for Landfill Tax costs and £200k for 
Access York Phase II Bid Preparation (dependant on whether the preliminary bid made 
in February 2009 is approved).  This request was not included in the £944k pressures 
identified in the budget.  To date £120k has been released leaving £480k to meet 
remaining demands in the current financial year.  It is too early to know how many of 
the identified areas of financial pressure will be brought before Members for funding, or 
at what value, but it expected that the demands will exceed the provision available.  
Any release from the contingency will obviously reduce sums available for distribution 
during the remainder of the year.  The balance available, if this application is approved, 
will be £359k. 

Other Implications 

• Human Resources (HR) : there are no specific HR implications of Option A. Option 
B carries considerable HR implications the details of which would be covered in any 
further paper which sought to progress this option. ) 

• Equalities: a key relevant priority within the Local Area Agreement and therefore 
the Corporate Strategy is to seek to reduce the inequalities of outcomes achieved 
by young people within different communities across the city. This paper is relevant 
to the debate on how such progress is achieved.)      

• Legal: There are no legal implications in relation to Option A. Option B could only 
be progressed within the context of clear statutory requirements.  

• There are no specific Crime and Disorder or Information Technology (IT) 
implications of this paper.  

• Property:  Option B would carry significant property issues which would again be 
covered in any further report 

Risk Management 
 

40. The issues covered in this paper carry various risks of individual, institutional and  
financial nature. Risks of disrupting the education and future educational opportunities 
afforded to local children and young people. Risks of undermining current 
arrangements through even considering initiating a consultation process which could 
see the closure of a school where wider community facilities are located. Both options 
carry financial risks particularly if the school is unable to attract their projected 
increases in numbers or if capital expenditure pre-empts future demographic changes, 
BSF announcements and progress on new housing developments.  
 

Page 489



Conclusion 

41. The complexity of this situation has been recognised by headteachers across the city. 
Given the concerns about projected levels of public funding including funding to 
schools for the coming years, the LA must ensure that limited resources are spent 
wisely in meeting the needs of children and young people.   

42.  Good decision-making is facilitated by good information and data. There remains 
some considerable uncertainty regarding local demographic projections, progress on 
key housing developments and announcements on the “Building Schools for the 
Future” programme in York, as well as the suitability, viability and appropriateness of 
other alternative solutions.  

43. Discussions about Burnholme’s future were prompted both by ongoing concerns about 
numbers and also in response to the school’s National Challenge status. Since then 
the school has delivered significant improvements in exam results and has received its 
most positive Ofsted inspection result. This provides an excellent opportunity for the 
governing body and the LA to promote the school in the local community. To take 
advantage of this opportunity requires additional resources to be redirected to the 
school.  

Recommendations 

The Executive is asked to: 

Consider the report and to determine whether the Local Authority should either:  

A) Maintain and support the development of Burnholme Community College by 
providing the additional funding that is needed (as described in paragraph 36-38 of 
this report), including £121k to be released from the Council’s contingency. 

or: 

B) Bring forward a report to the Executive in the autumn term analysing in more detail 
the option of a formal public consultation on the closure of Burnholme Community 
College and the expansion of other schools as required. 

Page 490



 

Contact Details 
Authors: 

 
Pete Dwyer 
Pete Dwyer 
Director of Learning, Culture and Children’s 
Services 
 
Report Approved √ Date 14/07/09 

 
 

√ 

Pete Dwyer  
Director  
Learning, Culture and Children’s 
Services 
01904 554200 

 

Kevin Hall 
Assistant Director  
Resource Management 
01904 554207 
 
Jill Hodges Assistant Director  
School Improvement  
01904 554207 
 

Report Approved 

 

Date 14/07/09 

Specialist Implications Officer(s)   
Richard Hartle 
Head of Finance 
01904 554225                                

All √ Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

Annexes 

Annex 1: Projected demand for secondary school places across the city for the next ten 
years 

Annex 2: The number of pupils attending BCC in recent years and projected numbers 

Annex 3: Impact of student numbers – Financial Implications 

Page 491



Annex `1 – Projected demand for secondary school places 

11 - 16 Pupils Across the City

8000

8200

8400

8600

8800

9000

9200

9400

9600

9800

0
1

/0
2

0
2

/0
3

0
3

/0
4

0
4

/0
5

0
5

/0
6

0
6

/0
7

0
7

/0
8

0
8

/0
9

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

1
2

/1
3

1
3

/1
4

1
4

/1
5

1
5

/1
6

1
6

/1
7

1
7

/1
8

1
8

/1
9

1
9

/2
0

Academic Year

P
u

p
ils

 o
n

 R
o

ll

Aggregated School level forecasts (including housing data)

Aggregated School level forecasts (no housing data)

 

P
a
g

e
 4

9
2



Annex  2 – The number of pupils attending BCC in recent years and the projected decline of pupil numbers 

Pupils on roll at Burnholme Community College, 01/02 - 19/20

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900
0

1
/0

2

0
2

/0
3

0
3

/0
4

0
4

/0
5

0
5

/0
6

0
6

/0
7

0
7

/0
8

0
8

/0
9

0
9

/1
0

1
0

/1
1

1
1

/1
2

1
2

/1
3

1
3

/1
4

1
4

/1
5

1
5

/1
6

1
6

/1
7

1
7

/1
8

1
8

/1
9

1
9

/2
0

Academic Year

P
u

p
ils

ACTUALS Standard (housing)
Standard (non housing) Adjusted housing (high estimate)
Adusted housing (low estimate) Forecasts updated with 2009 trend data
Burnhome catchment population (no housing)

 

P
a
g
e
 4

9
3



                                          Annex 3     Long Term Financial Planning Options  

 
Burnholme Community College      

           

Option 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 

                   

1 - Constant Year 7 Intake                   

 September Year 7 Intake 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 

 Total Pupil Number (Sept) 341 314 272 254 250 250 250 250 250 

 Additional Funding Requirement £72k £143k £216k £374k £411k £453k £453k £453k £453k 

                    

2 - Slowly Rising Year 7 Intake                   

 September Year 7 Intake 50 55 60 65 70 70 70 70 70 

 Total Pupil Number (Sept) 341 319 287 284 300 320 335 345 350 

 Additional Funding Requirement £72k £144k £197k £307k £323k £319k £281k £251k £228k 

                    

3 - Rising Year 7 Intake                   

 September Year 7 Intake 50 65 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 

 Total Pupil Number (Sept) 341 328 307 311 327 347 353 352 352 

 Additional Funding Requirement £72k £147k £161k £226k £281k £252k £226k £206k £209k 

           

           

Notes          

1 
There is an additional Funding requirement for all options in 2009-10 of £121K to cover the cumulative deficit as at 31st 
March 2009  

2 All additional funding requirements have been estimated at 2009-10 prices therefore exclude inflation.   

 

 

 

P
a
g

e
 4

9
4



                                                                                                 Annex 3 (ii)   Long Term Financial Planning Options Summary 

 

The table below summarises the additional revenue funding that will be required to support the school under each of the scenarios: 

 

 Scenario 1 Scenario 2 Scenario 3 

 
Constant Pupil 

Numbers 
Slowly Rising 

Pupil Numbers 
Rising  

 Pupil Numbers 

 £m £m £m 

Existing Deficit balance at 31/03/2009 0.121 0.121 0.121 

Additional funding required over the 2 
years 2009/10 & 2010/11 (i.e. the current 
school funding settlement period) 

0.214 0.216 0.218 

Total to the end of current school funding 
period – March 2011 

0.335 0.337 0.339 

Additional funding required for 3 year 
period from 2011/12 to 2013/14 

1.001 0.827 0.668 

Additional annual funding required  

2014/15 
0.453 0.319 0.252 

 

Note – all figures are at 2009/10 equivalent prices 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

9
5



Page 496

This page is intentionally left blank



 

  

 

   

Executive  21 July 2009 
 
Report of the Head of Information Technology and Telecommunications 
 

Selection of a Supplier for a Managed Voice and Data Network 
 
Purpose of This report 

1. This report outlines options for selecting a supplier of a managed Voice and 
Data Network. The bids made by the two short listed suppliers are set out in 
Annex 2, which contains sensitive commercial data and is confidential. The 
recommendation of the head of ITT who has led this tendering exercise is to 
select Supplier B who offer an 8 year, full managed service for both voice and 
data, for the entire CYC estate, Urban Traffic Management Systems (UTMS) 
and broadband connections to schools. 

2. Following an extensive tender evaluation on the MEAT criteria (Most 
Economically Advantageous Tender) where 60% of the evaluation score is 
based upon quality and 40% is based on cost; the successful tenderer is not 
the one with the lowest cost. The constitution indicates that where this is the 
case the decision to award the contract must be taken by the Executive 
Member. However, because this contract value exceeds £500k this is a Key 
decision and is therefore reserved for Executive. This has been placed on the 
Executive agenda as an urgent item because there are significant risks in 
extending existing contracts further (incumbent suppliers may not agree to do 
so) and this arrangement is already costing is £10k per month more than 
budget.   

 

Background 

3. In July 2002 the voice and data network was outsourced to a managed service 
provider called Damovo. In 2001, as part of a separate procurement the 
schools and libraries broadband network was procured from Kingston 
Communications (now called Affinity). In 2007 it was decided to combine the 
requirements under both of these contracts and procure a single solution in 
order to drive more benefit from the increased revenue spend. The thinking 
behind this decision was that the market would be able to provide more cost 
effective services if the two services were tendered together. Both existing 
contracts were extended whilst a specification was drawn up and a full 
restricted OJEU procurement exercise was undertaken.   

 

Data & data Network 

4. During the term of the existing managed service contract the network has 
been replaced with a converged IP based voice and data network that runs at 
high speeds and has been very resilient. The move to the new HQ in 2012 will 
require a move of infrastructure and a further upgrade/refresh of technologies 

Agenda Item 18bPage 497



to enable flexible working and reflect the change in networking technologies 
over the last 7 years. The re-tendering of this contract will once again provide 
us with an upgrade of networking platform and will give the Council a modern, 
state of the art voice and data network with a potential life expectancy of 5-7 
years at no additional capital cost. 

 

What is a Managed Service? 

 
5. A Managed service contracts for a 99.95% availability of the network, 

guaranteeing performance standards. The contract ensures that the network 
service is delivered irrespective of components failing or heavy traffic 
throughput. This means that the actual network assets belong to the Managed 
Service provider for the duration of the contract. The provider will then 
maintain and manage them to deliver the guaranteed level of service. At the 
end of the contract they will transfer these devices back to the Council. 

6. This Managed services includes a technology refresh, upgrading or replacing 
equipment during the course of the contract. These assets will then transfer to 
the Council at the end of the contract.  

Tender Exercise 

7. In March 2008, CYC IT started a EU procurement exercise for a managed 
voice and data network service.   A formal competition notice was placed in 
the European Journal (OJEU) and 5 companies responded to the Pre-
qualification Questionnaires.  Following analysis of the supplier submissions 
against minimum standards for technical capability, experience and financial 
standing, 3 companies were short listed to receive CYC's Invitation to tender. 
Following initial evaluation and site visits these suppliers were asked to submit 
Best And Final Offers (BAFO’s). Suppliers were ranked in order and the 
highest ranking supplier was awarded preferred bidder status. During the 
course of due diligence it became clear that there were some inaccuracies in 
the information provided by existing contractors which led us to review the 
status of the BAFO submissions. Discussions were held with the preferred 
supplier and as a result Revised and Final Offers (RAFOs) were requested 
from the top two short listed suppliers. 

 

8. These RAFOs were then evaluated using the original agreed MEAT criteria by 
the original evaluation team. The scores for these bids are identified in 
confidential commercial Annex 1. A financial summary of the two bids is also 
attached in confidential Annex 2. 

. 

Options 

The shortlist 
 
9. The technical design for each solution is different and there are different 

benefits and risks associated with each 
 
10. Option 1 - Supplier A – The solution is based upon provision of 100mb links 

to secondary schools and 10mb to primary schools with a 1gb backbone. 

Page 498



There is limited virus checking (no scanning of the content of emails which 
was set out as a essential requirement and is seen as being a significant risk) 
The bid is the cheapest but evaluation of the quality of the proposal produced 
a lower score.  There is capacity for future expansion of bandwidth across the 
network but this would require significant change to the technical design 
(upgrading individual leased lined). 

 
11. Option 2 - Supplier B – This solution delivers an innovative design based 

upon the creation of a dedicated 10gb fibre backbone with a minimum of 1 Gb 
provision to the majority of schools and 300mb to 5 remote schools. This will 
be delivered via a fibre network running through the waterways/sewers of the 
city. The proposal is 2.1% more expensive than Option 1 but scores higher on 
quality, particularly with regard to virus scanning. The bandwidth of the 
network could be expanded in future without any significant change to the 
technical architecture. This option also presents opportunities to exploit the 
dedicated network for other uses (potentially revenue generation) but this 
element of the proposal has not been evaluated, as it did not form part of the 
specification.  

 
12. Option 3 – Cancel the procurement and re-tender – This would leave us open 

to challenge from at least two parties (Supplier A and B) and would almost 
certainly result in increased costs as these RAFOs are based upon costs 
when the dollar exchange rate was more favourable and this would impact 
upon the provision of hardware. This would also have a negative impact upon 
the credibility of CYC in conducting major procurement exercised. This option 
has therefore been ruled out. 

 
 

Financial Implications 

13. The available budget for the contract is set out below.  
 
Budget 8 years 

£,000 
Managed Service Voice & data network 6,120 

UTMS 669 
LCCS broadband 5,931 
One off funding – see para 16 1,100 
TOTAL 13,820 
 

 
14. A full table of the existing budget and the costs of all the Options is attached 

as Annex 2.  
 
15. The revenue budgets have been calculated to include inflation at 2%. This 

tender is affordable within existing revenue budget. Schools will be charged 
for their elements of the contract. The contract will enable us to avoid 
additional capital costs and may generate small revenue savings and may 
provide opportunities for revenue generation as mentioned in para 11. 

 
16. There is £900k of DCSF grant funding from LCCS, which has to be spent in 

2009/10 and 20010/11. There is also an assumption of a further £200k capital 

Page 499



from the HQ project in 2012 to fund the move to the new HQ. This sum is 
within the predicted spend as part of the overall HQ budget. 

 
Legal Implications 

17. The Council has set out its MEAT evaluation methodology in all its OJEU 
tender documentation and it is therefore legally bound to apply these criteria 
fairly, rigorously and transparently. The tender which scored the most points 
on the basis of both cost and  quality must be selected or else the Council 
could face legal challenge which would lead to a court injunction to prevent 
award of the contract followed by a potential fine. This could be a significant 
sum. 

18. Given the value of the contract and the nature of the award criteria the final 
decision on award of this contract needs to be ratified by the Executive as it 
has not been specifically delegated to an individual Executive Member or an 
Officer. 

  

Human Resources (HR) Implications 

19. As part of the original outsourcing of the managed service contract one 
member of CYC staff was TUPE transferred to the supplier. That supplier will 
now TUPE transfer that staff member and between 2 and 3 additional people 
to the successful tenderer. This has no HR implications for CYC .  

Consultation 

20. Schools have been consulted on their requirements and these have been fed 
into both the specification and the analysis. 

Implications 

21. The implications this report are: - 

• Financial  - Covered in the report 

• Human Resources (HR)  - Covered in the report 

• Equalities  - Equalities standards have been built into the procurement 
exercise and will be built into the contract. Compliance with these terms 
will be managed as part of contract management activity. A desktop EIA 
has been completed. It is not thought that the implementation of  the 
contract will have any impact on staff or customers other than to 
improve access to computer facilities.  

• Legal – Covered in the report  

• Crime and Disorder – no implications 

• Information Technology (IT) – The letting of this contract will support 
the delivery of the Corporate IT Strategy. Detailed implications are 
covered in this report.  

 
22. Risk Management –There is a risk associated with failing to let the contract 

as the current arrangements exceed budget. There is also a possibility that the 
incumbent supplier may not wish to extend the contract as they are one of the 
two short listed suppliers. The greater risk is that we face a challenge to the 
procurement process through EU courts due to a failure to apply the OJEU 
legislation appropriately. 

Page 500



 

Recommendations 

23. That the Executive agree to appoint Supplier B on the basis of the agreed 
evaluation MEAT method. 

Reasons 

24. To enable the Council to let a contract that will provide fast and resilient 
access to computer systems and to develop its network in the new HQ. 

Contact Details 

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
 Chief Officer’s name  Ian Floyd 
 
Title                       Director of Resources -  
 

Author’s name  

 
Tracey Carter 
AD Resources – Transformation 
& Efficiency 
 
Dept Name  Resources 
Tel No. 553419 

Report Approved √ Date 27
th

 May 2009 

All √ Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
Contact Details  
  
Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Name       Tracey Carter 
Job Title   AD Resources – Transformation & Efficiency   
Phone No Ext. 3419 

Name     Ian Floyd 
Job Title  Director of Resources 

For further information please contact the author of the report 

 
Background Papers: 
 
 

Annex 1 – Tender Evaluation scores 
Annex 2 - Financial Assessment of bids 

Page 501



Page 502

This page is intentionally left blank



Selection of a supplier for a Managed Voice and Data Network 

Annex 1 
 
MEAT Evaluation Scores 
 

  Supplier A Supplier B 

    

Cost Points 23.29 16.71 

Quality Points 26.43 33.57 

Total Points 49.72 50.28 

Ranking 2 1 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 503



Page 504

This page is intentionally left blank



P
a
g
e
 5

0
5

B
y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



P
a
g

e
 5

0
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	
	3 Minutes
	5 Executive Forward Plan
	6 Sustainable Communities Act 2007 â•ﬁ Final Update and proposals
	Annex 1 Sustainable Communities Act
	Annex 2 Sustainable Communities Act
	Annex 3 Sustainable Communities Act
	Annex 4 Sustainable Communities Act
	Annex 5 Sustainable Communities Act
	Annex 6 Sustainable Communities Act
	Annex 7 Sustainable Communities Act

	7 Council Headquarters â•ﬁ Update Report
	8 Urban Eco Settlement: Proposal for a Demonstration Exemplar at British Sugar, York
	Annex 1 Urban Eco Settlement
	Annex 1 Plan 1 Urban Eco Settlement
	Annex 1 Plan 2 Urban Eco Settlement
	Annex 1 Plan 3 Urban Eco Settlement
	Cover Annex 2 Urban Eco Settlement
	Annex 2 Urban Eco Settlement
	Cover Annex 3 Urban Eco Settlement
	Annex 3 Urban Eco Settlement

	9 Regional Funding Allocation Proposal
	Annex A Regional Funding Allocation
	Annex B Regional Funding Allocation

	10 Final Report of the Hungate Ad Hoc Scrutiny Committee
	Appendix A
	Annex A
	Annex B
	Annex C
	annex D
	Annex E
	annex F

	11 Final Report of the Education Scrutiny Committee
	Appendix A
	Annex A
	Annex B

	12 Improvement Plan 2009-10 Key Actions and Milestones
	Annex 1 Improvement Plan 2009-10

	13 Treasury Management Annual Report and Review of Prudential Indicators
	Annex C Treasury Management Annual report

	14 Capital Programme Out-turn 2008/09 and Revisions to the 2009/10-1013/14 Programme
	Annex 1 Capital Programme Outturn
	Annex 2 Capital Programme Outturne

	15 Revised Financial Regulations
	Annex A Revised Financial Regulations

	16 Land at the Rear of Acomb Explore, Front Street, Acomb
	Annex 1 Land at Rear Acomb Explore
	exempt annex 2 Land at Rear Acomb Explore

	18a Secondary Education Provision on the East side of the City
	18b Selection of a Supplier for a Managed Voice and Data Network
	Annex 1 - Managed Voice & Data
	Exempt Annex 2 - Managed Voice & Data


